South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project

Operational Improvements at North Avenue and American Avenue on State Route 99 in Fresno County

> 06-FRE-SR99-PM12.5 to 19.1 Project EA/ID Number 06-0H240/0600020559 State Clearinghouse Number 2019039121

Final Environmental Impact Report/ Environmental Assessment with Finding of No Significant Impact



South view of American Avenue over State Route 99



South view of North Avenue over State Route 99

Prepared by the State of California Department of Transportation

The environmental review, consultation, and any other actions required by applicable Federal environmental laws for this project are being, or have been, carried out by Caltrans pursuant to 23 U.S. Code 327 and the Memorandum of Understanding dated May 27, 2022 and executed by the Federal Highway Administration and Caltrans.

January 2023



General Information About This Document

What's in this document:

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), as assigned by the Federal Highway Administration, has prepared this Final Environmental Impact Report/ Environmental Assessment, which examines the potential environmental impacts of the alternatives being considered for the proposed project in Fresno County, California. Caltrans is the lead agency under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), and Caltrans is the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The document explains why the project is being proposed, what alternatives have been considered for the project, how the existing environment could be affected by the project, the potential impacts of each of the alternatives, and the proposed avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures.

The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment circulated to the public for review and comment for 51 days between October 14, 2021 and December 3, 2021. A virtual public hearing was held online on November 4, 2021 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. A Spanish version of the document circulated for a 45-day public review and comment period from December 15, 2021 to January 28, 2022. Comments received during the public circulation period are included in Appendix G of this document. Elsewhere throughout this document, changes made to text since the draft document was circulated have been identified. Minor editorial changes and clarifications have not been so identified. Additional copies of the document and the related technical studies are available for review at the Caltrans District 6 office at 1352 West Olive Avenue, Fresno, California 93728, and at the Easton Branch Library at 25 East Fantz Avenue, Fresno, California 93706. The document may also be downloaded in English and Spanish at the following website: https://bit.ly/3BanAAp

If you prefer a printed version of this document or a CD (compact disc) of this document in English or Spanish, please contact John Thomas, Senior Environmental Planner, at this email address: john.q.thomas@dot.ca.gov.

Printing this document: To save paper, this document has been set up for two-sided printing (to print the front and back of a page). Blank pages occur where needed throughout the document to maintain proper layout of the chapters and appendices.

For individuals with sensory disabilities, this document can be made available in Braille, in large print, on audiocassette, or on computer disk. To obtain a copy in one of these alternate formats, please write to or call Caltrans, Attention: John Thomas, District 6 Environmental, 2015 East Shields Avenue, Suite 100, Fresno, California 93726; Phone: (559) 408-4496 (Voice), or use the California Relay Service 1-800-735-2929 (Teletype to Voice), 1-800-735-2922 (Voice to Teletype), 1-800-855-3000 (Spanish Teletype to Voice and Voice to Teletype), 1-800-854-7784 (Spanish and English Speech-to-Speech), or 711. State Clearinghouse Number 2019039121 06-FRE-SR99-PM 12.5-19.1 06-0H240/06-0002-0559

Operational Improvements at American Avenue and North Avenue on State Route 99 from post miles 12.5 to 19.1 in Fresno County, California

FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT/ ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT with Finding of No Significant Impact

Submitted Pursuant to: (State) Division 13, California Public Resources Code (Federal) 42 U.S. Code 4332(2)(C)

THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA Department of Transportation

Diana Gomez, District Director District 6 – Central Region California Department of Transportation NEPA and CEQA Lead Agency

1/24/2023

Date

The following individual can be contacted for more information about this document:

John Thomas, District 6 Environmental, 2015 East Shields Avenue, Suite 100, Fresno, California 93726; phone: 559-408-4496; email: john.q.thomas@dot.ca.gov

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FINDING OF NO SIGNIFICANT IMPACT

for the

South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has determined that a hybrid of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 at American Avenue (Hybrid Alternative) and Alternative 2 at North Avenue will have no significant impact on the human environment. This Finding of No Significant Impact is based on the attached Environmental Assessment, which has been independently evaluated by Caltrans and determined to adequately and accurately discuss the need, environmental issues, and impacts of the proposed project and appropriate mitigation measures. It provides sufficient evidence and analysis for determining that an Environmental Impact Statement is not required. Caltrans takes full responsibility for the accuracy, scope, and content of the attached Environmental Assessment.

The environmental review, consultation, and any other actions required by applicable Federal environmental laws for this project are being, or have been, carried out by Caltrans pursuant to 23 USC 327 and the Memorandum of Understanding dated May 27, 2022, and executed by the Federal Highway Administration and Caltrans.

Diana Gomez, District Director District 6 – Central Region California Department of Transportation NEPA and CEQA Lead Agency

1/24/2023

Date

Summary

California participated in the "Surface Transportation Project Delivery Pilot Program" (Pilot Program) pursuant to 23 U.S. Code 327 for more than five years, beginning July 1, 2007 and ending September 30, 2012. MAP-21 (P.L. 112-141), signed by President Barack Obama on July 6, 2012 amended 23 U.S. Code 327 to establish a permanent Surface Transportation Project Delivery Program. As a result, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) entered into a Memorandum of Understanding pursuant to 23 U.S. Code 327 (National Environmental Policy Act Assignment Memorandum of Understanding) National Environmental Policy Act 327 Assignment Memorandum of Understanding with the Federal Highway Administration. The National Environmental Policy Act Assignment Memorandum of Understanding became effective October 1, 2012 and was renewed on May 27, 2022 for a term of 10 years. In summary, Caltrans continues to assume Federal Highway Administration responsibilities under the National Environmental Policy Act and other federal environmental laws in the same manner as was assigned under the Pilot Program, with minor changes. With the National Environmental Policy Act Assignment, the Federal Highway Administration assigned, and Caltrans assumed, all the U.S. Department of Transportation Secretary's responsibilities under the National Environmental Policy Act. This assignment includes projects on the State Highway System and Local Assistance Projects off the State Highway System within the State of California, except for certain categorical exclusions that the Federal Highway Administration assigned to Caltrans under the 23 U.S. Code 326 Categorical Exclusion Assignment Memorandum of Understanding, projects excluded by definition, and specific project exclusions.

The project is a joint project by Caltrans and the Federal Highway Administration and is subject to state and federal environmental review requirements. Project documentation, therefore, has been prepared in compliance with both the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental Policy Act. Caltrans is the lead agency under the National Environmental Policy Act. Caltrans is also the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act. In addition, the Federal Highway Administration's responsibility for environmental review, consultation, and any other actions required by applicable federal environmental laws for this project is being, or has been, carried out by Caltrans pursuant to 23 U.S. Code Section 327 (23 USC 327) and the Memorandum of Understanding dated December 23, 2016 and the National Environmental Policy Act 327 Memorandum of Understanding executed by the Federal Highway Administration and Caltrans.

Some impacts determined to be significant under the California Environmental Quality Act may not lead to a determination of significance under the National Environmental Policy Act. Because the National Environmental Policy Act is concerned with the significance of the project as a whole, often a "lower level" document is prepared for the National Environmental Policy Act. One of the most common joint document types is an Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment, which this document represents.

The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was circulated in English for public review and comment for 51 days, from October 14, 2021 to December 3, 2021. The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was circulated in Spanish for public review and comment for 45 days, from December 15, 2021 to January 28, 2022. The comments received during the public circulation period have been responded to and are included in this document (see Appendix G). After considering the comments received from the public and reviewing agencies, the Project Development Team identified the preferred alternatives—hybrid of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 at American Avenue (Hybrid Alternative) and Alternative 2 at North Avenue—and made the final determination of the project's impacts on the environment.

Under the California Environmental Quality Act, unmitigable significant impacts were identified due to impacts associated with Climate Change, which would indirectly and/or directly affect human beings within the project limits.

Under the National Environmental Policy Act, there were no significant impacts found, therefore a Notice of Availability of the Finding of No Significant Impact will be published for compliance. The notice will be sent to the affected units of federal, state, and local government, and to the State Clearinghouse in compliance with Executive Order 12372.

Caltrans, in cooperation with the City of Fresno, Fresno County, Fresno Council of Governments and Fresno County Transportation Authority, proposes to improve two existing interchanges on State Route 99—at American Avenue and North Avenue—between post miles 12.5 and 19.1 in the southern portion of the City of Fresno and Fresno County in California. As the lead agency for both the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental Policy Act environmental studies, Caltrans determined an Environmental Impact Report for the California Environmental Quality Act and an Environmental Assessment for the National Environmental Policy Act were the appropriate level of documentation for this project. Both are combined in this one joint document.

Caltrans constructed the State Route 99 alignment in 1965 with partial interchanges (half interchanges) where local roads intersect the highway in the project area. This project proposes to reconstruct two of the existing half interchanges to create full interchanges at American Avenue and North Avenue, with closure of the ramps at Cedar Avenue, which effectively moves the existing southbound on-ramp and northbound off-ramp to North Avenue.

The purpose for the project is to improve the operations of the interchanges because the half interchange configurations are now considered non-standard. The pavement is old and cracked. The existing on- and off-ramps have tight dimensions, making it difficult for vehicles, especially large trucks, to navigate. The half interchange configurations make it difficult for motorists to find local destinations and locate corresponding on- and off-ramps to and from State Route 99. This causes more travel on local roads, with stop-and-go and out-of-direction travel to reach desired destinations.

Two build alternatives and a No-Build Alternative are proposed at each interchange location. The build alternatives differ in the interchange configuration type proposed. See Chapter 1 Proposed Project for further description of the interchange configuration types considered. All build alternatives propose to reconstruct the existing overcrossings and construct on- and off-ramps to form complete full interchanges, with sidewalks, curb and gutter, lighting and signalization, and a stormwater system. The existing half interchange ramps at Cedar Avenue would be closed.

The project lies within an existing transportation corridor that includes State Route 99, Golden State Boulevard, and the Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railroad. The corridor runs in a northwest-southeast alignment through the county, crossing diagonally across a north-south- and east-west-oriented grid of local roads. Other railroads also cross through the area, such as the Union Pacific Railroad and the California High-Speed Rail project, which cross under and over State Route 99, respectively, in the project area. The Calwa railroad transfer yard sits within the corridor northeast of the North Avenue interchange, with multiple rail spurs designed to handle a large volume of train traffic going through the Fresno area.

A total of 40 properties are potentially directly affected by the proposed improvements: 8 properties at American Avenue and 32 properties at North Avenue. The area is designated as an industrial and commercial zone by the County and City of Fresno where a consistent vision for land use in the corridor supports traditional and emerging industrial and commercial business activities in a designated industrial priority area to serve the future economic health of the region. The project area is also a designated "Opportunity Zone," which is an investment tool to connect private capital with low-income communities. See section 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use to read more on the local planning in the project area. The project interchanges serve as main points of access for the existing and developing industrial and commercial businesses sitting along this portion of State Route 99 as part of an area dubbed "The Industrial Triangle."

The environmental studies conducted for the project area include analysis of a wide range of environmental topics. See Chapter 2 Affected Environment, Environmental Consequences, and Avoidance, Minimization and/or Mitigation Measures for a listing of the topics studied with broader discussion for topics where potential impacts have been identified. Chapter 3 California Environmental Quality Act Evaluation contains the California Environmental Quality Act-specific significance determinations as well as the 3.3 Climate Change section.

The environmental process includes coordination with many public agencies having planning or resource-specific jurisdiction within the project area. See Chapter 4 Comments and Coordination for more information about Caltrans' outreach efforts, including meetings with the South Central Fresno Assembly Bill 617 community steering committee and local community groups. Appendix H discusses Assembly Bill 617 as it relates to the project.

A Public Scoping and Information Meeting was held on March 20, 2019 to provide information about the proposed project alternatives and to gather input from the public. See Chapter 6 Distribution List for a list of agencies sent a copy of the Notice of Preparation and/or copy of a Public Notice distributed to announce the public meeting.

After meeting with local community groups and the South Central Fresno Assembly Bill 617 community steering committee, the Project Development Team proposed to enhance the proposed greenhouse gas mitigation by building a sidewalk and vegetative barrier along the east side of South Cherry Avenue, from Central Avenue to Orange Center Elementary school. The sidewalk installation will include streetlighting and improvements to the roadway adjacent to the sidewalk. The sidewalk will provide a paved route for students walking north from Central Avenue to Orange Center Elementary school, and the vegetative barrier will reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Vegetative barriers are recognized methods of mitigating greenhouse gas emissions, criteria air pollutants and extreme heat. See Appendix J for a map of the proposed sidewalk.

The following tables summarize the potential impacts identified for each of the proposed alternatives at each interchange location.

Summary of Potential Impacts from Alternatives at American Avenue

Potential Impact	Alternative 1	Alternative 2	Hybrid Alternative of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2	No-Build Alternative
Land Use—Property Converted to Transportation	21.72 acres, 7 properties	14.91 acres, 7 properties	26.11 acres, 7 properties	0 properties. No land use would change.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition— Business Displacements	1 farm office, equipment and irrigation may be displaced.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated farther east.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated.	No businesses relocated.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition— Housing Displacements	1 farmhouse may be displaced.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated farther east.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated.	No residents relocated.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition—Utility Service Relocation	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	No impact.
Traffic and Transportation/ Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities	Improved access to roadways, and pedestrian and bicycle facilities. Temporary delays and detours during construction.	Improved access to roadways, and pedestrian and bicycle facilities. Temporary delays and detours during construction.	Improved access to roadways, and pedestrian and bicycle facilities. Temporary delays and detours during construction.	No improved traffic conditions. No improved pedestrian or bicycle facilities.
Visual/Aesthetics	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact.
Paleontology	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery are included.	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery are included.	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery are included.	No impact.
Hazardous Waste and Materials	7 properties with hazardous waste.	7 properties with hazardous waste.	7 properties with hazardous waste.	No remediation of hazardous materials.

Potential Impact	Alternative 1	Alternative 2	Hybrid Alternative of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2	No-Build Alternative
Air Quality	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	No transportation improvements. Air quality would worsen with time as the population and land use increase and stop-and-go travel and delay increase on local streets.
Animal Species	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	No impact.
Climate Change (Does not consider emissions on the local street system)	In 2046, 3,414 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 3,414 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 3,414 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO_2 emissions.	In 2046, 545 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO_2 emissions, with no project improvements.

Potential Impact	Alternative 2	Alternative 4	No-Build Alternative
Land Use—Property Converted to Transportation	20.06 acres, 25 properties	15.01 acres, 20 properties	No land use would change. 0 properties affected.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition— Business Displacements	4 units potentially impacted.	2 units potentially impacted.	No units impacted.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition— Utility Service Relocation	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	No impact.
Traffic and Transportation/ Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities	Project improves roadways, with pedestrian and bicycle facilities.	Project improves roadways, with pedestrian and bicycle facilities.	No improvements to roadways or for pedestrians and bicycles.
Visual/Aesthetics	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact with replacement planting.	No improvement plantings.
Paleontology	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery are included.	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery are included.	No impact to paleontology resources.
Hazardous Waste and Materials	29 properties with hazardous waste.	25 properties with hazardous waste.	No remediation of hazardous materials.
Air Quality	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	No transportation improvements. Air quality would worsen with time as population and land use increase and stop-and-go travel and delay increase on local streets.
Animal Species	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	No impact.
Climate Change (Does not consider emissions on the local street system)	In 2046, 4,281 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 4,281 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 2,121 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions, with no project improvements.

Summary of Potential Impacts from Alternatives at North Avenue

Permits, Licenses, Agreements, and Certifications

A 1600 Permit from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and a Waste Discharge Requirement would be required for work disturbing the North Colony Canal on the north side of North Avenue, east of the intersection at Cedar Avenue.

Agency	Permits, Licenses, Agreements, and Certifications	Status
California Department of Fish and Wildlife	Fish and Game Code 1600 Permit, required for work at canals.	1600 Permit is obtained prior to start of construction.
Regional Water Quality Control Board	Waste Discharge Requirement	This permit is obtained prior to the start of construction.

Table of Contents

Chapter 1 Proposed Project	1
1.1 Introduction	1
1.2 Purpose and Need	5
1.2.1 Purpose	5
1.2.2 Need	5
1.3 Project Description	
1.4 Project Alternatives	
1.4.1 Build Alternatives	
1.4.2 No-Build (No-Action) Alternative	
1.5 Comparison of Alternatives	
1.6 Identification of a Preferred Alternative	22
1.7 Alternatives Considered but Eliminated from Further	Discussion Prior to
the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Asse	essment (DEIR/EA)
24	
1.8 Permits and Approvals Needed	
Chapter 2 Affected Environment, Environmental Consequ	uences, and
Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures	
2.1 Human Environment	
2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use	
2.1.2 Relocations and Real Property Acquisition	
2.1.3 Utilities	57
2.1.4 Traffic and Transportation/Pedestrian and Bicycle	e Facilities58
2.1.5 Visual/Aesthetics	70
2.2 Physical Environment	74
2.2.1 Paleontology	74
2.2.2 Hazardous Waste and Materials	77
2.2.3 Air Quality	
2.3 Biological Environment	
2.3.1 Animal Species	
Chapter 3 California Environmental Quality Act Evaluation	n 113
3.1 Determining Significance Under the California Enviro	nmental Quality Act
113	
3.2 CEQA Checklist	
3.2.1 Aesthetics	
3.2.2 Agriculture and Forest Resources	
3.2.3 Air Quality	
3.2.4 Biological Resources	
3.2.5 Cultural Resources	
3.2.6 Energy	
3.2.7 Geology and Soils	
3.2.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions	
3.2.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials	
3.2.10 Hydrology and Water Quality	

3.2.11	Land Use and Planning	. 128
3.2.12	Mineral Resources	. 129
3.2.13	Noise	. 129
3.2.14	Population and Housing	. 130
3.2.15	Public Services	. 130
3.2.16	Recreation	. 131
3.2.17	Transportation	. 132
3.2.18	Tribal Cultural Resources	. 132
3.2.19	Utilities and Service Systems	. 133
3.2.20	Wildfire	. 134
3.2.21	Mandatory Findings of Significance	. 135
3.3 Clim	nate Change	. 139
3.3.1	Regulatory Setting	. 139
3.3.2	Environmental Setting	. 143
3.3.3	Project Analysis	. 148
3.3.4	Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategies	. 155
3.3.5	Adaptation	. 159
Chapter 4	Comments and Coordination	. 167
Chapter 5	List of Preparers	. 177
Chapter 6	Distribution List	. 183
Appendix	A Title VI Policy Statement	. 191
Appendix	B Summary of Relocation Benefits	. 193
Appendix	C Farmland Conversion Impact Rating Form NRCS-CPA-106	. 199
Appendix	D Notice of Preparation	. 201
Appendix	E Avoidance, Minimization and/or Mitigation Summary	. 209
Appendix	F Federal Highway Administration Concurrence	.217
Appendix	G Comments and Responses	.221
Appendix	H Assembly Bill 617 South Central Fresno Community Map	.289
Appendix	North Avenue Project Area	. 291
Appendix	J South Cherry Avenue Sidewalk and Vegetative Barrier	. 293

List of Figures

Figure 1-1	Project Vicinity Map	3
Figure 1-2	Project Location Map	4
Figure 1-3	Typical Interchange Configuration Types	26
Figure 1-4	Alternative 1 Spread Diamond (Type L-2) at American Avenue	27
Figure 1-5	Alternative 2 Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9) at American Avenue .	28
Figure 1-6	Hybrid Alternative at American Avenue	29
Figure 1-7	Alternative 2 Modified Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9) at North	
Avenue		30
Figure 1-8	Alternative 4 Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI) at North	
Avenue		31
Figure 2-1	Fresno County Zoning Map	44
Figure 2-2	City of Fresno Zoning Map	45
Figure 2-3	Existing Roadside Features	71
Figure 3-1	U.S. 2016 Greenhouse Gas Emissions1	45
Figure 3-2	California 2017 Greenhouse Gas Emissions1	46
Figure 3-3	Change in California Gross Domestic Product, Population, and	
Greenhous	e Gas Emissions since 20001	46
Figure 3-4	Possible Use of Traffic Operation Strategies in Reducing On-roa	ad
Carbon Did	oxide Emissions1	50
Figure 3-5	California Climate Strategy1	55

List of Tables

Summary of Potential Impacts from Alternatives at American Avenue	ix
Summary of Potential Impacts from Alternatives at North Avenue	xi
Table 1-1 Mainline Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume	8
Table 1-2 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at American Avenue	8
Table 1-3 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at North Avenue	9
Table 1-4 Comparison of Alternatives at American Avenue	18
Table 1-5 Comparison of Alternatives at North Avenue	20
Table 2-1 Zoning of Properties by Interchange	40
Table 2-2 Potential Land Converted to Transportation at American Avenu	le 47
Table 2-3 Potential Land Converted to Transportation at North Avenue	48
Table 2-4 Potential Relocations at American Avenue	52
Table 2-5 Potential Relocations at North Avenue	54
Table 2-6 Mainline Annual Average DailyTraffic	62
Table 2-7 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at American Avenue	64
Table 2-8 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at North Avenue	68
Table 2-9 Potential for Hazardous Waste at American Avenue	80
Table 2-10 Potential for Hazardous Waste at North Avenue	82
Table 2-11 State and Federal Criteria Air Pollutant Effects and Sources	90

Table 2-12 State and Federal Attainment Status	92
Table 2-13 Ozone Concentrations for 2014 through 2018 at the Fresno	
Drummond Avenue Monitor	92
Table 2-14 PM ₁₀ Concentrations for 2014 through 2018 at the Fresno	
Drummond Avenue Monitor	92
Table 2-15 PM _{2.5} Concentrations for 2014 through 2018 at the Fresno Pacif	ïc
Hamilton/Winery Avenue Monitor	93
Table 2-16 Summary of Project-Level Carbon Monoxide Analysis	98
Table 2-17 Particulate Matter Emissions Alternative Comparison at America	an
Avenue	99
Table 2-18 Particulate Matter Emissions Alternative Comparison at North	
Avenue1	00
Table 3-1 Regional and Local Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan14	48
Table 3-2 EMFAC Modeled CO ₂ Emissions for American Avenue1	51
Table 3-3 EMFAC Modeled CO ₂ Emissions for North Avenue1	52
Table 1: Construction Equipment Noise	84

1.1 Introduction

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), as assigned by the Federal Highway Administration, is the lead agency under the National Environmental Policy Act. Caltrans is also the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act.

Caltrans, in cooperation with the Fresno Council of Governments, Fresno County and City of Fresno, proposes to reconstruct two existing half interchanges where State Route 99 intersects with American Avenue and North Avenue by expanding them to full interchanges and bringing them into compliance with current Caltrans design standards. This project lies at the southern boundary of the city of Fresno in Fresno County in the center of the San Joaquin Valley. The interchanges are located within a major transportation corridor that includes State Route 99, the Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railroad line, Golden State Boulevard, and California High-Speed Rail line, which is currently under construction. The County and the City have zoned properties in the corridor to meet planning goals represented in their respective general plans, which include supporting industrial and commercial uses, maximizing the transportation advantages of the corridor, and supporting economic development within the county. See Figure 1-1 Project Vicinity Map and Figure 1-2 Project Location Map.

This project is included in the Fresno Council of Governments 2018 Regional Transportation Plan and both proposed interchanges (American and North) are included in the Non-exempt Project Listing of the 2019 Update of the Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP). The project is proposed to be funded through a combination of state and local funding sources.

The Fresno County Transportation Authority (FCTA) will provide most of the funding through its Measure C and Regional Transportation Mitigation Funds (RTMF) programs. Measure C is a Fresno County-wide half-cent sales tax for transportation purposes that was reauthorized by voters in 2006. The Fresno County Transportation Authority also administers the Regional Transportation Mitigation Funds, which are collected from developer fees to mitigate traffic impacts.

Funding is also proposed to come from the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). Specifically, funds from the Regional Improvement Program (RIP), a sub-program of the State Transportation Improvement Program, have been proposed by the Fresno Council of Governments. Additional funding sources may be identified in the future and may include federal grants. Construction of the proposed work is expected to take approximately 18 months at each location. The interchanges would be constructed at approximately the same time, but the ultimate schedule will be determined before construction begins. The current preliminary schedule begins construction in June 2024, with opening day anticipated in January 2026. See Section 1.5 Comparison of Alternatives for the cost estimates and potential impacts of the proposed alternatives at each interchange.

New access agreements would be required with Fresno County and the City of Fresno due to changes to existing on- and off-ramps to and from State Route 99.

Note: Throughout this document, all roadway descriptions will be discussed in a south-to-north and west-to-east order following Caltrans' post mile order for all state highways within each county. The order begins with post mile 1 at the southern border of a county and increases to the north, and the same goes from the western border to the east. For example, post mile 12.5 on State Route 99 in Fresno County is south of American Avenue, 12.5 miles from the southern county border, and post mile 19.1 is north of North Avenue, 19.1 miles north of the southern county border. All descriptions will begin in the southern portion of the project area and note features along the route toward the north.









1.2 Purpose and Need

The discussion of the purpose and need for this project provides the reasoning why the project is being considered. The purpose of a project identifies the objectives of the project; the need describes the key deficiencies of the roadway that the project is intended to address. The purpose and need form the basis for comparing the proposed alternatives, along with potential environmental impacts, to select an eventual "preferred" alternative to construct.

1.2.1 Purpose

The purpose of the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor project is to reconstruct the existing interchanges on State Route 99 at American Avenue and North Avenue by expanding them to full interchanges and bringing them into compliance with current Caltrans design standards, thereby improving the traffic operations at those locations.

1.2.2 Need

The existing half interchanges do not meet current Caltrans design standards. The interchanges were built in 1965, and the pavement is now old and highly deteriorated. Only two traffic lanes cross the existing structures over the highway, one lane for each direction of travel. The existing interchange configurations are non-standard and are "partial" or "split" to form half interchanges at American Avenue, Cedar Avenue and North Avenue.

The existing half interchanges are not full interchanges with all options for getting on and off the highway. Half interchanges mean on- and off-ramps are separated from each other, making it difficult for motorists to find corresponding on- or off-ramps and forcing vehicles to use local streets to reach their destinations. The on- and off-ramps also have restrictive dimensions, making it difficult for traffic, especially large trucks, to navigate them.

Also, traffic is expected to increase in the project area due to the implementation of planned development on both sides of the highway. Caltrans traffic studies show the operation and performance of the interchanges need updating now because traffic conditions will continue to worsen if no improvements are made.

Existing Conditions

State Route 99 Mainline

State Route 99 is a major north-south transportation route in the state of California. It provides access to communities through the San Joaquin and Sacramento valleys and to many of the major cities located inland from the California coast. State Route 99 is not only an important route within the

region for the transportation of goods and services but, equally important, it is one of the main routes for the distribution of imports and exports to and from the ports of major coastal cities to all points within the state and beyond.

Currently, State Route 99 within the project limits (post miles 12.5 to 19.1) is a six-lane, principal arterial, with a posted speed limit of 70 miles per hour. The ultimate route concept is for eight lanes. The travel lanes are 12 feet wide with approximately 10-foot-wide paved shoulders and a 46-foot-wide median dividing the northbound and southbound traffic.

American Avenue

American Avenue is an east-west two-lane local road with a posted speed limit of 55 miles per hour. The existing interchange configuration at American Avenue is a half-diamond interchange with one on-ramp and one off-ramp. A southbound off-ramp on the west side of State Route 99 enables traffic to exit the highway onto American Avenue, and a northbound on-ramp on the east side of State Route 99 enables traffic to head north on State Route 99 from American Avenue. Having only two ramps prevents northbound State Route 99 traffic from exiting the highway at American Avenue, and there is no southbound on-ramp to State Route 99 for traffic leaving American Avenue to head south. A full interchange would provide all four options to enter and exit the highway in one location.

Half interchanges are no longer supported in Caltrans design standards. Half interchanges force vehicles to use local roads to find access to the highway or local destinations. For example, when delivery trucks travel north on State Route 99 to deliver supplies to the Fresno County Juvenile Justice Campus located next to the American Avenue interchange, currently those delivery trucks are unable to exit the highway at American Avenue because the interchange there has no northbound off-ramp. Instead, northbound traffic must exit the highway about 1 mile south at Clovis Avenue, or north at Chestnut Avenue. Once off the highway, vehicles must travel on local roads to get to the campus. Along the way, vehicles must stop at numerous local intersections and at times wait at railroad crossings for trains to pass before reaching the desired destination.

The current American Avenue overcrossing is a two-lane bridge structure. The southbound off-ramp, where it joins American Avenue, is currently controlled with a stop sign. A short section of sidewalk extends along the north side of the American Avenue overcrossing to the end of the bridge deck at each end. There is no lighting, and the existing stormwater system is outdated. The pavement is also old (constructed in 1965) and severely cracked and worn.

North Avenue

North Avenue is an east-west two-lane local road with a posted speed limit of 45 miles per hour. The interchange at North Avenue is a half-diamond

configuration with two split ramps: two ramps at North Avenue and two opposing ramps at Cedar Avenue. Currently, at North Avenue, there is a southbound off-ramp to exit State Route 99 onto North Avenue and a northbound on-ramp for traffic heading north on State Route 99. Cedar Avenue has the opposing ramps with a southbound on-ramp and a northbound off-ramp.

Split ramps mean that the ramps of a typical full interchange are split between two interchange locations. In this case, they are split 0.33 mile apart. Split access can cause additional out-of-direct travel, which is compounded by the diagonal orientation of State Route 99 crossing the north-south grid of local streets. Finding a path to destinations can be circuitous and disorienting unless drivers know the area well. Drivers then have a difficult time finding a path back to the correct ramps onto the highway, with stop-and-go travel as vehicles stop at numerous local intersections and/or wait at railroad crossings for trains to pass by.

The current North Avenue overcrossing is narrow with a two-lane bridge. The ramps are one lane only. Traffic is controlled with stop signs where the ramps meet North Avenue. Parkway Avenue extends between North and Cedar avenues on the west side of State Route 99, serving as a frontage road to businesses, as well as access to the southbound on-ramp to State Route 99 from Cedar Avenue. On the eastern side of State Route 99, North and Cedar avenues meet east of the overcrossing to form an intersection that is controlled by four-way signalization.

A short section of sidewalk extends along the north side of the North Avenue overcrossing and ends at each end of the bridge deck. There is no overhead lighting. There are traffic signals at the intersections of North and Orange avenues as well as North and Cedar avenues. There is an outdated stormwater system at the interchange. The pavement is old and severely cracked and worn.

Traffic Volumes

A Traffic Operations Report was completed in May 2020 along with additional traffic data prepared by Caltrans District 6 Traffic Operations and Planning units. The studies provided estimated Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) volume data for the 2019 Existing year and predicted traffic volume data for the 2026 Open to Traffic Year and the 2046 Planning Horizon Year.

Caltrans uses Annual Average Daily Traffic volumes to measure the carrying capacity of roadway features, such as roadway segments, intersections and interchanges. Average Daily Traffic volume numbers represent the traffic demand or the volume of traffic using a roadway in a 24-hour period. Roadways are designed to handle specific volumes of traffic. When the capacity of a roadway is exceeded, the effectiveness of the roadway is reduced. According to the 2020 Traffic Operations Report, traffic volumes are

expected to increase in the project area over the next several years at both interchanges.

State Route 99 Mainline

Table 1-1 Mainline Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume shows traffic volumes and the percentage of truck traffic on State Route 99 between North and American avenues. The table shows that traffic volume on State Route 99 is predicted to increase by approximately 174,650 Annual Average Daily Traffic from 2019 to 2046, and the percentage of truck volume would remain at approximately 16 percent of the vehicle mix.

Mainline	Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Percentage
2019 Existing	122,650	19,624	16%
2026 No-Build	199,050	31,848	16%
2046 No-Build	297,300	47,568	16%

Table 1-1 Mainline Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume

Source: Caltrans Travel Forecasting.

American Avenue

Table 1-2 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at American Avenue shows traffic volumes for American Avenue and assumes the interchange remains a half interchange with no improvements made. The table shows an increase in traffic volume by 2,900 Annual Average Daily Traffic between 2019 to 2046. Truck volumes increase by 261 Annual Average Daily Traffic but remain at 9 percent of the vehicle mix. The increases are due mostly to population growth and implementation of land use planning in the area.

American Interchange	Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Percentage
2019 Existing	4,900	441	9%
2026 No-Build	5,700	513	9%
2046 No-Build	7,800	702	9%

Table 1-2 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at American Avenue

Source: Caltrans Travel Forecasting.

North Avenue

Table 1-3 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at North Avenue shows traffic volumes for North Avenue as a split-interchange with Cedar Avenue volumes included. The table shows an increase in traffic volume by 25,400 Annual Average Daily Traffic between 2019 to 2046 with no project constructed.

Truck traffic follows similarly with truck volume increasing by 9,190 Annual Average Daily Traffic between 2019 and 2046. Truck percentage of the vehicle mix maintains 33.5 percent between 2026 and 2046. The total increase in traffic volume in the area is mostly from population growth and implementation of land use planning in the area.

North Interchange	Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Percentage
2019 Existing	14,000	4,060	29%
2026 No-Build	30,000	9,996	33.5%
2046 No-Build	39,400	13,250	33.5%

 Table 1-3 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at North Avenue

Source: Caltrans Travel Forecasting.

Level of Service

Level of service is a qualitative rating system used to measure the effectiveness of a roadway or interchange to transport vehicles. The level of service rating system uses letters "A" through "F" to describe and measure service quality. A designation of level of service "A" indicates excellent travel conditions, while level of service "F" indicates very poor, congested conditions.

Traffic studies show that mainline State Route 99 and all studied interchanges are currently (2019) operating at acceptable levels of service during peak travel periods, when traffic volumes are the highest and the interchanges would be experiencing the worst conditions. However, there are three spot locations at North Avenue that are currently operating at level of service "F." See section 2.1.4 Traffic and Transportation/Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities for more details on transportation facilities.

Interchange Spacing

Caltrans standards require a spacing of 1 mile between interchanges on a highway in an urban setting, where the closest interchange is not a freeway-to-freeway interchange.

The 2020 Traffic Operations Report study area for this project includes a 6mile stretch of State Route 99 with seven local roads crossing the highway from Clovis Avenue to Jensen Avenue. Five of the seven interchanges are half interchanges (split or partial interchanges).

Interchange spacing between Cedar Avenue and North Avenue is 0.33 mile apart, which is shorter than the 1-mile spacing standard. The shorter spacing is considered to contribute to diminishing traffic operations on State Route 99 at these interchanges. The short spacing contributes to vehicle merging and diverging conflicts as traffic enters and exits the highway at Cedar and North avenues. See Section 2.1.4 Traffic and Transportation/Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities for more details on interchange spacing.

Bicycle and Pedestrian Facilities

Caltrans projects intersecting local city and county road systems must consider including features that align with the local planning goals for bicycles and pedestrians. The current dimensions of the overcrossings are narrow with no additional area for bicyclists and very little space for pedestrians and do not comply with current Caltrans standards. Improved bicycle and pedestrian access is a high priority for the City of Fresno and Fresno County and has been identified as a deficiency in the project area. See Section 2.1.4 Traffic and Transportation/Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities for more details on bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

Logical Termini and Independent Utility

Federal Highway Administration regulations (23 Code of Federal Regulations 771.111 [f]) require that the action evaluated:

- Connect logical termini and be of sufficient length to address environmental matters on a broad scope.
- Have independent utility or independent significance (be usable and be a reasonable expenditure even if no additional transportation improvements in the area are made).
- Not restrict consideration of alternatives for other reasonably foreseeable transportation improvements.

The project has logical termini and is of sufficient length to address the deficiencies identified at the interchanges. The project replaces two existing interchanges. The proposed improvements not only update the dimensions of the bridge and ramps to bring the interchanges up to Caltrans design standards, but improvements are also provided to existing local roads and intersections next to the interchanges to ensure the road system operates effectively out to the year 2046, which is the Caltrans required 20-year planning horizon. Also, the environmental studies for this project have been conducted with a wide scope from the beginning to ensure the potential environmental impacts are sufficiently identified.

The project has independent utility and is a reasonable expenditure because the improvements address the identified deficiencies even if no other transportation improvements are made. There are no additional projects needed to address the identified deficiencies at the interchanges.

The project does not restrict the consideration of alternatives for reasonably foreseeable transportation improvements. The Fresno Council of Governments 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies identifies other transportation improvements in the State Route 99

corridor. The County and City are actively implementing their respective general planning for the project area (2000 Fresno County General Plan, as amended, and City of Fresno's 2014 General Plan, as amended). The 2018 Regional Transportation Plan proposes several projects to improve bicycle and pedestrian mobility in the project area as well as improvements to the existing Central Avenue interchange, and the City of Fresno is planning a grade-separation of North Avenue from the California High-Speed Rail crossing located east of the proposed interchange in this project. The project design has been developed to consider other reasonably foreseeable projects and does not conflict with or constrain the design of these other projects. Through regular coordination with the County and City, this project includes design features that demonstrate consideration of these other plans. See Section 1.4 Project Alternatives to see the design features being proposed.

1.3 Project Description

This section describes the proposed action and the project alternatives developed to meet the purpose and need of the project, while avoiding or minimizing potential environmental impacts.

The project sits at the southern border of the City of Fresno in Fresno County on State Route 99 between post miles 12.5 and 19.1. There are two existing half interchanges at either end of the project location, one at American Avenue and the other at North Avenue. The project proposes to reconstruct these two half interchanges by expanding them to full interchanges and bringing them up to current Caltrans design standards.

Along with the No-Build Alternative, two build alternatives (Alternatives 1 and 2 at American Avenue, Alternatives 2 and 4 at North Avenue) are being considered at each current half interchange location. Caltrans design standards have been used to prepare a reasonable range of alternatives to address the deficiencies of the existing interchanges. Each build alternative proposes to construct a full interchange of a type that is appropriate for the existing topography and infrastructure in the existing project setting.

1.4 **Project Alternatives**

The Caltrans Highway Design Manual describes an interchange as a combination of ramps and grade separations at the junction of two or more roadways for the purpose of reducing or eliminating traffic conflicts, to improve safety, and increase traffic capacity at the crossing. The manual further states: "Crossing conflicts are reduced by grade separation," and "Turning conflicts for traffic are either eliminated or minimized, depending upon the type of interchange design."

The selection of an interchange type and its design are influenced by many factors, including traffic volume, speed, and composition of traffic to be served (trucks, cars, bicycles, and pedestrians), as well as the number of intersecting roads, arrangement of the local street system, local planning and consideration of growth projections, proximity to adjacent interchanges, community impact, and cost.

Several interchange types are proposed for consideration to improve the operations of the existing interchanges. See Figure 1-3 Typical Interchange Configuration Types at the end of Chapter 1 to see diagrams of three basic types. The proposed alternatives are either typical interchange-type configurations or they are modifications of typical types. Two interchange types are being considered for American Avenue, and two interchange types are being considered at North Avenue. See the following sections for a description of the project alternatives being proposed.

All proposed alternatives include construction of a new bridge structure crossing over State Route 99. On- and off-ramps for all directions of travel are proposed in each alternative, as are sidewalks, curb and drainage gutters, and crosswalks for pedestrians. Overcrossings would include four through lanes, two in each direction, plus shoulders wide enough for bicycle use, consistent with local planning for bicycle facilities. Signals and lighting would be installed. A new drainage system would be installed to handle stormwater. New landscaping would replace any landscaping removed by the project. Each build alternative would require the purchase of additional right-of-way.

All proposed improvements would be constructed to meet requirements of the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act.

Some of the project features proposed in this project are a result of decisions to implement Caltrans Deputy Directive 64-Revision 2 (DD-64R2), which is the Caltrans policy to implement a "Complete Streets" program. The policy requires the consideration of the needs of travelers of all ages and abilities throughout the Caltrans project development process and activities in the planning, programming, design, construction, operations, and maintenance of the State Highway System. Caltrans views all transportation improvements (new and retrofit) as opportunities to improve safety, access, and mobility for all travelers and recognizes bicycle, pedestrian, and transit modes as integral elements of the transportation system.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures to reduce potential impacts that are applied on all Caltrans projects. These were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.

1.4.1 Build Alternatives

The following alternatives propose different interchange configurations for American and North avenues. The new on- and off-ramps would merge with State Route 99 in different locations depending on each alternative configuration. The merging ramps would be the only work proposed to the State Route 99 mainline, except for traffic control during construction where signs would be placed in the existing right-of-way.

American Avenue

Two alternatives are proposed at American Avenue:

- Alternative 1 Spread Diamond (Type L-2)
- Alternative 2 Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9)

See Figure 1-4 Alternative 1 Spread Diamond (Type L-2) and Figure 1-5 Alternative 2 Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9) at the end of this chapter to see each alternative overlaying aerial photography of the project area.

Alternatives 1 and 2 are standard interchange designs for state roadways in California. The alternatives would construct a new overcrossing structure with room for four lanes, shoulders and sidewalks. New intersections would be installed on American Avenue where the new on- and off-ramps meet American Avenue and would include signals and lighting, sidewalks, curb and gutter. These are located to the west and east of the new overcrossing, according to each alternative design. Four lanes would be paved and striped from the new interchange along American Avenue through the on- and off-ramp intersections, and then would taper down to two lanes. To the west, four lanes would drop to two lanes before the driveway at the County Juvenile Justice Campus; to the east, four lanes would taper down and end before intersecting Golden State Boulevard. The signals at the Juvenile Justice Campus intersection may be updated.

North Avenue

Two alternatives are proposed at North Avenue:

- Alternative 2 Modified Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9)
- Alternative 4 Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI)

See Figure 1-7 Alternative 2 Modified Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9) and Figure 1-8 Alternative 4 Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI) at the end of this section to see each alternative overlaying an aerial photography map of the project area.

Alternative 2 is a modification of a standard cloverleaf design to fit into the current built environment. Alternative 4 is being considered for this location because the design can support the largest volume of traffic effectively, and it requires the least amount of right-of-way compared to other options.

In addition to the proposed features described for all build alternatives, each of the build alternatives proposed at North Avenue would improve the intersections where North Avenue and Orange Avenue meet, west of the interchange, and where North Avenue and Cedar Avenue meet to the east.

North Avenue would be paved and striped for four lanes from the new interchange, west and east, to the intersections at Orange Avenue and Cedar Avenue, and then taper down to two lanes. Left-turn pockets would be installed at all four legs of these intersections. Intersections where the on- and off-ramps meet at North Avenue would also include signals and lighting, with sidewalks and crosswalks. The alternatives would remove the existing northbound off-ramp and southbound on-ramp to and from Cedar Avenue.

All build alternatives proposed at North Avenue would include the realignment of the north end of Parkway Drive to connect with Orange Avenue instead of at North Avenue. Currently, Parkway Drive is a frontage road just west of State Route 99 between Cedar Avenue and North Avenue.

The proposed improvements include bicycle and pedestrian facilities at both American Avenue and North Avenue. These facilities would complete gaps in existing pedestrian circulation and/or connect to bicycle facilities and would be in line with the most recent planning. Caltrans would continue to coordinate with the County and City to design the details of these facilities.

Common Design Features of the Build Alternatives

All proposed alternatives would include construction of the following features:

- New bridge structure crossing over State Route 99—Overcrossings would include the width for four through lanes, two lanes for each direction of traffic, plus shoulders wide enough for bicycle use, consistent with local bicycle facilities planning.
- On- and off-ramps—Ramps would be installed for all directions of travel at each interchange with updated ramp dimensions and number of lanes, including ramp metering technology.
- Remove on- and off-ramps at Cedar Avenue—The ramps would be closed and moved to North Avenue. The southbound on-ramp and the northbound off-ramp currently at Cedar Avenue would be removed.
- Sidewalks, crosswalks, curb and drainage gutters—These features would be installed at the interchanges, with sidewalks and crosswalks for pedestrians and curb and gutter to manage drainage.
- Signals and lighting—Signals would be installed where the on- and off-ramps meet the local road system. Continued coordination with the City and County would determine if and where overhead lights would be installed.
- Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) elements—The project would replace and install new Intelligent Transportation System elements. These

elements encompass a broad range of wireless and wire line communications-based information electronic technologies to improve safety, mobility, and capacity of the transportation system. This project would update existing traffic signals and install Traffic Management System elements, which may include traffic monitoring stations, ramp meters, closed circuit televisions, changeable message signs, highway advisory radio, extinguishable message signs, communications systems, active traffic management, and roadway warning systems.

- Drainage system—A new drainage system would be installed to meet stormwater requirements.
- Landscaping—Caltrans standards require replacement landscaping for any landscaping removed by the project. Replacement landscaping would be installed at the end of construction for the project or in the future as a separate project.
- Bicycle and pedestrian facilities—Design plans at each interchange would accommodate area for a bicycle path in accordance with Caltrans design standards and consideration of the 2017 City of Fresno Active Transportation Plan. Sidewalks and crosswalks would be constructed to Caltrans design standards. The extent of sidewalks and type of bicycle facilities would be determined as Caltrans continues to coordinate with the County and City.
- Night work—Night work is anticipated to complete demolition of the existing bridge structures.
- Traffic Management Plan—In compliance with Caltrans standards, a plan would be developed to manage construction activities and vehicle traffic during construction. This includes addressing detours, operations during night work, signs for traffic management, and notification to emergency services, local business and residents, and the traveling public. Traffic control signs would be placed in the existing right-of-way during construction.
- All transportation features would be constructed to meet the requirements of the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act.

Unique Features of the Build Alternatives

Below is a discussion of the unique features of the build alternatives at each interchange location.

American Avenue

 Roundabout intersections—Roundabout intersections are being considered for the ramp terminal intersections where the on- and offramps meet on American Avenue. These intersections would typically be designed as standard four-way intersections. Both Alternatives 1 and 2 propose the consideration of a roundabout intersection. Traffic studies show that roundabouts can be safer, under certain conditions, and are viewed as beneficial to slow through traffic down and reduce right-angle collisions at intersections. Coordination would continue with Fresno County to determine whether roundabouts would be installed.

• Monument—A "Welcome to Fresno" monument with lighting is in the southeast quadrant of the interchange at American Avenue. The design would include measures to either protect the monument or move the monument to a new location.

North Avenue

- Diverging Diamond Interchange—The proposed Alternative 4 Diverging Diamond Interchange configuration is not a common interchange type on State Route 99 today, but examples can be found in other parts of California and other states in the U.S. One of the unique features of this interchange type is the method of weaving or braiding traffic lanes to facilitate a smoother flow of traffic through the interchange. The design requires less space and supports a greater volume of traffic, with fewer traffic accidents compared to other standard interchange types.
- Roundabout intersections—Roundabout intersections are being considered for the ramp terminal intersections where on- and off-ramps meet on North Avenue. Alternative 2 proposes the roundabout intersection type. This intersection type would not be effective in the proposed Alternative 4 Diverging Diamond Interchange configuration; however, this intersection type could be considered for other local street intersections such as the North Avenue and Orange Avenue intersection and the North Avenue and Cedar Avenue intersection. Coordination would continue with the City of Fresno to determine whether roundabouts would be installed at intersections.

1.4.2 No-Build (No-Action) Alternative

A No-Build Alternative is considered at each of the interchange locations. The No-Build Alternative represents the current conditions, and the conditions if no improvements were made in the future. For this project, selection of a No-Build Alternative would mean the half- interchanges would remain with missing onand off-ramps. There would be continuing deterioration of driving conditions as more traffic congestion, delay, and vehicle idling occur, contributing to the main source of toxic air emissions and further deterioration of air quality at the interchanges. Stop-and-go and circuitous out-of-direction travel would continue and worsen, while more potholes and cracks would occur in the deteriorating pavement, making driving in the area even more difficult.

1.5 Comparison of Alternatives

Two build alternatives are proposed at American Avenue, and two build alternatives are proposed at North Avenue. All build alternatives would reconstruct the existing overcrossings and construct on- and off-ramps to form complete full interchanges, with sidewalks, curb and gutter, lighting and signalization, and a stormwater system. The existing half interchange ramps at Cedar Avenue would be closed.

The following tables provide a comparison of the cost and potential impacts identified for each of the proposed alternatives at each interchange location. For further discussion of the environmental impacts, see Chapter 2 Affected Environment, Environmental Consequences, and Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures. Chapter 3 California Environmental Quality Act Evaluation contains the California Environmental Quality Act-specific significance determinations.

Potential Impact	Alternative 1	Alternative 2	Hybrid Alternative of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2	No-Build Alternative
Interchange Type	Spread Diamond (Type L-2)	Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9)	Southbound (L-2) Northbound (L-9)	Partial Interchange
Projected Cost Estimates (2026)	\$48,760,000	\$54,421,000	\$34,872,071	\$0
Land Use—Property Converted to Transportation	21.72 acres, 7 properties	14.91 acres, 7 properties	26.11 acres, 7 properties	0 properties. No land use would change.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition— Business Displacements	1 farm office, equipment and irrigation may be displaced.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated farther east.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated farther east.	No businesses relocated.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition—Housing Displacements	1 farmhouse may be displaced.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated farther east.	Acquisition of property. Driveway entrance may be relocated farther east.	No residents relocated.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition—Utility Service Relocation	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	No impact.
Traffic and Transportation/ Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities	Improved access to roadways, pedestrian and bicycle facilities. Temporary delays and detours during construction.	Improved access to roadways, pedestrian and bicycle facilities. Temporary delays and detours during construction.	Improved access to roadways, pedestrian and bicycle facilities. Temporary delays and detours during construction.	No improved traffic conditions. No improved pedestrian or bicycle facilities.
Visual/Aesthetics	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact.
Paleontology	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery included.	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery included.	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery included.	No impact.
Hazardous Waste and Materials	7 properties with hazardous waste.	7 properties with hazardous waste.	7 properties with hazardous waste.	No remediation of hazardous materials.
Air Quality	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation	No transportation improvements. Air quality would worsen with time as population and land use increase, and stop-and-go and

Table 1-4 Comp	parison of Alternatives	s at American Avenue		
----------------	-------------------------	----------------------		
Potential Impact	Alternative 1	Alternative 2	Hybrid Alternative of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2	No-Build Alternative
---	--	--	---	--
		Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	delay increase on local streets.
Animal Species	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	No impact.
Climate Change (Does not consider emissions on the local street system)	In 2046, 3,414 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 3,414 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 3,414 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 545 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions, with no project improvements.

Potential Impact	Alternative 2	Alternative 4	No-Build Alternative
Interchange Types	Modified Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9)	Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI)	Split Interchange
Projected Cost Estimates (2026)	\$83,923,000	\$70,674,000	\$O
Land Use—Property Converted to Transportation	20.06 acres, 25 properties	15.01 acres, 20 properties	No land use would change. 0 properties affected.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition— Business Displacements	4 units potentially impacted.	2 units potentially impacted.	No units impacted.
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition—Utility Service Relocation	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	Relocate utilities. Temporary intermittent service during construction.	No impact.
Traffic and Transportation/ Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities	Project improves roadways, with pedestrian and bicycle facilities.	Project improves roadways, with pedestrian and bicycle facilities.	No improvements to roadways or for pedestrians and bicycles.
Visual/Aesthetics	No impact with replacement planting.	No impact with replacement planting.	No improvement plantings.
Paleontology	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery included.	Potential to uncover fossils. Construction monitoring and recovery included.	No impact to paleontology resources.
Hazardous Waste and Materials	29 properties with hazardous waste.	25 properties with hazardous waste.	No remediation of hazardous materials.
Air Quality	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	Not a Project of Air Quality Concern. Meets federal and state conformity standards for ambient air emissions in 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies.	No transportation improvements. Air quality would worsen with time as population and land use increase, and stop-and-go and delay increase on local streets.

Table 1-5 Comparison of Alternatives at North Avenue

Potential Impact	Alternative 2	Alternative 4	No-Build Alternative
Animal Species	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	Preconstruction surveys for migratory birds and bats to ensure no impact.	No impact.
Climate Change (Does not consider emissions on the local street system)	In 2046, 4,281 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 4,281 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO ₂ emissions.	In 2046, 2,121 tons above the 2019 Existing, Baseline CO_2 emissions, with no project improvements.

The next four paragraphs have been revised or added since the circulation of the draft environmental document.

Since the public circulation of the draft environmental document for review and comment, all comments were considered, and the Project Development Team selected a preferred alternative for each of the interchange locations.

Under the California Environmental Quality Act, Caltrans certified that the project complies with the California Environmental Quality Act and prepared findings for all significant impacts identified. Caltrans identified significant impacts for which there is no feasible mitigation; thus, these impacts remain significant and unavoidable. Therefore, a Statement of Overriding Considerations is required. Caltrans must certify that the findings and Statement of Overriding Considerations were considered prior to project approval.

Caltrans, as assigned by the Federal Highway Administration, determined the National Environmental Policy Act action does not significantly impact the environment. The selected alternatives, project impacts and mitigation measures have been documented in the Finding of No Significant Impacts (FONSI) in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act.

See Table 1-4 and Table 1-5 for a summary of the potential impacts from the project alternatives.

1.6 Identification of a Preferred Alternative

This section has been added since the draft environmental document was circulated.

The recommended preferred alternative for a Caltrans project is selected at the recommendation of the Caltrans Project Development Team. The process for identifying a recommended preferred alternative involves the evaluation and consideration of environmental impacts and design features that meet the purpose and need of the project, the results of the Value Analysis study, and public comments received during the circulation of the draft environmental document.

The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was circulated for public review and comment from October 14, 2021 to December 3, 2021. All written comments received during the public review period were considered and are included with responses in Appendix G.

On November 1-5, 2021, a virtual Value Analysis study was conducted for the project using the WebEx virtual meeting platform. The objectives of the Value Analysis study were to analyze the current project design, estimate and schedule, provide possible cost and/or schedule saving recommendations,

and provide performance improvement recommendations. Recommendations from the Value Analysis study were later considered during the selection of the recommended preferred alternatives.

Following the Value Analysis study and the review of the public comments on the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment, the Project Development Team met on February 10, 2022 with local stakeholders, including the City of Fresno, Fresno County, Fresno Council of Governments, and Fresno County Transportation Authority. During the stakeholder meeting, the attendees recommended a hybrid of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 for the American Avenue interchange and Alternative2 for the North Avenue interchange.

During the Project Development Team meeting, the two build alternatives for the American Avenue interchange and the two build alternatives for the North Avenue interchange were discussed and evaluated against the project purpose and need, the potential environmental impacts in this environmental document, and public comments received. The evaluation process involved a presentation of the four build alternatives, their respective design features, and environmental impacts in equal detail. Also, project preferences and issues raised by the public and local agencies during the public review period were presented to the Project Development Team and stakeholders. The Project Development Team tracked comments on the alternative selection to gain consensus on which alternative would be recommend as the preferred alternative at each interchange. The alternative 2 for the American Avenue interchange, and Alternative 2 for the North Avenue interchange. The Hybrid Alternative is described in the following paragraph.

Hybrid Alternative

The Hybrid Alternative combines elements of both Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 at the American Avenue interchange. The modified spread diamond configuration of Alternative 1 would be incorporated into the design for southbound traffic, while the partial cloverleaf design of Alternative 2 would be incorporated for northbound traffic. Roundabouts would be used for traffic control at each of the ramp ends. See Figure 1-6 for an image of the Hybrid Alternative overlaying an aerial photography map of the project area.

All four build alternatives considered during the selection process meet the purpose and need of the project by expanding the existing interchanges to full interchanges, bringing them into compliance with current Caltrans design standards, and improving the traffic operations as traffic conditions are projected to worsen in the absence of improvements.

The Hybrid Alternative was initially proposed and evaluated by Traffic Operations, and subsequently recommended by the Value Analysis study because it meets the purpose and need of the project and minimizes impacts

to the farmhouse and farm operations northeast of the American Avenue interchange. The Hybrid Alternative for the American Avenue interchange was selected as the preferred alternative for the following reasons:

- The estimated cost is lower than the costs for Alternative 1 and Alternative 2.
- It avoids impacts to residential property.
- It has fewer impacts to commercial property.

The preferred alternative selected for the North Avenue interchange was Alternative 2 for the following reason:

• Alternative 2 would perform slightly better from a traffic operations standpoint compared to Alternative 4.

1.7 Alternatives Considered but Eliminated from Further Discussion Prior to the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment (DEIR/EA)

Alternatives at Central and Chestnut—Alternatives proposed at Central Avenue and Chestnut Avenue were removed from the project due to funding complications. It is anticipated that a separate project would be completed in the future for improvements to Central and Chestnut avenues when funding is available.

Alternatives 1 and 3 at North Avenue—Two build alternatives were removed from further consideration for the North Avenue interchange. Alternative 1 and Alternative 3 were removed because their respective designs far exceeded planned costs identified in the Regional Transportation Plan from the available transportation funding sources. Also, Alternative 1 would require property from a hazardous waste Superfund site. Both alternatives would require the relocation of a local foodbank that provides services for a large population.

Transportation System Management, Transportation Demand Management, and Mass Transit Alternatives—Transportation System Management, Transportation Demand Management, and Mass Transit alternatives are not being considered as viable alternatives in the environmental document because they would not satisfy the purpose and need for the project. Although these alternatives are not viable on their own, there are features included in the proposed improvements that align with regional strategies to reduce the vehicle miles traveled and increase the efficiency of existing facilities through operational improvements. The build alternatives have incorporated traffic signals, lighting, sidewalks and crosswalks at intersections. Also, bicycle and pedestrian facilities are included that aim to fill gaps in existing pedestrian circulation and/or connect to bicycle facilities, which aligns with planning in the area.

1.8 Permits and Approvals Needed

A 1600 Permit from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and a Waste Discharge Requirement would be required for work disturbing the North Colony Canal located on north side of North Avenue, east of the intersection at Cedar Avenue.

Agency	Permits, Licenses, Agreements, and Certifications	Status
California Department of Fish and Wildlife	Fish and Game Code 1600 Permit, required for work at canals.	1600 Permit is obtained prior to start of construction.
Regional Water Quality Control Board	Waste Discharge Requirement	Permit is obtained prior to start of construction.





Figure 1-4 Alternative 1 Spread Diamond (Type L-2) at American Avenue





Figure 1-5 Alternative 2 Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9) at American Avenue



010-To Fresno Canal Ole COLDEN SANA BOULEN NO **Peach Avenue** American Avenue california 99 (N) 1404 19 **BEGIN WORK** PM 16.8 NOT to SCALE

Figure 1-6 Hybrid Alternative at American Avenue





Figure 1-7 Alternative 2 Modified Partial Cloverleaf (Type L-9) at North Avenue



Figure 1-8 Alternative 4 Diverging Diamond Interchange (DDI) at North Avenue

Chapter 2 Affected Environment, Environmental Consequences, and Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

As part of the scoping and environmental analysis done for the project, the following environmental topics were studied, with no adverse impacts identified, therefore there is no further discussion of these topics in this document.

The summaries for Community Character and Cohesion, Environmental Justice, Growth and Vehicle Miles Traveled have been revised since the circulation of the draft environmental document.

Coastal Zone—The project is not within the coastal zone boundary as defined by the California Coastal Act of 1976 and Public Resources Code Division 20, Section 30103(b) defining the coastal zone boundary.

Community Character and Cohesion—In-depth community studies were conducted of the study area throughout 2019 and 2020. The studies found "neighborhoods" near, but not in, the project area. The project area is defined as all properties that would be potentially purchased and converted to transportation use, which are approximately a half-mile from the center of State Route 99 and each interchange. The project area is made up mostly of industrial and commercial businesses.

A large rail yard and the California High Speed Rail separate the community of Calwa from the project. The closest residence is 3,200 feet from the proposed North Avenue Interchange. A map of the North Avenue project area is provided in Appendix I.

Given that the proposed project is replacing an existing interchange and is outside of the community, no adverse impact to the community character and cohesion is expected. (Community Impact Assessment Memo dated August 2020)

Consistency with State, Regional, and Local Plans and Programs-

Proponents of the project are the City of Fresno, Fresno County, Fresno Council of Governments and Fresno Transportation Authority. The project improves an existing facility and conforms with all respective state, regional and local plans and programs for the project area. (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020) **Cultural Resources**—Pursuant to Section 106 Programmatic Agreement Stipulation IX.A and as applicable Public Resources Code 5024 Memorandum of Understanding, as applicable, Public Resources Code 5024 Memorandum of Understanding Stipulation IX.A.2, a Historic Property Survey Report was completed in May 2020 and was subsequently submitted to the State Historic Preservation Officer for concurrence on Caltrans' finding of "No Historic Properties Affected" because there "are no historic properties within the Area of Potential Effect." No previously recorded Native American resources were found within a 1-mile radius of the project. Ten tribes were contacted several times; their responses showed no interest in the project. The State Historic Preservation Officer concurred with the project findings in a letter dated June 23, 2020.

Emergency Services—The project would improve response times for emergency service providers to respond to emergencies in the project area and the surrounding area. In response to the California Environmental Quality Act scoping information widely distributed in spring 2019, Caltrans received written contact from the local California Highway Patrol, the Community Regional Medical Center, and the Fresno Fire Department supporting the proposed improvements at the interchanges. (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020)

Energy—The project would not result in wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy, nor would it conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency. Caltrans is required to meet an extensive array of requirements to conserve, reuse and recycle materials and to require conservation practices during operation and construction activities, as overseen by agencies with regulatory oversight responsibility. The project would comply with all federal, state and local rules and regulations to this effect. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

Environmental Justice— Several minority or low-income populations were identified outside of the project area, but no populations were identified within the project area. The project area is defined as all properties that would be potentially purchased and converted to transportation use, which are approximately ½ mile from the center of State Route 99 and each interchange. The project area is primarily made up of industrial and commercial businesses.

A large rail yard and the California High Speed Rail separate the community of Calwa from the project. The closest residence is 3,200 feet from the proposed North Avenue Interchange. A map of the North Avenue project area can be found in Appendix I.

Given that the proposed project is replacing an existing interchange, is outside of the community and there are no populations within the project area the project is not expected to cause disproportionately high adverse effects on any minority or low-income populations in accordance with the provisions of Executive Order 12898. No further environmental justice analysis is required. (Studies conducted during 2019 and 2020 in the project area and communities located in the outlying area; Community Impact Assessment Memo dated August 2020)

In addition, the project conforms to the Fresno Council of Governments 2018-2046 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies, as amended, and the supporting 2018 Environmental Justice Study, finding that environmental justice communities are not disproportionately burdened by high and adverse effects with implementation of the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies, and that they do share equitably in the benefits from the transportation plan. Also, the project conforms with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. The project conforms with California Government Code Section 11135, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin, ethnic group identification, age, mental disability, physical disability, medical condition, genetic information, marital status, or sexual orientation by any agency receiving state funding.

Farmland—A Farmland Conversion Rating form (NRCS-CPA-106) was submitted to the Natural Resources Conservation Service for evaluation. See Appendix C for the form. The Service agreed that the land is considered to be "committed to urban development" because the land converted would be narrow strips along the highway, where most properties are zoned for industrial and commercial use, with only one property zoned for agricultural use, and no properties under Williamson Act contract. According to the Farmland Protection Policy Act, as amended, the land is therefore "not to be considered as farmland." (Farmland Conversion Rating form [NRCS-CPA-106] with Natural Resources Conservation Service concurrence October 10, 2019)

Geology/Soils/Seismic/Topography—There are no major topographic or geologic features or faults within or near the project area. (U.S. Geological Survey mapping of the area)

Growth—There are no apparent pressures from the project that would encourage unplanned growth. The project would improve the operations of two existing interchanges. The project area is designated as an industrial and commercial zone by Fresno County and City of Fresno where there is a consistent vision for land use in the transportation corridor to support traditional and emerging industrial and commercial business activities in a designated industrial priority area to serve the future economic health of the region. Most properties at the interchanges have been zoned in accordance with the general planning for the area. When representatives at the County of Fresno Public Works and Planning Department and the City of Fresno Public Works Department were interviewed in October 2020, they noted there are no plans to develop beyond the existing general planning and there are no specific plans or environmental documents being reviewed to indicate a change in the project area. (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020). The City of Fresno is currently working on a specific plan entitled the South Central Specific Plan, which includes the North Avenue interchange. The plan is currently in the early stages of development, with a projected completion date that has yet to be determined.

Hydrology and Floodplain—The project is not located within a 100-year base floodplain. A Location Hydraulic Study and Floodplain Evaluation Summary Report (November 2018) was prepared for the project. Flood Insurance Rate Maps dated February 18, 2009 indicate the project area is located in "Zone X." "Zone X" is defined as outside the 0.2 percent annual chance floodplain. The project complies with Executive Order 11988 (Floodplain Management) as outlined in 23 Code of Federal Regulations 650 Subpart A, which directs all federal agencies to refrain from conducting, supporting, or allowing actions in floodplains.

Invasive Species—The project would comply with the executive order on invasive species (Executive Order 13112) and guidance from the Federal Highway Administration. The landscaping and erosion control included in the project would not use species listed as invasive. None of the species on the California list of invasive species is used by Caltrans for erosion control or landscaping along State Route 99. All equipment and materials would be inspected for the presence of invasive species and cleaned if necessary. In areas of particular sensitivity, extra precautions would be taken if invasive species are found in or next to the construction areas. These include the inspection and cleaning of construction equipment and eradication strategies to be implemented should an invasion occur. No impacts would occur with implementation of Caltrans standard measures to avoid propagating invasive species. (Natural Environment Study – Minimal Impacts, dated July 2019)

Noise and Vibration—A Noise Study Report was completed for the project (August 2020) to comply with Caltrans Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol for New Highway Construction and Reconstruction Projects (May 2011). The study found there would be no long-term noise impacts from the build alternatives and, with implementation of avoidance and minimization measures, short-term construction noise would be minimized. No abatement is required.

Natural Communities—The project would not affect riparian habitat or other sensitive natural communities of concern. No impacts would occur to wildlife corridors, nor would the project cause fragmentation of habitat, because the proposed improvements would be made to existing infrastructure. Field studies concluded none of these resources are present in the area nor were they found in the database query. A California Natural Diversity Database query of the Fresno South and Malaga U.S. Geological Survey 7¹/₂-minute

quadrangle map found no natural communities of special concern in the project area, as updated in December 2020. (Natural Environment Study – Minimal Impacts, dated July 2019)

Parks and Recreation—Community studies conducted in the spring and summer of 2019 found no parks or recreational facilities in the project area. The closest—Malaga Community Park and Recreation Center—is in the community of Malaga, about 2.2 miles away. There would be no direct or indirect negative effects, and the project would not affect facilities that are protected by the Park Preservation Act (California Public Resources Code Sections 5400-5409). (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020)

Plant Species—According to the Natural Environment Study – Minimal Impacts (July 2019) completed for this project, no state or federally listed or candidate plant species is expected to be present or affected by the project because no known special-status species meets the status requirements. Field studies were conducted, and species lists were obtained from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the Natural Diversity Database from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the Rare and Endangered Plant Inventory from the California Native Plant Society, updated December 30, 2020. A record search found no threatened and endangered species or critical habitat for state or federally listed species exists within the study area, as well as no special-status plants were found during field studies of the project area. (Natural Environment Study – Minimal Impacts, dated July 2019)

Population and Housing—The project would not negatively impact an existing population or housing because the project would not remove homes or propose new homes in the area. The project does not propose any features that would support the extension of the necessary roads or infrastructure. Also, there is no indication the City or County is proposing housing development in the project area because the land is intended for industrial and commercial use. Per consultations with the Fresno County Department of Public Works and Planning and the City of Fresno Public Works Long-Range Planning Department, there are no projects in construction, near construction, or planned for construction to add more population and/or housing in the vicinity of the project (2019). (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020)

Section 4(f)—There are no historic sites, parks and recreational resources, or wildlife or waterfowl refuges that meet the definition of a Section 4(f) resource within the project vicinity. Therefore, the project is not subject to the provisions of Section 4(f) of the Department of Transportation Act of 1966. No Section 4(f) resources would be impacted by the project, according to requirements of the Federal Highway Administration 23 Code of Federal Regulations 774 to protect park and recreation lands, wildlife and waterfowl refuges, and historic sites.

Section 6(f)—There are no properties proposed for conversion to nonrecreational purposes that were acquired or developed using grants issued under the Land and Water Conservation Fund Act and prohibited from conversion in Section 6(f) of the act.

Timberland—There are no timber resources in the project vicinity.

Threatened and Endangered Species—A Natural Environment Study— Minimal Impacts completed in July 2019 determined that no threatened and endangered species or designated critical habitat for state or federally listed species exists within the study area. Species lists were obtained from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the Natural Diversity Database from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the Rare and Endangered Plant Inventory from the California Native Plant Society, updated December 30, 2020. The project lies outside of the jurisdiction of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's National Marine Fisheries Service; therefore, a National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's National Marine Fisheries Service species list is not required and no effects to such species are anticipated. Therefore, in accordance with Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act, the project would have "no effect" on any federally listed or candidate species.

Vehicle Miles Traveled—The project is in compliance with Caltrans Policy Memo (September 10, 2020) regarding analysis of transportation impacts under the California Environmental Quality Act for projects on the State Highway System, as well as the Caltrans Transportation Analysis Framework and Transportation Analysis under the California Environmental Quality Act guide to implementation of Senate Bill 743 (Steinberg, 2013) codified at Public Resources Code Section 21099. [The following text has been revised since the circulation of the draft environmental document.] The project met implementation timeline requirements established in the memo, thus leaving the project to be "evaluated by the Department in consultation with project sponsors on a caseby-case basis to determine if the use of a VMT-based transportation impact significance determination in the draft environmental document is warranted." The factors involved in the decision included the project timeline, which is tied to critical funding, and the absence of an established process to complete Vehicle Miles Traveled analysis. Therefore, the project sponsors (Fresno County Transportation Authority and the Fresno Council of Governments) were in agreement to proceed with the recommendation not to implement Vehicle Miles Traveled analysis on this project; therefore, the project was grandfathered in.

Water Quality and Storm Water Runoff—A Water Quality Report (February 2019) completed for the project found there would be no impact to water quality because there are no natural water bodies in the area. No effects to groundwater are anticipated. No irrigation canals would be affected by construction of the project. If this changes during the design phase and impacts are identified, the Fresno Irrigation District would be consulted, as

would the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the California Regional Water Quality Control Board to obtain 1600 and 401 Permits. The project would comply with the Caltrans Statewide Stormwater Permit (MS4).

Wetlands and Other Waters—A Natural Environment Study – Minimal Impacts completed in July 2019 determined that the project does not intersect jurisdictional waters, and therefore no wetlands or other waters would be impacted and no 404 Permit from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineer would be required.

Wild and Scenic Rivers—There are no rivers in the project location.

Wildfire—The project lies in a large valley, surrounded mostly by urban development, with some non-urbanized land irrigated and planted with orchard trees. The project is not considered to be in an area identified as vulnerable to wildfires on the Caltrans District 6 Climate Change Vulnerability Map and geographic information system database designed to assess vulnerabilities from climate change.

2.1 Human Environment

2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use

The following discussion focuses on the existing and future land use planning in the project area and the potential for property to be acquired and converted from its current designated use to transportation use.

Affected Environment

American Avenue and North Avenue

The proposed improvements lie within the planning jurisdiction of Fresno County and the City of Fresno. The proposed improvements to American Avenue lie within the jurisdiction of Fresno County in a planned area referred to as the Golden State Industrial Corridor. See Figure 2-1 Fresno County Zoning Map for a map of the county's current land use zoning of properties in the project area. The proposed improvements at North Avenue lie within the jurisdiction of the City of Fresno in an area referred to as the North Avenue Industrial Triangle. See Figure 2-2 City of Fresno Zoning Map for a map of the city's land use zoning of the project area.

The future land use planning or vision for the project area is generally consistent between the county and the city planning documents, which support industrial and commercial business uses within the transportation corridor to promote economic and employment development for the region.

Both county and city local planning documents for the area discuss promoting traditional and emerging industries suited to the location, such as

development of agricultural technologies and agricultural services, food innovation and processing facilities, supply chain management, water technology, precision manufacturing, medical industries, and green industries such as solar, biofuels, recycling and other forms of alternative energy. The transportation corridor is viewed as an asset to business and industry in the area because it includes a major state highway, intersecting local and regional roads, and rail lines, including the California High-Speed Rail. State Route 99 is one of the state's critical transportation corridors for the movement of goods and services through the region, state and beyond.

Existing land uses in the project area are defined by zoning decisions made by the County and City. Zoning is the process of dividing land into zones (residential, industrial, commercial, and so on) in which certain land uses are permitted or prohibited to carry out county and city general planning goals. The land uses currently zoned match the future planned vision for the area.

In the project area, 40 properties could potentially be affected by the proposed alternatives: 8 properties at American Avenue and 32 properties at North Avenue. Of these properties, 15 properties are zoned for industrial uses, 8 for commercial use, 8 are owned by the State of California with no use specifically identified, 2 for transportation, 2 for residential, 2 are zoned for agriculture, 1 is zoned vacant land, 1 is owned by the Fresno Irrigation District, and 1 is owned by Fresno County with no uses specifically identified.

Table 2-1 Zoning of Properties by Interchange shows each property by Assessor's Parcel Number with the land use designation established by the city and county for each interchange location. This information came from LandVision, an internet map-based application tool that provides real estate, government and other industries with comprehensive property information.

Assessor's Parcel Number	Land Use Designations	Interchange
331-140-23	Residential, Single-Family Residence	American Avenue
331-110-13S	Vacant Land, Industrial	American Avenue
331-110-35	Vacant Land, Miscellaneous Vacant Land	American Avenue
331-110-34	Commercial, Stores, Retail Outlet	American Avenue
340-060-44T	Fresno County - No designation	American Avenue
340-060-22	Agriculture, Orchards, Groves	American Avenue
331-110-11	Residential, Miscellaneous Residential	American Avenue
340-060-20	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	American Avenue
330-021-36S	Vacant Land, Industrial	North Avenue

 Table 2-1
 Zoning of Properties by Interchange

Assessor's Parcel Number	Land Use Designations	Interchange
330-021-60S	Vacant Land, Industrial	North Avenue
330-021-01	Vacant Land, Industrial	North Avenue
330-021-13S	Agricultural, Farms, Crops	North Avenue
330-021-12T	Ponding Basin	North Avenue
330-021-05	Miscellaneous, Transportation, Air, Rail, Bus	North Avenue
330-021-04	Commercial, Service Station, Gas Station	North Avenue
487-031-52	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	North Avenue
487-031-54	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	North Avenue
487-031-62	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	North Avenue
487-031-63	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	North Avenue
487-140-32	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	North Avenue
487-140-51	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	North Avenue
487-180-08T	State of California	North Avenue
487-180-07T	State of California	North Avenue
487-180-09T	State of California	North Avenue
487-180-06T	State of California	North Avenue
487-180-17T	State of California	North Avenue
487-180-16T	State of California	North Avenue
487-180-15	Commercial, Auto Sales, Services	North Avenue
330-040-24S	Commercial, Service Station, Gas Station	North Avenue
487-180-03	Vacant Land, Industrial	North Avenue
487-180-18	Commercial, Auto Sales, Services	North Avenue
487-180-14T	State of California	North Avenue
330-021-07T	State of California—High-Speed Rail	North Avenue
330-040-60	Industrial, Warehouse, Storage	North Avenue
330-040-61	Vacant Land, Industrial	North Avenue
330-040-48S	Miscellaneous, Transportation, Air, Rail, Bus	North Avenue
330-040-36S	Commercial, Office Building	North Avenue
487-020-15T	Fresno Irrigation District	North Avenue
487-180-18	Commercial, Auto Sales, Services	North Avenue
330-040-37S	Commercial, Auto Sales, Services	North Avenue

Source: LandVision, 2020.

Fresno County has prepared and published a plan review every 5 years to incorporate all amendments into its general plan. In the 2017 Plan Review, of the 2000 Fresno County General Plan, there are specific goals and policies that address the project area, as follows:

- The County shall encourage the location of new industry within Fresno County.
- The County shall identify circumstances and criteria for locating new industrial locations and uses in the unincorporated areas consistent with the County's economic development strategies.
- Initial focus of potential new or redeveloped industrial areas shall include Malaga, Calwa, and the Golden State Industrial Corridor.

See Figure 2-1 Fresno County Zoning Map to see existing land use designations in the American Avenue area.

Beginning as early as 1917, the City of Fresno recognized the importance of the area south of downtown for its proximity to railroads and later highways. Each General Plan from 1956 onward has reiterated the importance of this industrial area to the economic stability of Fresno. Five key planning documents show the City's attempts to develop areas for industrial use along the transportation corridor and implement policies to improve the quality of life in the neighborhoods and residential areas outside and away from the industrial area:

- 1973 North Avenue Industrial Triangle Specific Plan
- 1992 Roosevelt Community Plan
- 2014 City of Fresno General Plan
- 2016 Downtown Neighborhoods Community Plan
- 2017 Southwest Fresno Specific Plan

Through these adopted plans, the City has not only worked on behalf of businesses to provide opportunities for development interests in the project area, but it has also worked to improve conditions and the quality of life in the surrounding local communities. There are no residential neighborhoods in the project area, and the City (through the above-listed plans) has made it a priority to also allocate funding and resources for communities to the north, northeast and northwest of the project area, to specifically provide for neighborhood development and services away from the industrial corridor.

Through the Roosevelt Community Plan adopted in 1992, the City implemented measures to remove barriers for funding of small business loans and projects for revitalization of neighborhoods in southeast Fresno, located north and northeast of the project area. The City also worked with neighboring communities to study and adopt the Downtown Neighborhoods Community Plan in 2016 and the Southwest Fresno Specific Plan in 2017. The City conducted extensive public outreach to engage community members in the planning to implement new housing and programs supporting home ownership; to open opportunities for grocery stores and other retail shops to open closer to these neighborhoods; to install improved city services; to support safety, create more connectivity in the street system for all transportation modes, make improvements to parks, and provide educational and job training opportunities. These plans also included direction to locate industrial activity away from neighborhoods to areas such as the Industrial Triangle area.

The North Avenue Industrial Triangle – Specific Plan adopted in 1973 represents the City's long-standing intention to place industrial and commercial uses in the area where the North Avenue interchange is proposed. In March 2019, the City began work on an updated plan for the area, now titled the "South Central Specific Plan" (previously the South Industrial Priority Area), which will include updated policies for the area. The City rereleased a Notice of Preparation to conduct environmental studies and prepare an environmental document on March 24, 2021. The City held public meetings and received public comments about the project from March 24, 2021 to May 14, 2021.

The new plan will describe the City's intent to address obstacles encountered by businesses looking to relocate to the Fresno area, such as the lack of sufficiently sized properties developed with city services such as water, sewer, and power so that companies can more easily move in and begin operation. The new plan continues the City's goals to set up infrastructure on properties, especially in the State Route 99 corridor, where a variety of distribution needs can be met. See Figure 2-2 City of Fresno Zoning Map to see existing land use designations in the North Avenue area.

The census tracts (06-019-0015 and 06-019-0017) where the project is located have met the qualifications for "Opportunity Zone" status, which is a federal economic development program to spur investment in economically distressed neighborhoods. Investors receive tax incentives for investing in "Opportunity Zones" with long-term investments in communities that produce jobs and job training. The City and County have been actively establishing partnerships with businesses to meet these goals. The American Avenue and North Avenue interchanges serve as main points of access for the existing and developing industrial and commercial businesses in this area. To find out more about the benefits implemented in the Fresno area for residents and businesses through this program, go to the website:

https://dashboards.mysidewalk.com/opportunity-fresno/future-fresno.

Figure 2-1 Fresno County Zoning Map



Source: Fresno County online zoning map (2020).

Figure 2-2 City of Fresno Zoning Map



Source: City of Fresno online zoning map (2020).

Environmental Consequences

While the project is consistent with the general planning for the project area, land would be purchased and converted to transportation use, mostly as slivers of land next to the existing roadways. Tables 2-2 and 2-3 show the estimates of the land required from each parcel and provides a comparison of the proposed alternatives at each interchange.

American Avenue

Eight properties were studied at American Avenue due to their proximity to the existing interchange and the two proposed build alternatives. Table 2-2 Potential Land Converted to Transportation at American Avenue shows the estimates of land in acres needed from each property and compares the proposed alternatives and the No-Build Alternative. The table shows a breakdown of these totals:

- Alternative 1 would require a total of 21.72 acres from seven properties.
- Alternative 2 would require a total of 14.91 acres from seven properties.
- The No-Build Alternative would convert no land.

Of the build alternatives, Alternative 1 would require 6.81 more acres of land than Alternative 2. Therefore, Alternative 1 would have a greater impact from land converted to transportation uses.

Both build alternatives propose to install sidewalks, curb and gutter along American Avenue. The installation may require removal of some existing sidewalk to create conformity for the entire length of new sidewalk. The location of all existing entry and exit points and driveways would be maintained according to city standards. During construction, there may be temporary interruptions in access, but this would be minimized with implementation of communication and traffic management plans.

Also, see Section 2.1.2 Relocations and Real Property Acquisition in this chapter for more details about potential impacts to properties.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no acquisition of land, but the interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps and driving conditions would further deteriorate with increased vehicle delay. With time, more potholes and cracks would develop in the pavement, making driving in the area more difficult. The existing tight dimensions would continue to be difficult to navigate for vehicles, especially large trucks. Out-of-direction travel would continue to cause delay and unnecessary travel on local roads.

Assessor's Parcel Number	Total Parcel Area (acres)	Alternative 1 Converted to Transportation (21.72 total acres, 7 properties)	Alternative 2 Converted to Transportation (14.91 total acres, 7 properties)	Hybrid Alternative Converted to Transportation (26.11 total acres, 7 properties)	No-Build Alternative (0 total acres, 0 properties)
331-140-23	10.7	0.30 acre	0 acres	0 acres	0 acres
331-110-13S	1.41 acres	0.32 acre	0.14 acre	0.21 acres	0 acres
331-110-35	24.09 acres	0.67 acre	2.19 acres	0.51 acres	0 acres
331-110-34	9.46 acres	0.75 acre	2.44 acres	0.32 acres	0 acres
340-060-44T	21.22 acres	10.06 acres	6.61 acres	14.03 acres	0 acres
340-060-22	35.00 acres	0.35 acre	2.31 acres	7.82 acres	0 acres
331-110-11	58.78 acres	9.27 acres	1.17 acres	2.53 acres	0 acres
340-060-20	6.50 acres	0 acres	0.05 acre	0.69 acres	0 acres

Table 2-2	Potential Land	Converted to	Transport	ation at A	merican A	venue

Source: Acreages calculated from preliminary estimates prepared by Caltrans.

North Avenue

Thirty-two properties were studied at North Avenue due to their proximity to the existing interchange and the two proposed build alternatives. Table 2-3 Potential Land Converted to Transportation at North Avenue shows the estimates of land in acres needed from each property and compares the proposed alternatives and the No-Build Alternative. The table shows a breakdown of these totals:

- Alternative 2 would require a total of 20.06 acres from 25 properties.
- Alternative 4 would require a total of 15.01 acres from 20 properties.
- The No-Build Alternative would acquire no land.

Of the build alternatives, Alternative 2 would have the highest impact, and Alternative 4 would require the least amount of land and affect the fewest properties.

Each of the build alternatives would install sidewalks, curb and gutter along both sides of North Avenue between Orange Avenue and Cedar Avenue, as well as installing signs, signals and lighting as needed. Installation may require removal of some existing sidewalk to create conformity for the entire length of the new sidewalk. The location of all existing entry and exit points and driveways would be maintained according to city standards. During construction, there may be

temporary interruptions in access, but this would be minimized with implementation of communication and traffic management plans.

At this time, no potential impacts have been identified to existing driveways or parking in the project area but, if they are in the future, all would be maintained according to city and county standards.

Also, see Section 2.1.2 Relocations and Real Property Acquisition in this chapter for more details about potential impacts to properties.

No-Build Alternative

The No-Build Alternative would result in no acquisition of land, but the interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps and driving conditions would further deteriorate as previously discussed.

Assessor's Parcel Number	Total Parcel Area (acres)	Alternative 2 Converted to Transportation (20.06 total acres, 25 properties)	Alternative 4 Converted to Transportation (15.01 total acres, 20 properties)	No-Build Alternative (0 total acres, 0 properties)
330-021-36S	7.39 acres	0.06 acre	0.02 acre	0 acres
330-021-60S	10.50 acres	0.40 acre	0.31 acre	0 acres
330-021-01	1.89 acres	0.42 acre	0.73 acre	0 acres
330-021-13S	29.69 acres	2.35 acres	3.70 acres	0 acres
330-021-12T	10.00 acres	0.60 acre	0.53 acre	0 acres
330-021-05	1.64 acres	0.02 acre	0 acres	0 acres
330-021-04	5.53 acres	2.30 acres	3.01 acre	0 acres
487-031-52	4.95 acres	0.20 acre	0 acres	0 acres
487-031-54	3.25 acres	0.10 acre	0 acres	0 acres
487-031-62	2.11 acres	0.06 acre	0 acres	0 acres
487-031-63	2.31 acres	0.16 acre	0 acres	0 acres
487-140-32	9.90 acres	1.90 acres	0.59 acre	0 acres
487-140-51	10.72 acres	0.03 acre	0.03 acre	0 acres
487-180-07T	0.27 acre	4.58 acres	0 acres	0 acres
487-180-16T	0.24 acre	0.03 acre	0 acres	0 acres
487-180-15	0.42 acre	0.01 acre	0.02 acre	0 acres
330-040-24S	0.71 acre	0.03 acre	0.14 acre	0 acres
487-180-03	1.70 acres	0 acres	0.04 acre	0 acres
487-180-14T	0.001 acre	0.001 acre	0.001 acre	0 acres
330-021-07T	10.65 acres	4.58 acres	4.89 acres	0 acres
330-040-60	3.31 acres	0.77 acre	0.03 acre	0 acres
330-040-61	1.07 acres	0.54 acre	0.05 acre	0 acres
330-040-48S	4.20 acres	0.02 acre	0.01 acre	0 acres
330-040-36S	0.28 acre	0.14 acre	0.01 acre	0 acres
330-040-57S	2.71 acres	0.04 acre	0.04 acre	0 acres
487-020-15T	2.00 acres	0.72 acre	0.85 acre	0 acres
330-040-37S	0.21 acre	0 acres	0.01 acre	0 acres

Table 2-3 Potential Land Converted to Transportation at North Avenue

Source: Acreages calculated from preliminary estimates prepared by Caltrans.

Cumulative impacts are those that result from past, present, and reasonably foreseeable future actions, combined with the potential impacts of the proposed project. Past projects go all the way back to the beginning of the City of Fresno as a stop along the railroad line in the 1870s. The railroad defined the transportation corridor and facilitated the development of farming in the immediate area, followed by a local road system built in a north-south, east-west grid to divide up the land for farms and canals that still provide water to farms in the area. A major north-south road was constructed along the railroad that ran from the Mexican border in Calexico, California to the Canadian border in Blain, Washington. In 1965, the road along the railroad (State Route 99) was realigned to its current location. As the city of Fresno grew, city planners implemented planned industrial and commercial land uses along the corridor, as identified in the 1973 North Avenue Industrial Triangle Specific Plan, that slowly developed over time in conformance with the Fresno County 2018 Regional Transportation Plan and the Fresno County and City of Fresno general plans and policy documents.

Cumulatively considerable projects are as follows:

- Completion of the Central Pacific Railroad in 1870 and development of the City of Fresno as a train stop established in 1872.
- Construction of the "Golden State Highway" in 1927, later relocated west to the existing site as State Route 99 in 1965.
- Current ongoing construction of the California High-Speed Rail project through the project area.
- Two recent large land use projects in the area—an Amazon Fulfillment Center (2018) and an Ulta Beauty Distribution Center (2018).
- Continued implementation of the 2000 Fresno County General Plan with the most recent annual Plan Review, and the North Avenue Industrial Triangle – Specific Plan adopted in 1973 by the City of Fresno.
- Fresno County Association of Governments 2018 Regional Transportation Plan.
- City of Fresno General Plan (2014)

Projects in the present and foreseeable future are to maintain State Route 99. The route concept for the highway is ultimately an eight-lane facility, but there are no plans or proposed projects for that expansion in the Fresno County 2018 Regional Transportation Plan. The improvements to Central Avenue and Chestnut Avenue are in the regional plan, with no timeline or funding to complete the project. Several bicycle and pedestrian mobility projects are in the regional plan. The County and City have designated the zoning along State Route 99 for commercial and industrial uses in the immediate vicinity of both interchanges. The City is discussing a grade-separation of North Avenue from the existing California High-Speed Rail crossing located just east of the North Avenue interchange, but no formal plans have been proposed.

Construction of complete interchanges would reduce stop-and-go traffic and provide more direct access to and from the highway. While the 2020 traffic study projections indicate traffic will increase in the project area, this is mostly from predicted increased population growth and implementation of approved local planned developments, and not from construction of the project.

No changes to land use designations are anticipated with this project, except for the acquisition of mostly slivers of land along the roadway into transportation uses from this project. Maintenance of existing roads and highways would continue. Designated land use would continue to be consistent with the goals and policies of the Fresno County Association of Governments 2018 Regional Transportation Plan, the County of Fresno's General Plan as amended with the annual Plan Reviews, and the City of Fresno's 2014 General Plan. The project would not present a considerable contribution to a negative cumulative impact.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.

A traffic management plan would be prepared and implemented during construction to keep traffic access open on the local streets as much as possible, with requirements to maintain access to all properties while work is underway. The plan would also include strategies to maintain regular communication with the public, emergency responders, and the railroad operators and businesses in the area.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

American Avenue and North Avenue

No mitigation is required for the conversion of land to transportation uses.

2.1.2 Relocations and Real Property Acquisition

Regulatory Setting

The Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program is based on the Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended (referred to as the Uniform Act), and Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 24. The purpose of the relocation assistance program is to ensure that persons displaced as a result of a transportation project are treated fairly, consistently, and equitably so that such persons will not suffer disproportionate injuries as a result of projects designed for the benefit of the public as a whole. All relocation services and benefits are administered without regard to race, color, national origin, persons with disabilities, religion, age, or sex. Please see Appendix A for a copy of the Caltrans Title VI Policy Statement and Appendix B for a summary of the Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program.

Affected Environment

A Draft Relocation Impact Report was prepared in July 2020 to determine if the project would require the relocation of residents or businesses and what services may be needed from the Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program.

The assessment analyzed 40 properties in the footprint of the proposed alternatives at the American Avenue and North Avenue interchanges. The following section is a summary of the findings from the report. For a list of the properties evaluated, see Table 2-1 Zoning of Properties by Interchange in Section 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use.

Environmental Consequences

Results from the Draft Relocation Impact Report are based on early information that could change following selection of the preferred alternatives and completion of full design to reduce and avoid potential impacts.

In addition to identifying which properties would potentially need relocation services, the analysis considers whether there is sufficient comparable replacement property available. For this project, the search area includes all of Fresno County and the City of Fresno, as well as the communities of Clovis and Fowler. The program is designed to help relocate homes and businesses to find similar, and often better, comparable property. To determine comparable property, Caltrans Right-of-Way agents must consider factors such as, but not limited to, the following:

- Relocation areas are comparable in terms of amenities, public utilities, and accessibility to public services, transportation, and shopping.
- Meets standards for decent, safe, sanitary, and functionally equivalent replacement dwellings meeting all regulatory standards.
- Public facilities such as all varieties of utilities and access to public transportation and major commercial outlets are comparable to the displacement neighborhoods.
- Affordability to displacees with use of replacement housing payments.
- If other public projects would also need replacement property concurrently with this project.
- Accommodation for the disabled, such as ensuring that displacees are provided access facilities in replacement housing and close to public transportation, medical and shopping facilities.
- Need for additional advanced move planning to assist those to implement in-depth, creative moving strategies.
- Understanding the unique needs of relocated individuals and businesses.

For this project, the Draft Relocation Report found there is sufficient comparable property available. The following information is a discussion of the potential impacts identified for individual properties at each interchange.

American Avenue

Two alternatives are proposed for the American Avenue interchange, with eight properties potentially affected depending on the alternative selected.

The area surrounding the existing interchange is mostly rural with land currently being cultivated; however, all but two properties are zoned for other than agricultural uses (e.g., residential, industrial, commercial). Of the eight properties, the project would require only slivers of land, except at one large property zoned residential, in the northeastern quadrant of the existing interchange where a farmhouse and orchard are potentially affected by both proposed build alternatives.

See Table 2-4 Potential Relocations at American Avenue to see a breakdown of total units affected by the project alternatives. The table shows that Alternative 1 would potentially impact two units and may need benefits and/or services from the Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program. Both units are on one property located in the northeast quadrant that includes a residence and farm business with buildings and equipment, which are counted as two separate units for implementation of Caltrans relocation services and benefits. Table 2-4 also shows if Alternative 2 were selected, no units would require relocation benefits or services.

For clarity, the term "Residences" in Table 2-4 includes the owner occupant or tenants of single-family residences, multiple-unit residences, and/or mobile homes; the term "Units" is used to identify different entities within a property that may need relocation benefits and services (there can be more than one per property).

Type of Property	Alternative 1 (2 total units)	Alternative 2 (0 total units)	No-Build Alternative (0 total units)
Residential: Owner Occupant of Single-Family Residence	1 unit	0 units	0 units
Non-Residential: Agriculture/Farm Business	1 unit	0 units	0 units

Table 2-4 Potential Relocations at American Avenue

Source: July 2020 Draft Relocation Report.

The project would potentially acquire land from up to eight properties, depending on the alternative selected. See Table 2-2 Potential Property Converted to Transportation at American Avenue in Section 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use for a breakdown of the eight properties with estimates of land potentially required. The following discussion provides for detail of the potential impacts from each alternative.

Alternative 1—Spread Diamond

Potential impacts from Alternative 1 would come from construction of a new interchange with dimensions that would require more area for the on- and off-ramps. Much of the land needed for this alternative was purchased and preserved by Caltrans in 1965 when the half interchange was originally built. The understanding at that time was that the southbound on-ramp and northbound off-ramp would be constructed when traffic studies showed a need for the full interchange. Over time, however, Caltrans design standards changed, requiring more land for the proposed interchange configuration.

Preliminary estimates indicate that Alternative 1 would require Caltrans relocation benefits and services for the following residence and business due to full or partial acquisition of the property:

• Farmhouse and Farm Operations (Assessor's Parcel Number 331-110-11)— The farmhouse and other associated buildings and orchard are likely to require Caltrans relocation benefits and services. Approximately 9 acres of land would be needed from this parcel. The property is large with a farmhouse residence and outbuildings of a farm business. Some orchard trees would be acquired. Also, as seen on satellite photography, the orchard appears to be irrigated with a drip-irrigation system. Alternative 1 would likely impact the irrigation system and possibly a well supplying irrigation water.

Preliminary estimates indicate Alternative 1 would acquire a total of 21.72 acres of land from seven properties. Acquisition estimates for each property are shown in Table 2-2 Potential Property Converted to Transportation at American Avenue in Section 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use.

Alternative 2—Partial Cloverleaf

Potential impacts from Alternative 2 would come from construction of a new interchange with dimensions that would also require more area for the onand off-ramps to construct a full interchange, but less than what is needed to construct Alternative 1.

Alternative 2 would not require the use of relocation benefits and services for this interchange design. However, the alternative does potentially require moving the existing driveway entrance to a location farther east of its current location, to avoid traffic conflicts at the intersection of the new on- and off-ramps from vehicles and equipment entering and exiting the farm property.

Preliminary estimates indicate that Alternative 2 would acquire a total of 14.91 acres of land from seven properties. Acquisition estimates for each property are shown in Table 2-2 Potential Land Converted to Transportation at American Avenue in Section 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use.

There are sufficient replacement facilities within the local area and, with implementation of the Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program, potential

impacts would not be a considerable contribution to cumulative impacts. See 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use for a list of relevant past, present, and future projects.

No-Build Alternative

The No-Build Alternative would result in no relocation of residents or businesses or the acquisition of land, but the interchanges would still lack the missing on- and offramps and driving conditions would further deteriorate as previously discussed.

North Avenue

Two alternatives are proposed for the North Avenue interchange, with 32 properties potentially affected by construction of the project, depending on the alternative selected. The following assessment is based on early information that could change following selection of the preferred alternative when Caltrans Right-of-Way agents are authorized to contact property owners directly to obtain more specific information for each property.

The industrial area surrounding the existing overcrossing contains sales and service businesses, and one nonprofit organization. There are no residential units at the North Avenue interchange or near the interchange. Each of the proposed alternatives has the potential to relocate existing businesses.

See Table 2-5 Potential Relocations at North Avenue for a breakdown of the potential impacts to properties by the type of property as designated by the Caltrans Right-of-Way unit. The table shows three commercial businesses may be impacted if Alternative 2 were selected, and two commercial businesses may be affected with Alternative 4. The relocation report concluded that Alternative 2 would potentially impact the most units (4 units) and Alternative 4 would potentially impact the least units (2 units). No residential properties are impacted by the project.

In Table 2-5, the term "Residences" includes the owner occupant or tenants of single-family residences, multiple-unit residences, and/or mobile homes; the term "Units" is used to identify different entities within a property that may need relocation benefits and services (there can be more than one per property).

Type of Property	Alternative 2 (4 total units)	Alternative 4 (2 total units)	No-Build Alternative (0 total units)
Residences	0 units	0 units	0 units
Agricultural Farms	0 units	0 units	0 units
Commercial Businesses	4 units	2 units	0 units
Industrial/Manufacturing Businesses	0 units	0 units	0 units
Nonprofit Organizations	0 units	0 units	0 units

Table 2-5 Potential Relocations at North Avenu
--

Source: July 2020 Draft Relocation Report.
Alternative 2—Partial Cloverleaf with Slip Ramps

Potential impacts from Alternative 2 would come from construction of a new interchange that would require more area for the on- and off-ramps and require the North/Cedar Avenue intersection to be improved within the current alignment.

Preliminary estimates indicate that Alternative 2 would require land from 26 properties, with an estimate of acquiring a total of 21.38 acres. Acquisition estimates for each property are shown in Table 2-3 Potential Property Converted to Transportation at North Avenue in Section 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use.

Caltrans relocation benefits and services may be required for the following businesses due to full or partial acquisition of the property:

- Kuckenbecker Tractor Company (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-021-04)—The southbound on-ramp would be installed at North Avenue and join State Route 99 in the southwest quadrant of the interchange. The onramp would go through this property and through the main buildings. This may require full acquisition of the property and use of relocation services.
- Truck Nation (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-040-36S)—This property is in the southeast corner of the North/Cedar Avenue intersection where improvements are being made to the south and east legs of the intersection. This property may have partial sliver acquisition where the property borders the intersection. Existing access points should remain the same or be moved south or east depending on safety measures.
- Core and Main Water Works Equipment Supplier (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-040-60)—Improvements to the south leg of the new North/Cedar Avenue intersection may require partial acquisition of land.
- Freedom RV (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-220-12S)—This property is in the southwest quadrant of the interchange. The improvements made to the intersection may require partial sliver acquisition of the parking lot on the property, where the property borders State Route 99.

Alternative 4-Diverging Diamond Interchange

Preliminary estimates indicate that Alternative 4 would require land from 21 properties, with an estimate of acquiring a total of 15.29 acres. Acquisition estimates for each property are shown in Table 2-3 Potential Land Converted to Transportation at North Avenue in Section 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use.

Caltrans relocation benefits and services may be required for the following businesses due to full or partial acquisition of the property:

 Kuckenbecker Tractor Company (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-021-04)—Even though this alternative has the smallest impact to the area of the alternatives proposed, the southbound on-ramp would go through this property, so partial or full acquisition may be required.

• Kioti Tractor (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-021-04)—This business is in the area needed for the southbound on-ramp. The southbound on-ramp would go through this property, so partial or full acquisition may be required.

Each of the build alternatives would install sidewalks, curb and gutter along North Avenue between Orange Avenue and Cedar Avenue. That may require replacement of some existing sidewalk to create conformity for the entire length of the new sidewalk. Caltrans would continue to coordinate with City and County staff concerning work outside of the Caltrans right-of-way. The location of all existing entry and exit points and driveways would be maintained according to city standards. During construction, there may be temporary interruptions in access, but this would be minimized with requirements to maintain access to all properties while work is underway. A traffic management plan would be prepared and include requirements for contractors to keep traffic access open.

The relocation impact study found there would be sufficient replacement facilities within the local area. With implementation of the Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program, the potential impacts would not be a considerable contribution to cumulative impacts. See 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use for a list of relevant past, present, and future projects.

No-Build Alternative

The No-Build Alternative would result in no relocation of residents or businesses or acquisition of land, but the interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps and driving conditions would further deteriorate as previously discussed.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.

Following completion of the final environmental document and identification of the preferred alternatives at American and North avenues, the Caltrans design process would focus on designing the selected alternatives to further reduce and avoid potential impacts. Caltrans would continue to coordinate with the City and County concerning details along these local streets.

A traffic management plan would be prepared and implemented during construction to keep traffic access open on the local streets as much as possible, with requirements to maintain access to all properties while work is underway. The plan would also include strategies to maintain regular communication with the public, emergency responders, and the railroad operators and businesses in the area.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

American Avenue and North Avenue No mitigation is required.

2.1.3 Utilities

Affected Environment

Preliminary design studies show that utilities, canals, storm drains, and sewer systems exist within the project area at American Avenue and North Avenue. These facilities often share the Caltrans right-of-way and cross the highway underground and above ground (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project).

Caltrans Right-of-Way staff investigated the potential for utilities to be affected by construction of the project. Caltrans has existing permit agreements to allow sharing of the state right-of-way. Caltrans found the following utilities in the area:

- Fresno Irrigation District facilities (canals)
- Water and sewer municipal facilities
- Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District storm drains
- Pacific Gas and Electric facilities
- Telephone lines
- Municipal and private gas lines

Environmental Consequences

American Avenue and North Avenue

Relocation of utilities and potholing are likely necessary with each of the build alternatives at both interchanges, and there would likely be temporary intermittent disruption of service during relocation. "Potholing" is a construction method to confirm the location of utilities. There would be no permanent adverse impacts to utilities; relocating utility service lines is a common activity for Caltrans and utility owners.

After the preferred alternative is identified, Caltrans Right-of-Way agents will contact all parties to conduct a series of meetings to compare the design mapping with the as-built mapping of the utilities, form agreements, and determine a relocation plan for the utility facilities. The process is designed to minimize potential impacts. Any proposed relocation, construction, or reconstruction of existing storm drainage facilities will be reviewed and approved by the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District prior to implementation.

Caltrans' standard process to coordinate with utility owners includes thorough examination of as-built maps and development of plans to conduct all

necessary utility work. There would be no considerable contribution to a negative cumulative impact of utilities from the project. See 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use for a list of relevant past, present, and future projects.

The project would enclose a portion of the North Colony Canal by installing a box culvert. The canal sits on the north side of North Avenue, in the east quadrant of the North-Cedar Avenue intersection. Caltrans would coordinate further with the Fresno Irrigation District. A 1600 Permit and Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife would be required for work on the canal.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no relocation of utilities, but the interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps and driving conditions would further deteriorate with increased vehicle delay. With time, more potholes and cracks would develop in the pavement, making driving in the area more difficult. The existing tight dimensions would continue to be difficult to navigate for vehicles, especially large trucks. Out-of-direction travel would continue to cause delay and unnecessary travel on local roads.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.

During the design phase of the project, a more detailed study would be conducted to determine the necessary relocation of additional utilities. Caltrans would meet with the affected utilities to coordinate the details for relocations and easements to avoid or minimize any interruption in services.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

American Avenue and North Avenue No mitigation is required.

2.1.4 Traffic and Transportation/Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities

Regulatory Setting

Caltrans, as assigned by the Federal Highway Administration, directs that full consideration should be given to the safe accommodation of pedestrians and bicyclists during the development of federal-aid highway projects (23 Code of Federal Regulations 652). It further directs that the special needs of the elderly and the disabled must be considered in all federal-aid projects that include pedestrian facilities. When current or anticipated pedestrian and/or bicycle traffic presents a potential conflict with motor vehicle traffic, every effort must be made to minimize the detrimental effects on all highway users who share the facility.

In July 1999, the U.S. Department of Transportation issued an Accessibility Policy Statement pledging a fully accessible multimodal transportation system. Accessibility in federally assisted programs is governed by the U.S. Department of Transportation regulations (49 Code of Federal Regulations 27) implementing Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act (29 U.S. Code 794). The Federal Highway Administration has enacted regulations for the implementation of the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act (also known by the acronym ADA), including a commitment to build transportation facilities that provide equal access for all persons. These regulations require application of the Americans with Disabilities Act requirements to federal-aid projects, including Transportation Enhancement Activities.

Affected Environment

A Traffic Operations Report was completed in May 2020 along with additional traffic data prepared by the Caltrans District 6 Traffic Operations and Technical Planning units (Caltrans Travel Forecasting). The studies estimated Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT) volumes and level of service ratings for the 2019 Existing year, the 2026 Open to Traffic Year, and the 2046 Planning Horizon Year. The following transportation facilities are in or near the American Avenue and North Avenue interchanges:

American Avenue and North Avenue

State Highways

The 2020 traffic study included a scope that assessed the potential to impact the major routes in the project area:

- State Route 99 runs in a northwest-southeast orientation through the project area. Both the American Avenue and North Avenue interchanges are located on State Route 99. While the proposed work is concentrated at the interchanges, temporary construction signs and traffic control during construction would occur along State Route 99 between the Clovis Avenue and Jensen Avenue crossings.
- Golden State Boulevard is the former LRN 4 (Legislative Route Number 4), a major route in California and through the San Joaquin Valley. It was the original route before construction of State Route 99 was completed in 1965. The boulevard follows the Burlington Northern and Santa Fe railroad in a northwest-southeast orientation and runs parallel with State Route 99. It sits about half a mile east of the American Avenue interchange and 1.5 miles east of the North Avenue interchange.
- State Route 41 lies west of the project area, running in a north-south orientation through the area about 4.5 miles west of the American Avenue interchange and 1.4 miles west of the North Avenue interchange.

Local Roads

The project includes improvements to several local roads in addition to American Avenue and North Avenue. The project would make improvements to the following local roads:

- Orange Avenue is a local north-south road that crosses North Avenue one block west of State Route 99.
- Parkway Drive is a frontage road along the west side of State Route 99 connecting southbound State Route 99 traffic from North Avenue to Cedar Avenue where the southbound on-ramp is currently located.
- Cedar Avenue is a north-south road that crosses North Avenue one block east of State Route 99.

Railroad Facilities

The following railroad facilities exist in the project area:

- The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe (BNSF) railroad established the northwest-southeast orientation of the alignment for the transportation corridor that also includes Golden State Boulevard and State Route 99. The railroad runs through the length of the San Joaquin Valley and beyond.
- The Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Calwa Railroad Yard is a large train switching yard just northeast of the North Avenue interchange.
- The Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR) cuts through the project area in a northsouth orientation, crossing under State Route 99 just south of the Cedar Avenue overcrossing and heading north to connect with the rail yard.
- The California High-Speed Rail alignment approaches the project area from the south as it follows the Union Pacific Railroad north toward State Route 99 where it veers slightly to the northwest before crossing over State Route 99 and over the Cedar Avenue overcrossing. The high-speed rail alignment then merges into the northwest-southeast transportation corridor alignment through the city of Fresno.

Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities

A short section of sidewalk for pedestrians occurs at the American Avenue and North Avenue overcrossing structures where the sidewalk extends from end-to-end, on the south side of each overcrossing. The sidewalk is raised and includes curb and gutter. The only other sidewalks in the project area are at the North Avenue and Orange Avenue intersection and the North Avenue and Cedar Avenue intersection. Crosswalks are present only at the North Avenue and Orange Avenue intersection and the North Avenue Avenue and Orange Avenue intersection and the North Avenue and Cedar Avenue intersection.

There are no developed bicycle facilities in the project area, and the local roads in the project area are not identified as Priority Routes in the City of

Fresno's 2017 Active Transportation Plan. However, the plan does support connecting all parts of Fresno by walking and bicycling and identifies North Avenue as a potential Class II Bicycle Path in the full buildout of the plan. A Class II - Full Build Out envisioned by the City is a long-term (more than 30year) vision for a connected bicycle network and prescribes Class II bike lanes for most arterial and collector streets.

Municipal Bus Routes and Airports

There are no bus routes into or through the project area. The closest bus stop is at the Robert J. Arriago Community Center in the community of Malaga, about 2.4 miles east of North Avenue.

There are no airports in or near the project area.

Environmental Consequences

The May 2020 Traffic Operations Report provides traffic volumes, and level of service ratings are provided for the proposed build alternatives and a No-Build Alternative for each interchange. The No-Build Alternative portrays roadway conditions as if no transportation improvements were made.

Caltrans uses Annual Average Daily Traffic volumes to measure the carrying capacity of roadway features, such as roadway segments, intersections and interchanges. Average Daily Traffic volume numbers represent the traffic demand or the volume of traffic using a roadway in a 24-hour period. Roadways are designed to handle specific volumes of traffic. When the capacity of a roadway is exceeded, the effectiveness of the roadway is reduced.

Caltrans uses level of service (also known by the acronym "LOS") to indicate how effectively a roadway or interchange transports vehicles. The level of service rating system uses letters "A" through "F" to describe and measure service quality. A designation of level of service "A" indicates excellent travel conditions, while level of service "F" indicates very poor, congested conditions. According to Caltrans standards, ratings of "A" through "D" are considered acceptable ratings, depending on other measures used to analyze the effectiveness of a facility.

Note: Vehicle miles traveled is a measure used in transportation planning to represent the amount of travel for all vehicles in a geographic region over a given period of time, typically a 1-year period. This project is considered "a project type that is unaffected by the use of vehicle miles traveled" as a measure of transportation impacts because it "is assumed to not lead to measurable and substantial increases in vehicle travel." The project complies with the Caltrans Policy Memo entitled "Caltrans Policy on Transportation Impact Analysis and the California Environmental Quality Act Significance Determinations for Projects on the State Highway System" (September 10, 2020), as well as Caltrans "Transportation Analysis Framework" (September 10, 2020) and "Transportation Analysis under the California Environmental

Quality Act" guidance documents for implementation of Senate Bill 743 (Steinberg, 2013) which is codified at Public Resources Code Section 21099. These documents are available on Caltrans' website at https://dot.ca.gov/programs/sustainability/sb-743

All proposed improvements would be constructed to meet requirements of the 1990 Americans with Disabilities Act.

State Route 99 Mainline

Table 2-6 Mainline Annual Average Daily Traffic shows traffic volumes and the percentage of truck traffic on State Route 99 between North and American avenues. The table shows that traffic volume on State Route 99 is predicted to increase through time by approximately 174,650 Annual Average Daily Traffic from 2019 to 2046, and the percentage of truck volume would remain at approximately 16 percent of the vehicle mix.

Mainline	Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Percentage
2019 Existing	122,650	19,624	16%
2026 No-Build	199,050	31,848	16%
2046 No-Build	297,300	47,568	16%

Table 2-6 Mainline Annual Average DailyTraffic

Source: Caltrans Travel Forecasting.

State Route 99 between American Avenue and North Avenue is currently operating at level of service "C" and "D" during morning and evening peak travel periods, respectively. Peak travel periods are the timespan when travel volumes are highest with the worst traffic conditions. The peak periods for this project area are between 6:00 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. for the morning peak period and 3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. for the evening peak period.

The May 2020 Traffic Operations Report found the following for the mainline:

- The mainline Average Annual Daily Traffic would more than double by 2046 and become more congested without lanes being added to the mainline.
- The mainline would eventually operate at level of service "F" during peak travel periods by 2046 with or without construction of the project.
- The relocation of the ramps from Cedar Avenue to North Avenue would increase the weaving distance (the distance for vehicles to change lanes) on the mainline and therefore improve freeway operations between Chestnut Avenue and North Avenue.
- The project would not negatively impact the mainline Annual Average Daily Traffic or level of service.

- The project improvements would provide better operational conditions for traffic using the interchanges than if the improvements were not constructed.
- There would be improved conditions on the local road system.
- There would be no negative long-term impacts to the mainline with construction of the project.
- There may be temporary impacts during demolition of the overcrossings and when mainline traffic is detoured around the demolition work and if night work is required.

With or without the interchange improvements, the mainline where the interchange ramps meet State Route 99 is predicted to be at level of service "F" by 2046. This is because the mainline is predicted to experience a large increase in traffic volume, with no planned projects to add lanes to State Route 99 to carry the increased traffic.

American Avenue

State Highways

Most work for the project involves the existing interchanges on State Route 99. The project would reconstruct a new overcrossing with improved dimensions in the same location as the existing overcrossing to improve traffic conditions getting on and off the highway. The project would reconstruct the existing southbound off-ramps and northbound on-ramps and construct two new ramps to provide northbound and southbound traffic with full access to and from the highway. The only improvements to the mainline would occur where the relocated ramps meet the highway.

The May 2020 Traffic Operations Report found the following for the American Avenue interchange:

- The changes would improve traffic conditions for vehicles and especially large trucks.
- The only improvements to the State Route 99 mainline would occur where the ramps merge with the highway, and no negative effects to the State Route 99 mainline are anticipated.
- No negative impacts are anticipated to occur to State Route 41 or Golden State Boulevard from construction of the project.
- The project would improve conditions at the Golden State Boulevard intersection with American Avenue.

Local Roads

The proposed interchange alternatives would improve intersections on American Avenue where the new on- and off-ramps meet, as described in Section 1.4 Project Alternatives. The project also includes improvements to the intersection of American Avenue at the Juvenile Justice Campus driveway:

 Juvenile Justice Campus Driveway—This is a signalized intersection on American Avenue just west of the interchange. The intersection was established to manage traffic volume entering and leaving the campus. The project would upgrade the existing intersection facilities (signals, turn pockets, pedestrian crossings) to accommodate the increased traffic using the new southbound on-ramp and northbound off-ramp.

Table 2-7 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volumes at American Avenue shows results from the May 2020 Traffic Operations Report with traffic volumes for the No-Build Alternative and two build alternatives. Volumes are shown for the years 2019, 2026 and 2046. The volumes for the No-Build Alternative assume the interchange remains a half interchange with no improvements. The two build alternatives assume full interchanges are built with four on- and off-ramps at the interchange.

The table can be used to compare traffic volume numbers for the proposed alternatives predicted for 2026 and 2046 for American Avenue and if no project is built. Projections indicate there would be an increase of 2,900 vehicles by 2046 without construction of the project. With the build alternatives, there is an increase of 5,900 from 2019 to 2046 with construction of Alternative 1 or Alternative 2. Truck traffic maintains a steady 12 percent of the traffic volume with construction of the project out to 2046, and 9 percent with no project.

Alternatives at American Interchange	Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Percentage
2019 Existing	4,900	441	9%
2026 No-Build	5,700	513	9%
2026 Alternative 1	8,100	993	12%
2026 Alternative 2	8,110	986	12%
2046 No-Build	7,800	702	9%
2046 Alternative 1	10,800	1,302	12%
2046 Alternative 2	10,800	1,283	12%

 Table 2-7 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volume at American Avenue

Source: Caltrans Travel Forecasting.

The existing ramps at American Avenue are currently operating at acceptable levels of service of "A" and "B" during peak travel periods but are expected to deteriorate to level of service "C" and "D" by 2046. With the construction of Alternatives 1 and 2, the level of service on the ramps would also be "C" and "D" by 2046. With or without the project, the existing intersection at Juvenile Justice Campus Drive is predicted to be operating at level of service rating "B" in 2046.

There may be temporary impacts to local streets during demolition of the overcrossings and when mainline traffic is detoured around the demolition work. Night work may be required. A traffic management plan would be prepared to perform traffic control during construction to provide access to properties for residents and businesses, for emergency responders, and for through traffic to minimize traffic congestion during construction hours.

See 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use for a list of relevant past, present, and future projects considered.

Railroads and High-Speed Rail

No improvements are proposed to a railroad or the California High-Speed Rail line. No negative impacts are anticipated from construction of the project to railroads and/or the California High-Speed Rail. Construction of the project would be coordinated around train schedules where necessary. A traffic management plan would be prepared to perform traffic control during construction.

Pedestrians and Bicycles

The regional Federal Transportation Improvement Program includes funding for bicycle facility improvements in the project area. Following Caltrans standards, the new overcrossings would include sidewalks for pedestrians and wider 8-foot shoulders to accommodate bicycles.

Municipal Bus Routes and Airports

There are no bus routes or airports in the area, so there would be no impacts to bus routes or airports from the project.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no improvements to roads or features for pedestrians and bicycles. The interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps, and driving conditions would further deteriorate as previously discussed.

Cedar Avenue Ramps

State Highways

The ramps to and from Cedar Avenue are proposed for removal. The new northbound off-ramp and southbound on-ramp at North Avenue would effectively replace the removed ramps and form a full interchange at North Avenue. It is anticipated that most of the Cedar Avenue ramp traffic would use the ramps at North Avenue. No negative impacts are anticipated to Cedar Avenue from closing the ramps.

Local Roads

The ramps to and from Cedar Avenue are proposed for removal but the new northbound off-ramp and southbound on-ramp at North Avenue replace the

removed ramps and form a full interchange at North Avenue. It is anticipated that most of the Cedar Avenue ramp traffic would use the ramps at North Avenue. No negative impacts are anticipated to Cedar Avenue from closing the ramps.

Railroads and High-Speed Rail

No improvements are proposed to a railroad or the California High-Speed Rail line. No negative impacts are anticipated by removal of the Cedar Avenue ramps to railroads or the California High-Speed Rail.

Pedestrians and Bicycles

No existing facilities at Cedar Avenue would be impacted by removal of the ramps.

Municipal Bus Routes and Airports

There are no bus routes or airports in the area, so there would be no impacts to bus routes or airports from removal of the Cedar Avenue ramps.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no closure of the Cedar ramps, and the interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps. Driving conditions would further deteriorate with increased vehicle delay as previously discussed.

North Avenue

State Highways

Most of the work proposed in the project would occur at the existing interchanges crossing State Route 99. The project would reconstruct a new overcrossing with improved dimensions in the same location as the existing overcrossing to improve traffic conditions getting on and off the highway. The project would reconstruct the existing southbound off-ramp and northbound on-ramp, and construct two new ramps to provide northbound and southbound traffic with full access to and from the highway.

The May 2020 Traffic Operations Report found the following for the North Avenue interchange:

- The changes would improve traffic conditions for vehicles and especially large trucks.
- The only improvements to the State Route 99 mainline would occur where the ramps merge with the highway, and no negative effects to the State Route 99 mainline are anticipated.
- No negative impacts are anticipated to occur to State Route 41 or Golden State Boulevard from construction of the project.

- Traffic that would normally use the Cedar Avenue southbound on-ramp and northbound off-ramp would have better access and likely use ramps at other interchanges, such as North Avenue and American Avenue.
- Traffic that has been using local streets to access destinations in the project area would instead use the highway and improved interchanges to take advantage of the more direct access provided by the project.

Local Roads

The interchange alternatives would improve intersections on North Avenue where the new on- and off-ramps meet, as described in Section 1.4 Project Alternatives.

The project includes improvements to several local intersections:

- Orange Avenue Intersection—This is a signalized intersection on North Avenue, one block west of State Route 99. The project would upgrade the existing intersection facilities (signals, turn pockets, pedestrian crossings) to accommodate traffic using the improved interchange and to improve access for traffic accessing the warehousing businesses on Orange Avenue south of North Avenue.
- Parkway Drive Intersection—This intersection currently functions as an extension of the North Avenue southbound on-ramp as well as a frontage road along the west side of State Route 99 connecting southbound State Route 99 traffic from North Avenue to Cedar Avenue where the southbound on-ramp is currently located. The project would relocate the roadway to the west to meet Orange Avenue, south of the intersection of Orange Avenue with North Avenue. The relocation would make way for the new southbound on-ramp and new intersection facilities such as signals, turn lanes, and pedestrian crossings. No signalization would be installed where the new Parkway Drive intersects Orange Avenue because predicted traffic volumes at the location does not warrant them.
- Cedar Avenue Intersection—This is a signalized intersection on North Avenue, one block east of State Route 99. The project would upgrade the signals, turn pockets, and pedestrian crossings.

Table 2-8 Annual Average Daily Traffic Volumes at North Avenue shows traffic volumes for the No-Build Alternative and two build alternatives. The Cedar Avenue ramp volumes are included in the volumes reported for North Avenue. The volumes for the No-Build Alternative assume the interchange remains a half interchange with no improvements. The projections for the two build alternatives assume full interchanges are built with four on- and off-ramps at the interchange.

For the North Avenue interchange, the table shows traffic volume is predicted to increase to year 2046, which is Caltrans' 20-year planning horizon. The table also shows if the project is constructed, traffic volumes would decrease

by 1,800 Annual Average Daily Traffic, compared with the No-Build Alternative. This is due to expected redistribution of traffic resulting from the interchange improvements. There is no considerable difference between the predicted traffic volume (Annual Average Daily Traffic) in 2046 for each of the two build alternatives. The percentage of truck traffic remains at roughly 33 percent with or without the project. Distribution of truck traffic is improved with the project, as seen in the one-half percent difference between the 2046 No-Build Alternative and the 2046 build alternatives.

Alternatives at North/Cedar Interchange	Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Annual Average Daily Traffic	Truck Percentage
2019 Existing	14,000	4,060	29%
2026 No-Build	30,000	9,996	33.5%
2026 Alternative 2	29,000	9,372	31%
2026 Alternative 4	29,000	9,516	33%
2046 No-Build	39,400	13,250	33.5%
2046 Alternative 2	37,600	12,311	33%
2046 Alternative 4	37,500	12,372	33%

Source: Caltrans Travel Forecasting.

Traffic studies found that the existing ramps at North Avenue and Cedar Avenue are currently operating at acceptable levels of service of "C" and "D" during peak travel hours but are expected to deteriorate to level of service "F" by 2046 without the project. With the improvements to the interchanges and upgrades to the existing intersections on North Avenue at Orange Avenue and Cedar Avenue, conditions would be greatly improved on the local street system and for traffic entering and exiting the highway. Also, a new intersection is proposed where Parkway Drive meets Orange Avenue just south of the North and Orange avenue intersection. Both Alternatives 2 and 4 modify the alignment of Parkway Drive from North Avenue to the west to meet Orange Avenue. These intersections are predicted to be operating at level of service ratings of "D," "E," and "F" by 2046 but with construction of the proposed improvements, the intersections would operate at levels of service "A," "B," and "C."

There may be temporary impacts to local streets during demolition of the overcrossings and when mainline traffic is detoured around the demolition work. Night work may be required. A traffic management plan would be prepared to perform traffic control during construction to provide access to properties for residents and businesses, for emergency responders, and for through traffic to minimize traffic congestion during construction hours.

See 2.1.1 Existing and Future Land Use for a list of relevant past, present, and future projects considered.

Railroads and High-Speed Rail

No improvements are proposed to a railroad or the California High-Speed Rail line. No negative impacts are anticipated from construction of the project to railroads or the California High-Speed Rail. Construction of the project would be coordinated around the train schedules where necessary. A traffic management plan would be prepared to perform traffic control during construction.

Pedestrians and Bicycles

The regional Federal Transportation Improvement Program includes funding for bicycle facility improvements in the project area. Following Caltrans standards, new overcrossings would include sidewalks for pedestrians and wider 8-foot shoulders to accommodate bicycles.

Bus Routes and Airports

There are no bus routes or airports in the area, so there would be no impacts to bus routes or airports from the project.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no improvements to roads or features for pedestrians and bicycles. The interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps, and driving conditions would further deteriorate as previously discussed.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.

A traffic management plan would be developed to avoid and minimize local traffic delay and congestion during construction. The traffic management plan includes notifying the public of construction activities via changeable message signs and the Caltrans District 6 Central Valley Traffic Management Center, monitors traffic and informs the public of construction activities via media outlets, such as radio and television. A traffic management plan could include, but is not limited to, the following:

- Communication with emergency service providers such as police, fire, ambulance, and hospital facilities.
- Release of information through brochures and mailers, press releases, and notices from the Caltrans public information office.
- Use of fixed and portable changeable message signs.
- Incident management through the Construction Zone Enhancement Enforcement Program and the Transportation Management Plan.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

No mitigation is required.

2.1.5 Visual/Aesthetics

Regulatory Setting

The National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, establishes that the federal government use all practicable means to ensure all Americans safe, healthful, productive, and aesthetically (emphasis added) and culturally pleasing surroundings (42 U.S. Code 4331[b][2]). To further emphasize this point, the Federal Highway Administration, in its implementation of the National Environmental Policy Act (23 U.S. Code 109[h]), directs that final decisions on projects are to be made in the best overall public interest taking into account adverse environmental impacts, including among others, the destruction or disruption of aesthetic values.

The California Environmental Quality Act establishes that it is the policy of the state to take all action necessary to provide the people of the state "with…enjoyment of aesthetic, natural, scenic and historic environmental qualities" (California Public Resources Code Section 21001[b]).

California Streets and Highways Code Section 92.3 directs Caltrans to use drought resistant landscaping and recycled water when feasible, and incorporate native wildflowers and native and climate-appropriate vegetation into the planting design when appropriate.

Affected Environment

A Visual Impact Analysis was completed in September 2020 and followed the guidance outlined in the publication *Visual Impact Assessment for Highway Projects* published by the Federal Highway Administration. The analysis described the visual resources potentially affected in the project area and is summarized below.

Mainline

The project is not within a scenic highway. The corridor is classified as a landscaped highway, defined as a section of highway with ornamental vegetation planting that meets the criteria established by the California Code of Regulations, Outdoor Advertising Regulations, Title 4, Division 6. This designation is used in the control and regulation of outdoor advertising displays.

As a landscaped highway, State Route 99 has large mature eucalyptus trees, with oleander shrubs and other irrigated ornamental shrubs and trees along the highway alignment. The oleander planted in the center island between the northbound and southbound traffic and the eucalyptus trees planted along the highway have been defined by local agencies as "signature planting" on State Route 99 through the Central Valley.

The project corridor is a southern gateway into the City of Fresno. A City of Fresno entry monument sits at the southeast quadrant of the existing American Avenue interchange. Three art murals sit along the corridor—at

Chestnut Avenue, Central Avenue, and Cedar Avenue. These roadside elements are important features of the highway. See Figure 2-3 Existing Roadside Features. Roadside treatments are under the guidance and coordinated efforts of the Fresno Council of Governments and City of Fresno.

The corridor has been treated with aesthetic enhancements north of the project area within the county, according to the Fresno Council of Governments, July 2000 Highway 99 Beautification Plan. This project would include enhancements consistent with the plan.



Figure 2-3 Existing Roadside Features

Source: September 2020 Visual Impact Assessment.

American Avenue

Land use near American Avenue within the project corridor is mostly open agricultural fields, but zoning is varied with industrial and commercial mixed with two residential areas, one institutional area, one open land area, and one agriculture use area. Moving north, land use continues with denser commercial and industrial uses along the highway. The Fresno County Juvenile Justice Campus sits on the parcel in the southwest quadrant of the American Avenue interchange.

North Avenue

The interchange is surrounded by commercial and industrial buildings and facilities, old and new, and other transportation facilities. The elevation and scale of the California High-Speed Rail bridge structure are prominent features and visible from the freeway, north and south of North Avenue, and from local streets in the area.

Environmental Consequences

American Avenue and North Avenue

The analysis determined visual resources at the two separate interchanges have the same visual features. Therefore, the two interchange locations were analyzed together, rather than individually.

The analysis found the project would have a moderately low visual impact at each interchange location and would not create new sources of light or glare. A small section of oleander located in the median at each interchange would be impacted along possibly with eucalyptus trees located near the interchanges. The improvements as a whole are considered to improve the corridor because the project would meet current local aesthetic values and goals as defined in the Fresno Council of Governments, July 2000 Highway 99 Beautification Plan and would be consistent with other project improvements made on State Route 99 north of the project area.

According to Caltrans policy, a separate landscape replacement planting is required for the removal of oleander and eucalyptus trees. In addition, the new bridge structures would be designed with aesthetic treatments to match the bridge aesthetic theme along the State Route 99 corridor.

The City of Fresno entry monument at American Avenue would not be impacted by Alternative 1, but the monument may need to be relocated under Alternative 2. The other art murals at Chestnut Avenue, Central Avenue, and Cedar Avenue would not be impacted by any of the build alternatives. Both the entry monument and the art murals would be protected in place during construction, or relocation would occur to protect these features. There would be no impact to these features with implementation of protection measures.

When looking at past, present and foreseeable projects affecting visual aesthetic values along the State Route 99 corridor, one must also consider vegetation removal in Caltrans projects. All Caltrans projects are required to replace any vegetation removed for worker safety. Since the project is consistent with local aesthetic values, the project would not contribute to or result in negative cumulative visual impacts, with implementation of avoidance and minimization measures as outlined in the following section.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would not remove oleander and eucalyptus trees, and there would be no improvements to roads or added features for pedestrians and bicycles. The interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps, and driving conditions would further deteriorate as previously discussed.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project. The following measures would be included for this project:

- Caltrans would provide aesthetic treatments to the bridge structures, abutments, wing walls and girders. Treatments such as textures and color would be consistent with recent structures constructed on State Route 99 in the city of Fresno north of the project area.
- Highway planting will be provided in a separate landscape project, once construction is completed, to replace any trees or shrubs removed, with preliminary costs estimated at \$1,917,000, including 3 years for plant establishment.
- The new plantings would be in compliance with Caltrans policy on replacement planting and within the design theme of the Fresno 99 Beautification Master Plan.
- Minimize removal of oleander from the median where feasible—Limit oleander removal from the median to no more than 500 continuous feet.
- Minimize tree removal—Remove only those trees and shrubs required for the construction of the new roadway facilities. Avoid removing trees and shrubs for temporary uses such as construction staging areas or temporary stormwater conveyance systems.
- Avoid mass grading—Where feasible, avoid mass grading the project site. Avoid removal and grading areas where existing vegetation provides screening of adjacent properties.
- Any new right-of-way fencing should keep with the existing rural fence. However, highway facility type (i.e., freeway or expressway) and adjacent zoning/land use would also factor into the type of fence that is selected.
- Any walls would be designed with aesthetic treatments to match treatments on other structures.
- If night construction is necessary, light spillage from portable sources would be minimized. At a minimum, the construction contractor would be required to minimize project-related light and glare to the maximum extent feasible, given safety considerations. Color-corrected halide lights could be used. Portable lights would be operated at the lowest allowable wattage and height and would be raised to a height no greater than 20

feet. All lights would be screened and directed downward toward work activities and away from the night sky, highway users and highway neighbors, to the maximum extent possible. The number of nighttime lights used would be minimized to the greatest extent possible.

• Provide protection for the City of Fresno entry monument and/or murals on State Route 99.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

No mitigation is required.

2.2 Physical Environment

2.2.1 Paleontology

Regulatory Setting

Paleontology is a natural science focused on the study of ancient animal and plant life as it is preserved in the geologic record as fossils. A number of federal statutes specifically address paleontological resources, their treatment, and funding for mitigation as a part of federally authorized projects:

- 16 U.S. Code 431-433 (the "Antiquities Act") prohibits appropriating, excavating, injuring, or destroying any object of antiquity situated on federal land without the permission of the Secretary of the Department of Government having jurisdiction over the land. Fossils are considered "objects of antiquity" by the Bureau of Land Management, the National Park Service, the Forest Service, and other federal agencies.
- 23 U.S. Code 1.9(a) requires that the use of federal-aid funds must be in conformity with all federal and state laws.
- 23 U.S. Code 305 authorizes the appropriation and use of federal highway funds for paleontological salvage as necessary by the highway department of any state, in compliance with 16 U.S. Code 431-433 above and state law.

Under California law, paleontological resources are protected by the California Environmental Quality Act.

Affected Environment

American Avenue and North Avenue

A Paleontological Evaluation Report was completed for this project in February 2020 to evaluate the potential for the project to uncover important fossils during construction. The study found the project did have the potential to encounter a geologic formation known as the Modesto Formation, which has produced significant paleontological resources in the San Joaquin Valley. The project area lies within the Great Valley geomorphic province, a large expansive alluvial plain with significant paleontological fossils buried in thick layers of sediment. The alluvial plain is made up of sediments deposited by rivers over the past 160 million years into a large, elongated basin that extends roughly 400 miles north and south between the Cascade Range and the Tehachapi Mountains, and roughly 50 miles east and west between the Sierra Nevada Mountain Range and the Coast Range in California.

A survey of the Paleontological Sensitivity Mapping database, developed by California State University, Fresno, found there is "high sensitivity" or potential for the project to encounter the Modesto Formation, which formed in the Quaternary period 2.6 million years to 12,000 years ago.

Numerous scientifically important fossils have been recovered from the Modesto Formation in the Central San Joaquin Valley, including discoveries on Caltrans projects in Fresno and Merced counties. For example, important fossils were found during construction of a Caltrans project completed in 2016 on State Route 99 in Merced County, just north of this project, where large land mammals such as mammoths, camels, bison, and horses were found in the Modesto Formation. Following these discoveries, the Modesto Formation is now classified as having "high sensitivity" for paleontological resources.

Environmental Consequences

American Avenue and North Avenue

There is potential for any of the build alternatives to impact sensitive paleontological resources where ground disturbance activities such as trenching and grading occur and where excavation reaches or exceeds a depth of 3 feet.

The project improvements require excavation up to approximately 11 feet deep from ground surface for drainage basins located within the interchange, with approximately 3 feet of the upper soil having been previously disturbed by construction of the existing highway. The project area has been highly disturbed by agricultural practices, the installation of canals, railroads, pipelines, utility lines and commercial and industrial development since the 1870s. While research of geologic maps and database inquiry indicate the Modesto Formation could potentially lie beneath State Route 99 in the project area, there has been no record of fossils recovered in the immediate project area.

The paleontological sensitivity of the Modesto Formation is categorized as "high," as other Caltrans projects have recovered scientifically significant fossils at other locations that include the State Route 99 Plainsburg Road/Arboleda Drive Freeway project in Merced County where fossils were recovered and studied and now reside at the University of California at Merced where they can be viewed. A search of the University of California Museum of Paleontology online database confirmed that, to date, there are three known fossil localities in Fresno County within the Quaternary/Holocene Modesto Formation.

Based on the work performed for previous Caltrans projects, measures have been adopted for all Caltrans projects to identify the potential for paleontological resources (fossils) in early planning stages and, where relevant, to require a professionally qualified paleontologist to monitor and recover, study, and preserve any fossils of scientific significance. With application of these measures, there would be no negative impact because there are standardized procedures in place to recover, identify, and preserve scientifically important fossils. These measures would ensure that the project would not contribute to a cumulative impact and would protect any important paleontological resources discovered.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no excavation in areas where paleontological resources may exist.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project. The following measures will be implemented to avoid and minimize impact to paleontological resources:

- A project-specific Paleontological Mitigation Plan will be prepared that provides for a professionally qualified paleontologist to be present to monitor excavation activities as well as to oversee the handling of fossils if found and to prepare all reporting requirements per Caltrans and the State of California requirements for paleontological resources.
- The Paleontological Mitigation Plan will be prepared by a paleontological sub-consultant under contract and task order under Caltrans oversight.
- All project personnel will receive training by a qualified paleontologist before the start of work.
- Recovered fossils would be prepared to the point of identification and placed in an approved paleontological repository.
- All open excavations more than 5 feet deep in native sediments of the Modesto Formation shall be monitored full-time by a qualified paleontologist.
- All construction/project personnel must complete a construction safety orientation. A procedure for interfacing paleontological and construction personnel will need to be developed in consultation with the Resident Engineer.
- A preconstruction paleontological sensitivity training for earthmoving personnel is to be conducted, and documentation of training (sign-in sheets, hardhat stickers) will be kept with the project records (filed onsite and in the Department Task Order Manager's office).
- The professional paleontologist would designate a paleontological monitor(s) to be present during qualifying earthmoving activities, as previously defined.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

No mitigation is required.

2.2.2 Hazardous Waste and Materials

Regulatory Setting

Hazardous materials, including hazardous substances and wastes, are regulated by many state and federal laws. Statutes govern the generation, treatment, storage, and disposal of hazardous materials, substances, and waste, and the investigation and mitigation of waste releases, air and water quality, human health, and land use.

The main federal laws regulating hazardous wastes and materials are the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 and the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976. The purpose of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, often referred to as "Superfund," is to identify and clean up abandoned contaminated sites so that public health and welfare are not compromised. The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act provides for "cradle to grave" regulation of hazardous waste generated by operating entities. Other federal laws include the following:

- Community Environmental Response Facilitation Act of 1992
- Clean Water Act
- Clean Air Act
- Safe Drinking Water Act
- Occupational Safety and Health Act
- Atomic Energy Act
- Toxic Substances Control Act
- Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act

In addition to the acts listed above, Executive Order 12088, Federal Compliance with Pollution Control Standards, mandates that necessary actions be taken to prevent and control environmental pollution when federal activities or federal facilities are involved.

California regulates hazardous materials, waste, and substances under the authority of the California Health and Safety Code and is authorized by the federal government to implement the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act in the state. California law also addresses specific handling, storage, transportation, disposal, treatment, reduction, cleanup, and emergency planning of hazardous waste. The Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act restricts disposal of wastes and requires cleanup of wastes that are below hazardous waste concentrations but could impact ground and surface water quality. California regulations that address waste management and prevention and cleanup of contamination include Title 22 Division 4.5 Environmental Health Standards for the Management of Hazardous Waste, Title 23 Waters, and Title 27 Environmental Protection.

Worker and public health and safety are key issues when addressing hazardous materials that may affect human health and the environment. Proper management and disposal of hazardous material is vital if it is found, disturbed, or generated during project construction.

Affected Environment

An Initial Site Assessment was completed for the project in May 2020. Preliminary Site Investigations were conducted in June 2020 for specific properties of concern.

The purpose of the Initial Site Assessment is to determine the presence of hazardous waste on properties potentially impacted by the project. The study determines the costs involved with cleanup and identifies risks of future requirements and costs for properties incorporated into the State Highway System. Study methodology included site reconnaissance, review of historical topographic maps and aerial photographs, investigation of regulatory databases, review of facility-related documents and other site-related record sources. In addition, for some properties, shallow borings were conducted to see the extent of the presence of known contaminants.

American Avenue and North Avenue

Of the 40 total properties studied in the direct impact area at American and North avenues, studies found that 37 properties contain hazardous waste, including 8 properties at American Avenue and 29 properties at North Avenue. The study recommended further preliminary site investigations for 11 properties to collect boring samples of the soil. Only five properties have been further investigated at this time because property owners would not allow access to the remaining six properties. Further investigations would be conducted of the remaining six properties in the future for those properties associated with the preferred alternative.

Records from regulatory files show contaminants came mostly from historic agricultural and heavy industrial uses that used a range of constituents, such as pesticides, heavy metals, volatile organic compounds, polychlorinated biphenyl and petroleum hydrocarbons. These constituents can be found in the soil at ground surface, in sediments subsurface, and in groundwater. One property was identified as associated with a hazardous waste Superfund site, located east of the intersection of North Avenue and Cedar Avenue. See Table 2-9 Potential for Hazardous Waste at American Avenue and Table 2-10

Potential for Hazardous Waste at North Avenue to see a listing of properties with the materials on record for each property.

Aerially Deposited Lead

A Preliminary Site Investigation was conducted for aerially deposited lead in May 2019. Aerially deposited lead is found along state highways deposited from use of leaded fuel in the 1970s. A sampling of the soil around State Route 99 at the American Avenue and North Avenue interchanges found aerially deposited lead in the soil next to State Route 99 in the project area.

Asbestos-Containing Materials and/or Lead-Based Paint

Studies found there is potential for asbestos-containing transit-pipe to be found during construction. The pipe is typically associated with underground utilities as they are being relocated.

Bridge structures in the project area were surveyed in May 2019 for asbestoscontaining material and lead-based paint. Analysis results for asbestos indicate that chrysotile asbestos at concentrations of 40 percent exists in the sheet packing used as barrier rail shims in bridges in the project area. Sheet packing that contains asbestos is a Category 1 nonfriable/nonhazardous material but must still be handled according to regulatory requirements. The following bridge structures with sheet packing were surveyed:

- American Avenue Overcrossing Bridge Number 42-0205
- Calwa Overhead Bridge Number 42-0208R and L
- Cedar Avenue Overcrossing Bridge Number 42-0209
- North Avenue Overcrossing Bridge Number 42-0210

While bridges do contain paint with lead, this is not considered to be a California or federal hazardous waste, based on the level of lead content. Other buildings and structures in the project location may contain lead-based paint or asbestos-containing material.

Environmental Consequences

The properties found to contain hazardous materials of concern are shown in Table 2-9 Potential for Hazardous Waste at American Avenue and Table 2-10 Potential for Hazardous Waste at North Avenue. The tables list the properties by Assessor's Parcel Number and state which alternative would impact the parcel and the potential hazardous constituents to be found on the property based on public records.

American Avenue

Eight properties containing hazardous waste and/or materials at American Avenue could be impacted by the project alternatives. Studies indicate that

each of the build alternatives would potentially impact the same number of properties with hazardous materials.

Analysis of the alternatives shows the potential impacts as follows:

- Alternative 1 potentially impacts 7 properties.
- Alternative 2 potentially impacts 7 properties.
- The No-Build Alternative would cause no impacts to properties containing hazardous materials, and therefore no cleanup would be required.

See Table 2-9 Potential for Hazardous Waste at American Avenue for more detail on each property containing hazardous waste and which alternative could impact each property.

County Assessor's Parcel Number	Alternative with Potential to Impact	Potential Hazardous Waste Concern
331-140-23	1	Historical Agricultural Use—Possible pesticides and heavy metals.
331-110-13s	1, 2	Historical Agricultural Use—Possible pesticides and heavy metals.
331-110-35	1, 2	Historical Agricultural Use and Heavy Equipment Repair—Possible pesticides, heavy metals, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds.
331-110-34	1, 2	Historical Agricultural Use and Heavy Equipment Repair—Possible pesticides, heavy metals, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds.
331-110-11	1, 2	Historical Agricultural Use—Possible pesticides, heavy metals, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds.
340-060-22	1, 2	Historical Agricultural Use—Possible pesticides, heavy metals, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds.
340-060-44T	1, 2	Historical Agricultural Use—Possible pesticides and heavy metals.
340-060-20	2	Historical Agricultural Use and Heavy Equipment Storage Yard—Possible pesticides, heavy metals, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds.

 Table 2-9 Potential for Hazardous Waste at American Avenue

Source: May 2020 Initial Site Assessment.

Construction of this project, and other projects in the vicinity, would result in potential exposure to hazardous waste/materials related to ground-disturbing activities and the removal or modification of facilities and structures. Soils in the vicinity of roadways may be contaminated with aerially deposited lead, and agricultural soils may be contaminated with pesticides and other materials. Structures may contain lead-based paint, asbestos, or other

hazardous materials. Avoidance and minimization measures are included in this project to address the removal of these materials, including the requirement for a health and safety plan to test soils before construction and appropriately dispose of contaminated materials.

Other projects in the area would encounter many of the same potential effects associated with hazardous materials. However, all projects must comply with state and federal regulations to prevent releases of hazardous materials and to ensure worker and public safety. Implementation of avoidance and minimization measures would offset any potential project effects, ensuring that cumulative effects associated with hazardous materials are avoided. The project would not contribute to negative cumulative impacts because the project area would benefit from the removal of these materials according to state and federal safety standards.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no construction activities disturbing or handling hazardous waste or materials. The interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps, and driving conditions would further deteriorate as previously discussed.

North Avenue

At North Avenue, of the 32 properties evaluated, 30 properties were found to potentially contain hazardous waste and/or materials that could be impacted by the project alternatives. See Table 2-10 Potential for Hazardous Waste at North Avenue for more detail on each property containing hazardous waste and a breakdown of which alternative could impact each property.

Analysis of the alternatives shows the potential impacts as follows:

- Alternative 2 potentially impacts 29 properties.
- Alternative 4 potentially impacts 25 properties.
- The No-Build Alternative would cause no impacts to properties containing hazardous materials, and therefore no cleanup would be required.

A property of concern (Assessor's Parcel Number 487-020-65) in the northeast quadrant of North Avenue and Cedar Avenue is where a former pesticide formulation facility contaminated the area. The property is identified as a Cortese listed property. The property is currently under orders to investigate a release of contamination to the soil and groundwater. There are monitoring wells for contamination at the site. The project is not anticipated to impact this property, and the property should be avoided. If impacted, any new owner would potentially be required to work with the California Department of Toxic Substances Control and the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board regarding monitoring well abandonment and/or replacement, and would be responsible for any remediation activity that is outstanding. As currently designed, Alternatives 2 and 4 avoid acquiring property from this site.

County Assessor's Parcel Number	Alternative with Potential to Impact	Potential Hazardous Concern
330-021-36S	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use—Pesticides and heavy metals.
330-021-60S	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use—Pesticides and heavy metals.
330-021-01	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use—Pesticides and heavy metals.
330-021-13S	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use—Pesticides and heavy metals. Monitoring wells for Orange Avenue land fill.
330-021-12T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use—Pesticides and heavy metals. Existing ponding basin.
330-021-04	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use—Subsurface petroleum hydrocarbons associated with vehicle repair service.
330-021-05	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial Use—Subsurface petroleum hydrocarbons.
487-031-52	2	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds, heavy metals, polychlorinated biphenyls.
487-031-54	2	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Pesticide, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds, heavy metals, polychlorinated biphenyls.
487-031-63	2	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Pesticide, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds, heavy metals, polychlorinated biphenyls.
487-031-62	2	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds, polychlorinated biphenyls.
487-140-51	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds, heavy metals, polychlorinated biphenyls, underground storage tanks.
487-180-08T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-09T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-03	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-07T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.

County Assessor's Parcel Number	Alternative with Potential to Impact	Potential Hazardous Concern
487-180-06T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-14T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-18	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-17T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Possible heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-16T	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
487-180-15	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Heavy metals, pesticides.
330-040-48S	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Tetrahydropalmatine, pesticides, heavy metals, volatile organic compounds, underground storage tanks.
330-040-60	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Site Investigation results pending. Tetrahydropalmatine, heavy metals, volatile organic compounds, pesticides.
330-040-36s	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Tetrahydropalmatine, volatile organic compounds, heavy metals, pesticides.
330-040-61	2, 4	Historical Agricultural Use and Light Industrial/ Commercial Use—Sentry wells on the west side of the property.
330-040-24S	2, 4	Historic Gas Station and Diesel Repair Shop— Sentry well for Purity Oil site, evidence of gas station.
330-021-07T	2, 4	Historic Agricultural Use—Pesticides, heavy metals, volatile organic compounds, Tetrahydropalmatine.
330-040-57S	2, 4	On Cortese List as closed leaking underground storage tanks case associated with General Tire Service.

Source: May 2020 Initial Site Assessment.

Construction of the project, and other projects in the vicinity, would result in potential exposure to hazardous waste/materials related to ground-disturbing activities and the removal or modification of facilities and structures. Soils in the vicinity of roadways may be contaminated with aerially deposited lead, and agricultural soils may be contaminated with pesticides and other materials. Structures may contain lead-based paint, asbestos, or other hazardous materials. Avoidance and minimization measures are included in the project to address the removal of these materials, including the

requirement for a health and safety plan to test soils before construction and appropriately dispose of contaminated materials.

Other projects in the area would encounter many of the same potential effects associated with hazardous materials. However, all projects must comply with state and federal regulations to prevent releases of hazardous materials and ensure worker and public safety. Implementation of avoidance and minimization measures would offset any potential project effects, ensuring that cumulative effects associated with hazardous materials are avoided. The project would not contribute to negative cumulative impacts because the project area would benefit from the removal of these materials according to state and federal safety standards.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no construction activities disturbing or handling hazardous waste or materials.

American Avenue and North Avenue

Aerially Deposited Lead

Results of the soil analysis found the top 1 foot of soil from the southbound shoulder in the project area would be considered California hazardous waste. Soil below 1 foot is considered non-hazardous. Depending on construction activities and the soil excavation depth, the northbound shoulder is considered California hazardous waste from 0 to 3 feet.

Asbestos-Containing Materials and/or Lead-Based Paint

Results of the analysis of lead in paint indicated that lead is present on the structures, but the paint would not be considered California or federal hazardous waste based on lead content. Buildings and structures in the proposed project location may contain lead-based paint or asbestos-containing material. Buildings and structures will be surveyed prior to acquisition and/or demolition.

Results of the asbestos analysis indicate that chrysotile asbestos at concentrations of 40 percent exists in the sheet packing used as barrier rail shims on the structures below:

- American Avenue Overcrossing Bridge Number 42-0205
- Calwa Overhead Bridge Number 42-0208R and 42-0208L
- Cedar Avenue Overcrossing Bridge Number 42-0209
- North Avenue Overcrossing Bridge Number 42-0210

The asbestos-containing material in the sheet packing is a Category 1 nonfriable, non-hazardous material. Studies also found the potential for asbestos-containing transit-pipe, typically associated with underground

utilities, which could be encountered during construction of the planned roadway improvements as utilities are relocated.

An Asbestos Compliance Plan is required for this project.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project. The following standard measures will be implemented to avoid and minimize the potential impacts from the removal and handling of hazardous waste during construction:

- Further site investigations would be conducted once the preferred alternatives are selected.
- Residual organochlorine pesticides (and associated elevated arsenic concentrations) may be present in shallow soil within the project study area due to historical non-regulated agricultural operations. The pesticide and arsenic levels on properties that were for agricultural use are not anticipated to exceed regulatory health-based screening thresholds for commercial/industrial land use, but will be tested.
- A Lead Compliance Plan is required for this project to ensure proper handling of lead-containing soil prior to construction.
- If excess soil is generated from the Caltrans right-of-way, it is required to be reused at the same site or disposed of in accordance with the Department of Toxic Substances Control requirements as defined in established agreements made with Caltrans (2016). For properties adjacent to State Route 99 with the potential for aerially deposited lead, if excavated soil will not be reused at the same site of excavation, an aerially deposited lead study is required to determine levels and treatment of the soil removed. Soil being used at another site would not qualify to avoid conducting the study and treatment required.
- The top 1 foot of soil from the southbound shoulder of State Route 99 would be considered California hazardous waste. Soil below 1 foot is considered non-hazardous. Depending on construction activities and the soil excavation depth scenario, the northbound shoulder is considered California hazardous waste from 0 to 3 feet. Soil, if generated from the median of State Route 99, would be considered non-hazardous. If imported borrow (soil) is needed for the project, Caltrans standard contract provisions are included in the contract to ensure borrow material comes from approved sites.
- Written notification to the San Joaquin Valley Unified Air Pollution Control District is required 10 working days prior to any demolition activity, whether asbestos is present or not. This would be required if the bridge structures are to be demolished.

- If found during construction, material suspect of containing asbestos would be collected for laboratory analysis to determine proper handling and disposal in accordance with regulatory requirements. Buildings and structures will be surveyed for asbestos and lead prior to acquisition and/or demolition.
- This project would be subject to the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Rule 9510 (Indirect Source Review Rule) that applies to construction equipment emissions for transportation projects that exceed 2 tons of either PM10 and/or NOX air pollutants. Compliance with the rule would ensure that any unexpected impacts are minimized. The construction contractor would be responsible for the Indirect Source Review Air Impact Analysis and any applicable fees. The analysis estimates the construction equipment emissions. The contractor can choose to reduce the emissions by using a construction fleet that is "cleaner than the California state average" or, if emissions exceed the limits, the contractor can make the payment of fees paid to the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District.
- Caltrans Standard Specifications pertaining to dust control and dust palliative requirement are a required part of all construction contracts and should effectively reduce and control emission impacts during construction. The provisions of Caltrans Standard Specifications Section 14-9.02 "Air Pollution Control" and Section 14-9.03 "Dust Control" require the contractor to comply with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District rules, ordinances, and regulations.
- An Asbestos Compliance Plan is required for this project to ensure proper handling of asbestos material in bridge structures, transit-pipe, and underground utilities prior to construction.
- Appropriate standard specifications and plans addressing all hazardous waste concerns will be included into the construction package to ensure all regulatory requirements are met for proper handling and disposal of materials/wastes.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

American Avenue and North Avenue No mitigation is required.

2.2.3 Air Quality

Regulatory Setting

The Federal Clean Air Act, as amended, is the main federal law that governs air quality. The California Clean Air Act is its companion state law. These laws, and related regulations by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the California Air Resources Board, set standards for the concentration of pollutants in the air. At the federal level, these standards are called National Ambient Air Quality Standards (also known by the acronym NAAQS).

The national and state ambient air quality standards have been established for six criteria pollutants that have been linked to potential health concerns: carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen dioxide (NO2), ozone (O3), lead (Pb), sulfur dioxide (SO2), and particulate matter (PM)—which is broken down for regulatory purposes into particles of 10 micrometers or smaller (PM10) and particles of 2.5 micrometers and smaller (PM2.5). In addition, state standards exist for visibility-reducing particles, sulfates, hydrogen sulfide (H2S), and vinyl chloride.

The National Ambient Air Quality Standards and state standards are set at levels that protect public health with a margin of safety and are subject to periodic review and revision. Both state and federal regulatory schemes also cover toxic air contaminants (air toxics); some criteria pollutants are also air toxics or may include certain air toxics in their general definition.

Federal air quality standards and regulations provide the basic scheme for project-level air quality analysis under the National Environmental Policy Act. In addition to this environmental analysis, a parallel "conformity" requirement under the Federal Clean Air Act also applies.

Conformity

The conformity requirement is based on Federal Clean Air Act Section 176(c), which prohibits the U.S. Department of Transportation and other federal agencies from funding, authorizing, or approving plans, programs, or projects that do not conform to the State Implementation Plan for attaining the National Ambient Air Quality Standards. "Transportation Conformity" applies to highway and transit projects and takes place on two levels: the regional (or planning and programming) level and the project level. The proposed project must conform at both levels to be approved.

Conformity requirements apply only in nonattainment and "maintenance" (former nonattainment) areas for the National Ambient Air Quality Standards, and only for the specific National Ambient Air Quality Standards that are or were violated. U.S. EPA regulations at 40 Code of Federal Regulations 93 govern the conformity process. Conformity requirements do not apply in unclassifiable/attainment areas for National Ambient Air Quality Standards and do not apply at all for state standards regardless of the status of the area.

Regional conformity is concerned with how well the regional transportation system supports plans for attaining the National Ambient Air Quality Standards for carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen dioxide (NO2), ozone (O3), particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5), and in some areas (not in California), sulfur dioxide (SO2). California has nonattainment or maintenance areas for all of these transportation-related "criteria pollutants" except sulfur dioxide (SO2), and also has a nonattainment area for lead (Pb); however, lead is not currently required by the Federal Clean Air Act to be covered in transportation conformity analysis.

Regional conformity is based on emission analysis of Regional Transportation Plans (known as RTPs) and Federal Transportation Improvement Programs (known as FTIPs) that include all transportation projects planned for a region over a period of at least 20 years (for the Regional Transportation Plan) and 4 years (for the Federal Transportation Improvement Program).

Regional Transportation Plan and Federal Transportation Improvement Program conformity uses travel demand and emission models to determine whether or not the implementation of those projects would conform to emission budgets or other tests at various analysis years showing that requirements of the Federal Clean Air Act and the State Implementation Plan are met. If the conformity analysis is successful, the Metropolitan Planning Organization, Federal Highway Administration, and Federal Transit Administration make the determinations that the Regional Transportation Plan and Federal Transportation Improvement Program are in conformity with the State Implementation Plan for achieving the goals of the Federal Clean Air Act. Otherwise, the projects in the Regional Transportation Plan and/or Federal Transportation Improvement Program must be modified until conformity is attained. If the design concept and scope and the "open-totraffic" schedule of a proposed transportation project are the same as described in the Regional Transportation Plan and Federal Transportation Improvement Program, then the proposed project meets regional conformity requirements for purposes of project-level analysis.

Project-level conformity is achieved by demonstrating that the project comes from a conforming Regional Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program; the project has a design concept and scope that has not changed significantly from those in the Regional Transportation Plan and Transportation Improvement Program; project analyses have used the latest planning assumptions and Environmental Protection Agency-approved emissions models; and in particulate matter areas, the project complies with any control measures in the State Implementation Plan. Furthermore, additional analyses (known as hot-spot analyses) may be required for projects located in carbon monoxide and particulate nonattainment or maintenance areas to examine localized air quality impacts.

Affected Environment

An Air Quality Report was completed for the project in January 2021 to provide information on project compliance with air quality regulations and goals and on the potential air emissions from the project.

Components of the affected environment for air quality area are conditions in the air basin where the project sits, the air quality constituents considered to be toxic

to human health and the environment, and current attainment status of the project to meet federal and state criteria pollutant standards.

Greenhouse gases are reported in Chapter 3, Section 3.3 Climate Change, of this document.

Air Basin

The project lies within the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin, which is one of 15 air basins in California established to regulate air emissions on a regional basis. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has delegated responsibility to air districts to establish local rules to protect air quality. Caltrans' Standard Specification 14-9.02 (Caltrans, 2015) requires compliance with all applicable air quality laws and regulations, including local and air district ordinances and rules. The San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District has jurisdiction to oversee and implement air quality regulation in the basin.

In the region, air flow is channeled by mountain ranges, with the predominant wind direction following the valley's north-south axis in one direction. The second most prevalent wind follows this pattern as well, but in the opposite direction. California's coastal mountain ranges limit the inflow of maritime air into the interior of California. Due to subsidence inversion (discussed below), marine air flow over the mountains is stifled and air flow is limited to breaks or low points in the coastal range. The greatest portion of maritime air reaches the Central Valley through a major break in the coastal ranges through the Carquinez Straits of San Francisco Bay.

During the day, precursor emissions from the Bay Area and the northern basin move downwind into the interior San Joaquin Valley, accumulating in a region that extends roughly from the cities of Stockton to Bakersfield. Limited airflow allows an escape of some air over the Tehachapi Mountains into the Mojave Desert. At night, the wind pattern is much the same. However, cooler drainage winds at the Tehachapi Mountains force the air back northward, in a circular air pattern known as the Fresno eddy. The pollutants swirl in a counterclockwise pattern and return the air back to the polluted urban areas, where more precursors are added the next day. Nighttime winds are caused by a jet stream of fast-moving air—up to 30 miles per hour—about 1,000 feet above the valley floor. Pollutants transported to higher altitudes due to daytime heating settle downwards due to the drainage winds.

Once marine air flows into the basin, it is relatively trapped. The San Joaquin Valley is an essentially closed basin surrounded by the Coastal Ranges on the west, the Tehachapi Mountains to the south, and the Sierra Nevada Mountain Range to the east. These conditions result in poor horizontal movement of pollutants; meanwhile, high pressure hinders vertical pollutant movement, so pollutants settle and accumulate.

An air pattern that hinders the circulation of air in the basin is called an "inversion." Inversions occur when the air temperature increases with height, instead of decreasing. Pollutants will rise and disperse if they are warmer than the surrounding air. When pollutants encounter air of the same temperature or higher, they will remain at that elevation. Vertical movement is stifled, when the air above is warmer or higher, resulting in a stable atmosphere near the valley floor with poor vertical pollutant dispersion. As a result, air pollutant emissions build up and remain underneath inversions, sometimes for days. The inversion effect is a major factor, along with geography, contributing to air pollutants becoming trapped in the valley where the project is located.

Federal and State Ambient Air Quality Pollutants

The federal and state governments have established ambient air quality standards to define clean air for the protection of human health and the environment. An air quality standard defines the maximum amount of a pollutant averaged over a specified period of time that can be present in outdoor air without harmful effects to human health or the environment. See Table 2-11 for the pollutants and their effects and typical sources.

Pollutant	Principal Health and Atmospheric Effects	Typical Sources
Ozone	High concentrations irritate lungs. Long-	Low-altitude ozone is almost entirely
(O ₃)	term exposure may cause lung tissue	formed from reactive organic gases,
	damage and cancer. Long-term	volatile organic compounds and nitrogen
	exposure damages plant materials and	oxides (NOx) in the presence of sunlight
	reduces crop productivity. Precursor	and heat. Common precursor emitters
	organic compounds include many	include motor vehicles and other internal
	known toxic air contaminants. Biogenic	combustion engines, solvent
	volatile organic compounds may also	evaporation, boilers, furnaces, and
	contribute.	industrial processes.
Respirable	Irritates eyes and respiratory tract.	Dust- and fume-producing industrial and
Particulate	Decreases lung capacity. Associated	agricultural operations; combustion
Matter	with increased cancer and mortality.	smoke and vehicle exhaust; atmospheric
(PIM10)	Contributes to haze and reduced	chemical reactions; construction and
	visibility. Includes some toxic air	other dust-producing activities; unpaved
	contaminants. Many toxic and other	dust and re-entrained paved road
	of PM_{10} .	dust; natural sources.
Fine	Increases respiratory disease, lung	Combustion including motor vehicles,
Particulate	damage, cancer, and premature death.	other mobile sources, and industrial
Matter	Reduces visibility and produces surface	activities; residential and agricultural
(PM _{2.5})	soiling. Most diesel exhaust particulate	burning; also formed through
	matter – a toxic air contaminant – is in	atmospheric chemical and
	the PM _{2.5} size range. Many toxic and	photochemical reactions involving other
	other aerosol and solid compounds are	pollutants including NOx, sulfur oxides,
	part of PM _{2.5} .	ammonia, and reactive organic gases.
Carbon	Carbon monoxide interferes with the	Combustion sources, especially
Monoxide	transfer of oxygen to the blood and	gasoline-powered engines and motor
(00)	deprives sensitive tissues of oxygen.	venicies. Carbon monoxide is the
	Carbon monoxide also is a minor	traditional signature pollutant for on-road

Table 2-11 State and Federal Criteria Air Pollutant Effects and Sources
Pollutant	Principal Health and Atmospheric Effects	Typical Sources
	precursor for photochemical ozone. Colorless, odorless.	mobile sources at the local and neighborhood scale.
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO ₂)	Irritating to eyes and respiratory tract. Colors atmosphere reddish-brown. Contributes to acid rain and nitrate contamination of stormwater. Part of the "NOx" group of ozone precursors.	Motor vehicles and other mobile or portable engines, especially diesel; refineries; industrial operations.
Sulfur Dioxide (SO ₂)	Irritates respiratory tract; injures lung tissue. Can yellow plant leaves. Destructive to marble, iron, steel. Contributes to acid rain. Limits visibility.	Fuel combustion (coal and high-sulfur oil), chemical plants, sulfur recovery plants, metal processing; some natural sources like active volcanoes. Limited contribution from heavy-duty diesel vehicles if ultra-low sulfur fuel not used.
Lead (Pb)	Disturbs gastrointestinal system. Causes anemia, kidney disease, and neuromuscular and neurological dysfunction. Also a toxic air contaminant and water pollutant.	Lead-based industrial processes like battery production and smelters. Lead paint, leaded gasoline. Aerially deposited lead from older gasoline use may exist in soils along major roads.
Visibility- Reducing Particles (VRP)	Reduces visibility. Produces haze. Note: Not directly related to the Regional Haze program under the Federal Clean Air Act, which is oriented primarily toward visibility issues in national parks and other "Class I" areas. However, some issues and measurement methods are similar.	See particulate matter above. May be related more to aerosols than to solid particles.
Sulfate	Premature mortality and respiratory effects. Contributes to acid rain. Some toxic air contaminants attach to sulfate aerosol particles.	Industrial processes, refineries and oil fields, mines, natural sources like volcanic areas, salt-covered dry lakes, and large sulfide rock areas.
Hydrogen Sulfide (H ₂ S)	Colorless, flammable, poisonous. Respiratory irritant. Neurological damage and premature death. Headache, nausea. Strong odor.	Industrial processes, such as refineries and oil fields, asphalt plants, livestock operations, sewage treatment plants, and mines. Some natural sources like volcanic areas and hot springs.
Vinyl Chloride	Neurological effects, liver damage, cancer. Also considered a toxic air contaminant.	Industrial processes.

Source: Caltrans, May 2020.

Criteria Pollutants and Attainment Status

The San Joaquin Valley Air Basin where the project is set is in nonattainment for the following pollutants:

- State: 1-hour and 8-hour ozone (O3), particulate matter 10 (PM10), and particulate matter 2.5 (PM2.5) standards.
- Federal: 8-hour ozone (O3), particulate matter 2.5 (PM2.5) standards.

The basin is in attainment for the federal particulate matter 10 and carbon monoxide standards.

The following tables (Tables 2-13 through 2-15) present the state and federal attainment status for all regulated air pollutants in the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin. They show air quality trends in data collected at the Fresno Drummond Street and Fresno Pacific University monitoring stations for the past 5 years.

Pollutant	State Attainment Status	Federal Attainment Status	
1-Hour Ozone	Nonattainment/Severe	Not applicable	
8-Hour Ozone (O ₃)	Nonattainment	Nonattainment/Extreme	
Respirable Particulate Matter (PM ₁₀)	Nonattainment	Attainment	
Fine Particulate Matter (PM _{2.5})	Nonattainment	Nonattainment	
Carbon Monoxide (CO)	Attainment/Unclassified	Attainment/Unclassified	
Nitrogen Dioxide (NO ₂)	Attainment	Attainment/Unclassified	
Sulfur Dioxide (SO ₂)	Attainment	Nonattainment/Unclassified	
Lead (Pb)	Attainment	No Designation/Classification	
Visibility-Reducing Particles	Unclassified	Not applicable	
Sulfates	Attainment	Not applicable	
Hydrogen Sulfide	Unclassified	Not applicable	
Vinyl Chloride	Attainment	Not applicable	

Table 2-12 State and Federal Attainment Status

Source: January 2021, Air Quality Report.

Table 2-13 Ozone Concentrations for 2014 through 2018 at the FresnoDrummond Avenue Monitor

Ozone Standards	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018
Maximum 1-hour concentration	0.110	0.35	0.117	0.125	0.119
Number of days exceeded: State 0.09 ppm	9	12	13	8	6
Maximum 8-hour concentration	0.095	0.110	0.094	0.104	0.097
Number of days exceeded: State 0.070 ppm	44	41	60	31	34
Number of days exceeded: Federal 0.070 ppm	43	39	57	29	32

Source: January 2021, Air Quality Report.

Table 2-14 PM₁₀ Concentrations for 2014 through 2018 at the Fresno Drummond Avenue Monitor

Particulate Matter 10 Standards		2015	2016	2017	2018
State Maximum 24-hour concentration/	107.3	116.7	86.3	120.5	154.8
Federal Maximum 24-hour concentration	102.9	120.7	88.3	115.6	152.2
Number of days exceeded: State: 50 μ g/m ³	108.9	80.37	98.9	111.6	116.0
Number of days exceeded: Federal: $150 \mu g/m^3$	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
State Maximum Annual concentration		39.4	38.0	44.2	45.7
Federal Maximum Annual concentration	41.4	39.6	38.0	44.0	45.8

Source: January 2021, Air Quality Report.

Table 2-15 PM _{2.5} Concentrations for 2014 through 2018 at the Fresno Pacific Hamilton/Winery Avenue Monitor					
Particulate Matter 2.5 Standards	2014	2015	2016	2017	2018

Particulate Matter 2.5 Standards		2015	2016	2017	2018
Maximum 24-hour concentration		46.4	53.3	74.5	189.8
Number of days exceeded: Federal: $35 \mu g/m^3$	17.0	No data	9.0	25.1	21.5
State Maximum Annual concentration		No data	8.6	12.9	15.2
Federal Maximum Annual concentration	11.4	No data	11.1	12.9	15.2

Source: January 2021, Air Quality Report.

Mobile Source Air Toxics

Controlling air toxic emissions became a national priority with the passage of the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, whereby Congress mandated that the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regulate 188 air toxics, also known as hazardous air pollutants. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has assessed this expansive list in its rule on the Control of Hazardous Air Pollutants from Mobile Sources (Federal Register, Volume 72, Number 37, page 8430, February 26, 2007), and identified a group of 93 compounds emitted from mobile sources that are part of U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's Integrated Risk Information System (IRIS) (found online at https://www.epa.gov/iris). In addition, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency identified nine compounds with significant contributions from mobile sources that are among the national and regional-scale cancer risk drivers or contributors and non-hazard contributors from the 2011 National Air Toxics Assessment (found online at https://www.epa.gov/national-air-toxicsassessment). These are 1,3-butadiene, acetaldehyde, acrolein, benzene, diesel particulate matter (diesel PM), ethylbenzene, formaldehyde, naphthalene, and polycyclic organic matter. While the Federal Highway Administration considers these the priority mobile source air toxics, the list is subject to change and may be adjusted in consideration of future U.S. Environmental Protection Agency rules.

The 2007 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency rule requires controls that will dramatically decrease mobile source air toxics emissions through cleaner fuels and cleaner engines. According to a Federal Highway Administration analysis using the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's MOVES2014a model, even if vehicle activity (vehicle miles traveled) increases by 45 percent from 2010 to 2050 as forecast, a combined reduction of 91 percent in the total annual emission rate for the priority mobile source air toxics is projected for the same time period. The air quality studies for the project included a qualitative analysis for potential increased mobile source air toxics.

Asbestos and Lead

The project is in Fresno County, which has naturally occurring asbestos. However, the project is not in areas of ultramafic rock formations or soils where naturally occurring asbestos is usually present. The project is in an area that is in attainment for lead.

Regional and Project-Level Air Conformity

To achieve regional conformity status, a transportation project must be included in a Regional Transportation Plan. The regional plan is a list of projects that are modeled together to meet the region's air quality emissions goals. This project is in the Fresno Council of Governments 2018 Regional Transportation Plan and Formal Amendment number 3 as well as the 2019 Federal Transportation Improvement Program and Formal Amendment number 12.

The project is also subject to project-level conformity, as the project requires a routine Environmental Assessment under the National Environmental Policy Act and is considered a regionally significant project. A regionally significant project is a nonexempt transportation project that serves regional transportation needs. Therefore, under 40 Code of Federal Regulations Section 9.109, a project-level hot-spot analysis for conformity is required. The required project information was submitted for interagency consultation in July 2020, and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and Federal Highway Administration concurred in October 2020 that the project is not a "Project of Air Quality Concern."

Final project-level conformity determination includes coordination with the Federal Highway Administration to ensure any future formal amendments to the regional plans are in order and that they list the project scope, timeline, and funding accurately prior to signature of the final environmental document for this project. Project-level conformity documentation would require public notification, with documentation of Federal Highway Administration projectlevel determination included in the air quality report prior to signature of the final environment document.

The following paragraph has been added since the circulation of the draft environmental document.

An Air Quality Conformity Analysis was prepared and submitted to the Federal Highway Administration on September 2, 2022, to request a projectlevel conformity determination. Following the Federal Highway Administration's review, the Federal Highway Administration provided a project-level conformity determination for the project on October 3, 2022, confirming that the project conforms with the State Implementation Plan. See Appendix F for a copy of the project-level conformity determination by the Federal Highway Administration.

Environmental Consequences

This section describes the results of the air quality analyses conducted for the project. The analyses conducted applied methodology and assumptions that are consistent with federal and state requirements for air quality. The analyses also used guidelines and procedures provided in applicable air quality analysis protocols, such as the Transportation Project-Level Carbon Monoxide Protocol (CO Protocol) (Garza et al., 1997), Transportation Conformity Guidance for Quantitative Hot-Spot Analyses in PM10 and PM2.5

Nonattainment and Maintenance Areas (U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, 2015), and the Federal Highway Administration Updated Interim Guidance on Air Toxics Analysis in the National Environmental Policy Act Documents (Federal Highway Administration, 2016).

Key findings from the air quality study are listed below:

- Regional Air Quality Conformity—The project is modeled in the Fresno Council of Governments 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies. This means, when considered with a program (or group) of projects, the program projects together contribute to meet all of the ambient air quality emissions standards and goals for the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin.
- Carbon Monoxide (CO)—The project, individually, meets the carbon monoxide protocol standards to a satisfactory level, and no further analysis was required. In 1997, the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin was designated as a maintenance area for carbon monoxide (CO) by the Environmental Protection Agency, and the valley was compelled to adhere to a 20-year maintenance plan to decrease the levels of carbon monoxide to acceptable levels. This goal was achieved November 30, 2017.
- Ozone (O3)—While the project is in a nonattainment area for the federal and state 8-hour ozone levels, when projects are listed in an approved Regional Transportation Plan with associated conformity emissions analysis, the projects are considered to be conforming to the State Implementation Plan for ozone.
- Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM2.5)—The project at American Avenue, individually, has lower PM2.5 emissions in 2046 (a 20-year planning horizon), compared to the No-Build PM2.5 emissions if no project were built. At North Avenue, the 2046 PM2.5 emissions are less than if no project were built.
- Particulate Matter 10 (PM10)—The project at American Avenue, individually, has higher PM10 emissions in 2046 (a 20-year planning horizon), compared to the No-Build PM10 emissions if no project were built. At North Avenue, the 2046 PM10 emissions are the same or greater than if no project were built.
- Particulate Matter 10 (PM10) Hot-Spot Analysis—The project was submitted for interagency consultation on July 10, 2019. It was deemed not a "Project of Air Quality Concern" by the interagency consultation partners and therefore did not require a Particulate Matter 10 hot-spot analysis. Concurrence for "Not a Project of Air Quality Concern" was granted by the Environmental Protection Agency on September 16, 2019 and by the Federal Highway Administration on September 16, 2019.
- Mobile Source Air Toxics (MSAT)—The analysis conducted for the project, according to Federal Highway Administration guidance to assess mobile

source air toxics, found the project is considered a "Project with No Meaningful Potential MSAT Effects" and best falls into the category of "Low Potential MSAT Effects." The proposed alternatives would not increase emissions substantially above the no-build scenario. Mobile source air toxics emissions in the study area are likely to be lower in the future, in all cases, because of improved technology, according to the Environmental Protection Agency's analysis.

- Construction Conformity—Emissions from construction equipment are expected and would include carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxides (NOx), volatile organic compounds, directly emitted particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5), and toxic air contaminants such as diesel exhaust particulate matter. However, implementation of Caltrans Standard Specifications in Section 14, as well as other measures included in the project, would lessen potential impacts from the project.
- Carbon Dioxide (CO2)—Carbon dioxide is a greenhouse gas and is discussed in Chapter 3, Section 3.3 Climate Change of this document.

Improvements to local roads and construction of complete interchanges at the American Avenue and North Avenue interchanges within the project area would allow the streamlined movement of goods along this segment of the State Route 99 corridor, which is the only major thoroughfare for the eastern portion of the Central Valley. In addition, with improvement of the American Avenue and North Avenue interchanges from half interchanges to full interchanges, vehicles would have better access to local destinations without driver confusion due to non-standard interchange configurations. The traffic would move more efficiently on and off State Route 99, which would improve mainline operations as well as local road operations. Currently, traffic must circulate on local parallel roads due to lack of ramps to and from American Avenue and North Avenue.

The improved interchanges would improve stop-and-go traffic due to driver confusion and give drivers more direct access routes to their destinations. As air studies have documented, the highest vehicle emissions occur in stop-and-go traffic, while free-flowing traffic produces the least amount of vehicle emissions, regardless of the criteria pollutant.

Short-term air quality impacts would arise from construction activities and are considered unavoidable. However, construction emissions from the proposed project are negligible in terms of the overall project area and would not substantively impact the overall project area emissions.

Long-term air quality impacts from increased vehicle travel in the area due to population growth would be alleviated by construction of the project. The project improves safety and operational efficiency by giving truck traffic access to specific direct routes to and from the industrial areas, providing truck-specific traffic features (wider and longer turn lanes and lane-changing distances), and minimizing driving hazards. The improvements would result in less truck traffic delay and reduce the amount of truck emissions released.

The following section continues with more detailed discussion for each of the topics in the bulleted list above.

Regional and Project-Level Air Quality Conformity

The project is included in the Fresno Council of Governments 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies and Formal Amendment number 3 as well as the cost-constrained 2019 Federal Transportation Improvement Program and Formal Amendment number 12.

This analysis found that the plan and, therefore, the individual projects contained in the plan, are conforming projects, and would have air quality impacts consistent with those identified in the State Implementation Plans for achieving the National Ambient Air Quality Standards.

The following paragraph has been added since the draft environmental document circulated.

An Air Quality Conformity Analysis was prepared and submitted to the Federal Highway Administration on September 2, 2022, to request a projectlevel conformity determination. Following the Federal Highway Administration's review, the Federal Highway Administration provided a project-level conformity determination for the project on October 3, 2022, confirming that the project conforms with the State Implementation Plan. See Appendix F for a copy of the project-level conformity determination by the Federal Highway Administration.

Carbon Monoxide (CO)

The carbon monoxide protocol was developed for project-level conformity (hot-spot) analysis and was approved for use by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in 1997. It provides qualitative and quantitative screening procedures and quantitative (modeling) analysis methods to assess projectlevel carbon monoxide impacts. The qualitative screening step is designed to avoid the use of detailed modeling for projects that clearly cannot cause a violation, or worsen an existing violation, of the carbon monoxide standards.

Although the protocol was designed to address federal standards, it has been recommended for use by several air pollution control districts in their California Environmental Quality Act analysis guidance documents and should also be valid for California standards because the key criterion (8-hour concentration) is the same as the federal standard: 9 parts per million for the federal standard and 9.0 parts per million for the state standard.

See Table 2-16, which summarizes the project-level carbon monoxide analysis.

Protocol Question	South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor
3.1.1: Is the project exempt from all emissions analyses?	No. The project is not exempt because it does not fit any of the exemption categories identified in 40 Code of Federal Regulations 93.126.
3.1.2: Is the project exempt from regional emissions analyses?	No. The project does not align with any of the project types exempted from regional emissions analyses under 40 Code of Federal Regulations 93.127 (proceed to 3.1.3).
3.1.3: Is the project locally defined as regionally significant?	Yes. The project is considered a regionally significant transportation project, according to 40 Code of Federal Regulations 93.101, because it is included in the modeling of the area's transportation network (proceed to 3.1.4).
3.1.4: Is the project in a federal attainment area?	Yes. In 1997, the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin was designated as a maintenance area for carbon monoxide (CO) by the Environmental Protection Agency, and the San Joaquin Valley was compelled to adhere to a 20-year maintenance plan to decrease the levels of carbon monoxide to acceptable levels. This goal was achieved November 30, 2017.
3.1.9: Examine local impacts; Is the project in a CO nonattainment area?	No
3.1.9: Examine local impacts; Was the area redesignated as "attainment" after the 1990 Clean Air Act?	Yes
3.1.9: Examine local impacts; Has "continued attainment" been verified with the local Air District?	Yes
3.1.9: Examine local impacts; Does project worsen air quality?	No
Conclusion:	Project satisfactory, no further analysis needed.

Table 2-16 Summary of Project-Level Carbon Monoxide Analysis

Source: January 2021, Air Quality Report.

Ozone (O3)

The project is in a nonattainment area for the state 1-hour ozone level and the federal and state 8-hour ozone levels. Ozone is considered to be a regional pollutant. Currently, there are no project-level analysis tools or approved guidelines for ozone. When projects are listed in an approved Regional Transportation Plan with associated conformity emissions analysis, the projects are considered to be conforming to the State Implementation Plan for ozone.

Particulate Matter 2.5 and 10

American Avenue

Particulate matter is reported below in pounds per day, which is the amount of emissions generated during a day.

American Avenue	PM _{2.5} (pounds per day)	PM ₁₀ (pounds per day)
2019 Existing	0.022	0.093
2026 No-Build Alternative	0.024	0.100
2026 Alternative 1	0.037	0.171
2026 Alternative 2	0.035	0.159
2046 No-Build Alternative	0.100	0.024
2046 Alternative 1	0.050	0.229
2046 Alternative 2	0.050	0.233

Table 2-17 Particulate Matter Emissions Alternative Comparison atAmerican Avenue

Source: January 2021, Air Quality Report.

Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM2.5)

In a comparison of the future build alternatives with the No-Build Alternative scenario for PM2.5 emissions in 2026 Opening Day at American Avenue, the build alternatives are higher than the No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions. See Table 2-17 above.

The 2026 No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions are 0.024 pound per day. Alternative 1 PM2.5 emissions are 0.037 pound per day, which is 0.013 pound per day more than the no-build scenario. Alternative 2 emissions are 0.035 pound per day, which is 0.011 pound per day more than the no-build scenario.

In 2046, with the same comparison but for 20 years after Opening Day, the build alternatives are lower than the No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions. The 2046 No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions are 0.100 pound per day. Alternative 1 PM2.5 emissions are 0.0498 pound per day, which is 0.0502 pound per day less than the no-build scenario. Alternative 2 emissions are 0.050 pound per day, which is 0.050 pound per day less than the no-build scenario.

Particulate Matter 10 (PM₁₀)

In a comparison of the future build alternatives with the No-Build Alternative scenario for PM10 emissions in 2026 Opening Day at American Avenue, the build alternatives are higher than the No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions. See Table 2-17 above.

The 2026 No-Build Alternative PM10 emissions are 0.100 pound per day. Alternative 1 PM10 emissions are 0.171 pound per day, which is 0.071 more than the no-build scenario. Alternative 2 PM10 emissions are 0.159 pound per day, which is 0.059 pound per day more than the no-build scenario.

In 2046, with the same comparison but for 20 years after Opening Day, the build alternatives are higher than the No-Build Alternative PM10 emissions. Alternative 1 PM10 emissions are 0.229 pound per day, which is 0.205 pound per day more than the no-build scenario. Alternative 2 PM10 emissions are

0.233 pound per day, which is 0.209 pound per day more than the no-build scenario.

North Avenue

North Avenue	PM _{2.5} (pounds per day)	PM ₁₀ (pounds per day)	
2019 Existing	0.149	0.623	
2026 No-Build Alternative	0.211	0.885	
2026 Alternative 2	0.161	0.783	
2026 Alternative 4	0.174	0.857	
2046 No-Build Alternative	0.295	1.01	
2046 Alternative 2	0.206	1.01	
2046 Alternative 4	0.211	1.04	

Table 2-18Particulate Matter Emissions Alternative Comparison atNorth Avenue

Source: January 2021, Air Quality Report.

Particulate Matter 2.5 (PM2.5)

In a comparison of the future build alternatives with the No-Build Alternative scenario for PM2.5 emissions in 2026 Opening Day at North Avenue, the build alternatives are less than the No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions. See Table 2-18 above.

The 2026 No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions are 0.211 pound per day. Alternative 2 PM2.5 emissions are 0.161 pound per day, which is 0.050 pound per day less than the no-build scenario. Alternative 4 emissions are 0.174 pound per day, which is 0.037 pound per day less than the no-build scenario.

In 2046, with the same comparison but for 20 years after Opening Day, the build alternatives are lower than the No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions. The 2046 No-Build Alternative PM2.5 emissions are 0.295 pound per day. Alternative 2 PM2.5 emissions are 0.206 pound per day, which is 0.089 pound per day less than the no-build scenario. Alternative 4 emissions are 0.211 pound per day, which is 0.084 pound per day less than the no-build scenario.

Particulate Matter 10 (PM₁₀)

In a comparison of the future build alternatives with the No-Build Alternative scenario for PM10 emissions in 2026 Opening Day at North Avenue, Alternative 2 has less emissions than the No-Build Alternative scenario, and Alternative 4 has less than the No-Build Alternative PM10 emissions. See Table 2-18 above.

The 2026 No-Build Alternative PM10 emissions are 0.885 pound per day. Alternative 2 PM10 emissions are 0.783 pound per day, which is 0.102 less than the no-build scenario. Alternative 4 PM10 emissions are 0.857 pound per day, which is 0.028 pound per day less than the no-build scenario.

In 2046, with the same comparison but for 20 years after Opening Day, the Alternative 2 is the same and Alternative 4 are greater than the No-Build Alternative PM10 emissions. The 2046 No-Build PM10 emissions are 1.010 pounds per day. Alternative 2 PM10 emissions are 1.010 pounds per day, which is the same as the no-build scenario. Alternative 4 PM10 emissions are 1.04 pounds per day, which is 0.03 pound per day more than the no-build scenario.

Particulate Matter 10 (PM10) Hot-Spot Analysis

In particulate matter 10 (PM10) nonattainment or maintenance areas, if a project is determined to be a project of air quality concern (also known by the acronym POAQC), a hot-spot analysis needs to be conducted under the conformity requirement. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency guidance for particulate matter hot-spot analysis, in concert with interagency consultation (interagency consultation is required), is used to determine whether a project is a project of air quality concern.

The project was submitted for interagency consultation on July 10, 2019. It was deemed not a "project of air quality concern" by the interagency consultation partners and therefore did not require a particulate matter 10 hot-spot analysis. Concurrence for the finding of "not a project of air quality concern" was granted by the Environmental Protection Agency on September 16, 2019 and by the Federal Highway Administration on September 16, 2019.

Mobile Source Air Toxics (MSAT)

The Federal Highway Administration provides guidance on how mobile source air toxics (also known by the acronym MSAT) should be addressed in National Environmental Policy Act documents for highway projects. The Federal Highway Administration has developed a tier approach for analyzing mobile source air toxics in National Environmental Policy Act documents. Depending on the specific project circumstances, the Federal Highway Administration has identified three levels of analysis:

- No analysis for exempt projects with no potential for meaningful mobile source air toxics effects
- Qualitative analysis for projects with low potential mobile source air toxics effects
- Quantitative analysis to differentiate alternatives for projects with higher potential mobile source air toxics

Exempt Projects or Projects with No Meaningful Potential Mobile Source Air Toxics Effects

The types of projects included in this category are as follows:

- Projects qualifying as a categorical exclusion under 23 Code of Federal Regulations 771.117(c);
- Projects exempt under the Clean Air Act conformity rule under 40 Code of Federal Regulations 93.126; or
- Other projects with no meaningful impacts on traffic volumes or vehicle mix.

The project best falls into the category of Low Potential mobile source air toxics effects, which requires a qualitative analysis. There are no sensitive land uses (schools, daycare facilities, senior living) within 500 feet of the project for any of the build alternatives.

Build Alternatives

For each build alternative in the project, the amount of mobile source air toxics emitted would be slightly higher than that for the No-Build Alternative because the additional capacity of the interchanges increases the efficiency of the interchanges and allows more direct access to local areas along State Route 99. This increase in emissions along the new ramps at the interchanges, along with a corresponding decrease in mobile source air toxics emissions along the parallel local roads, is offset somewhat by lower mobile source air toxics emission rates due to increased speeds.

According to the Environmental Protection Agency's MOVES2014 model, and the EMFAC (Emissions FACtors) model used in California, emissions of all the priority mobile source air toxics decrease as vehicle speed increases. Because the estimated vehicle miles traveled under each of the build alternatives is nearly the same, it is expected there would be no appreciable difference in overall mobile source air toxics emissions among the various alternatives.

Regardless of the alternative chosen, emissions will likely be lower than present levels in the design year because of the Environmental Protection Agency's national control programs that are projected to reduce annual mobile source air toxics emissions by over 90 percent between 2010 and 2050 (Updated Interim Guidance on Mobile Source Air Toxic Analysis in the National Environmental Policy Act Documents, Federal Highway Administration, October 12, 2016). Local conditions may differ from these national projections in terms of fleet mix and turnover, vehicle miles traveled growth rates, and local control measures. However, the magnitude of the Environmental Protection Agency-projected reductions is so great (even after accounting for vehicle miles traveled growth) that mobile source air toxics emissions in the study area are likely to be lower in the future in nearly all cases.

No-Build Alternative

If selected, the No-Build Alternative would result in no improvement in traffic conditions and air emissions would increase with increased traffic volume.

Construction Conformity

Construction is anticipated to last 18 months to build both interchanges. Construction activities would not last for more than 5 years at one general location, so construction-related emissions do not need to be included in regional and project-level conformity analysis (40 Code of Federal Regulations 93.123(c)(5)).

During construction, short-term degradation of air quality may occur due to the release of particulate emissions (airborne dust) generated by excavation, grading, hauling, and other construction-related activities. Emissions from construction equipment are expected and would include carbon monoxide (CO), nitrogen oxides (NOx), volatile organic compounds, directly emitted particulate matter (PM10 and PM2.5), and toxic air contaminants such as diesel exhaust particulate matter. Ozone is a regional pollutant that comes from nitrogen oxides and volatile organic compounds in the presence of sunlight and heat.

Site preparation and roadway construction typically involves clearing, cut-andfill activities, grading, removing or improving existing roadways, building bridges, and paving roadway surfaces. Construction-related effects on air quality from most highway projects would be greatest during the site preparation phase because most engine emissions are associated with the excavation, handling, and transport of soils to and from the site. These activities could temporarily generate enough PM10, PM2.5, and small amounts of carbon monoxide, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and volatile organic compounds to be of concern.

Sources of fugitive dust would include disturbed soils at the construction site and trucks carrying uncovered loads of soils. Unless properly controlled, vehicles leaving the site could deposit mud on local streets, which could be an added source of airborne dust after it dries.

PM10 emissions would vary from day to day, depending on the nature and magnitude of construction activity and local weather conditions. PM10 emissions would depend on soil moisture, silt content of soil, wind speed, and the amount of equipment operating. Larger dust particles would settle near the source, while fine particles would be dispersed over greater distances from the construction site.

Construction activities for large development projects are estimated by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to add 1.2 tons of fugitive dust per acre of soil disturbed per month of activity. If water or other soil stabilizers are used to control dust, the emissions can be reduced by up to 50 percent. Caltrans Standard Specifications (Section 14) on dust minimization require use of water or dust palliative compounds and will reduce potential fugitive dust emissions during construction.

In addition to dust-related PM10 emissions, heavy-duty trucks and construction equipment powered by gasoline and diesel engines would generate carbon monoxide, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, volatile organic compounds and some soot particulate (PM10 and PM2.5) in exhaust emissions. If construction activities were to increase traffic congestion in the area, carbon monoxide and other emissions from traffic would increase slightly while those vehicles are delayed. These emissions would be temporary and limited to the immediate area surrounding the construction site.

Sulfur dioxide (SO2) is generated by oxidation during combustion of organic sulfur compounds contained in diesel fuel. Under California law and Air Resources Board regulations, off-road diesel fuel used in California must meet the same sulfur and other standards as on-road diesel fuel (not more than 15 parts per million sulfur), so sulfur dioxide-related issues due to diesel exhaust will be minimal.

Some phases of construction, particularly asphalt paving, may result in shortterm odors in the immediate area of each paving site. Such odors would quickly disperse to below detectable levels as distance from the site increases.

Construction activities will not last for more than 5 years at one general location, so construction-related emissions do not need to be included in regional and project-level conformity analysis (40 Code of Federal Regulations 93.123(c)(5)).

Implementation of the following standardized measures, some of which may also be required for other purposes such as stormwater pollution control, will reduce any air quality impacts resulting from construction activities:

- The construction contractor must comply with Caltrans Standard Specifications in Section 14. Section 14 specifically requires compliance by the contractor with all applicable laws and regulations related to air quality, including air pollution control district and air quality management district regulations and local ordinances. Section 14 is directed at controlling dust. If dust palliative materials other than water are to be used, material specifications are described in Section 18.
- Water or dust palliative will be applied to the site and equipment as often as necessary to control fugitive dust emissions. Fugitive emissions generally must meet a "no visible dust" criterion either at the point of emissions or at the right-of-way line, depending on local regulations.
- Soil binder will be spread on any unpaved roads used for construction purposes, and on all project construction parking areas.
- Construction equipment and vehicles will be properly tuned and maintained. All construction equipment will use low sulfur fuel as required by California Code of Regulations Title 17, Section 93114.

- A dust control plan will be developed documenting sprinkling, temporary paving, speed limits, and timely revegetation of disturbed slopes as needed to minimize construction impacts to existing communities.
- Track-out reduction measures, such as gravel pads at project access points to minimize dust and mud deposits on roads affected by construction traffic, will be used.
- All transported loads of soils and wet materials will be covered before transport, or adequate freeboard (space from the top of the material to the top of the truck) will be provided to minimize emission of dust (particulate matter) during transportation.
- Dust and mud that are deposited on paved, public roads due to construction activity and traffic will be promptly and regularly removed to decrease particulate matter emissions.
- To the extent feasible, construction traffic will be scheduled and routed to reduce congestion and related air quality impacts caused by idling vehicles along local roads during peak travel times.
- Mulch will be placed or vegetation planted as soon as practical after grading to reduce windblown particulate matter in the area.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

No mitigation is required.

Climate Change

Neither the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency nor the Federal Highway Administration has issued explicit guidance or methods to conduct project-level greenhouse gas analysis. The Federal Highway Administration emphasizes concepts of resilience and sustainability in highway planning, project development, design, operations, and maintenance. Because there have been requirements set forth in California legislation and executive orders on climate change, the issue is addressed in the California Environmental Quality Act chapter of this document. The California Environmental Quality Act analysis may be used to inform the National Environmental Policy Act determination for the project. See Section 3.3 Climate Change.

The following standardized measures will be implemented in the project to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and potential climate change impacts from the project:

• Caltrans Standard Specification 14.9.02 Air Pollution Control shall be followed by the contractor. The specification requires contractors to comply with all air pollution control rules, regulations, ordinances, and

statutes. Measures that reduce construction vehicle emissions also help reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

- The project will include the following Complete Street features: sidewalks, crosswalks, signalization, and wider shoulders. These features will safely accommodate bicycles, support use of non-motorized modes of travel, and fill gaps in the local Active Transportation Network described in the City of Fresno 2014 Active Transportation Plan.
- Any landscaping removed by the project will be replaced following construction of the project according to specifications described in Section 2.1.5 Visual/Aesthetics of this document. Landscaping including trees and other vegetation provide shade and absorb carbon dioxide, a greenhouse gas, from the atmosphere.
- The project will replace and install new Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) elements. These are as follows: update existing traffic signals and install traffic monitoring stations, ramp meters, and closed-circuit televisions. Information from these systems feed back into Caltrans' QuickMap mobile web-based travel alert system. QuickMap provides travelers with real-time road information, thereby giving them opportunities to make informed decisions to improve travel conditions. Intelligent Transportation System elements improve operational efficiency and reduce congestion-related greenhouse gas emissions.
- Limit idling to 5 minutes for delivery and dump trucks and other dieselpowered equipment during construction.
- The contractor will be responsible for submitting a Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling Report per Caltrans Standard Specification 14-10.02 so the recycling efforts can be monitored. Reducing construction waste and maximizing the use of recycled materials reduces consumption of raw materials, reduces landfill waste, and encourages cost savings.
- Non-potable water will be used during construction. A potential source for the contractor will be the City of Fresno Recycled Water System that is currently being developed. There are plans to extend the system to the North Avenue interchange. Alternatively, the contractor may secure nonpotable water from another water purveyor such as the Fresno Irrigation District, which operates a canal just outside the project limits. Also, the landscape irrigation system at North Avenue will be designed to use the City of Fresno Recycled Water System. If the City's system has not been extended to the North Avenue interchange at the time of construction, then the irrigation system will be connected to potable water with the provision that it can be switched to non-potable water in the future.

- Construction equipment and vehicles will be properly tuned and maintained. All construction equipment will use low sulfur fuel as required by California Code of Regulations Title 17, Section 93114.
- Alternative bridge construction (ABC) will be used where possible to reduce construction windows. Use of more precast elements reduces the need for additional falsework, forms, bracing, etc. and reduces the overall duration of construction and greenhouse gas emissions.
- Where lighting is required, higher efficiency light-emitting diode (LED) lights will be used. Reducing the need for electric lighting by using ultra-reflective sign materials and other alternate lighting reduces energy use and therefore reduces greenhouse gas emissions.
- Implement a construction traffic management plan. Construction traffic will be scheduled and routed to reduce congestion and related air quality impacts caused by idling vehicles along local roads during peak travel times.

2.3 Biological Environment

A Natural Environment Study—Minimal Impacts was completed in July 2019 to study the potential impacts of the project on biological resources. This section of the document discusses biological resources within the project area. While there are six possible subsections in Caltrans environmental documents—Natural Communities, Wetlands and Other Waters, Plant Species, Animal Species, Threatened and Endangered Species, and Invasive Species—this document focuses on one subsection, Animal Species, to address migratory birds and bats. As studies found, there are no other biological resources of concern in the project area. See the beginning of Chapter 1 for an explanation regarding the other five subsection topics.

A biological study area was established in early 2019. Literature searches were conducted on January 30 and 31, 2019 to obtain information from databases maintained by resource agencies that study the health of species and their habitat. Field studies were conducted on February 11, 2019, and April 2 and April 9, 2019. Species lists were obtained from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the Natural Diversity Database from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife, and the Rare and Endangered Plant Inventory from the California Native Plant Society, updated December 30, 2020.

Climate in the project area is typical of the San Joaquin Valley, with hot summers and mild winters, and an average rainfall of 11.5 inches per year, occurring mostly during the winter months. The topography in the area is generally flat with elevations between 313 and 320 feet above sea level. The University of California, Davis' Soil Resource Data describes the soil in the project area as fine sandy loam. The project area sits on the border between the city of Fresno and Fresno County where intensive farming has been practiced since 1875. Industrial uses developed within the project area following relocation of State Route 99 and construction of the existing interchanges in about 1965. Industrial uses have gathered in the southern area of the city of Fresno since construction of the Central Valley railroad lines.

No rivers or creeks occur in the project vicinity, but several concrete-lined irrigation canals cross through the area. The project would enclose a portion of the North Colony Canal by installing a box culvert. The canal sits on the north side of North Avenue, in the east quadrant of the North Avenue-Cedar Avenue intersection. Caltrans will coordinate further with the Fresno Irrigation District. A 1600 Permit and Waste Discharge Requirement (WDR) from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife would be required for work on the canal.

The project footprint (40 properties studied) is dominated by medium-high intensity development, especially along State Route 99 and North Avenue. The areas with agriculture are in the surrounding area off American Avenue. The landscape and habitat types are characterized as ruderal (weedy) and agricultural land. Ruderal vegetation is vegetation on land that is highly disturbed by human activity. Agricultural land is vegetated with crops grown for mostly human consumption, along with some non-native grasses. The project area contains orchards and vineyards; the area also contains some fallow fields that have little natural vegetation due to farming practices to prepare the land for planting and use of herbicides to control vegetation.

2.3.1 Animal Species

Regulatory Setting

Many state and federal laws regulate impacts to wildlife. The U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's National Marine Fisheries Service, and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife are responsible for implementing these laws.

This section discusses potential impacts and permit requirements associated with animals not listed or proposed for listing under the federal or state Endangered Species Act. If potentially present, species listed or proposed for listing as threatened or endangered would be discussed in a separate section, but no threatened or endangered species are in the area for this project, so no further discussion is provided in this document.

All other special-status animal species are discussed here, including California Department of Fish and Wildlife fully protected species and species of special concern, and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Species or National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration Fisheries candidate species. Federal laws and regulations relevant to wildlife are the following: National Environmental Policy Act, Migratory Bird Treaty Act, and Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act.

State laws and regulations relevant to wildlife are the following: California Environmental Quality Act, Sections 1600–1603 of the California Fish and Game Code, and Sections 4150 and 4152 of the California Fish and Game Code.

Affected Environment

The 2019 Natural Environment Study—Minimal Impacts defined the biological study area as the direct impact area of the project plus a greater buffer area to study the presence of potentially suitable habitat (about 600 feet in some areas).

There is potential for the following migratory birds and bats to be present or to nest in the project area:

- Migratory birds such as the red-tailed hawk and Swainson's hawk (*Buteo swainsoni*)
- Bat species such as the pallid bat (*Antrozous pallidus*) and western mastiff bat (*Eumops perotis californicus*)

Bird species protected by the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (16 U.S. Code 703-711) may use the study area for roosting, nesting, and foraging year-round. These birds are protected from hunting, taking, capture, killing, possession, sale, purchase, shipment, transportation, carriage, or export of any bird, or any part, nest or egg. Similarly, California Fish and Game Code Section 3511 provides that, with few exceptions, state fully protected species, including their parts, may also use the study area and also may not be taken or possessed at any time.

Migratory birds within California have an approximate breeding and nesting season from February 1 to September 30. The Swainson's hawk is a summer migrant in the Central Valley of California, breeding in stands with few trees in juniper-sage flats, riparian areas, and oak savannah. In California, the Swainson's hawk is listed as threatened. It is protected by additional laws that prohibit the destruction of bird and raptor nests and prohibit the take or possession of any migratory nongame bird as designated in the Migratory Bird Treaty Act. During surveys in the study area inventorying migratory bird species, one red-tailed hawk nest was seen at the American Avenue interchange. No Swainson's hawks or nests were observed in the biological study area. Also, one red-tailed hawk nest was seen at the American Avenue interchange.

California has 24 indigenous bat species throughout the state. At least 17 of these bat species are known to use human-made structures, including buildings and bridges. Fifteen California bat species are ranked as having a rare status with state and federal agencies; ten are listed as California

Species of Special Concern by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. Bats are also protected by the California Fish and Game Code, Sections 4150–4154, which prohibits the take or possession of any nongame mammals naturally occurring in the state.

The interactions of bats with the transportation system can be positive (roosting opportunities) or negative (physical injury from moving vehicles). Widespread losses of bat roosts and colonies have been occurring through direct and indirect causes such as pest control activities and lawful eviction of bats from structures. Surveys conducted on April 9, 2019 in the project area found no signs of roosting at the American Avenue and North Avenue bridges.

Environmental Consequences

Build Alternatives

No potential impacts are anticipated from any of the proposed build alternatives to migratory birds or bats that may build nests or roosts within the project area prior to construction. Potential cumulative impacts to migratory birds include those past, present, and future projects that would impact the habitat and potential nesting trees within the project area. Construction of the project would not add to a cumulative loss of potential habitat with the implementation of measures to avoid and minimize potential impacts. The project would avoid the red-tailed hawk nest found at American Avenue with the implementation of measures. Avoidance and minimization measures would be implemented prior to and during construction.

No-Build Alternative

The No-Build Alternative would result in no vegetation removal or disturbance of nests, and no birds would be taken. The interchanges would still lack the missing on- and off-ramps, and driving conditions would further deteriorate with increased vehicle delay, as previously discussed.

The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.

With implementation of the following avoidance and minimization measures, direct and indirect impacts to migratory birds and bats are not expected to occur:

- A preconstruction survey for migratory birds and bats would be conducted 30 days before the start of construction.
- If migratory birds are found nesting within the project footprint, minimization efforts would be coordinated with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and may include a no-work buffer zone (300 feet) around an active nest and/or a

qualified biologist would monitor the active nest during construction activities within the established buffer.

- If an active nest is detected, an environmentally sensitive area (ESA) around the nest area may be established to prevent nesting disturbance.
- Work may be temporarily suspended if nesting activity cannot be prevented. Standard Specifications would be included in the construction bid package to avoid impacts to migratory birds.
- If removal of nest trees were deemed necessary, removal would occur during the time of year when the nests are not used, between October 1 to January 30.

Since Swainson's hawks are not expected but could potentially occur in the project area, implementation of the following avoidance and minimization measures to avoid direct and indirect impacts are recommended, including some additional surveys:

- Prior to construction, Caltrans would conduct preconstruction surveys according to the Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting Surveys in California's Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk Technical Advisory Commission, 2000).
- Surveys would be conducted no less than 30 days prior to construction.
- If an active Swainson's hawk nest is detected, minimization efforts would be coordinated with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and may include a no-work buffer zone (600 feet) around an active nest and/or a qualified biologist would monitor an active nest during construction activities within the established buffer.
- If the 600-foot no-work buffer zone cannot be maintained, an Incidental Take Permit may be required by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife.

With implementation of the following avoidance and minimization measures, potential impacts to bats are not expected to occur:

- Preconstruction surveys would be conducted to ensure the bridge remains free of roosting bats.
- If roosts are identified within impacted structures, one-way exclusionary devices or deterrents would be installed outside of the maternity roost season to exclude bats prior to beginning construction activities on the structure.
- If roosts are identified outside of impacted structures but within the project area, construction activities that may disturb a maternity roost or seasonal roost for bats will be prohibited or conducted in a manner that minimizes disturbance to bats.

Avoidance, Minimization, and/or Mitigation Measures

No mitigation is required.

3.1 Determining Significance Under the California Environmental Quality Act

The project is a joint project by Caltrans and the Federal Highway Administration and is subject to state and federal environmental review requirements. Project documentation, therefore, has been prepared in compliance with both the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental Policy Act. The Federal Highway Administration's responsibility for environmental review, consultation, and any other actions required by applicable Federal environmental laws for this project is being, or has been, carried out by Caltrans pursuant to 23 U.S. Code Section 327 (23 USC 327) and the Memorandum of Understanding dated May 27, 2022 and executed by the Federal Highway Administration and Caltrans. Caltrans is the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental Policy Act.

One of the main differences between the National Environmental Policy Act and the California Environmental Quality Act is the way significance is determined. Under the National Environmental Policy Act, significance is used to determine whether an Environmental Impact Statement, or a lower level of documentation, will be required. The National Environmental Policy Act requires that an Environmental Impact Statement be prepared when the proposed federal action (project) as a whole has the potential to "significantly affect the quality of the human environment." The determination of significance is based on context and intensity. Some impacts determined to be significant under the California Environmental Quality Act may not be of sufficient magnitude to be determined significant under the National Environmental Policy Act. Under the National Environmental Policy Act, once a decision is made regarding the need for an Environmental Impact Statement, it is the magnitude of the impact that is evaluated and no judgment of its individual significance is deemed important for the text. The National Environmental Policy Act does not require that a determination of significant impacts be stated in the environmental documents.

The California Environmental Quality Act, on the other hand, does require Caltrans to identify each "significant effect on the environment" resulting from the project and ways to mitigate each significant effect. If the project may have a significant effect on any environmental resource, then an Environmental Impact Report must be prepared. Every significant effect on the environment must be disclosed in the Environmental Impact Report and mitigated if feasible. In addition, the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines list a number of "mandatory findings of significance," which also require the preparation of an Environmental Impact Report. There are no types of actions under the National Environmental Policy Act that parallel the findings of mandatory significance of the California Environmental Quality Act. This chapter discusses the effects of this project and the California Environmental Quality Act significance determinations.

3.2 CEQA Checklist

This checklist identifies physical, biological, social, and economic factors that might be affected by the proposed project. In many cases, background studies performed in connection with the projects will indicate that there are no impacts to a particular resource. A "No Impact" answer reflects this determination. The words "significant" and "significance" used throughout the following checklist are related to the California Environmental Quality Act, not the National Environmental Policy Act, impacts. The questions in this form are intended to encourage the thoughtful assessment of impacts and do not represent thresholds of significance.

Project features, which can include both design elements of the project and standardized measures that are applied to all or most Caltrans projects such as Best Management Practices and measures included in the Standard Plans and Specifications or as Standard Special Provisions, are considered to be an integral part of the project and have been considered prior to any significance determinations documented below; see Chapters 1 and 2 for a detailed discussion of these features. The annotations to this checklist are summaries of information contained in Chapter 2 to provide the reader with the rationale for significance determinations; for a more detailed discussion of the nature and extent of impacts, please see Chapter 2. This checklist incorporates by reference the information contained in Chapters 1 and 2.

3.2.1 Aesthetics

CEQA Significance Determinations for Aesthetics

Except as provided in Public Resources Code Section 21099, would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

No Impact—There are no scenic vistas in the project area. (May 2020, Visual Impact Analysis)

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a state scenic highway?

No Impact—There are no scenic resources that would be impacted. State Route 99 is not a designated scenic highway in the project area. (May 2020, Visual Impact Analysis) c) In non-urbanized areas, substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from a publicly accessible vantage point.) If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?

No Impact—There are no impacts to visual character. The project aligns with applicable zoning and regulations governing scenic quality. Replacement planting and aesthetic treatments would be coordinated with the Fresno 99 Beautification Master Plan and consistent with improvements constructed on State Route 99 north of the project area. (May 2020, Visual Impact Analysis)

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or nighttime views in the area?

No Impact—The analysis determined there would be no new sources of light or glare that would adversely affect daytime or nighttime views in the area. (May 2020, Visual Impact Analysis)

3.2.2 Agriculture and Forest Resources

CEQA Significance Determinations for Agriculture and Forest Resources

In determining whether impacts to agricultural resources are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to the California Agricultural Land Evaluation and Site Assessment Model (1997) prepared by the California Department of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts on agriculture and farmland. In determining whether impacts to forest resources, including timberland, are significant environmental effects, lead agencies may refer to information compiled by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state's inventory of forest land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest Legacy Assessment Project; and the forest carbon measurement methodology provided in Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air Resources Board.

Would the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide Importance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of the California Resources Agency, to non-agricultural use?

No Impact—A Farmland Conversion Rating form (NRCS-CPA-106) was submitted to the Natural Resources Conservation Service for evaluation. The Service agreed that the land is considered to be "committed to urban development" because the land converted would be narrow strips along the highway, where most properties are zoned for industrial and commercial use, with only one property zoned for agricultural use, and no properties under Williamson Act contract. According to the Farmland Protection Policy Act, as amended, the land is therefore "not to be considered as farmland." (Farmland Conversion Rating form [NRCS-CPA-106] with Natural Resources Conservation Service concurrence October 10, 2019)

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

No Impact—There is no conflict with Fresno County and City of Fresno zoning in the transportation corridor. There are no properties under Williamson Act contract. (Fresno County Planning Department confirmed list of properties October 10, 2019)

c) Conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(g))?

No Impact—There is no forest land (as defined in Public Resources Code Section 12220(g)) or timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or timberland zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section 51104(g)) in the project area.

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No Impact—There would be no loss of forest or conversion of forest land to non-forest use.

e) Involve other changes in the existing environment which, due to their location or nature, could result in conversion of farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No Impact—The project would convert a sliver of land next to the existing American Avenue interchange from agriculture to transportation. The project improves an existing transportation facility that currently serves the farming activity in the area and provides for the transportation of farming goods and services. No forest land would be impacted.

3.2.3 Air Quality

CEQA Significance Determinations for Air Quality

Where available, the significance criteria established by the applicable air quality management district or air pollution control district may be relied upon to make the following determinations.

Would the project:

a) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Significant and Unavoidable Impact—The project would increase carbon dioxide emissions, a greenhouse gas, and therefore conflict with current air quality plans that require reduction of greenhouse gas emissions.

By all regulatory standards, as reported in Section 2.2.3 Air Quality of this document, this project is in compliance with all regulatory requirements for regional air-quality conformity, caron monoxide (CO), ozone (O3), particulate matter 2.5 and 10, mobile source air toxics (MSAT) emissions during construction, and for reporting carbon dioxide.

However, emerging requirements and methods to measure greenhouse gas emissions and mitigation are narrowly defined and limited. Caltrans requires projects to attain zero increase of emissions above existing modeled emissions. Based on the current requirement, Caltrans has determined there would be significant impacts from this project, as air emission modeling for carbon dioxide results show increased emissions for 2026, opening day, and 2046, a planning horizon, above the existing 2019 emissions for each of the proposed alternatives at both interchanges.

The project does include features and measures that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as: Complete Streets elements with landscaping, bicycle and pedestrian facilities to encourage active transportation over use of gasoline powered vehicles. The installation of Intelligent Transportation System elements designed to improve traffic efficiency and reduce congestion on roadways thereby lowering vehicle emissions. Also, roundabouts proposed under several alternatives contribute to smoother, more efficient traffic circulation resulting in less stop-and-go travel and lower vehicle emissions. Caltrans applies a large list of standard measures on most, if not all, projects during construction that require practices and restrict equipment that reduces dust and equipment emissions. The project proposes an electric charging station toward mitigation of the project impacts. The charging station would contribute to emerging local, regional, and state programs to promote electric vehicle use instead of gasoline powered vehicles. However, Caltrans currently does not have established regulatory, industry-wide methods to accurately measure whether the project features and measures would reduce emissions enough to mitigate the project impacts. Therefore, the project impacts remain significant and unavoidable. (January 2021 Air Quality Report)

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is non-attainment under an applicable federal or state ambient air quality standard?

Less Than Significant Impact—The project would not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the project region is in nonattainment under applicable federal or state ambient

air quality standards. While the region is in nonattainment for ozone, particulate matter 10 (PM10) and particulate matter 2.5 (PM2.5), the project would not result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutants. The project improves the operations of an existing interchange along with local intersections. The project is not considered a Project of Air Quality Concern and is modeled in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan and Sustainable Communities Strategies. No mitigation is required. (January 2021 Air Quality Report)

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Less Than Significant Impact—The project would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations. The project does not cause substantial emissions, and there are no sensitive receptors in range of the project. The project does include feasible project features and construction measures to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, within federal and state regulations, such as: complete street components, waste and air emissions reduction strategies, and the implementation of an electric vehicle charging station. The project's Complete Streets elements include wide shoulders to accommodate bicycles and pedestrians and landscaping that encourage active transportation, and Intelligent Transportation System elements that improve operational efficiency. Roundabouts are proposed under several alternatives that would also contribute to smoother, more efficient traffic circulation. No mitigation is required. (January 2021 Air Quality Report)

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely affecting a substantial number of people?

No Impact—The project would not result in other emissions such as odors adversely affecting a substantial number of people. The project is in an industrial area within a transportation corridor with a major highway, railroads, and the California High-Speed Rail. (January 2021 Air Quality Report)

3.2.4 Biological Resources

CEQA Significance Determinations for Biological Resources

Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or specialstatus species in local or regional plans, policies, or regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No Impact—Field surveys and literature and record searches found there would be no impacts to species, habitat, candidate species, or sensitive or special-status species because there are no such species or habitat in the project area. (July 2019, Natural Environment Study–Minimal Impacts)

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service?

No Impact—No riparian habitat or other sensitive natural communities identified in local or regional plans, policies, regulations or by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service are in the project area. (July 2019, Natural Environment Study–Minimal Impacts)

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands (including, but not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other means?

No Impact—There would be no adverse effect on state or federally protected wetlands because none are found in the project area. (July 2019, Natural Environment Study–Minimal Impacts)

d) Interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife nursery sites?

No Impact—The project would not interfere with the movement of fish or wildlife species. To ensure this, preconstruction surveys would be done for migratory birds during the nesting season. (July 2019, Natural Environment Study–Minimal Impacts)

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?

No Impact—There would be no conflicts with any local policies or ordinances protecting biological resources. (July 2019, Natural Environment Study–Minimal Impacts)

f) Conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community Conservation Plan, or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

No Impact—No habitat conservation plans exist for the project area. The land is in a transportation corridor and is planned and zoned for commercial and/or industrial uses by Fresno County (2000 General Plan) and the City of Fresno (2014 General Plan, as amended).

3.2.5 Cultural Resources

CEQA Significance Determinations for Cultural Resources

Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant to Section 15064.5?

No Impact—The project would not cause a substantial change to the significance of a historical resource pursuant to Section 15064.5. (April 2020 Archaeological Study Report, April 2020 Historic Resource Evaluation Report, and May 2020 Historic Property Survey Report; State Historic Preservation Officer concurrence letter dated June 23, 2020)

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to Section 15064.5?

No Impact—There would be no substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource pursuant to Section 15064.5. (April 2020 Archaeological Study Report, April 2020 Historic Resource Evaluation Report, and May 2020 Historic Property Survey Report; State Historic Preservation Officer concurrence letter dated June 23, 2020)

c) Disturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

No Impact—No human remains are expected, but if human remains are discovered in construction, the Caltrans policy to comply with California Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5 requires activities would stop and the county coroner would be contacted. The Native American Heritage Commission would be notified if the remains are Native American, pursuant to Public Resources Code Section 5097.98, and the Most Likely Descendent would be notified, as well as the Caltrans District 6 Native American Coordinator to facilitate respectful treatment and disposition of the remains. Further provisions of Public Resources Code 5097.98 are to be followed as applicable. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

3.2.6 Energy

CEQA Significance Determinations for Energy

Would the project:

a) Result in potentially significant environmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy resources, during project construction or operation?

No Impact—The project would not result in a significant impact, during construction or operation, for wasteful, inefficient, or unnecessary consumption of energy. Caltrans is required to meet an extensive array of requirements to conserve, reuse and recycle materials and to require conservation practices during operation and construction activities, as

overseen by agencies with regulatory oversight responsibility. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

No Impact—The project would not conflict with or obstruct state or local plans for renewable energy or energy efficiency. The project would comply with all federal, state and local rules and regulations to this effect. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

3.2.7 Geology and Soils

CEQA Significance Determinations for Geology and Soils

Would the project:

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of loss, injury, or death involving:

No Impact—The project would not directly or indirectly cause substantial adverse effects, or risk of loss, injury or death. Caltrans safety standards for design, construction and maintenance require the highest geotechnical standards for transportation.

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Special Publication 42?

No Impact—The project is not near any major topographic or geologic features or faults. The project is not in a known earthquake fault area. (California Geological Survey, Seismic Hazard Zones and Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zone Interactive Map accessed October 2020)

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?

No Impact—The project improves existing transportation facilities in an area that has not historically had strong seismic ground shaking. Some minor shaking has been felt from earthquakes located in Southern California and areas on the east side of the Sierra Nevada Mountain Range. (U.S. Geological Survey U.S. Quaternary Faults interactive map accessed October 2020)

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction?

No Impact—The project would improve existing transportation facilities where there are no major topographic or geologic features or faults within or near the project area. The area does not currently support conditions for liquefaction

because groundwater is deep in the project area. (U.S. Geological Survey U.S. Quaternary Faults interactive map accessed October 2020)

iv) Landslides?

No Impact—The project lies in an area where the topography is flat, and there is no risk of landslides from the project or to the project. The project does not include large cuts and fills or steep excavation. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project)

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?

No Impact—The project would not cause substantial soil erosion or loss of topsoil because the project would abide by Caltrans Statewide Storm Water Permit requirements, which include features and measures to be included in the project design and during construction to prevent soil erosion or topsoil loss. The project would include appropriate Best Management Practices to prevent soil erosion or loss of topsoil. Also, disturbed areas will be reestablished with compost and native hydroseed mix to promote revegetation success and provide erosion control. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project; 2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

c) Be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a result of the project, and potentially result in on-site or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse?

No Impact—The project would not be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable or would become unstable as a result of the project. The project rebuilds an existing facility. All Caltrans engineering standards are followed to design and construct the project to ensure stability, and not cause instability, landslides, lateral spreading, subsidence, liquefaction or collapse. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project; Caltrans Highway Design Manual – Seventh Edition; 2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

d) Be located on expansive soil, as defined in Table 18-1-B of the Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or indirect risks to life or property?

No Impact—The project rebuilds an existing facility and would not be located on expansive soil as defined in the Uniform Building Code (1994) and would not create substantial direct or indirect risk to life or property. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project; Caltrans Highway Design Manual – Seventh Edition; 2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems where sewers are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

No Impact—The project reconstructs existing interchanges and does not install septic tanks or wastewater disposal systems for the disposal of wastewater.

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic feature?

Less Than Significant Impact—Paleontological resources could potentially lie in sediments beneath the project area, as paleontological resources have been recovered during construction of a project on State Route 99 in Madera County, north of the project area. Discovery is unlikely, though, because the project improves an existing facility, in an area that is highly disturbed by farming practices, canals, underground pipelines and utilities, and the recent construction of the California High-Speed Rail crossing over State Route 99 through the Cedar Avenue interchange with no record of finding significant fossils. Caltrans has adopted standard measures, from previous projects, to monitor and recover, study, and preserve any fossils of scientific significance. Caltrans measures to protect resources will be implemented during construction of this project; therefore, there would be less than significant impact to paleontological resources from the project. No mitigation is required. (February 2020, Paleontological Evaluation Report)

3.2.8 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

CEQA Significance Determinations for Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Would the project:

a) Generate emissions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a significant impact on the environment?

Significant and Unavoidable Impact—The project would increase carbon dioxide emissions, a greenhouse gas, and therefore conflict with current air quality plans that require reduction of greenhouse gas emissions.

The analysis found carbon dioxide emissions would increase by 3,414 tons per year at the American Avenue interchange and by 4,281 tons per year at the North Avenue interchange by 2046 with construction of the project as compared to the existing (2019) carbon dioxide emissions.

The increase in emissions would mainly come from population growth in the county along with the implementation of planned development in the area. Improvement of the existing partial interchanges at American and North avenues would provide more direct access and redistribute future traffic that would otherwise use circuitous routes on local roads and adjacent

interchanges traveling to and from the project area. The carbon dioxide modeling does not include the benefits gained from the improved efficiencies on the local road system from the project.

The emerging requirements to model and measure mitigation to reduce greenhouse gas emissions are narrowly defined and limited, the modeling results focus on the state highway only, don't consider the local street system and effectively require zero increase from existing emissions to meet California's emissions reduction goals.

Based on the current requirement, Caltrans has determined there would be significant impacts from this project because air emission modeling results show increased emissions for 2026, opening day, and 2046, a planning horizon, above the existing 2019 emissions for each of the proposed alternatives at both interchanges.

The project includes features and measures that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as Complete Streets elements with landscaping to promote bicycle and pedestrian use and encourage active transportation over gasolinepowered vehicles, and installation of Intelligent Transportation System elements designed to improve traffic efficiency and reduce congestion on roadways, thereby lowering vehicle emissions. Also, roundabouts proposed under several alternatives contribute to smoother, more efficient traffic circulation resulting in less stop-and-go travel and lower vehicle emissions. Caltrans applies a large list of standard measures on most, if not all, projects during construction that require practices and restrict equipment to reduce dust and equipment emissions.

The project proposes to build a sidewalk and vegetative barrier along the east side of South Cherry Avenue, from Central Avenue to Orange Center Elementary school. The sidewalk installation will include streetlighting and improvements to the roadway adjacent to the sidewalk. The sidewalk will provide a paved route for students walking north from Central Avenue to Orange Center Elementary School, and the vegetative barrier will reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Vegetative barriers are recognized methods of mitigating greenhouse gas emissions, criteria air pollutants and extreme heat. See Appendix J for a map of the proposed sidewalk.

Caltrans currently does not have established regulatory, industry-wide methods to accurately measure whether the project features and measures would reduce emissions enough to mitigate the project impacts. Therefore, the project impacts remain significant and unavoidable. (January 2021 Air Quality Report)

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducing the emissions?

Significant and Unavoidable Impact—See previous response to a).

3.2.9 Hazards and Hazardous Materials

CEQA Significance Determinations for Hazards and Hazardous Materials Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?

No Impact—The project would not create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project)

b) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the environment?

No Impact—The project would improve operations of the interchanges to reduce the risk of conditions that have the potential to release hazardous materials into the environment. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended; 2020 Initial Site Assessment and Preliminary Site Investigations)

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous materials, substances, or waste within one-quarter mile of an existing o proposed school?

No Impact—The project would not emit hazardous emissions. There are no schools within one-quarter mile of the project. Caltrans projects are required to follow strict regulations to avoid and minimize the generation of hazardous waste, materials, and emissions. Contingency funding is set aside for any late discovery of hazardous waste and to handle such materials during construction according to state and federal standards. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

d) Be located on a site which is included on a list of hazardous materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the public or the environment?

No Impact—An Initial Site Assessment was completed in May 2020, and Preliminary Site Investigations have been conducted to identify properties containing hazardous materials. The project alternatives, as they are currently designed, would not be on a site listed under Government Code Section 65962 (Cortese List). (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended; May 2020 Initial Site Assessment)

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport,

would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area?

No Impact—The project is not within an airport land use plan or where such a plan has not been adopted, nor within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport, and would not result in a safety hazard for excessive noise for people residing or working in the project area. (August 2020, Noise Impact Study)

f) Impair implementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

No Impact—The project would improve conditions for emergency responders and related response plans. Caltrans received letters from emergency responders in March and April 2019 endorsing the project improvements. (Letters came from Fresno Community Medical Center, the Fresno Fire Department, and the California Highway Patrol)

g) Expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires?

No Impact—The project would not expose people or structures to significant risk to loss, injury or death involving wildland fires. The project lies within an urban developed area, though some land is irrigated and planted with orchard trees. The project is not considered in an area identified as vulnerable to wildfires on the Caltrans District 6 Climate Change Vulnerability Map.

3.2.10 Hydrology and Water Quality

CEQA Significance Determinations for Hydrology and Water Quality

Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface water or groundwater quality?

No Impact—With implementation of the Caltrans Statewide Stormwater Program, the project would not violate water quality standards, waste discharge requirements or degrade surface water or groundwater. The project would comply with and follow the State Water Resources Control Board -Order Number 99-06-DWQ, NPDES Number CAS000003, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit, Statewide Storm Water Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for Caltrans.

b) Substantially decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?
No Impact—The project does not decrease groundwater supply or interfere with groundwater recharge or substantially impede groundwater management. The project would improve an existing facility and install an upgraded stormwater system, including stormwater basins to capture storm water.

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area, including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which would:

i) Result in substantial erosion or siltation on-site or off-site;

No Impact—The project would not substantially alter existing drainage of the area to result in substantial erosion or siltation on or off the site. Stormwater policies and practices are implemented and managed during construction to ensure all measures to control erosion and siltation are followed. (State Water Resources Control Board - Order Number 99-06-DWQ, NPDES Number CAS000003, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit, Statewide Stormwater Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for Caltrans)

ii) Substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on-site or off-site;

No Impact—The project would not increase the rate or amount of surface runoff. The project is not in an area known for flooding. The project would install a stormwater system to capture all runoff from the state facility. Stormwater policies and practices are managed during construction to ensure all measures to control surface runoff are followed. (State Water Resources Control Board - Order Number 99-06-DWQ, NPDES Number CAS000003, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit, Statewide Stormwater Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for Caltrans)

iii) Create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or

No Impact—The project would not create or contribute runoff water that would exceed the capacity of the drainage systems or add substantial additional sources of polluted runoff because a stormwater system is proposed to address this con/cern, to capture all runoff from the state facility, which includes treatment of the runoff water. Stormwater policies and practices are managed during construction to ensure all measures to control surface runoff are followed. (State Water Resources Control Board - Order Number 99-06-DWQ, NPDES Number CAS000003, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit, Statewide Stormwater Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for Caltrans)

iv) Impede or redirect flood flows?

No Impact—The project would not impact a floodplain. A Location Hydraulic Study and Floodplain Evaluation Report was completed in November 2018 for the project. Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) dated February 18, 2009 indicate the project area lies in "Zone X," defined as outside the 0.2 percent annual chance floodplain. The project complies with Executive Order 11988 (Floodplain Management) as outlined in 23 Code of Federal Regulations 650 Subpart A, which directs all federal agencies to refrain from conducting, supporting, or allowing actions in floodplains.

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or. seiche zones, risk release of pollutants due to project inundation?

No Impact—The project is not in an area where flood hazard, tsunami, seiche, or inundation is likely to occur. (November 2018, Location Hydraulic Study and Floodplain Evaluation Report)

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan?

No Impact—The project does not conflict with or obstruct any known water quality control plan or sustainable groundwater management plan. No concerns regarding flooding, conflicting or obstructing surface water or groundwater, or plans have been identified. (November 2018, Location Hydraulic Study and Floodplain Evaluation Report)

3.2.11 Land Use and Planning

CEQA Significance Determinations for Land Use and Planning Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established community?

No Impact—The project does not divide an established community. The project upgrades two existing interchanges that serve all users. (Community studies conducted throughout 2019 and 2020; August 2020, Community Impact Memo)

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

No Impact—The project aligns with city and county land use plans, policy, and regulations, as well as applicable state and federal plans, policies, and regulations regarding land use planning. The Fresno Council of Governments, the City and County are proponents of the project. (2018 Regional Transportation Plan; Investigations of land use documents conducted during 2019 and 2020; August 2020, Community Impact Memo)

3.2.12 Mineral Resources

CEQA Significance Determinations for Mineral Resources

Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the region and the residents of the state?

No Impact—The project reconstructs an existing facility. There are no known mineral resources of value in the project area. (California Department of Conservation On-line Mineral Land Classification Interactive Map accessed December 2020)

b) Result in the loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan?

No Impact—The project reconstructs an existing facility. There are no recovery sites for important mineral resources on a local general plan, specific plan or other land use plan that includes the project area. (California Department of Conservation On-line Mineral Land Classification Interactive Map accessed December 2020)

3.2.13 Noise

CEQA Significance Determinations for Noise

Would the project result in:

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in ambient noise levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards established in the local general plan or noise ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

No Impact—The project would comply with local noise ordinances. There are no substantial permanent increases in noise or vibration anticipated from the project, and temporary noise would be managed by application of measures to avoid and minimize construction noise according to local noise ordinances. (August 2020, Noise Study Report)

b) Generation of excessive groundborne vibration or groundborne noise levels?

No Impact—The project would not generate excessive groundborne vibration or noise, and there would be no excessive temporary increase with application of measures during construction. (August 2020, Noise Study Report)

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airport, would the project expose people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise levels?

No Impact—The project does not lie within a designated flight plan. There are no private airstrips or public airports within 2 miles of the project area.

3.2.14 Population and Housing

CEQA Significance Determinations for Population and Housing

Would the project:

a) Induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example, by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other infrastructure)?

No Impact—The project would not induce unplanned growth in the area. The County and City have no plans for housing in this area (2000 Fresno County General Plan, 2014 City of Fresno General Plan, and research conducted in 2019 and 2020). No housing or residential neighborhoods exist within or near the project area. The project reconstructs existing infrastructure and does not extend a road or other infrastructure. (Investigations of land use documents conducted during 2019 and 2020; August 2020, Community Impact Memo)

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitating the construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

No Impact—The project does not displace or replace substantial numbers of people or housing. (July 2020, Draft Relocation Impact Study)

3.2.15 Public Services

CEQA Significance Determinations for Public Services

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts associated with the provision of new or physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmental facilities, the construction of which could cause significant environmental impacts, in order to maintain acceptable service ratios, response times or other performance objectives for any of the public services:

Fire protection?

No Impact—The project would improve conditions for fire protection and improve response times. (Letter from the Fresno Fire Department dated April 12, 2019, responding to the Caltrans California Environmental Quality Act Scoping outreach)

Police protection?

No Impact—The project would improve conditions for police protection and improve response times. (Letter from the California Highway Patrol dated April 17, 2019, responding to the Caltrans California Environmental Quality Act Scoping outreach)

Schools?

No Impact—No schools sit in the project area, but various schools lie in the outlying area. Motorists going to and from those schools would experience improved access when using the interchanges. (Community Impact Assessment Memo dated August 2020; 12 schools in the surrounding area were sent the California Environmental Quality Act Scoping information)

Parks?

No Impact—There are no parks in the project area. A few parks and recreational centers occur in the outlying area. Motorists going to and from those parks that would experience improved access when using the interchanges. (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020)

Other public facilities?

No Impact—There are no other public facilities that could be impacted by the project. (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020)

3.2.16 Recreation

CEQA Significance Determinations for Recreation

a) Would the project increase the use of existing neighborhood and regional parks or other recreational facilities such that substantial physical deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

No Impact—The project would not cause an increase in use of existing neighborhood or regional parks, or other recreational facilities so that physical deterioration of the facilities would occur or be accelerated. (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020)

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

No Impact—The project does not include recreational facilities or require the construction or expansion of recreational facilities that might have an adverse effect on the environment. (Community Impact Assessment Memo, dated August 2020)

3.2.17 Transportation

CEQA Significance Determinations for Transportation

Would the project:

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance or policy addressing the circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities?

No Impact—The project aligns with all transportation programs, ordinances, and policies addressing traffic circulation in the project area, and where relevant has considered improvements for transit, roadway, bicycle and pedestrian facilities.

b) Conflict with or be inconsistent with the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15064.3, subdivision (b)?

No Impact—This project is in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Section 15064.3, Caltrans Policy Memo (September 10, 2020) regarding analysis of transportation impacts under the California Environmental Quality Act for projects on the State Highway System, as well as the Caltrans Transportation Analysis Framework and Transportation Analysis under the California Environmental Quality Act guide to implementation of Senate Bill 743 (Steinberg, 2013) codified at Public Resources Code Section 21099. This project meets criteria set forth in the policy memo that the project is considered a project type that is "unaffected by the use of vehicle miles traveled as a measure of transportation impacts" because the impacts are assumed "not to lead to a measurable and substantial increase in vehicle travel."

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geometric design feature (e.g., sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompatible uses (e.g., farm equipment)?

No Impact—The project is categorically compatible with existing uses and meets all safety standards, policies and guidelines for transportation facilities.

d) Result in inadequate emergency access?

No Impact—The project improves access for emergency service providers, as stated in letters submitted by the Fresno Fire Department, Fresno Community Medical Center, and California Highway Patrol in March and April 2019.

3.2.18 Tribal Cultural Resources

CEQA Significance Determinations for Tribal Cultural Resources

Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in Public Resources Code Section 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is geographically defined

in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California Native American tribe, and that is:

a) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Register of Historical Resources, or in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k), or

No Impact—There are no resources that are listed or eligible for the California Register of Historical Resources, or resources in a local register of historical resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section 5020.1(k). (April 2020 Archaeological Study Report, April 2020 Historic Resource Evaluation Report, and May 2020 Historic Property Survey Report; State Historic Preservation Officer concurrence letter dated June 23, 2020)

b) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by substantial evidence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. In applying the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall consider the significance of the resource to a California Native American tribe.

No Impact—No resources were identified as significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources Code Section 5024.1. (April 2020 Archaeological Study Report, April 2020 Historic Resource Evaluation Report, and May 2020 Historic Property Survey Report; State Historic Preservation Officer concurrence letter dated June 23, 2020)

3.2.19 Utilities and Service Systems

CEQA Significance Determinations for Utilities and Service Systems

Would the project:

a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater treatment or stormwater drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the construction or relocation of which could cause significant environmental effects?

Less Than Significant Impact—Construction and/or relocation of water, and stormwater drainage, electric power, natural gas, and telecommunications facilities are included in the project but would not cause significant environmental effects. These utilities are within public land, mostly within state, city and county transportation right-of-way where negative impacts are not anticipated. The main impact identified would be temporary and intermittent interruption of services while utilities are being relocated and upgraded. No mitigation is required. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project)

b) Have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry and multiple dry years?

No Impact—The project does not use water for operational activities. During construction, water is available from outside sources, by contractors, to meet all requirements during construction, including conservation requirements. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project; 2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provider's existing commitments?

No Impact—No wastewater treatment providers would be needed for this project. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project; 2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

d) Generate solid waste in excess of state or local standards, or in excess of the capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

No Impact—The project would not generate solid waste in excess of state or local standards, or in excess of capacity of local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

e) Comply with federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

No Impact—The project complies with all federal, state, and local management and reduction statutes and regulations related to solid waste. (2018, Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended)

3.2.20 Wildfire

CEQA Significance Determinations for Wildfire

If located in or near state responsibility areas or lands classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project:

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to, pollutant concentrations from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a wildfire? c) Require the installation or maintenance of associated infrastructure (such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power lines or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes?

a, **b**, **c**, **and d**) **No Impact**—The project would not impair an adopted emergency plan or exacerbate wildfire risks. The project would not require the installation or maintenance of infrastructure that may exacerbate fire risk or that may result in temporary or ongoing fire risk to the environment. The project is not within or near a designated high fire hazard severity zone or in an area identified as vulnerable to wildfires. This project would provide for improved response to emergency and evacuation plans. The project would not expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, post-fire slope instability, or drainage changes. (November 2018, Caltrans Project Initiation Document and information from Caltrans design team assigned to the project; Caltrans District 6 Climate Change Vulnerability Map)

3.2.21 Mandatory Findings of Significance

CEQA Significance Determinations for Mandatory Findings of Significance

The following section includes updates that have been made since the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was circulated.

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal community, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of a rare or endangered plant or animal or eliminate important examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?

Less Than Significant Impact—The environmental studies conducted for this project found the project would not substantially degrade the quality of the environment. The project would not reduce the habitat of fish or wildlife, cause fish or wildlife population to drop, threaten to eliminate plant or animal communities, reduce the number or restrict the range of rare or endangered plant or animal species, or eliminate important examples of California history or prehistory.

Biological and cultural studies conducted during 2019 and 2020 using data research and field reviews for species, habitat and historical resources found no evidence of the presence of special-status species, and/or of historic resources in

the project area. The area is highly disturbed by agriculture and industrial development with no native plant species found. There are no rivers or creeks in the project vicinity, so no fish would be affected. There is a potential that migratory birds such as the red-tailed hawk and Swainson's hawk (Buteo swainsoni) could migrate into the area and nest in trees in the project area, or for bats such as the pallid bat (Antrozous pallidus) and western mastiff bat (Eumops perotis californicus) to establish roosts on the existing overcrossing structures. A red-tailed hawk nest was found near the American Avenue interchange. Caltrans has measures to avoid and minimize impacts to existing nests according to regulatory requirements. Preconstruction surveys would be conducted to identify any new arrivals and protect them if they do appear. Also, exclusionary measures will be implemented to discourage species safely from roosting prior to and during construction. The State Historic Preservation Officer agreed with Caltrans' determination, in a letter dated June 23, 2020, that no sensitive historic or prehistoric resources would be impacted by the project. No mitigation is required. (2018 Caltrans Standard Plans and Specifications, as amended; July 2019 Natural Environment Study-Minimal Impact; January 2021 Air Quality Report; May 2020 Initial Site Assessment and Preliminary Site Investigations; April 2020 Archaeological Study Report, April 2020 Historic Resource Evaluation Report, and May 2020 Historic Property Survey Report; State Historic Preservation Officer concurrence letter dated June 23, 2020; August 2020 Community Impact Memo; State Water Resources Control Board - Order Number 99-06-DWQ, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Number CAS000003, National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permit, Statewide Storm Water Permit and Waste Discharge Requirements for Caltrans)

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects.)

Less Than Significant Impact—The environmental studies found the project would not have individually limited, but cumulatively considerable, impacts. Human activity in the project area began in the 1870s with the completion of the Central Pacific Railroad in 1870 and development of the city of Fresno as a train stop established in 1872, followed by construction of the "Golden State Highway" in 1927, which was later relocated west to the existing alignment as State Route 99 in 1965. As people came to the area to farm, the city of Fresno and the project area developed industrial and commercial business along the transportation corridor. Today, the land use in the project area represents this history and land use decisions made by Fresno County and the City of Fresno, which are generally to support businesses that would use the existing transportation corridor to improve the local economy and provide jobs. An Amazon Fulfillment Center and an Ulta Beauty Distribution Center are two of the more recent (2018) developments located in the area, along with ongoing construction of the California High-Speed Rail, with one section constructed

that crosses State Route 99 through the project area over the existing Cedar Avenue interchange.

The proposed improvements maintain an existing facility in a highly urbanized transportation corridor with very small, if any, potential negative environmental impact. Construction of complete interchanges would reduce stop-and-go traffic and provide more direct access to and from the highway. It would reduce the traffic driving indirect routes on local roads to destinations. Air studies document that the highest vehicle emissions occur in stop-and-go traffic, while free-flowing traffic produces the least amount of vehicle emissions. While the 2020 traffic study projections show traffic will increase in the project area, which correlates with the predicted increase in carbon dioxide emissions, this is mostly from predicted increased population growth and implementation of approved local planned developments, and not from construction of the project. The impacts from the individual project are not cumulatively considerable. No mitigation for cumulative impact is required.

c) Does the project have environmental effects which will cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly?

Significant and Unavoidable Impact—The environmental studies conducted to assess potential impacts to human beings indicate the project would not have substantial effects to human beings, either directly or indirectly.

There are no neighborhoods with residents living within the project area. There is one farmhouse with a farm business and orchard near the American Avenue interchange that is potentially impacted by the project. Alternative 1, as currently designed, would directly impact the farm buildings; Alternative 2 would relocate the driveway access. There are businesses potentially impacted at the North Avenue interchange. Alternative 2 potentially impacts three businesses, and Alternative 4 potentially affects two businesses. Impacted owners would be eligible for services from Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program designed to reduce impacts to affected property owners. Businesses in the project area would benefit from the improved access and interchange dimensions, especially large trucks. Early assessment by Caltrans Right-of-Way staff indicates there are comparable properties in the project vicinity to relocate affected businesses. Air, noise, water and community studies indicate there would be no negative impacts to sensitive resources, such as residents, parks, 4(f) properties, schools, churches, or community centers. No environmental justice populations have been identified within the project area and therefore would not be affected by the proposed improvements. Negative visual impacts were assessed, and studies found low impact to drivers because the project replaces existing interchange structures and the project features are consistent with all local, regional, and state transportation planning and land use planning for the area. Landscaping will be added to replace removal of vegetation. The project would have a noto-low potential for negative cumulative impact, directly or indirectly,

according to the environmental .study results because the project scope matches the existing transportation facilities.

However, this project does disclose increased carbon dioxide, which is a greenhouse gas, which conflicts with current air quality plans that require reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. As presented earlier in this document, emerging requirements and methods to measure greenhouse gas emissions and mitigation are narrowly defined and limited, and there are no regulatory or industry-wide established methods to accurately measure whether the project features and measures would reduce emissions enough to mitigate the project impacts.

By all regulatory standards, as reported in Section 2.2.3 Air Quality of this document, this project is in compliance with all regulatory requirements for regional air quality conformity, carbon monoxide (CO), ozone (O3), particulate matter 2.5 and 10, mobile source air toxics (MSAT), emissions during construction, and for reporting carbon dioxide.

Caltrans and regional partner agencies have determined the project is needed. The project maintains existing facilities. With improvements to local roads and with construction of complete interchanges, the project would reduce stop-and-go traffic by providing more efficient direct access to and from the highway. It would reduce motorists taking indirect routes on local roads to destinations. As air studies have documented, the highest vehicle emissions occur in stop-and-go traffic, while free-flowing traffic produces the least amount of vehicle emissions, regardless of the criteria pollutant.

The project includes features and measures that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as Complete Streets elements with landscaping that facilitate bicycle and pedestrian use, which encourages active transportation over use of vehicles, thereby reducing emissions, and the installation of Intelligent Transportation System elements designed to improve traffic efficiency and reduce congestion on roadways, which lowers vehicle emissions. Also, roundabouts proposed under several alternatives contribute to smoother, more efficient traffic circulation, resulting in less stop-and-go travel and lower vehicle emissions. Caltrans applies a long list of standard measures on most, if not all, projects during construction that require practices and restrict equipment reducing dust and equipment emissions. The project also proposes to build a sidewalk and vegetative barrier in a South Fresno community for mitigation of the potential impacts. The sidewalk and vegetative barrier would promote walking, increase safety and mobility for non-motorized users, and advance the active transportation efforts to achieve greenhouse gas reduction goals.

The project increases greenhouse gas and therefore conflicts with current air quality plans that require reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. Without established regulatory, industry-wide methods to accurately measure whether the project features and measures would reduce emissions enough to mitigate the project impacts, Caltrans must therefore determine that the project impacts for increased greenhouse gas emissions are significant and unavoidable.

3.3 Climate Change

Climate change refers to long-term changes in temperature, precipitation, wind patterns, and other elements of the earth's climate system. An everincreasing body of scientific research attributes these climatological changes to greenhouse gas emissions, particularly those generated from the production and use of fossil fuels.

While climate change has been a concern for several decades, the establishment of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC) by the United Nations and World Meteorological Organization in 1988 led to increased efforts devoted to greenhouse gas emissions reduction and climate change research and policy. These efforts are primarily concerned with the emissions of gases generated by human activity, including carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4), nitrous oxide (N2O), tetrafluoromethane (CF4), hexafluoroethane (C2F6), sulfur hexafluoride (SF6), and various hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs). Carbon dioxide is the most abundant; while it is a naturally occurring component of Earth's atmosphere, fossil-fuel combustion is the main source of additional, human-generated carbon dioxide.

Two terms are used when discussing how Caltrans addresses the impacts of climate change: "mitigation" and "adaptation." Mitigation covers the activities and policies aimed at reducing greenhouse gas emissions to limit or "mitigate" the impacts of climate change. Adaptation, on the other hand, is concerned with planning for and responding to impacts resulting from climate change (such as adjusting transportation design standards to withstand more intense storms and higher sea levels). This analysis will include a discussion of both.

3.3.1 Regulatory Setting

This section outlines federal and state efforts to comprehensively reduce greenhouse gas emissions from transportation sources.

Federal

To date, no national standards have been established for nationwide mobilesource greenhouse gas reduction targets, nor have any regulations or legislation been enacted specifically to address climate change and greenhouse gas emissions reduction at the project level.

The National Environmental Policy Act (42 U.S. Code Part 4332) requires federal agencies to assess the environmental effects of their proposed actions prior to making a decision on the action or project.

The Federal Highway Administration recognizes the threats that extreme weather, sea-level change, and other changes in environmental conditions pose to valuable transportation infrastructure and those who depend on it. The Federal Highway Administration therefore supports a sustainability approach that assesses vulnerability to climate risks and incorporates resilience into planning, asset management, project development and design, and operations and maintenance practices (Federal Highway Administration 2019). This approach encourages planning for sustainable highways by addressing climate risks while balancing environmental, economic, and social values—"the triple bottom line of sustainability" (Federal Highway Administration no date). Program and project elements that foster sustainability and resilience also support economic vitality and global efficiency, increase safety and mobility, enhance the environment, promote energy conservation, and improve the quality of life.

Various efforts have been made at the federal level to improve fuel economy and energy efficiency to address climate change and its associated effects. The most important of these was the Energy Policy and Conservation Act of 1975 (42 U.S. Code Section 6201) and Corporate Average Fuel Economy (also known by the acronym CAFE) Standards. The act established fuel economy standards for on-road motor vehicles sold in the United States. Compliance with federal fuel economy standards is determined through the Corporate Average Fuel Economy program based on each manufacturer's average fuel economy for the portion of its vehicles produced for sale in the United States.

Energy Policy Act of 2005, 109th Congress H.R.6 (2005–2006): This act sets forth an energy research and development program covering: (1) energy efficiency; (2) renewable energy; (3) oil and gas; (4) coal; (5) the establishment of the Office of Indian Energy Policy and Programs within the Department of Energy; (6) nuclear matters and security; (7) vehicles and motor fuels, including ethanol; (8) hydrogen; (9) electricity; (10) energy tax incentives; (11) hydropower and geothermal energy; and (12) climate change technology.

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency in conjunction with the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration is responsible for setting emission standards for new cars and light-duty vehicles to significantly increase the fuel economy of all new passenger cars and light trucks sold in the United States. Fuel efficiency standards directly influence greenhouse gas emissions.

State

California has been innovative and proactive in addressing greenhouse gas emissions and climate change by passing multiple Senate and Assembly bills and executive orders including, but not limited to, the following:

Executive Order S-3-05 (June 1, 2005): The goal of this order is to reduce California's greenhouse gas emissions to: (1) year 2000 levels by 2010, (2) year 1990 levels by 2020, and (3) 80 percent below year 1990 levels by 2050.

This goal was further reinforced with the passage of Assembly Bill 32 in 2006 and Senate Bill 32 in 2016.

Assembly Bill 32, Chapter 488, 2006, Núñez and Pavley, The Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006: This bill codified the 2020 greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals outlined in Executive Order S-3-05, while further mandating that the California Air Resources Board create a scoping plan and implement rules to achieve "real, quantifiable, cost-effective reductions of greenhouse gases." The Legislature also intended that the statewide greenhouse gas emissions limit continue in existence and be used to maintain and continue reductions in emissions of greenhouse gases beyond 2020 (Health and Safety Code Section 38551(b)). The law requires the California Air Resources Board to adopt rules and regulations in an open public process to achieve the maximum technologically feasible and costeffective greenhouse gas reductions.

Executive Order S-01-07 (January 18, 2007): This order sets forth the Low Carbon Fuel Standard (LCFS) for California. Under this order, the carbon intensity of California's transportation fuels is to be reduced by at least 10 percent by the year 2020. The California Air Resources Board re-adopted the Low Carbon Fuel Standard regulation in September 2015, and the changes went into effect on January 1, 2016. The program establishes a strong framework to promote the low-carbon fuel adoption necessary to achieve the Governor's 2030 and 2050 greenhouse reduction goals.

Senate Bill 375, Chapter 728, 2008, Sustainable Communities and Climate Protection: This bill requires the California Air Resources Board to set regional emissions reduction targets for passenger vehicles. The Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for each region must then develop a "Sustainable Communities Strategies" that integrates transportation, land-use, and housing policies to plan how it will achieve the emissions target for its region.

Senate Bill 391, Chapter 585, 2009, California Transportation Plan: This bill requires the State's long-range transportation plan to identify strategies to address California's climate change goals under Assembly Bill 32.

Executive Order B-16-12 (March 2012): This order directs state entities under the direction of the governor, including the California Air Resources Board, the California Energy Commission, and the California Public Utilities Commission, to support the rapid commercialization of zero-emission vehicles. It directs these entities to achieve various benchmarks related to zero-emission vehicles.

Executive Order B-30-15 (April 2015): This order establishes an interim statewide greenhouse gas emission reduction target of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030 to ensure California meets its target of reducing greenhouse gas emissions to 80 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. It further

orders all state agencies with jurisdiction over sources of greenhouse gas emissions to implement measures, pursuant to statutory authority, to achieve reductions of greenhouse gas emissions to meet the 2030 and 2050 greenhouse gas emissions reductions targets. It also directs the California Air Resources Board to update the Climate Change Scoping Plan to express the 2030 target in terms of Million Metric Tons of Carbon Dioxide equivalent (MMTCO2e). Finally, it requires the California Natural Resources Agency to update the state's climate adaptation strategies, *Safeguarding California*, every 3 years, and to ensure that its provisions are fully implemented.

Senate Bill 32, Chapter 249, 2016: This bill codifies the greenhouse reduction targets established in Executive Order B-30-15 to achieve a mid-range goal of 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030.

Senate Bill 1386, Chapter 545, 2016: This bill declared "it to be the policy of the state that the protection and management of natural and working lands is an important strategies in meeting the state's greenhouse gas reduction goals, and would require all state agencies, departments, boards, and commissions to consider this policy when revising, adopting, or establishing policies, regulations, expenditures, or grant criteria relating to the protection and management of natural and working lands."

Assembly Bill 134, Chapter 254, 2017: This bill allocates greenhouse gas Reduction Funds and other sources to various clean vehicle programs, demonstration/pilot projects, clean vehicle rebates and projects, and other emissions-reduction programs statewide.

Senate Bill 743, Chapter 386 (September 2013): This bill changes the metric of consideration for transportation impacts pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act from a focus on automobile delay to alternative methods focused on vehicle miles traveled to promote the state's goals of reducing emissions and traffic-related air pollution and promoting multimodal transportation while balancing the needs of congestion management and safety.

Senate Bill 150, Chapter 150, 2017, Regional Transportation Plans: This bill requires the California Air Resources Board to prepare a report that assesses progress made by each Metropolitan Planning Organization in meeting its established regional greenhouse gas emission reduction targets.

Executive Order B-55-18 (September 2018): This order sets a new statewide goal to achieve and maintain carbon neutrality no later than 2045. This goal is in addition to existing statewide targets of reducing emissions.

Executive Order N-19-19 (September 2019): This order advances California's climate goals in part by directing the California State Transportation Agency to leverage annual transportation spending to reverse the trend of increased fuel consumption and reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the

transportation sector. It orders a focus on transportation investments near housing, managing congestion, and encouraging alternatives to driving. This executive order also directs the California Air Resources Board to encourage automakers to produce more clean vehicles, formulate ways to help Californians purchase them, and propose strategies to increase demand for zero-emission vehicles.

3.3.2 Environmental Setting

The project lies in Fresno County, California, within the central San Joaquin Valley, which sits approximately in the center of the state. The project improves two existing interchanges on State Route 99, with an alignment that travels through the project area in a northwest-southeast orientation, crossing a local road system that forms a north-south-oriented grid pattern. The project would improve the operations of the half interchanges at American Avenue and North Avenue by making them full interchanges, closing the existing Cedar Avenue northbound off-ramp and southbound on-ramp and moving the off-ramps to North Avenue. The project improvements would rebuild standard interchange configurations with updated dimensions for vehicles and trucks, reduce out-of-direction travel, provide for safer vehicle movement, and accommodate predicted future increases in traffic volume.

American Avenue is a half interchange at post mile 14.512 in a rural agricultural area of the county. North Avenue and Cedar Avenue are separated from each other by 0.33 mile as two half interchanges at post miles 17.255 and 16.925 in an urban industrial area inside the southern sphere of influence boundary for the City of Fresno.

The population of Fresno County is 1,023,353 people as reported by the California Department of Finance on May 1, 2020. The county has experienced steady continuous growth at an average rate of 8 percent per year. In 2020 and 2021, the area has seen a recent surge in new residents fleeing high housing costs in the larger coastal and urban metropolitan areas; new residents coming from other parts of the state might also reflect the greater flexibility for workers to "telework" (resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic) desiring more affordable locales to live in. The City of Fresno is the eighth largest city in the state and the largest city in Fresno County, with a current population of 557,320 (2020) and predictions of 614,011 in 2026, and 745,045 in 2046.

The project is within an existing transportation corridor that includes State Route 99, the Burlington Northern and Santa Fe (BNSF) railroad line and Golden State Boulevard. The corridor connects the major inland cities such as Bakersfield, Fresno, and Sacramento. Other railroads also crisscross the project area. The Calwa railroad transfer yard sits within the corridor northeast of the North Avenue interchange with multiple railroad spurs designed to manage train traffic through the area.

The Fresno Council of Governments guides transportation development in the project area. Fresno County and the City of Fresno are the jurisdictional planning agencies for land use in the project area. The County and the City have established planning for an industrial priority area along State Route 99 and between State Route 99 and State Route 41 to the west, and they are implementing programs to attract new businesses and a skilled workforce to the project region. The project interchanges serve as main points of access for the existing and developing industrial and commercial businesses sitting along this portion of State Route 99 as part of an area dubbed "The Industrial Triangle." Peak-hour congestion is expected to increase over time.

A greenhouse gas emissions inventory estimates the amount of greenhouse gases discharged into the atmosphere by specific sources over a period of time, such as a calendar year. Tracking annual greenhouse gas emissions allows countries, states, and smaller jurisdictions to understand how emissions are changing and what actions may be needed to attain emission reduction goals. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency is responsible for documenting greenhouse gas emissions nationwide, and the Air Resources Board does so for the state, as required by Health and Safety Code Section 39607.4.

National Greenhouse Gas Inventory

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency prepares a national greenhouse gas inventory every year and submits it to the United Nations in accordance with the Framework Convention on Climate Change. The inventory provides a comprehensive accounting of all human-produced sources of greenhouse gases in the United States, reporting emissions of carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons, perfluorocarbons, sulfur hexafluoride, and nitrogen trifluoride. It also accounts for emissions of carbon dioxide that are removed from the atmosphere by "sinks" such as forests, vegetation, and soils that uptake and store carbon dioxide (carbon sequestration).

The 1990–2016 inventory found that of 6,511 million metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent greenhouse gas emissions in 2016, 81 percent consist of carbon dioxide, 10 percent are methane, and 6 percent are nitrous oxide; the balance consists of fluorinated gases (Environmental Protection Agency 2018a). In 2016, greenhouse gas emissions from the transportation sector accounted for nearly 28.5 percent of U.S. emissions. See Figure 3-1 U.S. 2016 Greenhouse Gas Emissions.



Figure 3-1 U.S. 2016 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

State Greenhouse Gas Inventory

The California Air Resources Board collects greenhouse gas emissions data for transportation, electricity, commercial/residential, industrial, agricultural, and waste management sectors each year. It then summarizes and highlights major annual changes and trends to demonstrate the state's progress in meeting its greenhouse gas reduction goals. The 2019 edition of the greenhouse gas emissions inventory found total California emissions of 424.1 million metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalent for 2017, with the transportation sector responsible for 41 percent of total greenhouse gases. It also found that overall statewide greenhouse gas emissions declined from 2000 to 2017 despite growth in population and state economic output (Air Resources Board 2019a).

See Figure 3-2 California 2016 Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Figure 3-3 Change in California Gross Domestic Product, Population, and Greenhouse Gas Emissions since 2000.



Figure 3-2 California 2017 Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Source: Air Resources Board (ARB 2019b)





Assembly Bill 32 required the California Air Resources Board to develop a Scoping Plan that describes the approach California will take to achieve the goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions to 1990 levels by 2020, and to update it every 5 years. The California Air Resources Board adopted the first scoping plan in 2008. The second updated plan, *California's 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan*, adopted on December 14, 2017, reflects the 2030 target established in Executive Order B-30-15 and Senate Bill 32. The Assembly Bill 32 Scoping Plan and the subsequent updates contain the main strategies California will use to reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

Regional Plans

The California Air Resources Board sets regional targets for California's 18 Metropolitan Planning Organizations to use in their Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies to plan future projects that will cumulatively achieve greenhouse gas reduction goals. Targets are set at a percent reduction of passenger vehicle greenhouse gas emissions per person from 2005 levels. The proposed project is included in the Fresno Council of Governments Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Community Strategies 2018–2042. The regional reduction target for the Fresno Council of Governments is 5 percent per capita by 2020, 10 percent by 2035, and 12 percent by 2042 using an Alternative Planning Strategies.

The proposed project is included in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies and consistent with the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan through reduction in emissions with intersection operational improvements that include traffic signal synchronization. See Table 3-1 Regional and Local Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan to see a list of the proposed investments in the Revenue Constrained Transportation Network in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies plan.

In addition to greenhouse gas reduction policies and strategies implemented by the Fresno Council of Governments shown in Table 3-1, various other local efforts (not listed in the table) by other agencies are underway to implement vehicle technology in Fresno County, such as electric vehicles and charging stations.

Agency/Plan	Greenhouse Gas Reduction Policies or Strategies
Fresno Council of Governments 2014 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies for Fresno County (adopted June 2018), as amended	To accelerate alternative fuel vehicles as well as fueling and recharging station development. Invest in public transit as well as facilities that encourage walking and bicycling. Make local streets and roads investments to function more efficiently, including access to regional airports, goods movement projects, Transportation Demand Measures, and Transportation System Measure. Proposed investments in the Revenue Constrained Transportation Network in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies include: 400 percent increase in Active Transportation Projects, Measure C's Carpool Incentive program provides commuter incentives for sharing rides to work or school, Measure C's Commuter and Agricultural Worker Vanpool Subsidy programs provide funding to new and existing commuter vanpools, CalVans, a Joint Powers Public Transportation Agency—comprising local transportation planning agencies and operating a multi-county vanpool program, Intersection operational improvements, including traffic signal synchronization, Geometric changes and bottleneck alleviation, Arterial access management, Traffic/freeway management system.
Fresno Council of Governments Fresno County Regional Transportation Network Vulnerability Assessment Draft Adaptation Strategies Summary Memorandum (2020)	Plant shade trees along street and sidewalk to ensure bicyclist and pedestrian comfort/health and safety during high heat events. Install tree wells, bioswales, and rain gardens to mitigate flash flooding and re-direct surface runoff. Increase gutter/drainage capacity based on future projections to accommodate heavy precipitation.

Table 3-1 Regional and Local Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan

3.3.3 Project Analysis

Greenhouse gas emissions from transportation projects can be divided into those produced during operation of the State Highway System and those produced during construction. The main greenhouse gases produced by the transportation sector are carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, and hydrofluorocarbons. Carbon dioxide emissions are a product of the combustion of petroleum-based products, like gasoline, in internal combustion engines. Relatively small amounts of methane and nitrous oxide are emitted during fuel combustion. In addition, a small amount of hydrofluorocarbon emissions is included in the transportation sector.

The California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines generally address greenhouse gas emissions as a cumulative impact due to the global nature of climate change (Public Resources Code, Section 21083(b)(2)). As the California Supreme Court explained, "because of the global scale of climate change, any one project's contribution is unlikely to be significant by itself" (Cleveland National Forest Foundation versus San Diego Association of Governments (2017) 3 California 5th 497, 512). In assessing cumulative impacts, it must be determined if a project's incremental effect is "cumulatively considerable" (The California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Sections 15064(h)(1) and 15130).

To make this determination, the incremental impacts of the project must be compared with the effects of past, current, and probable future projects. Although climate change is ultimately a cumulative impact, not every individual project that emits greenhouse gases must necessarily be found to contribute to a significant cumulative impact on the environment.

Operational Emissions

Carbon dioxide accounts for 95 percent of transportation greenhouse gas emissions in the U.S. The largest sources of transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions are passenger cars and light-duty trucks, including sport utility vehicles, pickup trucks, and minivans. These sources account for over half of the emissions from the sector. The remainder of greenhouse gas emissions comes from other modes of transportation, including freight trucks, commercial aircraft, ships, boats, and trains, as well as pipelines and lubricants. Because carbon dioxide emissions represent the greatest percentage of greenhouse gas emissions, it has been selected as a proxy within the following analysis for potential climate change impacts generally expected to occur.

The highest levels of carbon dioxide from mobile sources such as automobiles occur at stop-and-go speeds (0–25 miles per hour) and speeds over 55 miles per hour; the most severe emissions occur from 0–25 miles per hour (see Figure 3-4). To the extent that a project relieves congestion by enhancing operations and improving travel times in high-congestion travel corridors, greenhouse gas emissions, particularly carbon dioxide, may be reduced.

Four main strategies can reduce greenhouse gas emissions from transportation sources: (1) improving the transportation system and operational efficiencies, (2) reducing travel activity, (3) transitioning to lower greenhouse gas-emitting fuels, and (4) improving vehicle technologies/efficiency. To be most effective, all four strategies should be pursued concurrently. Figure 3-4 shows how these efficiencies work together to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.

Figure 3-4 Possible Use of Traffic Operation Strategies in Reducing Onroad Carbon Dioxide Emissions



Source: Barth and Boriboonsomsin 2010

Carbon dioxide emissions for the project were analyzed using EMFAC 2017, which is the model Caltrans uses to predict carbon dioxide emissions for projects. The emissions results from the model are summarized in Table 3-2.

Quantitative Analysis

An Air Quality Report prepared in January 2021 for the project includes a quantitative analysis of potential carbon dioxide emissions from the project using the Caltrans CT-EMFAC 2017 modeling tool to determine tons-per-year for each of the alternatives proposed at each interchange. The analysis uses direct input from a June 2020 Traffic Operations Report along with additional traffic data prepared by the Caltrans District 6 Traffic Operations and Planning units to assess the potential impacts from the project. The results are shown in Table 3-2 EMFAC Modeled Carbon Dioxide Emissions for American Avenue and Table 3-3 EMFAC Modeled Carbon Dioxide Emissions for North Avenue. The tables show emissions for the 2019 Existing Year and predicted future emissions for 2026 Opening Year and 2046 Planning Horizon Year.

American Avenue

Modeling results show that for each of the two build alternatives at the American Avenue interchange, there is an increase of emissions from 2019 to 2046, and that there is no difference in emissions when comparing Alternative 1 and Alternative 2. The model shows that emissions from the build alternatives are higher than the 2019 Existing/Baseline emissions, and they are higher than the 2046 No-Build Alternative, which portrays the year 2046 with no project.

The modeling results for the American Avenue interchange show that for the 2019 Existing/Baseline Year, carbon dioxide emissions are approximately 4,709 tons per year.

The projected 2026 No-Build emissions are 5,694 tons per year, which is 985 tons per year more than the 2019 Existing/Baseline emissions. For Alternatives 1 and 2 at American Avenue, the 2026 emissions are 7,258 tons per year, which is 2,549 tons more than the 2019 Existing/Baseline emissions if the project is built.

The projected 2046 No-Build emissions are 5,254 tons per year, which is 545 tons more than the Existing/Baseline emissions. For Alternatives 1 and 2, 2046 emissions are 8,123 tons per year, which is 3,414 tons more carbon dioxide emissions than the Existing/Baseline emissions.

American Avenue Interchange	Emissions (U.S. Tons per Year)
2019 Existing	4,709
2026 No-Build	5,694
2026 Alternatives 1 and 2	7,258
2046 No-Build	5,254
2046 Alternatives 1 and 2	8,123

Table 3-2 EMFAC Modeled CO₂ Emissions for American Avenue

North Avenue

Modeling results show that for each of the two build alternatives at the North Avenue interchange, there is an increase of emissions from 2019 to 2046, and that there is no difference in emissions when comparing Alternative 2 and Alternative 4. The model shows that emissions from the build alternatives are higher than the 2019 Existing/Baseline emissions, and they are higher than the 2046 No-Build Alternative, which portrays the year 2046 with no project.

The modeling results for the North Avenue interchange show that for the 2019 Existing/Baseline Year carbon dioxide emissions are 5,606 tons per year.

The projected 2026 No-Build emissions are 6,890 tons per year. This is 1,284 tons per year more than the 2019 Existing/Baseline emissions. For the North Avenue build Alternatives 2 and 4, the 2026 emissions are 8,912 tons per year, which is 3,306 tons more than the Existing/Baseline emissions.

The projected 2046 No-Build emissions are 7,727 tons per year, which is 2,121 tons more than the Existing/Baseline carbon dioxide emissions. For the North Avenue build Alternatives 2 and 4, 2046 emissions are 9,887 tons per year, which is 4,281 tons more than the Existing/Baseline emissions.

North Avenue Interchange	Emissions (U.S. Tons per Year)
2019 Existing	5,606
2026 No-Build	6,890
2026 Alternatives 2 and 4	8,912
2046 No-Build	7,727
2046 Alternatives 2 and 4	9,887

Table 3-3 EMFAC Modeled CO₂ Emissions for North Avenue

Traffic operations would improve at the interchanges. Additional traffic already in the area is expected to use the interchanges instead of driving on local streets to and from destinations in the project area. The increased emissions at the interchanges are considered to be mostly from a redistribution of traffic. The adjacent interchanges of Central Avenue and Chestnut Avenue would see a decrease in traffic due to the improvements, and so would local roads and intersections near the highway in the project area. With removal of the Cedar Avenue on- and off-ramps, traffic that would have used the Cedar ramps would be redirected to the North Avenue interchange. Also, traffic volume would increase along with emissions from population growth and implementation of local planned development through time. The EMFAC Model method to estimate emissions is limited and does not consider traffic emissions from traffic on the local streets or at the other interchanges in the project vicinity.

While CT-EMFAC has a rigorous scientific foundation and has been vetted through multiple stakeholder reviews, its greenhouse gas emission rates are based on tailpipe emission test data. [This analysis does not currently account for the effects of the U.S. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration and Environmental Protection Agency SAFE (Safer Affordable Fuel-Efficient) Vehicles Rule. Part One revoking California's authority to set its own greenhouse gas emissions standards was published on September 27, 2019 and effective November 26, 2019. The SAFE Vehicles Rule Part 2 would amend existing Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFE) and tailpipe carbon dioxide emissions standards for passenger cars and light trucks and establish new standards covering model years 2021 through 2026. The proposal would retain the model year 2020 standards for both programs through model year 2026. Although the California Air Resources Board has not vet provided adjustment factors for greenhouse gas emissions to be used in light of the SAFE Rule, modeling these estimates with EMFAC2017 or CT-EMFAC2017 remains the most precise means of estimating future greenhouse gas emissions.] Moreover, the model does not account for factors such as the rate of acceleration and vehicle aerodynamics, which influence the amount of emissions generated by a vehicle. Greenhouse gas emissions guantified using CT-EMFAC are therefore estimates and may not reflect actual physical emissions. Though CT-EMFAC is currently the best available tool for calculating greenhouse gas emissions from mobile sources,

it is important to note that the greenhouse gas results are only useful for a comparison among alternatives.

Construction Emissions

Construction greenhouse gas emissions would result from material processing, onsite construction equipment, and traffic delays due to construction. These emissions would be produced at different levels throughout the construction phase; their frequency and occurrence can be reduced through innovations in plans and specifications and by implementing better traffic management during construction phases. In addition, with innovations such as longer pavement lives, improved traffic management plans, and changes in materials, the greenhouse gas emissions produced during construction can be offset to some degree by longer intervals between maintenance and rehabilitation activities.

Construction greenhouse gas emissions for the project were calculated using the Department of Transportation's Construction Emissions Tool (CALCET v1.1). Project construction is expected to generate approximately 2,450 tons of CO2 during the 440 working days (less than 264 working days per 1 year) duration.

All construction contracts include Caltrans Standard Specifications Sections 7-1.02A and 7 1.02C, Emissions Reduction, which require contractors to comply with all laws applicable to the project and to certify they are aware of and will comply with all Air Resources Board emission reduction regulations and Section 14-9.02, Air Pollution Control, which requires contractors to comply with all air pollution control rules, regulations, ordinances, and statutes. Certain common regulations, such as equipment idling restrictions, that reduce construction vehicle emissions also help reduce greenhouse gas emissions.

CEQA Conclusion

The analysis found carbon dioxide emissions would increase by 3,414 tons per year at the American Avenue interchange and by 4,281 tons per year at the North Avenue interchange by 2046 with construction of the project as compared to the existing (2019) carbon dioxide emissions.

The increase in emissions would come mostly from population growth in the county along with the implementation of planned development in the area. Improvement of the existing partial interchanges at American and North avenues would provide more direct access and redistribute future traffic that would otherwise use circuitous routes on local roads and adjacent interchanges traveling to and from the project area. The carbon dioxide modeling does not include the benefits gained from the improved efficiencies on the local road system from the project.

The emerging requirements to model and measure mitigation to reduce greenhouse gas emissions are narrowly defined and limited. Requirements limit

projects to zero increase from existing emissions to meet California's emissions reduction goals. The modeling results focus on the state highway only and don't consider the local street system. There are no regulatory or industry-wide established methods to accurately measure whether the project features and measures would reduce emissions enough to mitigate the project impacts.

By all regulatory standards, as reported in Section 2.2.3 Air Quality of this document, this project is in compliance with all regulatory requirements for regional air-quality conformity, carbon monoxide (CO), ozone (O3), particulate matter 2.5 and 10, mobile source air toxics (MSAT), emissions during construction, and for reporting carbon dioxide.

Caltrans and regional partner agencies have determined the project is needed. The improvements to local roads and construction of complete interchanges would reduce stop-and-go traffic and provide more direct access to and from the highway. It would reduce motorists driving indirect routes on local roads to destinations. As air studies have documented, the highest vehicle emissions occur in stop-and-go traffic, while free-flowing traffic produces the least amount of vehicle emissions, regardless of the criteria pollutant.

The project includes features and measures that reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as: Complete Streets elements with landscaping to promote bicycle and pedestrian use and encourage active transportation over use of vehicles; and the installation of Intelligent Transportation System elements designed to improve traffic efficiency and reduce congestion on roadways thereby lowering vehicle emissions. Roundabouts proposed under several alternatives contribute to smoother, more efficient traffic circulation, resulting in less stop-and-go travel and lower vehicle emissions. Caltrans applies a large list of standard measures on most, if not all, projects during construction that require practices and restrict equipment that reduces dust and equipment emissions. The project also proposes an electric charging station for mitigation of the potential impacts. The charging station would contribute to emerging local, regional, and state programs to promote electric vehicle use instead of gasoline-powered vehicles.

The project increases greenhouse gas and therefore conflicts with current air quality plans that require reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. Without established regulatory, industry-wide methods to accurately measure whether the project features and measures would reduce emissions enough to mitigate the project impacts, Caltrans must therefore determine that the project impacts for increased greenhouse gas emissions are significant and unavoidable.

Caltrans is committed to implementing measures to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Project features and construction greenhouse gas reduction measures and strategies incorporated into this project to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and potential climate change impacts are outlined in the following sections.

3.3.4 Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategies

Statewide Efforts

Major sectors of the California economy, including transportation, would need to reduce emissions to meet the 2030 and 2050 greenhouse gas emissions targets. Former Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr promoted reduction goals that involved (1) reducing today's petroleum use in cars and trucks by up to 50 percent; (2) increasing from one-third to 50 percent our electricity coming from renewable sources; (3) doubling the energy-efficiency savings achieved at existing buildings and making heating fuels cleaner; (4) reducing the release of methane, black carbon, and other short-lived climate pollutants; (5) managing farms and rangelands, forests, and wetlands so they can store carbon; and (6) periodically updating the state's climate adaptation strategy, *Safeguarding California*. See Figure 3-5.

An Integrated Plan for Addressing Climate Change Vision Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions to 40% Below 1990 levels by 2030 Goals **Governor's Key Climate Change Strategies** Increase Reduce Petroleum Double Energy Renewable Use by 50% in Efficiency Savings Electricity Vehicles at Existing Production to 50% Buildings Reduce GHG Reduce Short-Safeguard Emissions from Lived Climate California Natural and Pollutants Working Lands

Figure 3-5 California Climate Strategy

The transportation sector is integral to the people and economy of California. To achieve greenhouse gas emission reduction goals, it is vital that the state build on past successes in reducing criteria and toxic air pollutants from transportation and goods movement. Greenhouse gas emission reductions will come from cleaner vehicle technologies, lower-carbon fuels, and reduction of vehicle miles traveled. A key state goal for reducing greenhouse gas emissions is to reduce today's petroleum use in cars and trucks by up to 50 percent by 2030 (State of California 2019).

In addition, Senate Bill 1386 (Wolk 2016) established as state policy the protection and management of natural and working lands and requires state

agencies to consider that policy in their own decision making. Trees and vegetation on forests, rangelands, farms, and wetlands remove carbon dioxide from the atmosphere through biological processes and sequester the carbon in above-ground and below-ground matter.

Caltrans Activities

Caltrans continues to be involved on the Governor's Climate Action Team as the California Air Resources Board works to implement Executive Orders S-3-05 and S-01-07 and help achieve the targets set forth in Assembly Bill 32. Executive Order B-30-15, issued in April 2015, and Senate Bill 32 (2016), set an interim target to cut greenhouse gas emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030. The following major initiatives are underway at Caltrans to help meet these targets.

California Transportation Plan (CTP 2040)

The California Transportation Plan is a statewide, long-range transportation plan to meet our future mobility needs and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. In 2016, Caltrans completed the *California Transportation Plan 2040*, which establishes a new model for developing ground transportation systems, consistent with carbon dioxide reduction goals. It serves as an umbrella document for all the other statewide transportation planning documents.

Over the next 25 years, California will be working to improve transit and reduce long-run repair and maintenance costs of roadways and developing a comprehensive assessment of climate-related transportation demand management and new technologies rather than continuing to expand capacity on existing roadways.

Senate Bill 391 (Liu 2009) requires the California Transportation Plan to meet California's climate change goals under Assembly Bill 32. Accordingly, the California Transportation Plan 2040 identifies the statewide transportation system needed to achieve maximum feasible greenhouse gas emission reductions while meeting the state's transportation needs. While Metropolitan Planning Organizations have primary responsibility for identifying land use patterns to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions, the California Transportation Plan 2040 identifies additional strategies in Pricing, Transportation Alternatives, Mode Shift, and Operational Efficiency.

Caltrans Strategic Management Plan

The Strategic Management Plan, released in 2015, creates a performancebased framework to preserve the environment and reduce greenhouse gas emissions, among other goals. Specific performance targets in the plan that will help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions include:

- Increasing percentage of non-auto mode share
- Reducing vehicle miles traveled

• Reducing Caltrans' internal operational (buildings, facilities, and fuel) greenhouse gas emissions

Funding and Technical Assistance Programs

In addition to developing plans and performance targets to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, Caltrans also administers several sustainable transportation planning grants. These grants encourage local and regional multimodal transportation, housing, and land use planning that furthers the region's Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies; contribute to the State's reduction targets and advance transportation-related emission reduction project types/strategies; and support other climate adaptation goals (e.g., *Safeguarding California*).

Caltrans Policy Directives and Other Initiatives

Caltrans Director's Policy 30 (DP-30) Climate Change (June 22, 2012) is intended to establish a Caltrans policy that will ensure coordinated efforts to incorporate climate change into departmental decisions and activities. *Caltrans Activities to Address Climate Change* (April 2013) provides a comprehensive overview of Caltrans' statewide activities to reduce emissions resulting from agency operations.

Project-Level Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategies

The following would be implemented in the project to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and potential climate change impacts from the project:

- One Level 2, Electric Vehicle charging station would be installed within Fresno County.
- The project would include the installation of a sidewalk and vegetative barrier on the east side of South Cherry Avenue, from Central Avenue to Orange Center Elementary School. See Appendix J.
- Caltrans Standard Specification 14.9.02 Air Pollution Control shall be followed by the contractor. The specification requires contractors to comply with all air pollution control rules, regulations, ordinances, and statutes. Measures that reduce construction vehicle emissions also help reduce greenhouse gas emissions.
- The project will include the following Complete Street features: sidewalks, crosswalks, signalization, and wider shoulders. These features will safely accommodate bicycles, support use of non-motorized modes of travel, and fill gaps in the local Active Transportation Network described in the City of Fresno 2014 Active Transportation Plan.
- Any landscaping removed by the project will be replaced following construction of the project according to specifications described in Section 2.1.5 Visual/Aesthetics of this document. Landscaping, including trees and

other vegetation, provides shade and absorbs carbon dioxide, a greenhouse gas, from the atmosphere.

- The project will replace and install new Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) elements, as follows: update existing traffic signals and install traffic monitoring stations, ramp meters, and closed-circuit televisions. Information from these systems feed back into Caltrans' QuickMap mobile web-based travel alert system. QuickMap provides travelers with real-time road information, thereby giving them opportunities to make informed decisions to improve travel conditions. Intelligent Transportation System elements improve operational efficiency and reduce congestion-related greenhouse gas emissions.
- Idling will be limited to 5 minutes for delivery and dump trucks and other diesel-powered equipment during construction.
- The contractor will be responsible for submitting a Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling Report per Caltrans Standard Specification 14-10.02 so the recycling efforts can be monitored. Reducing construction waste and maximizing the use of recycled materials reduce consumption of raw materials, reduces landfill waste, and encourages cost savings.
- Non-potable water will be used during construction. A potential source for the contractor will be the City of Fresno Recycled Water System that is currently being developed. There are plans to extend the system to the North Avenue interchange. Alternatively, the contractor may secure nonpotable water from another water purveyor such as the Fresno Irrigation District, which operates a canal just outside the project limits. Also, the landscape irrigation system at North Avenue will be designed to use the City of Fresno Recycled Water System. If the City's system has not been extended to the North Avenue interchange at the time of construction, then the irrigation system will be connected to potable water with the provision that it can be switched to non-potable water in the future.
- Construction equipment and vehicles will be properly tuned and maintained. All construction equipment will use low sulfur fuel as required by California Code of Regulations Title 17, Section 93114.
- Alternative bridge construction (ABC) will be used where possible to reduce construction windows. Use of more precast elements reduces the need for additional falsework, forms, bracing, etc. and reduces the overall duration of construction and greenhouse gas emissions.
- Where lighting is required, higher efficiency light-emitting diode (LED) lights will be used. Reducing the need for electric lighting by using ultra-reflective sign materials and other alternate lighting will reduce energy use and therefore reduces greenhouse gas emissions.
- A construction traffic management plan will be implemented. Construction traffic will be scheduled and routed to reduce congestion and related air

quality impacts caused by idling vehicles along local roads during peak travel times.

3.3.5 Adaptation

Reducing greenhouse gas emissions is only one part of an approach to addressing climate change. Caltrans must plan for the effects of climate change on the state's transportation infrastructure and strengthen or protect the facilities from damage. Climate change is expected to produce increased variability in precipitation, rising temperatures, rising sea levels, variability in storm surges and their intensity, and in the frequency and intensity of wildfires. Flooding and erosion can damage or wash out roads; longer periods of intense heat can buckle pavement and railroad tracks; storm surges combined with a rising sea level can inundate highways. Wildfire can directly burn facilities and indirectly cause damage when rain falls on denuded slopes that landslide after a fire.

Effects will vary by location and may, in the most extreme cases, require that a facility be relocated or redesigned. Accordingly, Caltrans must consider these types of climate stressors in how highways are planned, designed, built, operated, and maintained.

Federal Efforts

Under National Environmental Policy Act assignment, Caltrans is obligated to comply with all applicable federal environmental laws and Federal Highway Administration National Environmental Policy Act regulations, policies, and guidance.

The U.S. Global Change Research Program delivers a report to Congress and the president every 4 years, in accordance with the Global Change Research Act of 1990 (15 U.S. Code Chapter 56A Section 2921 et seq.). The *Fourth National Climate Assessment*, published in 2018, presents the foundational science and the "human welfare, societal, and environmental elements of climate change and variability for 10 regions and 18 national topics, with particular attention paid to observed and projected risks, impacts, consideration of risk reduction, and implications under different mitigation pathways." Chapter 12, "Transportation," presents a key discussion of vulnerability assessments. It notes that "asset owners and operators have increasingly conducted more focused studies of particular assets that consider multiple climate hazards and scenarios in the context of assetspecific information, such as design lifetime" (U.S. Global Change Research Program 2018).

The U.S. Department of Transportation Policy Statement on Climate Adaptation in June 2011 committed the federal Department of Transportation to "integrate consideration of climate change impacts and adaptation into the planning, operations, policies, and programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation in order to ensure that taxpayer resources are invested wisely, and that transportation infrastructure, services and operations remain effective in current and future climate conditions" (U.S. Department of Transportation 2011).

Federal Highway Administration Order 5520 (*Transportation System Preparedness and Resilience to Climate Change and Extreme Weather Events,* December 15, 2014) established Federal Highway Administration policy to strive to identify the risks of climate change and extreme weather events to current and planned /transportation systems. The Federal Highway Administration has developed guidance and tools for transportation planning that foster resilience to climate effects and sustainability at the federal, state, and local levels (Federal Highway Administration 2019).

State Efforts

Climate change adaptation for transportation infrastructure involves long-term planning and risk management to address vulnerabilities in the transportation system. *California's Fourth Climate Change Assessment* (2018) is the state's effort to "translate the state of climate science into useful information for action" in a variety of sectors at both statewide and local scales. It adopts the following terms used widely in climate change analysis and policy documents:

- Adaptation to climate change refers to adjustment in natural or human systems in response to actual or expected climatic stimuli or their effects, which moderates harm or exploits beneficial opportunities.
- Adaptive capacity is the "combination of the strengths, attributes, and resources available to an individual, community, society, or organization that can be used to prepare for and undertake actions to reduce adverse impacts, moderate harm, or exploit beneficial opportunities."
- Exposure is the presence of people, infrastructure, natural systems, and economic, cultural, and social resources in areas that are subject to harm.
- Resilience is the "capacity of any entity an individual, a community, an organization, or a natural system to prepare for disruptions, to recover from shocks and stresses, and to adapt and grow from a disruptive experience." Adaptation actions contribute to increasing resilience, which is a desired outcome or state of being.
- Sensitivity is the level to which a species, natural system, or community, government, etc. would be affected by changing climate conditions.
- Vulnerability is the "susceptibility to harm from exposure to stresses associated with environmental and social change and from the absence of capacity to adapt." Vulnerability can increase because of physical (built and environmental), social, political, and/or economic factor(s). These factors include, but are not limited to: ethnicity, class, sexual orientation and identification, national origin, and income inequality. Vulnerability is

often defined as the combination of sensitivity and adaptive capacity as affected by the level of exposure to changing climate.

Several key state policies have guided climate change adaptation efforts to date. Recent state publications produced in response to these policies draw on these definitions.

Executive Order S-13-08, issued by then-governor Arnold Schwarzenegger in November 2008, focused on sea-level rise and resulted in the *California Climate Adaptation Strategy* (2009), updated in 2014 as *Safeguarding California: Reducing Climate Risk* (Safeguarding California Plan). The Safeguarding California Plan offers policy principles and recommendations and continues to be revised and augmented with sector-specific adaptation strategies, ongoing actions, and next steps for agencies.

Executive Order S-13-08 also led to the publication of a series of sea-level rise assessment reports and associated guidance and policies. These reports formed the foundation of an interim *State of California Sea-Level Rise Interim Guidance Document* (SLR Guidance) in 2010, with instructions for how state agencies could incorporate "sea-level rise (SLR) projections into planning and decision making for projects in California" in a consistent way across agencies. The guidance was revised and augmented in 2013. *Rising Seas in California—An Update on Sea-Level Rise Science* was published in 2017 and its updated projections of sea-level rise and new understanding of processes and potential impacts in California were incorporated into the *State of California Sea-Level Rise Guidance Update* in 2018.

Executive Order B-30-15, signed in April 2015, requires state agencies to factor climate change into all planning and investment decisions. This order recognizes that effects of climate change other than sea-level rise also threaten California's infrastructure. At the direction of Executive Order B-30-15, the Office of Planning and Research published *Planning and Investing for a Resilient California: A Guidebook for State Agencies* in 2017 to encourage a uniform and systematic approach. Caltrans participated in the multi-agency, multidisciplinary technical advisory group that developed this guidance on how to integrate climate change into planning and investment.

Assembly Bill 2800 (Quirk 2016) created the multidisciplinary Climate-Safe Infrastructure Working Group, which in 2018 released its report, *Paying it Forward: The Path Toward Climate-Safe Infrastructure in California*. The report provides guidance to agencies on how to address the challenges of assessing risk in the face of inherent uncertainties still posed by the best available science on climate change. It also examines how state agencies can use infrastructure planning, design, and implementation processes to address the observed and anticipated climate change impacts.

Caltrans Adaptation Efforts

Caltrans Vulnerability Assessments

Caltrans produced climate change vulnerability assessments that identify segments of the State Highway System vulnerable to climate change effects including precipitation, temperature, wildfire, storm surge, and sea-level rise. The approach to the vulnerability assessments was tailored to the practices of a transportation agency and involves the following concepts and actions:

- Exposure—Identify Caltrans assets exposed to damage or reduced service life from expected future conditions.
- Consequence—Determine what might occur to system assets in terms of loss of use or costs of repair.
- Prioritization—Develop a method for making capital programming decisions to address identified risks, including considerations of system use and/or timing of expected exposure.

Climate change data in the assessments were developed in coordination with climate change scientists and experts at federal, state, and regional organizations at the forefront of climate science. Findings of the vulnerability assessments will guide analysis of at-risk assets and development of adaptation plans to reduce the likelihood of damage to the State Highway System, allowing Caltrans to reduce the costs of storm damage and provide and maintain transportation that meets the needs of all Californians.

Project Adaptation Analysis

The 2018 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategies includes consideration of future climate conditions. Caltrans District 6 has prepared a Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment 2018 and created an online mapping program to provide information for users across the state, using data assembled for the project area. The Caltrans Climate Change Vulnerability Assessment Map can be accessed via the vulnerability assessment web page at:

http://www.dot.ca.gov/transplanning/ocp/vulnerability-assessment.html.

The project area may be subject to climate change effects from climate stressors such as rain causing flooding, drought lowering the water table and causing ground subsidence and compaction, increased temperatures, and wildfires. A review of the project area on the vulnerability map shows flooding in the valley could affect the project area, as could rising temperatures, compaction and subsidence, which would undermine the roadway and cause cracking of State Route 99 in the project area.

Caltrans District 6's portion of the State Highway System serves critical functions for the movement of agricultural products and other goods. Given the importance of this system, understanding the potential impacts of climate
change and extreme weather on system performance is a key step in creating a resilient highway system.

In District 6, adaptive responses would be needed to address the wildfire, precipitation, and increased temperature effects that are expected to occur. These strategies may include the following:

- Increasing drainage structures and capacity in areas where wildfires are projected to occur and installing slope stabilization strategies outside of the roadway right-of-way where landslides are an additional concern.
- Increasing culvert size or installing new, larger culverts where there are anticipated increases in precipitation and flows. Bridges may need to accommodate larger river flows and increased scour.
- Extending pavement life by installing pavement that retains its strength and quality when exposed to higher temperature conditions.
- Ensuring the project is in conformance with all local planning assessments.

Sea Level Rise

The proposed project is outside the coastal zone and not in an area subject to sea-level rise. Therefore, direct impacts to transportation facilities due to projected sea-level rise are not expected.

Floodplains Analysis

A Location Hydraulic Study and Floodplain Evaluation Summary Report (November 2018) was prepared for the project. Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRM) dated February 18, 2009 indicate the location of the project area as being in "Zone X." "Zone X" is defined as areas determined to be outside of the 0.2 percent (1-in-500) annual chance floodplain. The Location Hydraulic Study determined the project location was at low risk of flooding.

The Caltrans District 6 Climate Change Vulnerability Map of projected change in 100-year storm precipitation depth shows that the project area is likely to experience a less than 5 percent increase in storm precipitation depth for the years 2025 and beyond. The project would install an upgraded stormwater system. Considering the location in a low flood-risk area and the relatively small projected increase in storm precipitation through 2085, the project is expected to be resilient to changes in precipitation under climate change scenarios.

Wildfire

The project is in a large valley, mostly surrounded by urban development, with some land irrigated and planted with orchard trees. On the Caltrans District 6 Climate Change Vulnerability Map, the project is not considered to be in an area identified as vulnerable to wildfires. Caltrans 2018 revised Standard Specification 7-1.02M(2) will be implemented; this specification mandates fire prevention procedures during construction, including a fire prevention plan.

Climate Change References

- California Air Resources Board (ARB). 2019a. California Greenhouse Gas Emissions Inventory–2019 Edition. https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/data/data.htm. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- California Air Resources Board (ARB). 2019b. California Greenhouse Gas Emissions for 2000 to 2017. Trends of Emissions and Other Indicators. https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/pubs/reports/2000_2017/ghg_inve ntory_trends_00-17.pdf. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- California Air Resources Board (ARB). 2019c. SB 375 Regional Plan Climate Targets. https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/sustainablecommunities-program/regional-plan-targets. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- California Department of Transportation. 2018. Caltrans District 6 Climate Change Vulnerability Map. Available: https://www.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=5519c87f66 1d4f5e9c3f4146cd7aadfd. Accessed: October 2020.
- Federal Highway Administration. 2019. Sustainability. https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/sustainability/resilience/. Last updated February 7, 2019. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- Federal Highway Administration. No date. Sustainable Highways Initiative. https://www.sustainablehighways.dot.gov/overview.aspx. Accessed: August 21, 2019.

Fresno Council of Governments. 2020. Fresno County Regional Transportation Network Vulnerability Assessment Draft Adaptation Strategies Summary Memorandum. January 24, 2020. Adopted March 31, 2020. Prepared by WSP, Oakland, California; and VRPA Technologies, Inc., Fresno, California. https://www.fresnocog.org/project/special-studies/. Accessed: February 25, 2021.

- State of California. 2018. California's Fourth Climate Change Assessment. http://www.climateassessment.ca.gov/. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- State of California. 2019. California Climate Strategy. https://www.climatechange.ca.gov/. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- U.S. Department of Transportation (U.S. DOT). 2011. Policy Statement on Climate Change Adaptation. June. https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/environment/sustainability/resilience/policy_a nd_guidance/usdot.cfm. Accessed: August 21, 2019.

- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA). 2009. Endangerment and Cause or Contribute Findings for Greenhouse Gases under Section 202(a) of the Clean Air Act. https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/endangerment-and-cause-orcontribute-findings-greenhouse-gases-under-section-202a-clean. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA). 2018. Inventory of U.S. Emissions and Sinks. https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/inventory-us-greenhouse-gas-emissions-and-sinks. Accessed: August 21, 2019.
- U.S. Global Change Research Program (USGCRP). 2018. Fourth National Climate Assessment. https://nca2018.globalchange.gov/. Accessed: August 21, 2019.

Chapter 4 Comments and Coordination

Early and continuing coordination with the general public and public agencies is an essential part of the environmental process. It helps planners determine the necessary scope of environmental documentation and the level of analysis required, and to identify potential impacts and avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures and related environmental requirements.

Agency and tribal consultation and public participation for this project have been accomplished through a variety of formal and informal methods, including interagency coordination meetings, public meetings, public notices, and Project Development Team meetings. This chapter summarizes the results of Caltrans' efforts to identify, address, and resolve project-related issues through early and continuing coordination.

According to California Environmental Quality Act guidelines, a Notice of Preparation (known by the acronym NOP) was distributed by certified mail to 83 potentially interested property owners, agencies and organizations beginning March 4, 2019. The Notice of Preparation included a description of the project and project area with a map of the area and a copy of the public notice posted for the Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019. A copy was sent to the State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit of the State of California Governor's Office of Planning and Research; that unit distributed the Notice of Preparation to a separate list of agencies as checked in its returned form. The State Clearinghouse date-stamped its copy of the Notice of Preparation on March 21, 2019. See Chapter 6 Distribution List for the agencies and organizations sent copies of the Notice of Preparation. See a copy of the original Notice of Preparation in Appendix D of this document.

In response to the California Environmental Quality Act scoping information distributed in March 2019, Caltrans received nine letters about the project from the following parties:

- Balderas Elementary School
- Fresno Community Medical Center
- California Rural Legal Assistance, Inc.
- California Native American Heritage Commission
- California Department of Toxic Substances Control
- Fresno Fire Department
- San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District
- U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
- California Highway Patr.ol

In addition, a Public Information/Scoping Meeting was held on March 20, 2019 at the Robert J. Arriago Community Center in Malaga, about 1.5 miles east of the North Avenue interchange.

A public notice was posted in English and Spanish in local newspapers and on the Caltrans webpage. The Notice of Preparation that went to 83 parties included a copy of the public notice announcing the meeting. Prior to the meeting, Caltrans staff also hand-delivered copies to local businesses in the project area and residents of the Flamingo Mobile Home Park.

The purpose of the meeting was to provide information on the preliminary project alternatives being considered and to get feedback from attendees. Ten alternatives were proposed at that time. Displays and information stations explained the project goals, timeline, and environmental studies required. Displays by the local funding agency were also on view. A table where attendees could provide written comments was provided, and a court reporter was present to record spoken comments. Two interpreters were present to help anyone needing translations in Spanish or Hmong.

Caltrans received five written and six spoken comments from those who attended the meeting; the comments are summarized below:

- Relocation of business—Two comments received in writing at the meeting opposed the four build alternatives proposed at Central Avenue that could potentially affect their businesses negatively.
- Requested to be added to the mailing list—Three comments requested to receive further notification about the project.
- Increased traffic—One commenter had concerns that the project would increase traffic in their area.
- Property tax—One commenter asked if the project would affect property taxes.
- Hard copy of preliminary alternatives—One commenter requested a printed copy of the proposed alternatives.
- Congestion at Central Avenue—A comment mentioned the heavy traffic from the Amazon and Ulta businesses.
- Roundabouts not compatible for trucks—One commenter stated the proposed roundabout alternative at Central Avenue would not be compatible for trucks.
- Widening Central Avenue—One comment wanted Caltrans to widen Central Avenue and leave the on- and off-ramps alone.

Note: The alternatives proposed at Central Avenue were later removed from the project due to funding issues. Most of the comments received at the meeting concerned the alternatives proposed at Central Avenue.

The following text describes some of the agencies and community members Caltrans coordinated with through face-to-face meetings, phone calls, and email to research and gather information about the project area and to share information about the project.

The following section has been revised since the circulation of the draft environmental document.

Fresno Council of Governments—Responsibility for regional transportation planning is performed by the Fresno Council of Governments (Fresno COG). The Fresno Council of Governments is a policy board composed of 15 members representing the incorporated cities within Fresno County and the chairman of the Fresno County Board of Supervisors.

The Fresno Council of Governments plays a major role in building regional consensus among the region's transit systems. State and federal laws as well as local tax measures have given the Fresno Council of Governments an important role in financing numerous transportation improvements. The Fresno Council of Governments also conducts transportation planning, delivers projects, and manages various transportation programs.

The Fresno Council of Governments coordinates the countywide sales tax measure, Measure C, which was passed in 1986 and extended for an additional 20 years by the voters in 2006. The agency responsible for overseeing the implementation of Measure C is the Fresno County Transportation Authority (FCTA). A citizen oversight committee is responsible for ensuring Measure C funding program revenues and expenditures are spent as mandated by the Fresno County Transportation Authority.

Fresno County's Measure C expenditure plan incorporates a series of five existing interchanges along State Route 99, including North, Cedar, Central, Chestnut, and American avenues. These interchanges are functionally related; therefore, Caltrans must consider the entire corridor when developing plans. To this end, Caltrans has entered into a cooperative agreement with Fresno County Transportation Authority to complete the project initiation documentation as well as the subsequent Project Approval and Environmental Document phase. Caltrans, the Fresno Council of Governments, and the Fresno County Transportation Authority proposed to conduct environmental studies for both proposed interchanges simultaneously, creating significant cost savings.

Representatives from the Fresno Council of Governments attended the Caltrans Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019 with a booth to present information about transportation planning in the region.

The following section has been revised since the circulation of the draft environmental document.

Fresno County Department of Public Works and Planning-The

Department of Public Works and Planning is responsible for a wide range of services provided to county residents. Its main responsibilities include road maintenance, building permitting, parks and recreation, tourism, recycling, code enforcement, land use development, and community development.

Representatives from the Department of Public Works and Planning have coordinated with Caltrans to plan this project. Department staff participated on the Project Development Team, which is a multi-disciplinary team of managers, engineers, and planners established to problem solve and gather information. Department staff are liaisons, working on behalf of the interests of the County for this project. The County has focused mostly on decisions made for the improvements at the American Avenue interchange.

Representatives from the Fresno County Department of Public Works and Planning attended the Caltrans Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019 with a booth to present information about planning in the region and to answer questions about the project.

Cooperative agreements with the County would be necessary, and would be established during the Project Approval and Environmental Document stage. A superseding freeway agreement would likely be required between Caltrans and the County of Fresno to address the modified connection to State Route 99. Maintenance agreements would likely be needed. A relinquishment agreement would be needed for the right-of-way of the removed ramps at Cedar Avenue.

City of Fresno Public Works Department—The Public Works Department is responsible for the design, construction and maintenance of streets, sidewalks, traffic signals, streetlights, trails, public buildings, street trees and landscaping throughout the city.

Staff from the Public Works Department have coordinated with Caltrans to plan this project. Department staff participate on the multi-disciplinary team to problem solve and gather information. They are liaisons working on behalf of the interests of the City for this project. The City has focused mostly on decisions made for the improvements at the North Avenue interchange.

Representatives from the City of Fresno Public Works Department attended the Caltrans Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019 with a booth to present information about planning in the region and to answer questions about the project.

Cooperative agreements with the City would be necessary, and would be established during the Project Approval and Environmental Document stage. A superseding freeway agreement would likely be required between Caltrans and the City of Fresno to address the modified connection to State Route 99. Maintenance agreements would likely be needed. **Tribal Governments**—Ten Native American groups and the Native American Heritage Commission were contacted for the project. None of the Native American groups showed an interest in participating in consultation for the project.

Native American consultation was initiated on July 20, 2018 with a letter sent to the Native American Heritage Commission requesting a search of the commission's files to determine if any sacred sites or traditional cultural properties were known to exist within or near the project area. The letter also requested the names of Native American individuals and group representatives who may be interested in or able to supply information relevant to the project.

The Native American Heritage Commission responded to Caltrans on July 31, 2018, stating that its sacred land files found no Native American cultural resources in the immediate project area. The Native American Heritage Commission provided a list of contacts who could be interested in the project as well as recommendations for further tribal consultation. See Chapter 6 for a listing of the tribes contacted.

The Native American contacts were also sent copies of the Notice of Preparation, which included a copy of the public notice of the Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019. No contacts signed the meeting sign-in sheet or submitted comments regarding the project.

Natural Resources Conservation Service—The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) generally administers conservation programs to reduce soil erosion, enhance water supplies, improve water quality, increase wildlife habitat, and reduce damages caused by floods and other natural disasters. The service also provides funding opportunities and services for agricultural producers and other landowners.

The Natural Resources Conservation Service maintains a soil survey, for which Caltrans coordinates with the Service to assess soils and complete Farmland Conversion Rating forms (NRCS-CPA-106) for projects to assess impacts to farmland.

Malaga County Water District and **Robert J. Arriago Community Center**— The Malaga County Water District is a California Special District-Public Agency in Fresno County just south of the City of Fresno. The district covers an area of about 2.5 square miles and includes the community of Malaga. The office and separate community park with recreation center are about 1.5 miles by vehicle east of the North Avenue interchange. The district originally organized to deliver water and manage wastewater, but through time has evolved as a public entity to manage a wide variety of services for the community, including responsibility for water treatment, distribution and waste collection as well as operating and managing a Park and Recreation Center and Senior Citizen's Center. Caltrans coordinated with the Malaga County Water District office and the community center to plan the public scoping meeting and to post the public notice of the meeting held on March 20, 2019. Staff members at both locations were interviewed on several occasions for information about the community of Malaga and the history of the development of the district to gather information for the community impacts studies conducted for the project during 2019 and 2020.

San Joaquin Valley Air District—The San Joaquin Valley Air District is a public health agency whose mission is to improve the health and quality of life for all valley residents through efficient, effective and entrepreneurial air quality management strategies. Its core values have been designed to ensure that its mission is accomplished through commonsense, feasible measures that are based on sound science. The San Joaquin Valley Air District is responsible for administering air quality standards for the San Joaquin Valley Air Basin.

A representative from the San Joaquin Valley Air District attended the Caltrans Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019 with a booth to provide information about the district's programs and what is available to help reduce toxic air quality emissions.

On July 10, 2019, Caltrans staff attended a San Joaquin Valley Air District meeting featuring the South-Central Fresno Community Steering Committee. The regular meeting was being held twice a month with subject experts, such as Caltrans, to inform the committee on different topics as committee members developed Community Emissions Reduction Programs. The committee was made up of community members tasked with adopting Community Emissions Reduction Programs per Assembly Bill 617. Under Assembly Bill 617, the district's role includes the development and adoption of a Community Emission Reduction Plan for each selected community, in consultation with the California Air Resources Board and residents and local governmental bodies in affected communities. The Community Emissions Reduction Programs would, at a minimum, itemize clean air projects and identify funding for those projects, including investments in replacements of fireplaces, trucks, automobiles, and other polluting equipment, and vehicles with cleaner equipment. Significant funding has recently been made available for investment in community-level clean air projects, and Community Emissions Reduction Programs, developed in consultation with the community steering committees, identify where those funds will be spent.

The following paragraph has been added since the draft environmental document circulated.

On December 14, 2021, Caltrans staff attended the South-Central Fresno Community Steering Committee meeting, hosted by the San Joaquin Valley Air District. Caltrans staff shared a presentation about the project and the draft environmental document, and answered questions from committee members. Caltrans staff talked with the committee about potential greenhouse gas mitigation for the project and asked for feedback and recommendations.

Flamingo Mobile Home Park—The mobile home park sits in the southwest quadrant of the interchange at State Route 99 and Central Avenue. Prior to removal of the proposed alternatives at Central Avenue and Chestnut Avenue from the project (October 2019), outreach was conducted on several occasions to learn about the mobile home park and the community members, to invite them to the Caltrans Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019 and to assess potential impacts from the proposed alternatives at Central Avenue.

Fresno County Juvenile Justice Campus—The Juvenile Justice Campus is a detention facility to hold minors who have committed a law violation while they are being processed through the Juvenile Court facilities at the campus.

Caltrans has coordinated with the County regarding the improvements proposed at the property and intersection where the campus sits. A noise specialist contacted the campus to investigate whether noise levels would need to be taken for the noise study. None were required based on the information gathered. The campus was also sent a copy of the Notice of Preparation for the project and the public notice inviting its representatives to the Public Scoping/Information Meeting held on March 20, 2019.

The following paragraph has been added since the draft environmental document circulated.

Friends of Calwa—Friends of Calwa is a community group composed of residents from the communities of South-Central Fresno, Malaga, and Calwa. On April 26, 2022 and August 31, 2022, Caltrans staff attended a community meeting hosted by Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability and Friends of Calwa at the Friends of Calwa community center. Caltrans staff shared a presentation about the project and responded to questions and feedback from community members.

The following text about the circulation of the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment and the virtual public hearing has been added since the draft environmental document circulated.

Pursuant to National Environmental Policy Act and California Environmental Quality Act requirements, the Draft Environmental Impact Report/ Environmental Assessment for the project was circulated for public review and comment. The draft environmental document was circulated for a 45-day review by agencies and members of the public from October 14, 2021 to November 27, 2021. Caltrans received requests to extend the deadline for public comment, and announced an extension until December 3, 2021, making the review period a total of 51 days.

The Notice of Availability for the draft environmental document and announcement of the virtual public hearing were sent to property owners, residents, public agencies, emergency responders, transit agencies, civic and community groups, school districts, environmental groups, and other interested parties likely to be interested in the corridor. A second Notice of Availability announcing the extended deadline for the public comment period was sent to the same parties.

The Notice of Availability for the draft environmental document and the announcement of the virtual public hearing were prepared in English and Spanish. Public notices included the date, time, and online location of the public hearing. The notice was published in *The Fresno Bee* on October 14, 2021 and on November 4, 2021 in English and Spanish. A digital copy of the notice was made available on the Caltrans website along with the draft environmental document.

The notice and draft environmental document were made available for public viewing at the following locations:

- Caltrans District 6 office: 1352 West Olive Avenue, Fresno, California 93728
- Easton Branch Library: 25 East Fantz Avenue, Fresno, California 93706

The second Notice of Availability, announcing the extended deadline for public comments, was published in *The Fresno Bee* on November 19, 2021 in English and Spanish.

The Project Development Team held a virtual public hearing on Thursday, November 4, 2021 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor project. The virtual public hearing was accessible through the project website.

The virtual public hearing provided members of the public and other interested parties an opportunity to learn more about the project and to comment on the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for the project. The draft environmental document was available on the project website, along with information about the environmental process, the right-of-way process, and the status of the project.

The virtual public hearing was publicized through the Notice of Availability/ Announcement of a Virtual Public Hearing sent by first-class U.S. mail, public notices (advertisements) in *The Fresno Bee*, and on the Caltrans District 6 Facebook and Twitter accounts. Via electronic comment sheets provided at the virtual public hearing, attendees could submit comments about the project online or mail the items to Caltrans. Participants could also dictate their comments to the onsite court reporter, if preferred.

Caltrans staff, including engineering and environmental project team specialists, were available to answer questions and lead attendees through the extensive map displays and other information stations online. Project staff members were available live from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. the evening of the event to interact in real-time with online attendees. A total of 52 individuals were recorded as visiting the virtual public hearing/open house meeting website. Caltrans Design and Environmental staff members were able to field numerous live interactions via the website through a Cisco Webex video conference platform. Caltrans staff members attempted to answer all comments and questions received.

During the virtual public hearing, attendees requested the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment be translated into Spanish and circulated to the public due to the large presence of Spanishspeaking residents in the surrounding project area. Caltrans staff had the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment translated in Spanish, posted on the project website, and circulated for a 45-day period from December 15, 2021 to January 28, 2022.

Comments received during the public circulation period, including those received at the virtual public hearing, are provided in Appendix G, which has been added to the environmental document. Responses to all public comments received during the public circulation period are also provided in Appendix G.

The following summarizes the outreach effort carried out by Caltrans during the document circulation period:

District 06 - Project EA 06-0H240 Virtual Public Hearing: On November 4, 2021, Caltrans held a virtual public hearing online for public outreach and to gather input from the local population regarding the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor project (Project ID 0600020559).

The following public outreach methods were used:

- Public notice advertisement in *The Fresno Bee* (twice), in English and Spanish
- Direct mail letters from the director and environmental staff
- Social media on Facebook and Twitter
- Press releases

Translation/Interpretation: The Project Development Team used the LEP Four Factor Analysis in the local area and determined that the translation of presentations, advertising, handout materials and interpreter services would be necessary for the following public meeting and related material:

- Public notices (English/Spanish)
- Project information website (English/Spanish)
- Comment cards available electronically (English/Spanish)
- Spanish language interpreter was on hand online for the meeting and via phone line
- A court reporter was available to assist those with literacy, writing, visual or language issues (via interpreter or Language Line Solutions)
- Language Line Solutions Language Identification Guide was available

Date and Time: The meeting was held on November 4, 2021 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. online.

The following Title VI information was used at the meeting:

- The Caltrans Non-Discrimination Policy Statement was made available online and in a presentation in both English and Spanish.
- Title VI brochures were made available online in all available languages: English, Spanish, Arabic, Armenian, Chinese, Hmong, Khmer, Korean, Russian, Spanish, Tagalog, Vietnamese.
- Title VI Public Participation Surveys were made available online in English and Spanish alongside the Title VI brochures.

Attendees: A total of 75 attendees, including Caltrans and City and County staff, were tallied during the meeting time (6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.).

Chapter 5 List of Preparers

This document was prepared by the following Caltrans District 6 and Central Region staff:

- Allam Alhabaly, Transportation Engineer. B.S., California State University, Fresno, School of Engineering; 18 years of experience in environmental technical studies, with emphasis on noise studies. Contribution: Conducted noise studies and preparation of the Noise Study Report.
- Larry E. Bonner, Senior Environmental Planner. B.S., Natural Resources Management, California Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo; 21 years of environmental planning and biological studies experience. Contribution: Division of Environmental Analysis Coordinator and advised on environmental document type and other key decisions.
- Jon L. Brady, Associate Environmental Planner. M.A., History, California State University, Fresno; B.A., Political Science and Anthropology; 41 years of experience in environmental planning (archaeology and architectural history). Contribution: Historic Property Survey Reports, Historic Resource Evaluation Reports, Findings of Effects documents.
- Ezekiel Currier, Environmental Planner (Natural Sciences). B.S., Biology (Ecology and Biodiversity), Humboldt State University, Arcata; 7 years of botany and biology experience. Contribution: Preparation of the Natural Environment Study.
- David Ewing, Staff Services Manager I. B.A., Graphic Design, Minor in Business Administration, California State University, Fresno; more than 20 years of graphic design, transportation graphics, and public participation experience. Contribution: Preparation of maps and diagrams for this document, and materials such as public notices and information boards for public meetings.
- David Gould, Environmental Planner. B.S., Environmental Management and Protection, Minor in Geospatial Analysis, Humboldt State University, Arcata; 2 years of environmental planning experience. Contribution: Data collection for community studies.
- Susan Greenwood, Engineering Geologist. B.S., Environmental Health Science, California State University, Fresno; more than 20 years of environmental health, hazardous waste, and hazardous material management experience. Contribution: Conducted oversight of studies, prepared the Initial Site Assessment and oversight of Preliminary Site Assessments for properties.

- Nathaniel Heilmann, Associate Environmental Planner (Architectural History). B.A., History, California State University, Fresno; Professionally Qualified Staff Principal Architectural Historian; 5 years of environmental planning experience and 1 year of historic preservation experience. Contribution: Conducted architectural history studies and prepared the Historic Resources Evaluation Report and Historic Property Survey Report.
- Maya Hildebrand, Associate Environmental Planner (Air Quality Coordinator).
 B.S., Geology, Utah State University; 6 years of air quality analysis and 5 years of combined geological/environmental hazards experience.
 Contribution: Performed air quality analysis and prepared the Air Quality Report.
- David Johnson, Senior Environmental Planner (Natural Sciences). M.S., Public Administration, Central Michigan University; B.S., Environmental Science and Biology, Central Michigan University; 8 years of combined experience in environmental and biological studies. Contribution: Management of biological studies and preparation of the Natural Environment Study-Minimal Impacts.
- Wendy Kronman, Associate Environmental Planner. M.A., Linguistics, California State University, Fresno; Certificate in Horticulture, Merritt College, Oakland; B.A., Anthropology, Sonoma State University; 14 years of environmental planning experience. Contribution: Performed data collection for community studies.
- Rogerio Leong, Engineering Geologist. B.S., Geology, University of Sao Paulo, Brazil; 18 years of environmental site assessment and investigation experience. Contribution: Conducted water quality investigation and prepared Water Quality Report.
- Mike Leongson, Senior Transportation Engineer. B.S., Civil Engineering, California State University, Fresno; over 15 years of engineering experience with 1 year of environmental technical studies experience. Contribution: Management of hazardous waste studies and preparation of the Initial Site Assessment and Preliminary Site investigations for properties.
- Joseph Llanos, Graphic Designer III. B.A., Graphic Design, California State University, Fresno; 21 years of visual design and public participation experience. Contribution: Preparation of maps and diagrams for this document, and materials such as public notices and information boards for public meetings.
- Mandy Macias, Associate Environmental Planner (Archaeology). B.A., Anthropology, California State University, Fresno; more than 20 years

of California and Great Basin archaeology and cultural resources management experience. Contribution: Prehistoric Archaeology and Native American consultation.

- David Meyers, Audio Visual Specialist. Fine Arts/Music, California State University, Fresno; A.A., Liberal Studies, College of the Sequoias, Visalia; more than 25 years of visual design, public participation, multimedia and fine arts/music experience. Contribution: Preparation of maps and diagrams for this document, and materials such as public notices and information boards for public meetings.
- Madeleine Nay, Editorial Specialist. B.S., Counterterrorism and Homeland Security, Southern New Hampshire University; M.S., Cybercrime Investigation and Cybersecurity, Boston University; 4 years of document review, design, and preparation experience. Contribution: Performed document review and technical editing.
- G. William "Trais" Norris, III, Senior Environmental Planner. B.S., Urban Regional Planning, California State Polytechnic University, Pomona; 19 years of land use, housing, redevelopment, and environmental planning experience. Document review of the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental Policy Act documents, including Caltrans Web Accessibility for All (CWAA) requirements. Contribution: Performed document review and technical editing.
- Tamra Nunes, Associate Environmental Planner (Natural Sciences). B.A., Biology, California State University, Fresno; 24 years of biology experience. Contribution: Performed document review and technical editing.
- Kai Pavel, Engineering Geologist. Professional Geologist (P.G.). M.A., Geography, Geology, Heinrich Heine Universitaet Dusseldorf, Germany; 14 years of hazardous waste/materials, water quality, environmental technical studies experience. Contribution: Conducted studies and prepared the Paleontological Identification Report and Paleontological Evaluation Report.
- Som Phongsavanh, Associate Environmental Planner. B.S., Biology/ Physiology, California State University, Fresno; 18 years of environmental planning experience. Contribution: Management of environmental process.
- Ken J. Romero, Senior Transportation Engineer. B.S., Civil Engineering, California State University, Fresno; 14 years of environmental technical studies experience. Contribution: Provided supervision and participated in decision-making for air quality studies, noise study, and water quality study.

- Paul G. Roybal, Transportation Engineer. B.S., Civil Engineering, California State University, Fresno; 6 years of environmental engineering experience. Contribution: Conducted studies and contributed to Water Quality Report.
- Travis Samonas, Environmental Planner (Archaeology). M.A., Anthropology, California State University, Northridge; B.A., Anthropology, California State University, Northridge; 7 years of prehistoric and historic archaeological experience in Southern and Central California. Contribution: Conducted archaeological studies and prepared Archaeological Survey Report.
- Jane Sellers, Associate Environmental Planner. B.A., Journalism, California State University, Fresno; more than 20 years of environmental compliance experience, focusing on QA/QC and reviewing and editing National Environmental Policy Act and California Environmental Quality Act environmental documents, including Caltrans Web Accessibility for All (CWAA) requirements. Contribution: Performed document review and technical editing.
- Raychel Skeen, Associate Environmental Planner. B.A., Geography, California State University, Humboldt; more than 20 years of transportation and environmental planning experience. Contribution: Conducted environmental studies and prepared the Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment.
- Chelsea Starr, Environmental Planner. B.S., Biology, University of Washington; 2 years of environmental planning experience. Contribution: Performed data collection and economic assessment for community studies.
- Richard C. Stewart, Engineering Geologist, P.G. B.S., Geology, California State University, Fresno; more than 30 years of hazardous waste and water quality experience; 18 years of paleontology/geology experience. Contribution: Management of the paleontological studies and reports.
- Jennifer H. Taylor, Environmental Office Chief. Double Bachelor of Arts in Political Studies and Organizational Sciences, Pitzer College; more than 30 years of experience in environmental and land use planning. Contribution: Oversight review of the environmental document.
- John Thomas, Senior Environmental Planner. B.A., Geography, California State University, Fresno; 22 years of environmental planning experience. Contribution: Management of final environmental process.

- Sylvère CM Valentin, Associate Environmental Planner (Archaeology). M.A., Anthropology, Forensic Anthropology Certificate, California State University, Los Angeles; B.A., Business Administration, Minor Asian Pacific Studies, Loyola Marymount University; 20 years of experience in California archaeology and cultural resource management. Contribution: Conducted archaeology studies for Archaeological Survey Report.
- Philip Vallejo, District 6 Environmental Division Chief. B.A., History, California State University, Fresno; 12 years of experience in architectural history field. Contribution: Management of cultural studies.
- Juergen Vespermann, Senior Environmental Planner. Civil Engineering Degree, Fachhochschule Muenster, Germany; more than 30 years of experience in transportation planning/environmental planning. Contribution: Management of draft environmental process.

Chapter 6 Distribution List

In compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act and the California Environmental Quality Act, the Draft Environmental Impact Report/ Environmental Assessment was distributed to key interested agencies, elected and appointed officials, tribes and tribal communities, as well as to all parties requesting it.

A public notice of availability of the draft environmental document was provided to all parties on the distribution list and posted in local newspapers and on the Caltrans website. Public notifications were sent to the owners of the 40 properties identified as potentially directly impacted by the project, as well as to those individuals who submitted comments on the Notice of Preparation. The names and addresses of individuals are not disclosed here to protect their privacy.

Printed copies of the environmental document and the related technical studies were made available for review at the Caltrans district office at 1352 West Olive Avenue, Fresno, California 93728. An online electronic copy was made available at the following website: https://dot.ca.gov/caltrans-near-me/district-6. Copies of the environmental document were made available upon request.

The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was made available to the following parties, broken down by agency or group.

Federal Agencies

- Federal Highway Administration—California Division, 650 Capitol Mall, Suite 4-100, Sacramento, CA 95814-4708
- Office of the Secretary, U.S. Department of Agriculture, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250
- U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Sacramento District, 1325 J Street, Room 1513, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Regional Administrator, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Pacific Southwest Region-9, 75, Hawthorne Street, San Francisco, CA 94105
- State Conservationist, U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources Conservation Service, 430 G Street #4164, Davis, CA 95616-4164
- Regional Director, Federal Transit Administration, 201 Mission Street, San Francisco, CA 94105-1839

Native American Tribes, Agencies, Communities

- Native American Heritage Commission, Cultural and Environmental Department, 1550 Harbor Boulevard, Suite 100, West Sacramento, CA 93691
- Tribal Chair, Big Sandy Rancheria of Mono Indians, P.O. Box 337, Auberry, CA 93602
- Chair, Cold Springs Rancheria of Mono Indians, P.O. Box 209, Tollhouse, CA 93667
- Chairperson, North Fork Mono Rancheria, P.O. Box 929, North Fork, CA 93643
- Tribal Chair, North Fork Mono Tribe, 13396 Tollhouse Road, Clovis, CA 93619
- Chairwoman, Picayune Rancheria, P.O. Box 2226, Oakhurst, CA 93644
- Chairperson, Eshom Valley Band of Indians/Wuksachi Indian Community, 1179 Rock Haven Court, Salinas, CA 93906
- Chairman, Dumna Wo-Wah Tribal Government, 2191 West Pico Avenue, Fresno, CA 93703
- Chairman, Dunlap Band of Mono Indians, P.O. Box 14, Dunlap, CA 93621
- Table Mountain Rancheria, P.O. Box 410, Dunlap, CA 93621
- Chairman, Traditional Choinumni Tribe, 2415 Houston, Fresno, CA 93720

State Agencies

- District Conservationist, Natural Resources Conservation Service, 4625 West Jennifer Avenue, Suite 109, Fresno, CA 93722-6424
- Director, California Transportation Commission, 1120 N Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Director, California Department of Conservation, 801 K Street, MS 24-01, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Commissioner, California Highway Patrol, 601 North 7th Street, Sacramento, CA 95811
- Director, California Department of General Services, 707 Third Street, Sacramento, CA 95605
- Director, California Department of Water Resources, 1416 9th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Director, California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery, 1001 I Street, P.O. Box 4025, Sacramento, CA 95812-4025

- Director, California Department of Community Services and Development, 2389 Gateway Oaks, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95833
- Chairperson, California High-Speed Rail Authority, 770 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Director, California Department of Housing and Community Development, 2020 West El Camino Avenue, Sacramento, CA 95833
- Secretary, California Department of Food and Agriculture, 1220 N Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Director, California Department of Parks and Recreation, 1416 9th Street, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Chairperson, California Office of State Historic Preservation, 1725 23rd Street, Suite 100, Sacramento, CA 95816
- Director, California Department of Public Health, P.O. Box 997377, MS 0500, Sacramento, CA 95899-7377
- Regional Manager, California Department of Fish and Wildlife, 1234 East Shaw Avenue, Fresno, CA 93710
- Director, California Department of Motor Vehicles, 2415 1st Avenue, Mail Station F101, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Director, California Department of Health Care Services, P.O. Box 997413, MS 0000, Sacramento, CA 95899-7413
- Executive Director, California Public Utilities Commission, 770 L Street, Suite 620, Sacramento, CA 95814
- Director, California Department of Toxic Substances Control, 1001 I Street, P.O. Box 806, Sacramento, CA 95814-2828
- Secretary for Environmental Protection, California Environmental Protection Agency, 1001 I Street, Sacramento, CA 95812-2815
- Director, Cal-FIRE, 1416 9th Street, P.O. Box 944246, Sacramento, CA 94244
- California Regional Water Quality Control Board, 11020 Sun Center Drive, Suite 200, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670
- California High-Speed Rail Authority, 770 L Street, Sacramento, CA 95814

Regional and Local Agencies

- Director, Fresno County Department of Public Works and Planning, 2220 Tulare Street 6th Floor, Fresno, CA 93721
- Director, Fresno County Department of Public Health, 1221 Fulton Street, Third Floor, Fresno, CA 93775

- Director, City of Fresno, Economic Development, 2601 Fresno Street, Room 2075, Fresno, CA 93721
- Director, City of Fresno, Development and Planning, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 3065, Fresno, CA 93721
- Fire Chief, City of Fresno, Fire Department, 911 H Street, Fresno, CA 93761
- Executive Director, Fresno Historical Society, 7160 West Kearney Boulevard, Fresno, CA 93706
- Chairman, Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission, 2607 Fresno Street, Suite B, Fresno, CA 93721
- Board Chair, Calwa Recreation and Park District, 4545 East Church Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725
- President, Malaga County Water District, 3580 South Frank Street, Fresno, CA 93725
- Executive Director/APCO, San Joaquin Air Pollution Control District, 1990 East Gettysburg Avenue, Fresno, CA 93726
- Police Chief, City of Fresno, Police Department, 2323 Mariposa Street, Room 2075, Fresno, CA 93721
- Director, City of Fresno Department of Transportation, 2223 G Street, Fresno, CA 93706
- Executive Director, Fresno County, Fresno Council of Governments, 2035 Tulare Street, Suite 201, Fresno, CA 93721
- General Manager, Fresno County Rural Transit Agency, 2035 Tulare Street, Suite 201, Fresno, CA 93721
- Executive Director, Fresno County Transportation Authority, 2220 Tulare Street, Suite 411, Fresno, CA 93721
- Unit Fire Chief, Fresno County Fire Department, 210 South Academy, Sanger, CA 93657
- Director, City of Fresno, Department of Public Works, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 4016, Fresno, CA 93721
- Director, City of Fresno, Department of Public Utilities, 2600 Fresno Street, Fresno, CA 93721
- Sheriff, Fresno County Sheriff, 2200 Fresno Street, Fresno, CA 93721
- Chairman, Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District, 5469 East Olive Avenue, Fresno, CA 93727
- Chairman, Selma-Kingsburg-Fowler County Sanitation District, 11301 East Conejo Avenue, Kingsburg, CA 93631

- Division 3 Director, Fresno Irrigation District, 2907 South Maple Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725
- President, Fresno County Superior Court: Juvenile Delinquency Court, 3333 East American Avenue, Building 704, Fresno, CA 93725
- Executive Director, San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District, 1990 East Gettysburg Avenue, Fresno, CA 93726-0244
- Presiding Judge, Fresno County Superior Court, 3333 East American Avenue, Suite A, Fresno, CA 93725

State and Local Elected Officials

- Senator Dianne Feinstein, Fresno Office, 2500 Tulare Street, Suite 4290, Fresno, CA 93721
- Senator Alex Padilla, Fresno Office, 2500 Tulare Street, Suite 5290, Fresno, CA 93721
- Representative D-21, 2117 Selma Street, Selma, CA 93662
- Representative D-22, Clovis District Office, 264 Clovis Avenue, Suite 206, Clovis, CA 93612
- Supervisor, District 1, Fresno County, 2281 Tulare, Room #301, Fresno, CA 93721
- Supervisor, District 2, Fresno County, 2282 Tulare, Room #301, Fresno, CA 93721
- Supervisor, District 3, Fresno County, 2283 Tulare, Room #301, Fresno, CA 93721
- Supervisor, District 4, Fresno County, 2284 Tulare, Room #301, Fresno, CA 93721
- Assemblyman 31 District, Fresno Office, Hugh Burns State Building, 2550 Mariposa Mall, Suite 5031, Fresno, CA 93721
- Supervisor, District 5, Fresno County, 2285 Tulare, Room #301, Fresno, CA 93721
- Mayor, City of Fresno, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 2075, Fresno, CA 93721
- Councilmember, Fresno City Council, District 3, 2600 Fresno Street, Room 2097, Fresno, CA 93721

Nonprofits – Interest Groups

• Director, Kings River Conservation District, 4886 East Jensen Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725

- Chairperson, Community Regional Medical Center, 2823 Fresno Street, Fresno, CA 93721
- CEO, Central California Food Bank, 4010 East Amendola Drive, Fresno, CA 93725
- President, Turning Point of Central California, Inc., 615 South Atwood Street, Visalia, CA 93277
- Director of Public Affairs, Veterans Affairs Medical Center, 2615 East Clinton Avenue, Building 34, Fresno, CA 93703
- Director of Operations, American Relief Foundation/Cars for Breast Cancer Car Donation, 1255 East Central Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725
- Director of Operations, American Ambulance, 2911 East Tulare Street, Fresno, CA 93721
- Center Operations Director, Concentra Urgent Care, 2555 South East Avenue, Fresno, CA 93706
- California Rural Legal Assistance, Inc., 3747 East Shields Avenue, Fresno, CA 93726
- Robert J. Arriago Community Center, 3582 South Winery Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725
- Regional Policy Manager, Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability, 2210 San Joaquin Street, Fresno, CA 93721

Education

- Board President, Fowler Unified School District, 658 East Adams Avenue, Fowler, CA 93625
- Board President, Fresno Unified School District, 2309 Tulare Street, Fresno, CA 93721
- State Superintendent of Public Instruction, California Department of Education, 1430 N Street, Suite 5602, Sacramento, CA 95814-5901
- Board President, Orange Center School District, 3530 South Cherry Avenue, Fresno, CA 93706
- Board President, Washington Unified School District, 7950 South Elm Avenue, Fresno, CA 93706
- Principal, Malaga Elementary School Facilities/Playground, 3910 South Ward, Fresno, CA 93725
- Fresno County Schools (Alice M. Worsley School, Violet Heintz -Education Academy), 1111 Van Ness Avenue, Fresno, CA 93721
- President, Fresno City College, 1101 East University Avenue, Old Administration Building 259, Fresno, CA 93741

- Principal, Calwa Elementary School, 4303 East Jensen Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725
- Principal, Orange Center Elementary School, 3530 South Cherry Avenue, Fresno, CA 93706
- Principal, West Fresno Elementary/Middle School, 2910 South Ivy Avenue, Fresno, CA 93706
- Vice Principal, Ezekiel Balderas Elementary School, 4625 East Florence Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725
- Principal, Aynesworth Elementary School, 4765 East Burns Avenue, Fresno, CA 93725

Appendix A Title VI Policy Statement

STATE OF CALIFORNIA-CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR P.O. BOX 942873, MS-49 SACRAMENTO, CA 94273-0001 PHONE (916) 654-6130 FAX (916) 653-5776 TTY 711 www.dot.ca.gov



Making Conservation a California Way of Life.

September 2021

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT

The California Department of Transportation, under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, ensures "No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance."

Caltrans will make every effort to ensure nondiscrimination in all of its services, programs and activities, whether they are federally funded or not, and that services and benefits are fairly distributed to all people, regardless of race, color, or national origin. In addition, Caltrans will facilitate meaningful participation in the transportation planning process in a nondiscriminatory manner.

Related federal statutes, remedies, and state law further those protections to include sex, disability, religion, sexual orientation, and age.

For information or guidance on how to file a complaint, or obtain more information regarding Title VI, please contact the Title VI Branch Manager at (916) 324-8379 or visit the following web page: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/civil-rights/title-vi.

To obtain this information in an alternate format such as Braille or in a language other than English, please contact the California Department of Transportation, Office of Civil Rights, at 1823 14th Street, MS-79, Sacramento, CA 95811; PO Box 942874, MS-79, Sacramento, CA 94274-0001; (916) 324-8379 (TTY 711); or at <u>Title.VI@dot.ca.gov</u>.

Toks Omishakin Director

"Provide a safe and reliable transportation network that serves all people and respects the environment."

Appendix B Summary of Relocation Benefits

California Department of Transportation Relocation Assistance Program

RELOCATION ASSISTANCE ADVISORY SERVICES

DECLARATION OF POLICY

"The purpose of this title is to establish a uniform policy for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally assisted programs in order that such persons shall not suffer disproportionate injuries as a result of programs designed for the benefit of the public as a whole."

The Fifth Amendment to the U.S. Constitution states, "No Person shall...be deprived of life, liberty, or property, without due process of law, nor shall private property be taken for public use without just compensation." The Uniform Act sets forth in statute the due process that must be followed in Real Property acquisitions involving federal funds. Supplementing the Uniform Act is the government-wide single rule for all agencies to follow, set forth in 49 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 24. Displaced individuals, families, businesses, farms, and nonprofit organizations may be eligible for relocation advisory services and payments, as discussed below.

FAIR HOUSING

The Fair Housing Law (Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968) sets forth the policy of the United States to provide, within constitutional limitations, for fair housing. This act, and as amended, makes discriminatory practices in the purchase and rental of most residential units illegal. Whenever possible, minority persons shall be given reasonable opportunities to relocate to any available housing regardless of neighborhood, as long as the replacement dwellings are decent, safe, and sanitary and are within their financial means. This policy, however, does not require the Department to provide a person a larger payment than is necessary to enable a person to relocate to a comparable replacement dwelling.

Any persons to be displaced will be assigned to a relocation advisor, who will work closely with each displacee in order to see that all payments and benefits are fully utilized and that all regulations are observed, thereby avoiding the possibility of displacees jeopardizing or forfeiting any of their benefits or payments. At the time of the initiation of negotiations (usually the first written offer to purchase), owner-occupants are given a detailed explanation of the state's relocation services. Tenant occupants of properties to be acquired are contacted soon after the initiation of negotiations and also are given a detailed explanation of the Caltrans Relocation Assistance Program. To avoid loss of possible benefits, no individual, family, business, farm, or nonprofit organization should commit to purchase or rent a replacement property without first contacting a Department relocation advisor.

RELOCATION ASSISTANCE ADVISORY SERVICES

In accordance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, the Department will provide relocation advisory assistance to any person, business, farm, or nonprofit organization displaced as a result of the acquisition of real property for public use, so long as they are legally present in the United States. The Department will assist eligible displacees in obtaining comparable replacement housing by providing current and continuing information on the availability and prices of both houses for sale and rental units that are "decent, safe, and sanitary." Nonresidential displacees will receive information on comparable properties for lease or purchase (for business, farm, and nonprofit organization relocation services, see below).

Residential replacement dwellings will be in a location generally not less desirable than the displacement neighborhood at prices or rents within the financial ability of the individuals and families displaced, and reasonably accessible to their places of employment. Before any displacement occurs, comparable replacement dwellings will be offered to displacees that are open to all persons regardless of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, and consistent with the requirements of Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968. This assistance will also include the supplying of information concerning federal and state assisted housing programs and any other known services being offered by public and private agencies in the area.

Persons who are eligible for relocation payments and who are legally occupying the property required for the project will not be asked to move without first being given at least 90 days written notice. Residential occupants eligible for relocation payment(s) will not be required to move unless at least one comparable "decent, safe, and sanitary" replacement dwelling, available on the market, is offered to them by the Department.

RESIDENTIAL RELOCATION PAYMENTS

The Relocation Assistance Program will help eligible residential occupants by paying certain costs and expenses. These costs are limited to those necessary for or incidental to the purchase or rental of a replacement dwelling and actual reasonable moving expenses to a new location within 50 miles of the displacement property. Any actual moving costs in excess of the 50 miles are the responsibility of the displacee. The Residential Relocation Assistance Program can be summarized as follows:

Moving Costs

Any displaced person, who lawfully occupied the acquired property, regardless of the length of occupancy in the property acquired, will be eligible for reimbursement of moving costs. Displacees will receive either the actual reasonable costs involved in moving themselves and personal property up to a maximum of 50 miles, or a fixed payment based on a fixed moving cost schedule. Lawful occupants who move into the displacement property after the initiation of negotiations must wait until the Department obtains control of the property in order to be eligible for relocation payments.

Purchase Differential

In addition to moving and related expense payments, fully eligible homeowners may be entitled to payments for increased costs of replacement housing.

Homeowners who have owned and occupied their property for 90 days or more prior to the date of the initiation of negotiations (usually the first written offer to purchase the property), may qualify to receive a price differential payment and may qualify to receive reimbursement for certain nonrecurring costs incidental to the purchase of the replacement property. An interest differential payment is also available if the interest rate for the loan on the replacement dwelling is higher than the loan rate on the displacement dwelling, subject to certain limitations on reimbursement based upon the replacement property interest rate.

Rent Differential

Tenants and certain owner-occupants (based on length of ownership) who have occupied the property to be acquired by the Department prior to the date of the initiation of negotiations may qualify to receive a rent differential payment. This payment is made when the Department determines that the cost to rent a comparable "decent, safe, and sanitary" replacement dwelling will be more than the present rent of the displacement dwelling. As an alternative, the tenant may qualify for a down payment benefit designed to assist in the purchase of a replacement property and the payment of certain costs incidental to the purchase, subject to certain limitations noted under the Down Payment section below.

To receive any relocation benefits, the displaced person must buy or rent and occupy a "decent, safe and sanitary" replacement dwelling within one year from the date the Department takes legal possession of the property, or from the date the displacee vacates the displacement property, whichever is later.

Down Payment

The down payment option has been designed to aid owner-occupants of less than 90 days and tenants in legal occupancy prior to the Department's initiation of negotiations. The one-year eligibility period in which to purchase and occupy a "decent, safe and sanitary" replacement dwelling will apply.

Last Resort Housing

Federal regulations (49 CFR 24) contain the policy and procedure for implementing the Last Resort Housing Program on Federal-aid projects. Last Resort Housing benefits are, except for the amounts of payments and the methods in making them, the same as those benefits for standard residential relocation as explained above. Last Resort Housing has been designed primarily to cover situations where a displacee cannot be relocated because of lack of available comparable replacement housing, or when the anticipated replacement housing payments exceed the limits of the standard relocation procedure, because either the displacee lacks the financial ability or other valid circumstances.

After the initiation of negotiations, the Department will within a reasonable length of time, personally contact the displacees to gather important information, including the following:

- Number of people to be displaced.
- Specific arrangements needed to accommodate any family member(s) with special needs.
- Financial ability to relocate into comparable replacement dwelling which will adequately house all members of the family.
- Preferences in area of relocation.
- Location of employment or school.

NONRESIDENTIAL RELOCATION ASSISTANCE

The Nonresidential Relocation Assistance Program provides assistance to businesses, farms and nonprofit organizations in locating suitable replacement property, and reimbursement for certain costs involved in relocation. The Relocation Advisory Assistance Program will provide current lists of properties offered for sale or rent, suitable for a particular business's specific relocation needs. The types of payments available to eligible businesses, farms, and nonprofit organizations are: searching and moving expenses, and possibly reestablishment expenses; or a fixed in lieu payment instead of any moving, searching and reestablishment expenses. The payment types can be summarized as follows:

Moving Expenses

Moving expenses may include the following actual, reasonable costs:

- The moving of inventory, machinery, equipment and similar businessrelated property, including: dismantling, disconnecting, crating, packing, loading, insuring, transporting, unloading, unpacking, and reconnecting of personal property. Items acquired in the right-of-way contract may not be moved under the Relocation Assistance Program. If the displacee buys an Item Pertaining to the Realty back at salvage value, the cost to move that item is borne by the displacee.
- Loss of tangible personal property provides payment for actual, direct loss
 of personal property that the owner is permitted not to move.
- Expenses related to searching for a new business site, up to \$2,500, for reasonable expenses actually incurred.

Reestablishment Expenses—Reestablishment expenses related to the operation of the business at the new location, up to \$25,000 for reasonable expenses actually incurred.

Fixed In Lieu Payment—A fixed payment in lieu of moving, searching, and reestablishment payments may be available to businesses that meet certain eligibility requirements. This payment is an amount equal to half the average annual net earnings for the last two taxable years prior to the relocation and may not be less than \$1,000 nor more than \$40,000.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Reimbursement for moving costs and replacement housing payments are not considered income for the purpose of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954, or for the purpose of determining the extent of eligibility of a displace for assistance under the Social Security Act, or any other law, except for any federal law providing local "Section 8" Housing Programs.

Any person, business, farm or nonprofit organization that has been refused a relocation payment by the Department relocation advisor or believes that the payment(s) offered by the agency are inadequate may appeal for a special hearing of the complaint. No legal assistance is required. Information about the appeal procedure is available from the relocation advisor.

California law allows for the payment for lost goodwill that arises from the displacement for a public project. A list of ineligible expenses can be obtained from the Department's Division of Right of Way and Land Surveys. California's law and the federal regulations covering relocation assistance provide that no payment shall be duplicated by other payments being made by the displacing agency.
Appendix C Farmland Conversion Impact Rating Form NRCS-CPA-106

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE Natural Resources Conservation Service	ARMLAND CONV	ERSION	I IMPACT RA	TING		N	RCS-CPA-106 (Rev. 1-91)	
PART I (To be completed by Federal Agency)	3. Date	of Land Evaluation Request 4. Sheet 1 of					
1. Name of Project South Fresno Interchang	je Project	5. Fede	S. Federal Agency Involved Caltrans on behalf of FHWA G. County and State Fresno County, California					
2. Type of Project Freeway Interchange Reh	abilitation	6. Cour						
PART II (To be completed by NRCS)		1. Date	Request Received b	y NRCS	2. Pers	on Completing Form		
 Does the corridor contain prime, unique statewide of (If no, the FPPA does not apply - Do not complete) 	or local important farmlan additional parts of this for	d? m).	YES 🖌 NO 🕻]	4. Acres 968,72	s Irrigated Average 303ac	Farm Size	
5. Major Crop(s) Orchards	6. Farmable La Acres: 9	and in Gover 92,479	nment Jurisdiction % 2	5.7	7. Amou Acre	int of Farmland As D s: 1,514,402	efined in FPPA % 39.3	
 Name Of Land Evaluation System Used CA Revised Storie Index 	9. Name of Loo None	cal Site Asse	essment System	em 10. Date Land Evaluation Returne 10/10/19			turned by NRCS	
PAPT III (To be completed by Federal Agenc	v)		Alternative Corridor For Segment					
PART In (10 be completed by rederal Agenc	y/		Corridor A	ridor A Corridor B Corridor C		Corridor C	Corridor D	
A. Total Acres To Be Converted Directly			12.84ac	8.92ac				
B. Total Acres To Be Converted Indirectly, Or To R	teceive Services		0	0				
C. Iotal Acres In Corridor			12.84ac	8.92	ac			
PART IV (To be completed by NRCS) Land E	Evaluation Informatio	n						
A. Total Acres Prime And Unique Farmland			13	9				
B. Total Acres Statewide And Local Important Farmland			0	0				
C. Percentage Of Farmland in County Or Local Govt. Unit To Be Converte D. Percentage Of Farmland in Govt. Jurisdiction With Same Or Higher Rela PART V (To be completed by NRCS) Land Evaluation Information Criterion		ed	0.0009	0.0006	i			
		n Relative	0.4	0.4				
value of Farmland to Be Serviced or Converted	(Scale of 0 - 100 Points	5)	94	94				
PART VI (To be completed by Federal Agency) Assessment Criteria (These criteria are explain	Corridor ed in 7 CFR 658.5(c))	Maximum Points						
1. Area in Nonurban Use		15	9	9				
2. Perimeter in Nonurban Use		10	5	5				
3. Percent Of Corridor Being Farmed		20	5	1				
Protection Provided By State And Local Gov	remment	20	20	20				
5. Size of Present Farm Unit Compared To Ave	rage	10	5	8				
6. Creation Of Nonfarmable Farmland		25	0	0				
7. Availability Of Farm Support Services		20	1	5		+		
9 Effects Of Conversion On Earm Support Set	nices	25	0	0				
10. Compatibility With Existing Agricultural Use	1003	10	0	ů.				
TOTAL CORRIDOR ASSESSMENT POINTS		160	50	49		0	0	
PART VII (To be completed by Federal Agency	<i>v</i>)							
Relative Value Of Farmland (From Part V)		100	94	94		0	0	
Total Corridor Assessment (From Part VI above assessment)	or a local site	160	50	49		0	0	
TOTAL POINTS (Total of above 2 lines)		260	144	143		0	0	
Corridor Selected: 2. Total Acres Converted	s of Farmlands to be I by Project:	3. Date Of	I Selection:	4. Was	A Local S YES	L Site Assessment Use	l d?	

5. Reason For Selection:

Signature of Person Completing this Part:

DATE

NOTE: Complete a form for each segment with more than one Alternate Corridor

Clear Form

Appendix D Notice of Preparation

SCH NO._____

NOTICE OF PREPARATION

	State C <u>1400 10</u> Sacran	earinghouse the Street tento CA 95814	Fri	om: <u>Ca</u> 88 Fi	5 M Street, Suite 200 esno, CA 93721
Sub	ject:	Notice of Prepa Reference: California (15375.	ration of a Drat Code of Regulations,	ft Envir Title 14, (1	Domental Impact Report DEQA Guidelines) Sections 15082(a), 15103,
Proj	ect Title:	South Fresno Ir	iterchange Proj	<u>ect – 06-</u>	0H240
Proj Ave	ect Locati , Central	on: On State Rout Ave, and North Av	e 99 in the sout e in Fresno Cou	hwest ai inty, CA	ea of the City of Fresno at America
Proje and traff	ect Descr operatio ic safety	iption: The reconfi ns, increase the ca and provide comp	guration of thre pacity of the in atibility with loc	e existin terchang al plann	g interchanges to improve traffic f les, reduce traffic delay, enhance ing for the project area
This will p a res	is to info prepare a sponsible	m you that the Cali n environmental imp agency is requeste	fornia Departmer bact report for the d in the preparati	nt of ⊤ran e project ion and r	sportation will be the lead agency an described below. Your participation a aview of this document.
Caltri infor prop your	rans need mation th osed proj permit o	is to know the views at is germane to you ect. Your agency w other approval for	of your agency ur agency's statu vill need to use th the project.	as to the tory resp ie EIR pr	scope and content of the environmen onsibilities in connection with the epared by our agency when consider
Am	ore detail ained in t	ed project description he attached materia	n, location map, ls. Also, there is present prelimina	and the a <u>Public</u>	potential environmental effects are Information/Scoping Meeting schedu
to be see	the accor	npanying Public Not	lice in this packet	t, option	s to improve the interchanges. Pleas
to be see A co	the accor py of the	Initial Study is <u>not</u> a	lice in this packei ttached.	t.	s to improve the interchanges. Pleas
to be see A co Due date	the accor ppy of the to the tim but not la	Initial Study is not Initial Study is not Initia Study is not	tice in this packet ttached. by State law, your ter receipt of this	r respons notice.	s to improve the interchanges. Pleas
A co Due date Plea <u>Cen</u> Tele and	the accor ppy of the to the tim but not la se direct <u>tral Regi</u> phone: 51	Initial Study is not a Initial Study is not a le limits mandated b ater than 30 days af your response to: <u>Ron Environmental 59-445-6132</u> . Pleas le number and addi	tice in this packed ttached. by State law, you ter receipt of this <u>aychel Skeen, A</u> <u>Division, 855 M</u> te supply us with ress.	r respons notice. Associat Street, S the nam	s to improve the interchanges. Pleas e must be sent at the earliest possib <u>e Environmental Planner, Caltrans</u> <u>buite 200, Fresno CA 93721;</u> e of a contact person in your agency

The South Fresno Interchange Project proposes to reconfigure three existing interchanges on the State Route 99 (SR 99) freeway located at American Avenue, Central Avenue, and North Avenue, in Fresno County between Post Miles 12.5 and 19.1. Currently, there are several preliminary alternatives being considered at each of the interchange locations. Generally, each alternative proposes to 1) reconstruct and widen the overcrossings, 2) construct new and/or reconstruct the on- and off-ramps, and 3) provide improvements to adjacent local roads and intersections.

SR 99 is a major north/south transportation route running through the Central Valley of California. This region is known historically as one of the largest, most productive agricultural valleys in the world. The project lies on the southern edge of the city of Fresno, where SR 99 runs north/south through the City of Fresno and Fresno County planning jurisdictions. The interchanges were originally built in the early to mid-1960s. The land use in the project footprint is predominantly industrial with some commercial. The city began implementing these uses since the early 1960s, but the surrounding area within a quarter of a mile radius varies. Roughly 100 properties are in the immediate project area, including a mobile home park. Immediately, north and east there are mostly dense industrial and commercial uses with pockets of residential. These communities have some city infrastructure such as water, sewer, sidewalks, gas stations, a few small restaurants and fast food, and a couple of elementary schools; grocery stores, hospitals, public transportation and emergency services are provided north in the city of Fresno. Some of the residents have lived in their homes for generations. South and southwest of the project area are open fields and orchards, where agriculture has been the practiced land use historically. Running alongside the freeway there are several railroad alignments, as well as sections of the newly constructed High Speed Rail, which is a large overhead structure crossing over the freeway between Central and North avenues. There are irrigation canals crossing through the area delivering irrigation water to farmland. Scattered through the industrial properties are rusted old grain silos, remnants of the area's agricultural past.

Currently, in the project area, the existing partial-interchange at American Avenue and the splitinterchanges at Central/Chestnut Avenues and North/Cedar Avenues do not meet current design standards. The interchange configurations are non-standard. The pavement is old and cracked. There are only two lanes, one in each direction for traffic to cross over the freeway. Vehicles using the American Avenue interchange cannot go south or north on the freeway because there are no southbound and northbound on-ramps, so vehicles must wind their way on local streets to get onto the freeway. Vehicles using the Central/Chestnut Avenue and North/Cedar Avenue interchanges must take slow and circuitous routes, and are forced to stop at multiple intersections before arriving at their destinations located only a couple of blocks from the freeway. In addition, when the rail lines are in use, traffic is backed up on the local streets, which contributes to congestion and travel delay. Caltrans traffic studies show the interchange performance will continue to decline at the interchanges and on the intersecting local streets with continued development in and around the project area. The City of Fresno and the Fresno County general plans show continued development planned for the area, with increases in traffic, and especially large trucks. The purpose of this project is to improve the operations of the existing interchanges to accommodate the anticipated increase in traffic volume.

Caltrans is in the early "scoping" phase of the environmental process for the South Fresno Interchange Project. The environmental process for this project will include compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act and the National Environmental Policy Act (CEQA and NEPA), and all substantive state and federal environmental laws, as they are relevant to the project. Caltrans has a statewide program to conduct environmental studies which includes analysis for a wide range of environmental topics, all of which will be studied for this project with the results presented in a Draft Environmental Document. In consideration of CEQA's "Fair Argument Standard" and NEPA's consideration of Public Controversy, Caltrans has determined that an Environmental Impact Report to comply with CEQA and an Environmental Assessment to comply with NEPA are the appropriate level of environmental analysis and documentation to be prepared to assess the potential impacts resulting from construction of this project. The interchange locations are shown as yellow diamonds in the view below (Google Earth, 12/2016). The diamonds indicate only a general area of the anticipated project footprint.

The purple box indicates where several businesses have recently developed in the project vicinity, such as Ultra Beauty and Amazon, which have contributed to increased vehicle traffic in the area.

Missing from view is the High Speed Rail line, which is now a dominant feature running through this area.







STATE OF CALIFORNIA Governor's Office of Planning and Research State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit



Notice of Preparation

March 22, 2019

To: Reviewing Agencies

Rc: South Fresno Interchange Project SCH# 2019039121

Attached for your review and comment is the Notice of Preparation (NOP) for the South Fresno Interchange Project draft Environmental Impact Report (EIR).

Responsible agencies must transmit their comments on the scope and content of the NOP, focusing on specific information related to their own statutory responsibility, <u>within 30 days of receipt of the NOP from</u> the Lead Agency. This is a courtesy notice provided by the State Clearinghonse with a reminder for you to comment in a timely manner. We encourage other agencies to also respond to this notice and express their concerns early in the environmental review process.

Please direct your comments to:

Raychel Skeen Caltrans 6 (Fresno) 855 M Street, Suite 200 Fresno, CA 93721

with a copy to the State Clearinghouse in the Office of Planning and Research at state.clearinghouse@opr.ca.gov. Please refer to the SCH number noted above in all correspondence concerning this project on our website: hipps://cequaet.opr.ca.gov/2019039121/2.

If you have any questions about the environmental document review process, please call the State Clearinghouse at (916) 445-0613.

Sincerely 50 Scott Morgan Director, State Clearinghouse

cc: Lead Agency

1409 TENTH STREET P.O. BOX 3044 SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 05812-3044 TEL 1-916-445-0613 state.clcaringhouse@opr.ca.gov www.opr.ca.gov

1	Notice of Completion 8	Environmental Do	cument Transi	nittal	
1	Tail to: State Clearinghouse, P. For Hand Delivery/Street Addre	o. Box 3044, Sacramenio, C ss: 1400 Tenth Street, Sacra	mento, CA 95814	20	0490391
9	Project Title: South Fresno Inte	archange Project			
1	ead Agency: California Departm	nent of Transportation (Calt	rans)	Contact Person: Kay	Chel Skeen
	Viailing Address: 855 M Street, S	ulte 200	75m 02721	County: Freeno	1.52
1	City: Fresho	······	Zap. 83721		
	Project Location: County: Fresi	10	City/Nearest Com	unity: Malaga	
	Cross Streets: State Route 99 and	d North Ave, Central Ave, a	nd American Ave		Zip Code: 93725
	Longitude/Latitude (degrees, minul	es and seconds):^	<u></u>	" W Tot	al Acres: TBD
	Assessor's Parcel No.: Multiple		Section: T	wp.: Rai	nge: Base:
	Within 2 Miles: State Hwy #: 98	at in Turner Field (private)	Waterways: none	Set	note: 2 alementary in 1
	Airports: Close	SUB TUTION FIGHT (DITAGO	Kanways; several		looks. <u>E elektoritetij (†)</u>
		Draft EIR	NEPA:	NOI Other:	Joint Document
	Barly Cons	Supplement/SubScout Sol	fice of Planning & Rea	EA	Final Document
	Neg Dec (Pr	ior SCH No.)	They I Tam	FONSI	
	I Mit Neg Dec Ou		AR 21 2010		
	Land Action Type:				
	Ci General Plan Ibrdate	J Specific Plan STATE {	<i>JLEARINGHOL</i>	ISF	Annexation
	General Plan Amendment	Master Plan	Prezone		Redevelopment
	General Plan Element	Planned Unit Development	t 🔟 Use Permit	70 1 1 1 1	
	Community Plan	SHE FIAN	T TYPIN NAME	un (nabarradou, ea	.) [] Outor
	Development Type:	A second			
	Residential: Units	Acres Employees	X Transport	ation: Type Record	nstruct 3 existing Interch
	Commercial:Sq.ft.	Acres Employees	Mining:	Mineral	Mar
	Industrial: Sq.fl.	Acres Employees	Waste Th	atment: Type	MGD
	Educational:		Hazardou	s Waste: Type	
	Water Pacilities: Type	MGD	[] Other:		
	Project lasues Discussed in D	ocument:			
,	C] Acsthetic/Visual	Fiscal	Recreation/Pa	ks	Vegetation
	Agricultural Land	Flood Plain/Flooding	Septia System	151405	Water Sumiv/Group
	Air Quality	Geologic/Scismic	Sewer Capaci	Y	Wetland/Riparlan
	Dialogical Resources	Minerals	Soil Erosion/C	ompaction/Grading	Growth Inducement
	Coastal Zone	Noise	Solid Waste		Land Use
	Drainage/Absorption	Population/Housing Balan	ce 🔲 Toxic/Hazard	0115	Cumulative Effects
	Economic/Jobs	Public Services/Facilities	I traffic/Circui	nion	X Other Anecied Liny
	Present Land Use/20milg/der	trial and commercial: Broad	ler study scope: Ind	ustrial, commercial	Aq, packets of Residen
	Immediate project area, indus	ing a populatio page if page			
	Project Description: (please)	Project proposes to reconf	iqure three existing	interchanges on S	tate Route 99 (SR 99) fre
	Ine south merican Avenue. (entral Avenue, and North /	Avenue, in Fresno C	ounty, CA between	Post Miles 12.5 and 19.
	Currently, there are ten prelim	Inary alternatives being cor	nsidered for the int	rchange locations.	Generally, each alterna
	pronoses to 1) reconstruct and	l widen the over-crossings,	2) construct new a	d/or reconstruct e	xisting on and off-ramp
	propose of the set to add	cent local roads and interse	ections.		
	nrovide improvements to auja	Walle In State Lingung and the second			

VOP Distribution List		County: Frixing		101070101
Sources Agency Resources Agency	Fish & Wildlife Region 4 Julie Vance	Native American Heritage Comm.	Catrans, Disulat 9	Regional Water Quality Control
Dept. of Boating & Waterways	Lesis & Wildlife Region 3 Lesis Newton-Reed Habitat Conservation	Debble Treadway	Califrans, District 10 Tom Dumas	
Celifornia Coastal Commission	Program Fish & Wildlife Region 6 Titiany Elits	Supervisor Sante Montca Bay	L Caltrans, District 11 Jacob Armstrong	Cathleen Hudson North Craett Region (1)
Allyson Hitt Colorado River Board	Habitat Conservation Program	Guangyu Wang	Maureen El Harake	Environmental Document Coordinator
Elsa Contreras Dept. of Conservation	L Fish & Wildlife Region & IM Heldi Calvet Inyo/Mono, Habitat	Jermiter Deleang	Cal EPA	Central Cross Bay Region (2)
Call Fire Dan Forter	Conservation Program Dept. of Fish & Wildlife N	Agency (TRPA) Cherry Jacques	Air Resources Board	Teresa Rodgers
Central Valley Flood	William Peznokas Marine Region	Cal State Transportation Agency CalSTA	Jack Wursten Transportation Protecte	Los Angeles Region (4)
James Henta	Other Departments	Catrans - Division of Aeronautics	Nesamani Kalandiyur	Central Valley Region (5)
Preservation	California Department of Education	Philip Crimmins	Mike Tolistup	Central Valley Region (5) Fresho Branch Office
Dept of Parks & Recreation	DES (Office of Emergency	HO LD-IGR Christian Bushong	Resources, Recycling & Recovery	Canitral Valley Region (5)
Environmental Stewardship Section	Services) Manique Wilber	California Highway Patrol	Kewin Taylor/Jeif Esquivel	Redding Branch Office
L S.F. Bay Conservation & Dev't. Comm.	Food & Agriculture Sandra Schubert	Office of Special Projects	E state water Resources Control Board Regional Programs Unit	Lahontan Region (6)
Steve.Goldbeck	Dept. of Food and Agriculture		Division of Financial Assistance	Lahontan Region (6) Victorial Branch Otton
Resources Agency Nadell Gavou	Cathy Buck Forinmental Services	C Caltrans, District 1 Rex Jackman	Board Cindy Farbes - Asst Deputy	Cohrado Pine Burle Derice Int
Fish and Game	Section	Califrans, District 2 Marcelino Gonzalez	State Water Resources Control	
Depart. of Fish & Wildlife Scott Film	CEOA Coordinator CEOA Coordinator Housing Policy Division	Catrans, District 3 Susan Zenchi	Board Div. Drinking Water #	
Environmental Services Division	Independent	L Caltrans, District 4 Patricia Maurice	L State Water Resources Control Board	San Diego Region (9)
Curt Baboock	Delta Protection	Caltrans, District 5 Larry Newland	eutotent intern, 401 Water Quality Certification Unit Division of Water Quality	ŗ
Levrie Harnsbeiger	Erik Vink	- Caltrans, District 6 Michael Navarro	State Water Resouces Control Board	L other
L Fish & Wildlife Region 2 Jeff Drongesen	Council Council Anthorry Navasero	Dianna Watson	Phil Crader Division of Water Rights	
L Fish & Wildlife Region 3 Craig Weightman	California Entroy Commission Eric Kalcht	Celtrans, District 8 Mark Roberts	CEOA Tracking Center	Conservancy
	E		Department of Pesticide Regulation DEOA Coordinator	ast Updated 3/22/18

Appendix E Avoidance, Minimization and/or Mitigation Summary

The following paragraph has been added since the draft environmental documents was circulated.

To be sure that all of the environmental measures identified in this document are executed at the appropriate times, the following mitigation program (as shown on the proposed Environmental Commitments Record which follows) would be implemented. During project design, avoidance, minimization, and/or mitigation measures will be incorporated into the project's final plans. specifications, and cost estimates, as appropriate. All permits will be obtained prior to implementation of the project. During construction, environmental and construction/engineering staff will ensure that the commitments contained in this Environmental Commitments Record are fulfilled. Following construction and appropriate phases of project delivery, long-term mitigation maintenance and monitoring will take place, as applicable. Because the following Environmental Commitments Record is a draft, some fields have not been completed, and will be filled out as each of the measures is implemented. Note: Some measures may apply to more than one resource area. Duplicative or redundant measures have not been included in this Environmental Commitments Record.

Minimization and/or Mitigation	FEIR/EA Section	Responsible	Timing
-	Reference	Party	-
Relocations and Real Property Acquisition	2.1.2	Caltrans, City, County	Construction
Utilities and Emergency Services	2.1.3	Caltrans	Construction
The project would require the implementation of a Traffic Management Plan that would identify necessary signage and the locations of potential temporary detours. This plan would help to ensure that local access to homes and businesses, as well as bus and emergency vehicle access, is available during construction of the project. The plan would specify time frames for temporary detours if needed. The plan would also specify the process for notifying residents, businesses, emergency services, and the traveling public of the construction period and any required detours.	2.1.3	Pending	Pending
Visual	2.1.5	Caltrans	Final Design Construction
The project contains a number of standardized project measures that are used on most, if not all, Caltrans projects and were not developed in response to any specific environmental impact resulting from the proposed project.	2.1.5	Pending	Pending
Paleontology	2.2.1	Caltrans	Construction
 PR-1: A project-specific Paleontological Mitigation Plan will be prepared that provides for a professionally qualified paleontologist to be present to monitor excavation activities as well as to oversee the handling of fossils if found and to prepare all reporting requirements per Caltrans and the State of California requirements for paleontological resources. The Paleontological Mitigation Plan will be prepared by a paleontological sub-consultant under contract and task order under Caltrans oversight. PR-2: All project personnel will receive training by a qualified paleontologist before the start of work. PR-3: Recovered fossils would be prepared to the point of identification and placed in an approved paleontological repository. PR-4: All open excavations more than 5 feet deep in native sediments of the Modesto Formation shall be monitored full-time by a qualified paleontologist. PR-5: All construction/project personnel must complete a construction safety orientation. A procedure for interfacing paleontological and construction personnel will need to be developed in consultation with the Resident Engineer (RE). PR-6: A preconstruction paleontological sensitivity training for earthmoving personnel is to be conducted, and documentation of training (sign-in sheets, hardhat stickers) will be kept with the project records (filed onsite and in the Department Task Order Manager's office). PR-7: The professional paleontologist would designate a paleontological monitor(s) to be present during qualifying earthmoving activities, as previously defined. 	2.2.1	Pending	Pending

Minimization and/or Mitigation	FEIR/EA Section Reference	Responsible Party	Timing
Hazardous Waste and Materials	2.2.2	Caltrans	Final Design, Construction
 HW-1: Pesticide and arsenic levels will be tested. Residual organochlorine pesticides (and associated elevated arsenic concentrations) may be present in shallow soil within the project study area due to historical non-regulated agricultural operations. The pesticide and arsenic levels on properties that were for agricultural use are not anticipated to exceed regulatory health-based screening thresholds for commercial/industrial land use, but will be tested. HW-2: Per Caltrans requirements, the contractor(s) should prepare a project-specific Lead Compliance Plan (California Code of Regulations Title 8, Section 1532.1, the "Lead in Construction" standard) to minimize worker exposure to lead-impacted soil. The Lead Compliance Plan should include protocols for environmental and personnel monitoring, requirements for personal protective equipment, and other health and safety protocols and procedures for the handling of lead-impacted soil. HW-3: If excess soil is generated from the Caltrans right-of-way, it is required to be reused at the same site or disposed of in accordance with the Department of Toxic Substances Control requirements as defined in established agreements made with Caltrans (2016). For properties adjacent to State Route 99 with the potential for aerially deposited lead, if excavated soil will not be reused at the same site of excavation, an aerially deposited lead study is required to determine levels and treatment of the soil removed. Soil being used at another site would not qualify to avoid conducting the study and treatment required. HW-4: The top 1 foot of soil from the southbound shoulder of State Route 99 would be considered California hazardous waste. Soil below 1 foot is considered non-hazardous. Depending on construction activities and the soil excavation. His project, if generated from the median of State Route 99, would be considered non-hazardous. If imported borrow (soil) is needed for the project, Caltrans standard contract provisions are included i	2.2.2	Pending	Pending

Minimization and/or Mitigation	FEIR/EA	Responsible	Timina
Winninization and/or Witigation	Reference	Party	i iiiiiig
 HW-7: The project would be subject to the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Rule 9510 (Indirect Source Review Rule) that applies to construction equipment emissions for transportation projects that exceed 2 tons of either PM10 and/or NOX air pollutants. Compliance with the rule would ensure that any unexpected impacts are minimized. The construction contractor would be responsible for the Indirect Source Review Air Impact Analysis and any applicable fees. The analysis estimates the construction equipment emissions. The contractor can choose to reduce the emissions by using a construction fleet that is "cleaner than the California state average" or, if emissions exceed the limits, the contractor can make the payment of fees paid to the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District. HW-8: Caltrans Standard Specifications pertaining to dust control and dust palliative requirement are a required part of all construction contracts and should effectively reduce and control emission impacts during construction. The provisions of Caltrans Standard Specifications Section 14-9.02 "Air Pollution Control District rules, ordinances, and regulations. HW-9: An Asbestos Compliance Plan is required for this project to ensure proper handling of asbestos material in bridge structures transitering and underground utilities prior to construction 			
Animal Species	2.3.1	Caltrans	Final Design, Construction
 AS-1: A preconstruction survey for migratory birds and bats would be conducted 30 days before the start of construction. AS-2: If migratory birds are found nesting within the project footprint, minimization efforts would be coordinated with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and may include a no-work buffer zone (300 feet) around an active nest and/or a qualified biologist would monitor the active nest during construction activities within the established buffer. AS-3: If an active nest is detected, an environmentally sensitive area (ESA) around the nest area may be established to prevent nesting disturbance. AS-4: Work may be temporarily suspended if nesting activity cannot be prevented. Standard Specifications would be included in the construction bid package to avoid impacts to migratory birds. AS-5: If removal of nest trees were deemed necessary, the removal would occur during the time of year when the nests are not used, between October 1 to January 30. Since Swainson's hawks are not expected but could potentially occur in the project area, implementation of the following avoidance and minimization measures to avoid direct and indirect 	2.3.1	Pending	Pending

Minimization and/or Mitigation	FEIR/EA Section Reference	Responsible Party	Timing
 AS-6: Prior to construction, Caltrans would conduct preconstruction surveys according to the Recommended Timing and Methodology for Swainson's Hawk Nesting Surveys in California's Central Valley (Swainson's Hawk Technical Advisory Commission, 2000). AS-7: The surveys would be conducted no less than 30 days prior to construction. AS-8: If an active Swainson's hawk nest is detected, minimization efforts would be coordinated with the California Department of Fish and Wildlife and may include a no-work buffer zone (600 feet) around an active nest and/or a qualified biologist would monitor an active nest during construction activities within the established buffer. AS-9: If the 600-foot no-work buffer zone cannot be maintained, an Incidental Take Permit may be required by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 			
 With implementation of the following avoidance and minimization measures, potential impacts to bats are not expected to occur: AS-10: Preconstruction surveys would be conducted to ensure the bridge remains free of roosting bats. AS-11: If roosts are identified within impacted structures, one-way exclusionary devices or deterrents would be installed outside of the maternity roost season to exclude bats prior to beginning construction activities on the structure. AS-12: If roosts are identified outside of impacted structures but within the project area, construction activities that may disturb a maternity roost or seasonal roost for bats will be prohibited or conducted in a manner that minimizes disturbance to bats. 			
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategies	3.3.4	Caltrans/ Contractor	Construction
 The following measures will also be implemented in the project to reduce greenhouse gas emissions and potential climate change impacts from the project: GH-1: The project proposes to build a sidewalk and vegetative barrier along the east side of South Cherry Avenue, from Central Avenue to Orange Center Elementary School. The sidewalk installation will include streetlighting and improvements to the roadway adjacent to the sidewalk. The sidewalk will provide a paved route for students walking north from Central Avenue to Orange Center Elementary School, and the vegetative barrier will reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Vegetative barriers are recognized methods of mitigating greenhouse gas emissions, criteria air pollutants and extreme heat. GH-2: One Level 2. Electric Vehicle charging station would be installed within Fresno County. 	3.3.4	Pending	Pending

	FEIR/EA	Responsible	Timina
Minimization and/or Mitigation	Reference	Party	Iming
GH-3: Caltrans Standard Specification 14.9.02 Air Pollution Control shall be followed by the			
contractor. The specification requires contractors to comply with all air pollution control rules,			
regulations, ordinances, and statutes. Measures that reduce construction vehicle emissions also			
help reduce greenhouse gas emissions.			
GH-4 The project will include the following Complete Street features: sidewalks, crosswalks,			
signalization, and wider shoulders. These features will safely accommodate bicycles, support use			
of non-motorized modes of travel, and fill gaps in the local Active Transportation Network			
described in the City of Fresno 2014 Active Transportation Plan.			
GH-5 Any landscaping removed by the project will be replaced following construction of the project			
according to specifications described in 2.1.5 Visual/Aesthetics section of this document.			
Landscaping including trees and other vegetation provide shade and absorb carbon dioxide, a			
greenhouse gas, from the atmosphere.			
GH-6 The project will replace and install new Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) elements.			
These are as follows: update existing traffic signals and install traffic monitoring stations, ramp			
meters, and closed-circuit televisions. Information from these systems feed back into Caltrans'			
QuickMap mobile web-based travel alert system. QuickMap provides travelers with real-time road			
Information thereby giving them opportunities to make informed decisions to improve travel			
conditions. Intelligent Transportation System elements improve operational eniciency and reduce			
Congestion-related greenhouse gas emissions.			
guinment during construction			
GH_8 The contractor will be responsible for submitting a Solid Waste Disposal and Recycling			
Penort per Caltrans Standard Specification 14, 10,02 so the recycling efforts can be monitored			
Reducing construction waste and maximizing the use of recycled materials reduces consumption			
of raw materials, reduces landfill waste, and encourages cost savings			
GH-9 Non-potable water will be used during construction. A potential source for the contractor will			
be the City of Fresno Recycled Water System that is currently being developed. There are plans to			
extend the system to the North Avenue Interchange. Alternatively, the contractor may secure			
non—potable water from another water purveyor such as the Fresho Irrigation District which			
operates a canal just outside the project limits. And, the landscape irrigation system at North			
Avenue will be designed to use the City of Fresno Recycled Water System. If the City's system has			
not been extended to the North Avenue Interchange at time of construction, then the irrigation			
system will be connected to potable water with the provision that it can be switched to non-potable			
water in the future.			

Minimization and/or Mitigation	FEIR/EA Section Reference	Responsible Party	Timing
GH-10 Construction equipment and vehicles will be properly tuned and maintained. All			
17, Section 93114.			
GH-11 Alternative bridge construction (ABC) will be used where possible to reduce construction			
windows. Use of more precast elements reduces the need for additional falsework, forms, bracing,			
GH-12 Where lighting is required, higher efficiency light-emitting diode (LED) lights will be used.			
Reducing the need for electric lighting by using ultra-reflective sign materials and other alternate			
lighting will reduce energy use and therefore reduces greenhouse gas emissions.			
GH-13 A construction traffic management plan will be implemented. Construction traffic will be			
scheduled and routed to reduce congestion and related air quality impacts caused by idling			
vehicles along local roads during peak travel times.			
GH-14 EPA Tier 4 rated construction equipment will be used as the project is within an AB-617			
community.			

Appendix F Federal Highway Administration Concurrence

This appendix contains the concurrence letter on the project-level conformity determination from the Federal Highway Administration.



California Division

October 3, 2022

650 Capitol Mall, Suite 4-100 Sacramento, CA 95814 (916) 498-5001 (916) 498-5008 (FAX)

> In Reply, Refer To: HDA-CA

ELECTRONIC CORRESPONDENCE ONLY

Diana Gomez, Director California Department of Transportation District 6 2015 East Shields Ave., Suite A-100 Fresno, CA 93726-5428

SUBJECT: Project Level Conformity Determination for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project (CTIPS ID 203-00000752)

Dear Ms. Gomez:

On September 2, 2022, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) submitted to the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) a complete request for a project level conformity determination for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project. The project is in an area that is designated Non-Attainment or Maintenance for Ozone, and Particulate Matter (PM 2.5).

The project level conformity analysis submitted by Caltrans indicates that the project-level transportation conformity requirements of 40 CFR Part 93 have been met. The project is included in the Fresno Council of Governments' (FresnoCOG) current Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), as amended. The design concept and scope of the preferred alternative have not changed significantly from those assumed in the regional emissions analysis.

As required by 40 CFR 93.116 and 93.123, the localized $PM_{2.5}$ and PM_{10} analyses are included in the documentation. The analyses demonstrate that the project will not create any new violations of the standards or increase the severity or number of existing violations.

Based on the information provided, FHWA finds that the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project conforms with the State Implementation Plan (SIP) in accordance with 40 CFR Part 93. If you have any questions pertaining to this conformity finding, please contact Joseph Vaughn at (916) 498-5346 or <u>Joseph.Vaughn@dot.gov</u>.

Sincerely,

ANTONIO DESHAWN JOHNSON Digitally signed by ANTONIO DESHAWN JOHNSON Date: 2022.10.03 08:25:56 -07'00'

Antonio Johnson Director of Planning, Environment, & Right of Way Federal Highway Administration 2

3

TO:

.

Diana Gomez, Caltrans Diana.Gomez@dot.ca.gov

CC: (via email)

Maya Hildebrand, Caltrans Lucas Sanchez, Caltrans Rodney Tavitas, Caltrans Vincent Mammano, FHWA Elissa Konove, FHWA Antonio Johnson, FHWA Joseph Vaughn, FHWA Patrick Pittenger, FHWA

Maya.Hildebrand@dot.ca.gov Lucas.Sanchez@dot.ca.gov Rodney.Tavitas@dot.ca.gov Vincent.Mammano@dot.gov Elissa.Konove@dot.gov Antonio.Johnson@dot.gov Joseph.Vaughn@dot.gov Patrick.Pittenger@dot.gov

Appendix G Comments and Responses

This appendix has been added since the circulation of the draft environmental document. This appendix contains the comments received during the public circulation and comment period (51 days) between October 14, 2021 and December 3, 2021, retyped for readability. The comment letters are stated verbatim as submitted, with acronyms, abbreviations, and any original grammatical or typographical errors included. A Caltrans response follows each comment presented. Copies of the original comment letters and documents can be found in Volume 2 of this document.

Comment from Greg Smith

Dear Mr. Thomas,

I own and manage parcels on both sides of South Parkway Drive, south of North Avenue that will be affected by the project if it proceeds. These properties are known generally as 3180, 3183, 3186, 3187 S. Parkway Drive. (APN 330-220-12S and 330-021-06).

I am providing comments that I ask are registered and considered regarding the "South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project".

Any loss of property along the freeway frontage will economically damage the property and I ask that no property be taken. None is shown in the EIR but when questions were asked it sounds like some impact to the property is likely. Partial reduction in size may change the possible uses of the property for current and future tenants and therefore the overall value, as well as the value to current tenants with long term leases in place.

Further the draft changes to access by closing off South Parkway Drive and requiring access to Parkway from Orange avenue which will make it harder for customers to find the businesses located there, and will add, distance, time and cost to access the properties for customers, employees, and suppliers. The change of the traffic flow on S. Parkway will also decrease drive by visibility to customers and others. These changes are expected to result in loss of goodwill, and financial damage.

Lastly the road surface condition of South Parkway Drive is horrible and needs to be repaired or replaced. This is due in large part to City traffic, and Fresno garbage truck traffic to the transfer station. This must be addressed.

Sincerely,

Greg Smith 6649 E Floradora Ave Fresno, CA 93727 +1-559-352-0501 Greg.smith@seedsoe.com Owner of property on S Parkway Drive, south of North Ave

Response to Greg Smith

Thank you for your comments; they have been included in the final environmental document. Alternative 2 has been selected as the recommended preferred alternative for North Avenue. At this time, under Alternative 2, the project includes partial acquisition of property at 3180 South Parkway Drive and 3186 South Parkway Drive (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-021-06) where the property borders State Route 99.

The realignment modification of Parkway Drive from North Avenue, to the west to meet Orange Avenue, supports the improvements to the interchanges and the existing intersections on North Avenue at Cedar Avenue and Orange Avenue. Traffic studies found the existing ramps at North Avenue and Cedar Avenue are predicted to deteriorate to unacceptable levels of service by 2046 if the No-Build Alternative were selected. Though a redistribution of traffic on Parkway Drive is anticipated, the conditions would be greatly improved on the local street system and for traffic entering and exiting the highway.

The project proposes improvements to Parkway Drive, which may include rehabilitation of the road surface condition. Caltrans will coordinate with City staff to ensure local road improvements meet city standards.

Comment from Stacey Grote

From: stacey grote <staceygrote@gmail.com> Sent: Friday, November 19, 2021 11:19 AM To: Gardner, Chris L@DOT <chris.gardner@dot.ca.gov>; michael kazarian <mskazarian@gmail.com>; sgrote@candycaneinn.net Subject: south fresno 99 corridor project (American Ave.)

Chris,

I'm responding for the Kazarian Family, the owners of the property on both sides of American Ave. on the east side of hwy 99.

The preferred option is Alternative 2, partial cloverleaf (Type L-9).

This option would be less invasive to the operations of the business and would leave the home and shops undisturbed.

Respectfully,

Stacey Grote RK Ltd Assistant to Michael Kazarian

Response to Stacey Grote

Thank you for your comments; they have been included in the final environmental document. The Project Development Team met on February 10, 2022 to discuss the proposed project alternatives. During the meeting, the four build alternatives in the environmental document (Alternatives 1 and 2 at American Avenue, and Alternatives 2 and 4 at North Avenue) were discussed relative to any issues raised by the public during the public review period and the local agencies' input on the alternatives. Based on public review and local agency input, it was then determined that the recommended preferred alternative at the American Avenue interchange is a hybrid of Alternative 1 and Alternative 2 (Hybrid Alternative).

The Hybrid Alternative for the American Avenue interchange was selected as the recommended preferred alternative for the following reasons:

- The estimated cost is lower than Alternative 1 and Alternative 2.
- It avoids impacts to residential property.
- It has fewer impacts to commercial property.

The Hybrid Alternative will have fewer impacts to the business and would leave the home and shops undisturbed.

Comment from Kevin Henkle on the Project Website

Kevin Henkle just submitted your form: Comment Card

on SFresno99Corridor

Message Details: First Name: Kevin Last Name: Henkle Email Address: kevinfrv@yahoo.com Phone Number: 559.268-3733

Please type your message here.: Re:

South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project ID 06–0H240/0600020559 To whom it may concern: I am the owner of freedom RV located at 3186 S. Parkway Drive, Fresno CA 93725 on the west side of HWY 99 South of the North Avenue interchange. The purpose of this communication is to address the potential impacts of the South Fresno state Route 99 Corridor Project (the "Project") planned for this interchange. Based on the information provided and the work involved with this Project, it appears there is potential for significant interruptions to my business. The magnitude of this Project appears it will take several years to complete. I have the following concerns regarding the impact to my business during the Project and potentially into the future. My concerns are as follows: 1. The North Avenue interchange is the main access to my business, and I am concerned that the roadwork Project will impact access for our current and potential customers. This will have a negative impact on our revenues during the Project. 2. I am concerned that all of the work and heavy equipment to be used will obstruct visibility to our business signage which is a major source of customers that travel on HWY 99. This will have a negative impact our revenues during the term of the Project. 3. The significant roadwork planned for the Project will limit access will deter customers from accessing our site. This will have a negative impact on revenues. 4. It appears from the diagrams provided that the west side of HWY 99, which is also the east side of our property, is impacted by the Project. Our understanding from the meeting there is a potential for our parcel size to be reduced for land necessary to widen HWY 99. The reduced size of our lot will reduce the amount of inventory Freedom RV is able to maintain as well as the amount of parking available for vehicles that are being serviced by Freedom RV. This will negatively impact revenue of my business. 5. We have been told the Project is planned to commence in October 2024 and be completed by May 2027. Please provide confirmation of timing as soon as possible. The overall concern for Freedom RV is the near term and long-term impacts this Project will have on our business and how Freedom RV will be compensated for any losses incurred. I look forward to hearing from you. Kindest Regards, Kevin Henkle President, Freedom RV

Appendix G • Comments and Responses

Response to Kevin Henkle

Thank you for your comments; they have been included in the final environmental document.

- 1. Alternative 2 has been selected as the recommended preferred alternative for North Avenue. At this time, under Alternative 2, the project includes partial acquisition of property at 3180 South Parkway Drive and 3186 South Parkway Drive (Assessor's Parcel Number 330-021-06) where the property borders State Route 99.
- 2. The realignment modification of Parkway Drive from North Avenue, to the west to meet Orange Avenue, supports the necessary improvements to the interchanges and the existing intersections on North Avenue, at Cedar Avenue and Orange Avenue.
- 3. Caltrans traffic studies have shown the project is needed to address worsening traffic conditions. The existing ramps at North Avenue and Cedar Avenue are predicted to deteriorate to unacceptable levels of service by 2046 if the No-Build Alternative is selected, and upgrades to the interchanges are not made. Though a redistribution of traffic on Parkway Drive is anticipated, the conditions would be greatly improved on the local street system and for traffic entering and exiting the highway.
- 4. The project proposes improvements to Parkway Drive, which may include rehabilitation of the road surface condition. Caltrans will coordinate with City staff to ensure local road improvements meet city standards.
- 5. Currently, upon project approval, construction is scheduled to begin October 2024.

Comment from John Rutowicz

From: John Rutowicz <jrutowicz@arcpointe.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 2, 2021 2:42 PM
To: Thomas, John Q@DOT <john.q.thomas@dot.ca.gov>
Cc: Kevin Henkle <kevinfrv@yahoo.com>
Subject: South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project ID 06–0H240/0600020559-Comment
Letter

EXTERNAL EMAIL. Links/attachments may not be safe.

The following attachment image001.jpg,freedom rv - south fresno route 99 corridor project comment letter 12.1.21.pdf has timed out, hence bypassing our Attachment Defense System. Only open it up if you are truly expecting this file.

Greetings Mr. Thomas,

On behalf of Freedom RV I submit the attached comment letter related to the above referenced project. Should you have any question or comments please contact Mr. Henkle or myself.

Kindest Regards,

John Rutowicz Principal ArcPointe Advisory Services, a Division of ArcPointe Real Estate Investment Group, LLC

930 E. Pico Ave. Fresno, CA 93704

PH: 408.205.5740

Comment from John Rutowicz continued (email attachment)

December 1, 2021

John Thomas, Senior Environmental Planner Caltrans District 6 2015 East Shields Avenue, Suite 100 Fresno, CA 93726

Via email: john.q.thomas@dot.ca.gov Re: South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project ID 06–0H240/0600020559

To whom it may concern:

I am the owner of freedom RV located at 3186 S. Parkway Drive, Fresno CA 93725 on the west side of HWY 99 South of the North Avenue interchange. The purpose of this communication is to address the potential impacts of the South Fresno state Route 99 Corridor Project (the "Project") planned for this interchange.

Based on the information provided and the work involved with this Project, it appears there is potential for significant interruptions to my business. The magnitude of this Project appears it will take several years to complete. I have the following concerns regarding the impact to my business during the Project and potentially into the future.

My concerns are as follows:

1. The North Avenue interchange is the main access to my business, and I am concerned that the roadwork Project will impact access for our current and potential customers. This will have a negative impact on our revenues during the Project.

2. I am concerned that all of the work and heavy equipment to be used will obstruct visibility to our business signage which is a major source of customers that travel on HWY 99. This will have a negative impact our revenues during the term of the Project.

3. The significant roadwork planned for the Project will limit access will deter customers from accessing our site. This will have a negative impact on revenues.

4. It appears from the diagrams provided that the west side of HWY 99, which is also the east side of our property, is impacted by the Project. Our understanding from the meeting there is a potential for our parcel size to be reduced for land necessary to widen HWY 99. The reduced size of our lot will reduce the amount of inventory Freedom RV is able to maintain as well as the amount of parking available for vehicles that are being serviced by Freedom RV. This will negatively impact revenue of my business.

3186 S. Parkway Drive, Fresno CA 93725

5. We have been told the Project is planned to commence in October 2024 and be completed by May 2027. Please provide confirmation of timing as soon as possible.

The overall concern for Freedom RV is the near term and long-term impacts this Project will have on our business and how Freedom RV will be compensated for any losses incurred.

I look forward to hearing from you.

Kindest Regards,

Kevin Henkle, President, Freedom RV

Response to John Rutowicz

This comment was submitted twice. Please see the response to Kevin Henkle's comment above.

Comment from the City of Fresno

2600 Fresno Street - Room 3043 Fresno, California 93721-3604 (559) 621-8277 FAX (559) 488-1026

December 3, 2021

John Thomas, Senior Environmental Planner Caltrans District 6 2015 East Shields Avenue, Suite 100 John.q.thomas@dot.ca.qov (Sent via email only) SUBJECT: COMMENTS ON THE DRAFT EIR FOR THE SOUTH FRESNO STATE ROUTE 99 CORRIDOR PROJECT

Dear Mr. Thomas:

The City of Fresno has received the Draft Environmental Impact Report for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project. The project is generally located at the North Avenue and American Avenue interchanges on State Route 99. Below are our comments:

1. Page 29, 3rd paragraph, Growth section: the last sentence of this paragraph states that "... there are no specific plans or environmental documents being reviewed to indicate a change in the project area." It should be noted that the City of Fresno is currently working on a specific plan entitled the South Central Specific Plan which includes the North Avenue interchange. More information on the plan is available here: www.fresno.gov/scsp.

2. Page 36, 2nd paragraph: this paragraph describes the Roosevelt Community Plan's influence in the vicinity of the project. The third and fourth lines of the paragraph make references to the Roosevelt Plan area in relation to the project, and include directional errors. The word "southwest" in the third line and "northwest" in the fourth line should be changed to southeast and northeast, respectively.

3. Page 36, 4th paragraph: the 6th line of this paragraph states that the South Central Specific Plan ... will "consolidate all of the adopted policies for the area with an expansion of the area boundary to the south within the city's sphere of influence boundary." This portion of the sentence should be deleted and revised as follows: ... the South Central Specific Plan, which will "include updated policies for the area."

4. Page 37, 2nd paragraph, first sentence, "tracks" should be "tracts."

5. Page 43, bullet list: the current Fresno General Plan should also be included in this list.

6. Page 144, 3rd paragraph: the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan is mentioned here. The City of Fresno recently updated its Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan in September of 2021. The newly adopted version is available here: https://www.fresno.gov/darm/wpcontent/uploads/sites/10/2021/03/Link4AppendixGGHGRPUpdate.pdf

7. General Comment: While we note a list of preparers and a list of references for the Climate Change section on pages 162 and 163, we were unable to locate a list of references pertaining to the Draft EIR as a whole. It would be helpful to include this list.

Please feel free to contact me by phone at 621-8062 or by email at Sophia.Pagoulatos@fresno.gov if you have any questions about our comments.

Sincerely,

Sophia Pagoulatos Planning Manager Planning and Development Department

C: Jennifer Clark, Director, Planning and Development Department Mike Sanchez, Assistant Director, Planning and Development Department

Response to the City of Fresno

Thank you for your comments; they have been included in the final environmental document.

1. Information about the South Central Specific Plan has been added to the Growth section.

2. The corrections have been made to the description of the Roosevelt Plan area.

3. The correction has been made to the description of the South Central Specific Plan.

4. The correction has been made.

5. The City of Fresno General Plan (2014) has been added to the list.

6. The updated Greenhouse Gas Reduction Plan (2021) was reviewed, and Caltrans staff has confirmed the project remains consistent with the updated plan.

7. Thank you for your comment. The draft environmental document does not include a list of citations; however, the document makes references to the technical studies prepared for the project. You may find a list of technical studies on the last page of the document.
Comment from the Fresno Irrigation District

November 22, 2021

John Thomas Department of Transportation State of California 2015 E. Shields Avenue Ste. A-100 Fresno, CA. 93726

RE: Notice of Availability of the Draft Environmental Document for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project

Dear Mr. Thomas:

The Fresno Irrigation District (FID) has reviewed the Notice of Availability of the Draft Environmental Document for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project. The project is proposing to improve the operations of two existing interchanges on State Route 99 at American Avenue and North Avenue. FID has the following comments:

1. FID previously reviewed and commented on the proposed project on July 20, 2021 as Facility Verification Request, Project ID No. 0600020559. Those comments and conditions still apply and a copy has been attached for your review.

Thank you for submitting this for our review. We appreciate the opportunity to review and comment on the subject documents for the proposed project. If you have any questions please feel free to contact Jeremy Landrith at (559) 233-7161 extension 7407 or jlandrith@fresnoirrigation.com.

Sincerely,

Laurence Kimura, P.E. Chief Engineer

Attachment(s)

Response to the Fresno Irrigation District

Thank you for your comments. During the final design phase, Caltrans staff will work with the Fresno Irrigation District to confirm the impacts to the Fresno Irrigation District's facilities and ensure the list of requirements are met.

Comment from Denise Wade

From: Denise Wade <denisew@fresnofloodcontrol.org> Sent: Monday, November 22, 2021 10:11 AM To: Thomas, John Q@DOT <john.q.thomas@dot.ca.gov> Subject: South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor DEIR

Good Morning John,

I have a couple of questions regarding the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor DEIR. If this project moves forward, has Caltrans addressed what they intend to do with the additional runoff and if project moves forward would there be a co-op agreement for storm drain construction?

Thanks,

Denise Wade, P.E. Master Plan Special Projects Manager denisew@fresnofloodcontrol.org www.fresnofloodcontrol.org

Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District Phone (559)456-3292, Fax (559)456-1076

Response to Denise Wade

Thank you for providing your comment. During the final design phase, Caltrans will coordinate with the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District to determine the appropriate agreement needed to address the additional runoff resulting from the project.

Comment from the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District



File 170.611 310. "AW1", "CE", "CF" 550.30 "AW1", "CE", "CF"

November 23, 2021

Mr. John Thomas, Senior Environmental Planner Caltrans 2015 E. Shields Avenue, Suite 100 Fresno, CA 93726

Dear Mr. Thomas,

Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District Comments for Notice of Availability of the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project Drainage Areas "AW1", "CE" and "CF"

The Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District (FMFCD) has reviewed the subject Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project (Project) and requests the following comment be incorporated into the Draft Environmental Document as follows:

1) Page 131 Chapter 3, Section 3.2.19, Utilities and Service Systems, the following information should be added:

Any proposed relocation, construction of proposed or reconstruction of existing storm drainage facilities will need to be reviewed and approved by FMFCD prior to implementation.

FMFCD bears responsibility for storm water management within the Fresno-Clovis metropolitan area, including the area of the proposed project site locations. Within the metropolitan area, storm runoff produced by land development is to be controlled through a system of pipelines and storm drainage retention basins. The community has developed and adopted a Storm Drainage and Flood Control Master Plan.

The Project is located within FMFCD's Drainage Areas "AW1", "CE", and "CF" shown on the attached Exhibit Nos. 1 and 2. There are existing and future storm drain facilities located within the Project area. Any proposed relocation, construction of proposed or reconstruction of existing storm drainage facilities will need to be reviewed and approved by FMFCD prior to implementation to insure consistency with the approved Storm Drainage Master Plan. Street grading within the Project area shall be consistent with the FMFCD Master Plan.

k:\letters\environmental impact report letters\deir-caltrans so fresno route 99(aw1.ce.cf)(dw).docx

5469 E. Olive Avenue • Fresno, CA 93727 • (559) 456-3292 • FAX (559) 456-3194 www.fresnofloodcontrol.org Mr. John Thomas Caltrans Notice of Availability of the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project Drainage Areas "AW1", "CE" and "CF" November 23, 2021 Page 2

Thank you for the opportunity to comment. Please keep our office informed on the development of the project and if you have any further questions, or need any additional information, please contact the FMFCD at (559) 456-3292.

Sincerely,

Denise Wade Master Plan and Special Projects Manager

DW/lrl

c: Jarrod Takemoto, FMFCD Kenneth Frank, FMFCD

k:\letters\environmental impact report letters\deir-caltrans so fresno route 99(aw1.ce.cf)(dw).docx





Response to the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District

Caltrans has received the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District's comment letter dated November 23, 2021 on the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment. Caltrans response to the comments in the letter are listed below.

- Caltrans concurs with the request to add comment #1 to the document. The recommended language was added to Section 2.1.3, which reads, "Any proposed relocation, construction of proposed or reconstruction of existing storm drainage facilities will be reviewed and approved by the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District prior to implementation."
- Caltrans' Design team intends to avoid impacts to the "AW1" basin.
- Storm drainage pipes may be impacted with this project, but their functionality will be perpetuated. As indicated, FMFCD will have opportunity to review the proposed modifications.
- The Caltrans project manager for this project is Michael Dennison and can facilitate all future coordination.
- Caltrans Design technical point of contact who can coordinate with the Fresno Metropolitan Flood Control District is Don Nishikawa.

Comment from Nayamin Martinez received by a Caltrans Public Information Officer via telephone

From: Elizabeth.Yelton@dot.ca.gov Subject: Environmental Document - Spanish Version Request - 0H240

Hello all,

Nayamin Martinez 559-907-2047 - email: nayamin@hotmail.com

Is requesting the environmental document for 06-0H240 in Spanish. She advised she understood today was the last day to request it.

If you have any questions, please contact me.

Elizabeth Yelton Caltrans Public Information Officer District 6 559-488-4067 Desk 559-916-8183 Cell

Response to Nayamin Martinez

In response to Ms. Martinez's request, the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was translated into Spanish and provided to those who submitted a request. The Spanish document was circulated for a 45-day period which began December 15, 2021 and ended January 28, 2022.

Comment from Nayamin Martinez received on the Project Website

Nayamin Martinez Cossio just submitted your form: Comment Card 2 on SFresno99Corridor

Message Details: Nombre: Nayamin Apellido: Martinez Cossio Email Address: nayamin@hotmail.com Teléfono: 559-351-6398

Escriba su mensaje aquí: Necesito recibir una version en espanol del documento que analiza el impacto ambienta del proyecto de construccion que estan planeando en la autopista 99. El Distrito del Aire nos dijo que podiamos llamar y pedir a mas tardar hoy el documento en espanol y cuando llame no habia nadie que hablara espanol.

Response to Nayamin Martinez

In response to Ms. Martinez's request, the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was translated into Spanish and provided to those who submitted a request. The Spanish document was circulated for a 45-day period which began December 15, 2021 and ended January 28, 2022.

Comment from the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District

December 2, 2021

John Thomas Central Region Environmental California Department of Transportation 2015 East Shields Avenue, Suite 100 Fresno, CA 93726 john.q.thomas@dot.ca.gov

Project: Draft Environmental Impact Report for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project

District CEQA Reference No: 20211168

Dear Mr. Thomas:

The San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (District) has reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment (DEIR) for the project referenced above from the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) serving as the lead agency for both the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The project consists of reconstruction improvements of two existing half-interchanges into full interchanges and the closure of the Cedar Avenue interchange (Project). The Project is located at the southern border of the City of Fresno on State Route 99 (SR-99) at the North Avenue off-ramp and the American Avenue off-ramp, in Fresno, CA. The Project lies within one of the communities in the State selected by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) for investment of additional air quality resources and attention under Assembly Bill (AB) 617 (2017, Garcia) in an effort to reduce air pollution exposure in impacted disadvantaged communities.

According the DEIR, "the purpose and need for this project is to improve the operations of the interchanges because the half-interchange configurations are now considered non-standard. The pavement is old and cracked. The existing on- and off-ramps have tight dimensions, making it difficult for vehicles, especially large trucks, to navigate. The half interchange configurations make it difficult for motorists to find local destinations and locate corresponding on- and off-ramps to and from State Route 99. This causes more travel on local roads, with stop-and-go and out-of-direction travel to reach destinations."

The District offers the following comments:

1) Assembly Bill 617

Assembly Bill (AB) 617 initiated a statewide effort to monitor and reduce localized air pollution, and highly improve public health, in communities that experience disproportionate burdens from exposure to air pollutants through new community focused and community-driven actions, including the development and implementation of Community Emission Reduction Programs (CERPs) in an effort to reduce air pollution exposure in impacted disadvantaged communities. The Project is located within the South Central Fresno AB 617 community boundary, which is one of the statewide communities that was selected by CARB for development and implementation of a CERP.

Following a year of extensive community engagement and collaboration with South Central Fresno's AB 617 Community Steering Committee (comprised of community residents, businesses, community-based organizations, state, and local agencies), the CERP for the South Central Fresno Community was adopted by the District's Governing Board in September 2019 and by CARB in February 2020. The CERP identifies a wide range of measures designed to reduce air pollution and exposure, including a number of strategies to be implemented in partnership between agencies and local organizations. The Community Steering Committee has developed a series of emission and exposure reduction strategies with the goal to improve community health by reducing exposure to air pollutants. Such emission reduction strategies include, but are not limited to, enhanced community participation in land use processes, the deployment of clean heavy-duty equipment during construction, incorporating truck re-routing, vegetative barriers and urban greening.

During the development of the CERP, the Community Steering Committee expressed concerns regarding the proximity of emission sources to nearby sensitive receptors like schools, homes, day care centers, and hospitals, and the potential future industrial development within the community that may exacerbate the cumulative exposure burden for community residents. The Community Steering Committee also expressed the desire for more meaningful avenues of engagement surrounding the land-use decisions in the area. The District recommends that Caltrans assess the emission reductions measures and strategies included in the CERP and consider them for the Project, as appropriate, to align Caltrans work with the air pollution and exposure reduction strategies and measures outlined in the CERP.

For more information regarding the CERP approved for South Central Fresno, please visit the District's website at:

http://community.valleyair.org/selected-communities/south-central-fresno

2) Project Construction-Related Emissions

Construction-related air emissions are short-term emissions generated from construction activities such as mobile heavy-duty diesel off-road equipment and on- road heavy-duty diesel trucks related to the construction activities.

Recommended Measure: To reduce impacts from construction-related diesel exhaust emissions, the project should utilize the cleanest available off-road construction equipment, including the latest tier equipment.

3) Health Risk Assessment

Upon District review of the Project location and surrounding area, multiple receptors, such as nearby residences and a juvenile facility, have the potential to be impacted by Project-related construction and operational emissions. To determine potential health impacts on surrounding receptors (residences, businesses, day-care facilities, health care facilities, etc.), the District recommends that the lead agency ensure that potential operational emissions impacts be quantified in addition to construction emissions, and that a Prioritization and/or a health risk assessment (HRA) be performed for Project-related impacts.

Health risk determinations should quantify and characterize potential Toxic Air Contaminant (TAC) air pollutants identified by the Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment/California Air Resources Board (OEHHA/CARB) that pose a present or potential hazard to human health. All potential Projectrelated construction and operational emissions should be included in the analyses. Note, two common sources of TACs related to construction can be attributed to diesel exhaust emitted from heavy-duty off-road earth moving equipment and from heavy- duty on-road trucks. A list of TACs identified by OEHHA/CARB can be found at:

https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/carb-identified-toxic-aircontaminants

Prioritization (Screening Health Risk Assessment):

A "Prioritization" is the recommended method for a conservative screeninglevel health risk assessment. The Prioritization should be performed using the California Air Pollution Control Officers Association's (CAPCOA) methodology. The District recommends that a more refined analysis, in the form of an HRA, be performed for any project resulting in a Prioritization score of 10 or greater. This is because the prioritization results are a conservative health risk representation, while the detailed HRA provides a more accurate health risk evaluation.

To assist with Prioritization analyses, the District has created a prioritization calculator based on the aforementioned CAPCOA guidelines, which can be found here:

http://www.valleyair.org/busind/pto/emission_factors/Criteria/Toxics/Utilities/PR IORITIZATION%20RMR%202016.XLS

Health Risk Assessment:

The District recommends that the latest guidance and procedures established by the District, CARB, and OEHHA be utilized in performing an HRA. Prior to performing an HRA, the District is available to assist lead agencies/development project proponents in reviewing the proposed health risk modeling protocol. A development project would be considered to have a potentially significant health risk if the HRA demonstrates that the project-related health impacts would exceed the Districts significance threshold of 20 in a million for carcinogenic risk, or 1.0 for either the Acute or Chronic Hazard Indices. A project with a significant health risk would trigger all feasible mitigation measures. The District strongly recommends that development projects that result in a significant health risk not be approved by the lead agency.

The District is available to review HRA protocols and analyses. For HRA submittals please provide the following information electronically to the District for review:

- HRA AERMOD model files
- HARP2 files
- Summary of emissions source locations, emissions rates, and emission factor calculations and methodology.

For assistance, please contact the District's Technical Services Department by:

- E-Mailing inquiries to: hramodeler@valleyair.org
- Calling (559) 230-5900
- Visiting the Districts modeling guidance website at:

http://www.valleyair.org/busind/pto/Tox_Resources/AirQualityMonitoring.htm.

4) Truck Routing During Construction

Truck routing involves the path/roads heavy-duty trucks take to and from their destination. The air emissions from heavy-duty trucks can impact communities and sensitive receptors.

The District recommends that Caltrans evaluate heavy-duty truck re-routing patterns during construction to identify alternative truck routes, and help limit air emissions and impacts to surrounding receptors during construction.

Additionally, as related information, the City has committed to working with the District to commission a heavy duty truck rerouting study for the community in the adopted CERP for South Central Fresno. The District recommends that this study be discussed in the DEIR as appropriate.

5) District Rules and Regulation

The District issues permits for many types of air pollution sources and regulates some activities not requiring permits. A project subject to District rules and regulation would reduce its impacts on air quality through compliance with regulatory requirements. In general, a regulation is a collection of rules, each of which deals with a specific topic.

The list of rules below is neither exhaustive nor exclusive. Current District rules can be found online at: www.valleyair.org/rules/1ruleslist.htm. To identify other District rules or regulations that apply to this Project or to obtain information about District permit requirements, the applicant is strongly encouraged to contact the District's Small Business Assistance (SBA) Office at (559) 230-5888.

5a) District Rule 9510 (Indirect Source Review)

The purpose of District Rule 9510 (Indirect Source Review) is to reduce the growth in both NOx and PM10 emissions associated with development and transportation projects from mobile and area sources associated with construction and operation of development projects. The rule encourages clean air design elements to be incorporated into the development project. In case the proposed project clean air design elements are insufficient to meet the targeted emission reductions, the rule requires developers to pay a fee used to fund projects to achieve off-site emissions reductions.

The proposed Project is subject to District Rule 9510 because it will receive a project-level discretionary approval from a public agency and is a transportation project where construction exhaust emissions equal or exceed two (2.0) tons of NOx or two (2.0) tons of PM10. When subject to the rule, an Air Impact Assessment (AIA) application is required prior to applying for project-level approval from a public agency. In this case, if not already done, please submit an AIA application to the District to comply with District Rule 9510.

An AIA application is required and the District recommends that demonstration of compliance with District Rule 9510, before issuance of the first building permit, be made a condition of Project approval.

Information about how to comply with District Rule 9510 can be found online at:

http://www.valleyair.org/ISR/ISRHome.htm.

The AIA application form can be found online at:

http://www.valleyair.org/ISR/ISRFormsAndApplications.htm.

5b) District Regulation VIII (Fugitive PM10 Prohibitions)

The project proponent will be required to submit a Construction Notification Form or submit and receive approval of a Dust Control Plan prior to commencing any earthmoving activities as described in Regulation VIII, specifically Rule 8021 - Construction, Demolition, Excavation, Extraction, and Other Earthmoving Activities.

The application for both the Construction Notification and Dust Control Plan can be found online at:

https://www.valleyair.org/busind/comply/PM10/forms/DCP-Form.docx

Information about District Regulation VIII can be found online at: http://www.valleyair.org/busind/comply/pm10/compliance_pm10.htm

5c) Other District Rules and Regulations

The Project may also be subject to the following District rules: Rule 4102 (Nuisance), Rule 4601 (Architectural Coatings), and Rule 4641 (Cutback, Slow Cure, and Emulsified Asphalt, Paving and Maintenance Operations). In the event an existing building will be renovated, partially demolished or removed, the project may be subject to District Rule 4002 (National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants).

If you have any questions or require further information, please contact Cherie Clark by e-mail at Cherie.Clark@valleyair.org or by phone at (559) 230-5940.

Sincerely,

Brian Clements

Director of Permit Services

Mark Montelongo

Program Manager

Response to the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District

Thank you for your comments on the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment.

1) In an effort to align Caltrans work with South Central Fresno's Community Emission Reduction Program, Caltrans assessed the Community Emission Reduction Program's emission reduction measures and strategies and considered them for the project. Caltrans coordinated with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District and attended meetings with South Central Fresno's Assembly Bill 617 Community Steering Committee to gather recommendations for greenhouse gas mitigation measures. Caltrans used information and feedback from these engagement efforts and proposed the inclusion of a sidewalk and vegetative barrier installation in the South Central Fresno Community for greenhouse gas mitigation.

2) The project includes measures which require construction equipment used on the proposed project to meet Environmental Protection Agency Tier 4 emission standards.

3) Caltrans will not conduct a health risk assessment because the project was considered less than significant with regard to air quality impacts. Based on the results of the mobile source air toxics emissions within the studied roadway, a decrease in mobile source air toxics emissions can be expected to be lower through all future year levels because of improved technology. This finding is consistent with the Federal Highway Administration-projected trend. For more information regarding project air quality impacts, please refer to Section 2.2.3 of the final environmental document.

Because the project is in a designated nonattainment area for the federal fine particulate matter 2.5 standards, respectively, a determination was made as to whether the project qualifies as a project of air quality concern. The project has undergone interagency consultation, which was initiated in July 2020, to make this determination. Concurrence was received from the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Federal Highway Administration in October 2020, which concluded that the project is not a project of air quality concern.

An Air Quality Conformity Analysis was prepared and submitted to the Federal Highway Administration on September 2, 2022 to request a projectlevel conformity determination. Caltrans cannot approve the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment without the determination by the Federal Highway Administration. Following the Federal Highway Administration's review, the Federal Highway Administration provided a project-level conformity determination for the project on October 3, 2022. Appendix F provides a copy of the project-level conformity determination by the Federal Highway Administration. 4) Truck Routing During Construction – The City of Fresno is currently conducting a Heavy-Duty Truck Routing Study to identify alternative truck routes and help limit air emissions and impacts to surrounding receptors. The study has not been completed, therefore it was not included in the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment. The construction of the South Fresno Interchange project will not prevent the City of Fresno from making changes to its General Plan. There is a current need to replace the interchanges, regardless of what future actions the City of Fresno takes.

5a) Caltrans acknowledges that the project is subject to the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District's Rule 9510 (Indirect Source Review). Per Rule 9510, a completed Air Impact Assessment application is required prior to the construction of the proposed project to minimize construction-related emissions for nitrous oxides (NOx) and particulate matter (PM10). Caltrans and the construction contractor will work with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District to obtain approval of the Air Impact Assessment and remit any applicable offsite mitigation fees.

5b) Caltrans agrees that the project may be subject to San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District Rules and Regulations, including: Regulation VIII, Rule 8021, Rule 4102, Rule 4601, Rule 4641, and Rule 4002. Caltrans will continue to coordinate with the District's Small Business Assistance Office, as suggested.

Comment from Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability

December 3, 2021

John Thomas Central Region Environmental California Department of Transportation 2015 East Shields Avenue, Suite 100 Fresno, CA 93726 john.q.thomas@dot.ca.gov

Re: Comments on South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project Draft EIR/Environmental Assessment

Mr. Thomas,

We, the undersigned organizations and individuals, are writing to provide you with comments regarding the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Project and the associated Draft Environmental Impact Report ("DEIR") and Environmental Assessment. We ask that Caltrans not proceed with this Project at this time in order to respect ongoing public processes which may require changes to this Project and to allow Caltrans to engage in meaningful outreach to impacted communities and stakeholders in the Project area. Specifically, we ask that Caltrans not proceed with this Project until the City of Fresno completes its South Central Specific Plan, which includes the reconsideration of industrial land use in the South Central area,¹ as well as the Heavy Duty Truck Routing Study which it is undertaking in response to policies contained in the South Central Fresno AB 617 Community Emissions Reduction Plan.

South Fresno residents and our organizations have been deeply involved in the development of the SCSP and the Truck Routing Study and the implementation of the CERP over the past several years. A fundamental goal of residents' during this time has been to ensure the protection of South Fresno and South Central Fresno communities from the impacts of further industrial development in close proximity to homes and schools and to secure the adoption of new truck routes that afford residents in the area the greatest protection and distance from high volume roadways and heavy duty truck traffic. By proposing to expand the capacity of interchanges at American Avenue and North Avenue in order to support continued industrial growth in South Central Fresno, this Project would put in place \$120 million worth of infrastructure improvements that further cements and entrenches existing industrial land use patterns that have resulted in South Central Fresno communities' designation as the most pollution-burdened in California.

At the same time, the Project, by increasing capacity for truck and car traffic to flow into South Central Fresno and on local roadways, would contribute to

residents' increased exposure to harmful air pollution and other impacts of vehicle travel and would complicate and undermine community efforts to secure changes to City and County of Fresno truck routes. The DEIR's failure to acknowledge the existence of residential communities and neighorhoods and other sensitive receptors in South Central Fresno drastically compounds this Project's potential to harm, by depriving residents of adequate mitigation measures responsive to the Project's impacts on people and the environment and violates CEQA. Caltrans must correct the deficiencies addressed in this letter by revising its analysis, identifying and incorporating all feasible mitigation measures to avoid and reduce the Project's impacts on the environment and people, and by meaningfully incorporating and responding to public input and recirculating the revised DEIR.

Finally, Caltrans has denied our request for a general extension of the comment deadline for this Project, given Caltrans' and the other involved agencies' failure to timely consult the AB 617 Community Steering Committee regarding this Project or to reach out directly to impacted communities. As community-based organizations and residents, our comments reflect input provided to us and to Caltrans regarding residents' priorities and concerns for their communities. We therefore reserve the right to submit further comments addressing the impacts associated with this Project and our requests and recommendations in light thereof.

1. The DEIR Inaccurately and Inadequately Describes the Environmental Baseline By Failing to Acknowledge the Presence of Existing Pollution-Burdened Communities & Other Sensitive Receptors

"Establishing [an environmental] baseline at the beginning of the CEQA process is a fundamental requirement so that changes brought about by a project can be seen in context and significant effects can be accurately identified." *Communities for a Better Environment v. City of Richmond* (2010) 184 Cal.App.4th 70, 89; *see also* CEQA Guidelines, § 15125(c). "If the description of the environmental setting 'is inaccurate, incomplete or misleading, the EIR does not comply with CEQA." *Cleveland National Forest Foundation v. San Diego Assn. of Governments* (2017) 17 Cal.App.5th 413, 439. An accurate description of the environmental setting is also critical, because the significance of an activity may vary with the setting. CEQA Guidelines, § 15064(b). A "project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant." *Kings County Farm Bureau v. City of Hanford* (1990) 221 Cal.App.3d 692, 718, 721; CEQA Guidelines, § 15300.2(a)).

Unfortunately, the DEIR's curtailed references to the environmental setting here are inaccurate, incomplete, and misleading and therefore do not comply with CEQA. Guidelines, § 15064(b). Significantly and concerningly, the DEIR repeatedly states that there are "no neighborhoods in or close to the project area," that "no minority or low-income populations were identified in the

project area," and that "the closest residential neighborhoods [are] over two miles away." pp. 27-28; p. 134 ("There are no neighborhoods with residents living within the project area, nor within approximately one and a half miles away from either interchange"). But in fact, a number of communities and neighborhoods which are home to thousands of people, as well as schools and places of worship, are located within two miles and less of the Project, as its location is depicted in Figure 1-2, "Project Location Map." These communities, neighborhoods, and other sensitive uses include but are not limited to the following:

- Shady Lakes Mobile Home Park located at 5665 South Chestnut Avenue (.6 miles from the Project)
- Calwa (.68 miles from the Project)²
- Malaga (1.1 miles from the Project)
- Daleville (1 mile from the Project)
- neighborhoods located in West Fresno along North Avenue, including neighborhoods located at West Almy and West Roy Avenue ("Roy & Almy") and off of S Clara and E Samson Avenues (approximately 1.25 miles from the Project)
- the neighborhood located at E Kaviland, S Rose, and S Nicholas Avenues (1.4 miles from the Project)
- the Flamingo Mobil Home Lodge located at 2581 East Central Avenue (1.4 miles from the Project)
- Orange Elementary School located at 3530 South Cherry Avenue (.85 miles from the Project)
- Calwa Elementary School (1 mile from the Project)²
- Malaga Elementary School (1 mile from the Project)
- West Fresno Elementary School and West Fresno Middle School located at 2888 South Ivy Avenue (1.4 miles from the Project)
- Gurdawara Nanaksar Sahib located at 3060 South Cherry Avenue (.6 miles from the Project)

In addition, many residential neighborhoods, schools, and places of worship are located even closer to, including directly along, North Avenue, American Avenue, and other roads within the area bounded by Highways 99 and 41 onto which traffic using the North and American Avenue interchanges flows. These include but are not limited to residential neighborhoods, schools, and places of worship listed above, as well as other sensitive receptors, such as the residential neighborhood located on East Central Avenue between Orange Avenue and Cedar Avenue, the neighborhood located on East Britten Avenue, and Wat Brahmacariyakaram located at 4485 South Orange Avenue. These and other sensitive receptors located near roadways used by traffic entering the area from the North Avenue and American Avenue interchanges must be identified and considered as part of the environmental setting for this Project, as they stand to be directly impacted by increased traffic volumes facilitated by the Project's proposed interchange improvements.

CalTrans' failure to identify the presence of communities and other sensitive land uses located in the Project's vicinity is made even more significant and concerning given the fact that the California Air Resources Control Board ("CARB") has designated the area, including the Project Location itself, for targeted monitoring and reduction of harmful air pollutants in response to the area's high levels of air pollution, significant number of sensitive receptors, and census tracts designated as disadvantaged communities by the California EPA. Specifically, in 2018, ARB selected South Central Fresno (see ARB map identifying South Central Fresno community boundaries copied below) for the development of air monitoring and community emissions reduction plan pursuant to AB 617 (C. Garcia, Ch. 136, Stats. 2017).

[AB 617 Community Boundary Map]

The neighborhoods and communities in the Project's vicinity are among the most pollution-burdened in the state according to California EPA's California Communities Environmental Health Screening Tool, "CalEnviroScreen 4.0". CalEnviroScreen ranks neighborhoods across the state for cumulative pollution burden using both pollution burden and population characteristic indicators. The CalEnviroScreen pollution-burden indicators include indicators for ozone, PM2.5, diesel particulate matter, pesticide use, toxic releases from facilities, traffic impacts, drinking water contaminants, hazardous waste generators and facilities, and cleanup sites, among others. The CalEnviroScreen population characteristic indicators include but are not limited to asthma, cardiovascular disease, low birth weight infants, linguistic isolation, and poverty.4 The census tract in which the Project is located, census tract 6019001700 which includes Malaga, the Flamingo Mobile Home Lodge, and neighborhoods on East Central Avenue and East Malaga Avenue, ranks in the 99th percentile overall pursuant to CalEnviroScreen 4.0., in the 100th percentile for pollution-burden indicators, and in the 96th percentile for PM2.5 under CalEnviroScreen. Neighboring census tract 6019001100 ranks as the most pollution burdened neighborhood in the state under CalEnviroScreen, scoring in the 100th percentile for pollution burden and population characteristic indicators and in the 99th percentile for Diesel PM, the 98th percentile for PM2.5, the 97th percentile for asthma, the 96th percentile for low birth weight, and the 92nd percentile for cardiovascular disease. Other neighboring census tracts, census tracts 6019001500 (South Central Fresno and Calwa) and 6019001800 (Western and South Central Fresno), rank in the 100th and 98th percentile respectively for pollutionburden score.⁵

The DEIR's failure to disclose the presence of communities and other sensitive receptors in vicinity of the Project and surrounding areas which will be environmentally impacted as a result of the Project and its failure to acknowledge existing cumulative pollution-burdens in the area render the DEIR inadequate. Without this information, the DEIR fails to properly establish an environmental baseline and cannot accurately evaluate the Project's potentially significant impacts. As a result, the DEIR fails its informational purpose under CEQA. *Communities for a Better Environment v. City of Richmond* (2010) 184 Cal.App.4th 70, 89.

2. The DEIR's Failure to Analyze the Project's Impact on Vehicle Miles Travelled is Inconsistent with CEQA and Undermines the EIR's Validity

CEQA establishes vehicle-miles travelled as the relevant focus on analysis of a project's transportation impacts in general. Pub. Res. Code § 21099(b); CEQA Guidelines § 15064.3(a). Vehicle miles travelled refers to the amount and distance of automobile travel attributable to a project. CEQA Guidelines § 15064.3(a). The CEQA Guidelines provide that transportation projects that "reduce, or have no impact on, vehicle miles traveled should be presumed to cause a less than significant impact." § 15064.3(b)(2). The Caltrans Memorandum, "Caltrans Policy On Transportation Impact Analysis and CEQA Significance Determinations for Projects On the State Highway System" ("Caltrans Memo"), dated September 10, 2020 states that the "determination of significance of a VMT impact will require a supporting induced travel analysis for capacity-increasing transportation projects on the [state highway] system].⁶" p. 1. The memo provides that, "[t]he potential for projects to induce additional travel will be the basis for determination of significance," and that methods of VMT analysis used "should reflect the potential for capacity additions to induce vehicle travel " Id

The DEIR's description of the Project and its purpose and need make clear that the Project is a "capacity-increasing" project, but the DEIR fails to include any analysis of the project's potential to induce travel and increase VMT to determine the significance of the Project's transportation impacts. With respect to the Project description, the DEIR states that the project includes conversion of half interchanges to full interchanges at American Avenue and North Avenue; the increase in the number of ramps at the American Avenue interchange from two to four; the expansion of the North Avenue overcrossing from two lanes to four lanes; the construction of a new four lane over-crossing at American Avenue; the installation of Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) elements to improve "safety, mobility, and *capacity* of the transportation system." DEIR, pp. vi, 1, 6, 13-15. The DEIR explains that existing "on- and off-ramps' tight dimension make it difficult for vehicles, 'especially large trucks', to navigate, implying that the Project's proposed on- and off-ramp improvements will facilitate traffic flow, including in particular the flow of trucks. DEIR, p. iv; p. 5. With respect to the Diverging Diamond Interchange proposed for construction at North Avenue under Alternative 4, the DEIR

states that the configuration "supports a greater volume of traffic" as compared to other configurations, including presumably the current configuration. p.16.

In addition, the DEIR makes clear that the Project's purpose is to allow for the buildout of industrial land uses in South Central Fresno, where thousands of acres of land area designated and pre-designated for industrial development which will generate significant volumes of truck and car traffic. The DEIR's discussion of the purpose and need for the Project emphasizes on several occasions that the "area is designated as an industrial and commercial zone by the County and City of Fresno" and that a "consistent vision for land use in the corridor supports traditional and *emerging* industrial and commercial business activities in a designated industrial priority area to serve the future economic health of the region." p. v. According to the DEIR, "[t]he County and the City have zoned properties in the corridor to meet planning goals...which include supporting industrial and commercial uses, maximizing the transportation advantages of the corridor, and supporting economic development within the county." p. 1. The "Natural Environment Study (Minimal Impacts)" which Caltrans completed for this Project states that "traffic is expected to increase in the project area due to implementation of planned development on both side of the highway" and that the existing split and partial interchanges at North Avenue and American Avenue "will not be able to meet projected traffic volumes from planned growth in the project area." p. 5. These statements make clear that the Project is designed to expand the capacity of the North Avenue and American Avenue interchanges to accommodate increased volumes of traffic that may occur as a result of continued industrial development in the Project area. As such, CEQA Guidelines Section 15064.3(b) and Caltrans policy require that the environmental review for this Project include an analysis of the Project's induced travel impacts.

The DEIR's VMT analysis consists of two sentences in which the DEIR states that the "project is in compliance with Caltrans Policy Memo (September 10, 2020)" and other relevant Caltrans policy implementing Public Resources Code Section 21099 and that:

"[t]herefore, the project meets criteria set forth in the policy memo and Attachment A that defines this project as a project type that is unaffected by the use of vehicle miles traveled' as a measure of transportation impacts because 'the project type is assumed to not lead to a measurable and substantial increase in vehicle miles travelled." DEIR, p. 32.

But the DEIR does not state which criteria the Project meets that define this project as one that is unaffected by VMT or why the project type is assumed no to lead to a measurable and substantial increase in VMT. And this Project does not fall within any of the project types identified in Attachment A as

project types would "generally should not require an induced travel analysis." See Caltrans Memo, pp. 5-6. The project types listed include, among others:

- rehabilitation, maintenance, replacement, safety, and repair projects designed to improve the condition of existing transportation assets and "that do not add additional motor vehicle capacity"
- roadside safety devices such as median barriers and guardrails
- roadway shoulder enhancements to provide "breakdown space", bicycle access or otherwise improve safety
- addition of a new lane that is permanently restricted to use only by transit vehicles
- reduction in number of through lanes
- initiation of new transit service
- conversion of streets from one-way to two-way operation with no net increase in number of traffic lanes

As this Project would increase capacity through the addition of lanes and new overcrossings and the construction of new interchange configurations and dimensions which will accommodate greater volumes of truck traffic, according to the DEIR itself, this Project does not fit within any of the project types set forth above or in the Memo. It also clearly differs in nature and scale from the Project types listed in the Memo, which include improvements to allow for repair of existing facilities without capacity enhancements, relatively minor improvements to promote safety and efficiency, and support for biking, walking, public transit, and high occupancy and fuel efficient vehicles.

The DEIR's failure to evaluate the Project's VMT effects violates CEQA and renders inaccurate and incomplete multiple other sections of the DEIR's analysis, including its analysis of the Project's greenhouse gas emissions, air pollution, noise, vibration, light pollution and housing impacts and impacts on human beings and public health. The Governor's Office of Planning and Research ("OPR") states that, "[f]or any project that increases vehicle travel, explicit assessment and quantitative reporting of the amount of additional vehicle travel should no be omitted from the [CEQA] document."7 This VMT analysis is necessary to make reasonably accurate estimates of the Project's greenhouse gas emissions, air pollution, noise, vibration, light pollution and housing impacts and its impacts on human beings and public health. Id. Here, Caltrans has not quantified increased VMT or evaluated the associated impacts that may be caused by expanding the capacity of the North Avenue and American Avenue interchanges. Other sections of this letter discuss some of the potentially significant impacts which are likely to result from increased VMT due to this Project and which the DEIR fails to consider or adequately mitigate.

3.The DEIR Fails to Adequately Analyze or Mitigate the Project's Significant Air Quality Impacts

The area in which the proposed project is located is subject to some of the worst air quality in the entire country as well as in the City and County of Fresno. In its 2020 State of the Air Report, the American Lung Association graded the Fresno-Madera-Hanford Metropolitan Area as the city with the worst short-term air pollution (24-hour PM2.5) the nation.⁸ pp. 8, 20. The State of the Air Report also ranked the Fresno Metropolitan area the second worst city for annual particle pollution and the fourth most ozone polluted city.7 ALA, State of the Air Report, pp. 9, 21, 22. Census Tract 6019001500, where the Project is located, respectively ranks in the 85th, 96th, 95th, and 95rd percentile for ozone, PM2.5, toxic releases, and pesticide exposures and 93th and 71st percentile respectively for emergency room visits for asthma and for rates of cardiovascular disease among its residents. Attachment 1. Residents of the neighborhoods and communities in area surrounding the Project, including Calwa, Malaga, Daleville, Shady Lakes Mobile Home Park, Flamingo Mobile Home Park, and East Kaviland Avenue, and students at Malaga Elementary School and Calwa Elementary School, already suffer from severe exposure and vulnerability to air pollution. The rapid introduction of numerous warehouse development into the area and the resulting millions of yearly truck and car trips generated by these facilities on local roadways in recent years has contributed to further deterioration of local air quality.

These facts make a thorough analysis of the proposed project's potential air quality impacts as a result of Project construction and the facilitation and inducement of even more truck and car traffic into South Central Fresno crucial. Given the sensitive context in which the project site is located and recent pollution-generating projects, any incremental increase in air pollution exposure of sensitive populations as a result of the project must be deemed individually and cumulatively significant and mitigated. Unfortunately, the DEIR fails to acknowledge the sensitive environmental setting in which the Project is located, conduct a thorough analysis of the Project's potential air quality impacts, or identify feasible mitigation measures to avoid and reduce those impacts. CalTrans must revise and recirculate the DEIR to correct these deficiencies.

1. The DEIR Fails to Analyze or Acknowledge the Project's Conflicts With The South Central Fresno AB 617 Community Emissions Reduction Plan

CEQA requires EIRs to discuss any inconsistencies between the proposed project and applicable air quality plans. See CEQA Guidelines § 15125(d). Yet, the DEIR fails to evaluate the Project's consistency with South Central Fresno Community Emissions Reduction Plan ("CERP"), adopted by the San Joaquin Valley Air District on September 19, 2019. Given the Project's location within the South Central Fresno community boundaries and the high levels of air pollution impacting the area already, CalTrans thorough assessment of the Project's consistency with the CERP is essential to ensure the CERP can achieve its goals of reducing air pollution in the South Central Fresno community.

The CERP recognizes that the majority of air pollution emissions in South Central Fresno come from mobile and industrial sources. p. 69. As described by CARB, the CERP "focuses on reducing exposure to fine particulate matter (PM2.5), toxic air contaminants (TAC), as well as oxides of nitrogen (NOx)" from these and other sources. ⁹ The Project undermines the CERP's overarching goal of reducing pollution in South Central Fresno given its purpose to allow and facilitate continued industrial development in and the flow of truck and car traffic (mobile sources) into the area.

In addition, the Project conflicts with CERP Policy HD.11, Heavy Duty Truck Routing, which provides that the Air District will work with the City of Fresno, the County of Fresno, *and Caltrans* to support a Heavy Duty Truck Routing Study which evaluates alternative truck routes to the routes currently established by the City and County. CalTrans estimates that construction of this Project will cost up to \$140 million. The Project's development therefore will constitute an enormous sunk cost into the existing truck route network and would make implementation of alternative recommendations by the Heavy Duty Truck Routing study unlikely. Accordingly, CalTrans should allow the City of Fresno and the Air District to complete and implement the Heavy Duty Truck Routing Study and revise the Project as needed to ensure consistency with that study before adopting the Project as proposed.

2. The Project Would Expose Sensitive Receptors to Substantial Pollutant Concentrations

The DEIR's conclusion that the Project would not expose sensitive receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations relies on its assertion that "there are no sensitive receptors in the range of the project" and the DEIR's failure to consider the Project's potential VMT impacts from induced travel. 114. As discussed above, residential neighborhoods and communities, schools, and places of worship are located in close proximity to the Project Location and close to roadways which traffic that is likely to occur as a result of the Project will use. Caltrans must revise the DEIR to include a thorough and accurate evaluation of the impacts of different air pollution impacts as a result of the Project, including impacts on sensitive receptors and as a result of the Project's construction and operation.

As VMT increases, so does air pollution – including emissions of greenhouse gases, criteria pollutants, and toxic air contaminants. CARB found that sensitive populations can experience serious health impacts, including worsening of asthma and cardiovascular disease and adverse birth outcomes, due to increases in traffic-related air pollution.¹⁰ CARB has

identified projects that attract heavy and consistent diesel vehicle traffic as posing the highest risk to adjacent receptors.¹¹ Diesel particulate matter ("DPM"), generated by truck traffic, is composed of carbon particles ("black carbon" or "soot"), organic compounds, including over 40 known cancercausing organic substances, in addition to volatile organic compounds and NOx. Health impacts associated with exposure to DPM include cancer, cardiopulmonary death, cardiovascular and respiratory hospitalizations, and emergency room visits for asthma.¹² CARB has similarly found that "poor and minority communities are more likely to live near busy roadways, and may be more at-risk for the health effects related to exposure to traffic emissions." Id. at p. 3. By increasing the capacity of the North Avenue and American Avenue interchanges to accommodate increased traffic volumes, and large trucks in particular, including on roadways in and near many sensitive receptors, the Project will likely expose people to significant public health risks as a result of diesel PM exposure. The DEIR must evaluate the potential impacts of DPM on residences, schools, and other sensitive re located near the Project and roadways utilized by vehicle traffic supported by the Project and must consider the high existing levels of air pollution exposures in the area in determining the severity of the impacts and mitigation required.

In addition, the DEIR must also consider the following potentially significant air quality impacts on sensitive receptors within the Project vicinity:

- Dust and other air quality impacts from Project construction. The DEIR appears not to consider whether residents in communities located near the Project may be exposed to substantial dust from construction activities. The DEIR indicates that Project construction is expected to last for 18 months. p. 2. Given the significant duration of construction, the scope of improvements proposed, and the Project's close proximity to Calwa and other emissions-burdened residential areas, it is critical that Caltrans revise the DEIR to thoroughly account for dust and other air quality impacts of construction on the local population.
- Dust impacts from Project operation. The DEIR also does not appear to consider the significant dust impacts associated with vehicle travel along local roadways with unpaved shoulders and where sensitive receptors are located, including East Central Avenue. Residents in South Central Fresno have reported noticing significant quantities of dust covering their homes and cars and seeping into their homes. Attachment 3 par. 8.

Chronic exposure to dust can result in a range of lung diseases and other health impacts.¹³

• Tire dust exposure impacts. Studies have found that rubber from vehicle tires dissipates into the air as particulate matter with wear and that PM causes adverse health impacts for sensitive receptors which inhale it. CalTrans must revise the DEIR to evaluate the potential exposure to

sensitive receptors to PM from tire wear and associated impacts on public health.¹⁴

4. The DEIR Erroneously Dismisses the Project's Significant Aesthetic Impacts

The DEIR concludes with almost no analysis that the Project will result in no aesthetic impacts, including no impacts on scenic vistas; the visual character of non-urbanized areas or the quality of public views; and on the creation of new sources of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect views in the area. Yet in reaching these summary conclusions, the DEIR ignores the significant adverse aesthetic impacts that will result from (1) increased traffic on local roadways in South Central Fresno that the Project's interchange improvements will facilitate and (2) traffic-generating industrial development which the Project is designed to support. See DEIR, p. 5 (identifying increased traffic as a result of development in the project area as a basis for the need for the Project); pp. v, 37, 141 (describing the American and North Avenue interchanges as primary points of access for existing and developing industrial and commercial businesses in the area).

A. The Project Will Have Substantial Adverse Effects on Scenic Vistas and Will Substantially Degrade Public Views

South Central Fresno includes vineyards, semi-rural single-family residential neighborhoods, and several Sikh, Buddhist, and Christian cultural landmarks and places of worship, including Wat Brahmacariyakaram. Striking views of the Sierra Nevadas are also visible from public locations within the area. By allowing increased flows of heavy-duty truck and car traffic into the area, the Project will significantly block public views of bucolic semi- rural and scenic mountain vistas, replacing those views with views of constantly passing truck and car traffic. Pursuant to the California Vehicle Code, trucks may be up to 14 feet in height, and the average car is five to six feet tall and semi-trucks extend for 72 feet or more. The constant passage of cars and trucks in South Central Fresno will replace scenic views for pedestrians, bicyclists and other members of the public with unattractive views of vehicles.

In addition, by opening gateways for increased truck and car traffic into South Central Fresno, the Project facilitates the development of new industrial facilities on land zoned for industrial development throughout the area. The City of Fresno's Citywide Development Code permits buildings in all industrial zone districts, for which South Central Fresno is almost exclusively zoned, designated, and/or pre-zoned, to stand up to 60 feet tall and requires buildings in those zone districts to be set back from the property line only 15 feet. Fresno Municipal Code ("FMC") § 15-303, Tables 15-302-1 & 15-302-2.¹⁵ The construction of large industrial buildings in South Central Fresno will eliminate existing scenic views of the rural agricultural setting, as low-lying vineyards, agricultural lands, and small residential communities become interspersed with expansive and towering buildings in relation to the setting.

The industrial buildings and other features of industrial sites, such as retaining walls and berms, also substantially or completely block public views of the Sierra Nevada Mountain Ranges. Construction of the Ulta Beauty warehouse distribution facility and retaining walls along the facility's perimeter in 2017 blocked the previously open views of the Sierra Nevada mountain range from the disadvantaged unincorporated community of Daleville on East Daleville and South Mary Avenues, which is adjacent to the facility. Each new warehouse or industrial development may generate thousands of new truck and car trips per day.¹⁶ Therefore, though the DEIR does not acknowledge it, further warehouse and industrial development that occurs as a result of this Project will diminish scenic vistas and public views in the area and will result in individually and cumulatively significant impacts which must be thoroughly analyzed and mitigated.

B. The Project Will Create New Sources of Substantial Light or Glare That Adversely Impact Views

Truck and car trips generated in South Central Fresno as a result of this Project will create substantial light and glare impacts on local streets and homes at night. Light from vehicle traffic increases the amount of light impacting residences.¹⁷ Light pollution causes adverse health impacts. For instance, an increased amount of light exposure at night lowers melatonin production, which results in sleep deprivation, fatigue, headaches, stress, anxiety, and other health problems.¹⁸ In fact, evidence of the health effects of light pollution has convinced the American Medical Association to support efforts to control light pollution and conduct research on the potential risks of exposure to light from vehicles and other sources.¹⁹

South Central Fresno residents have indeed reported that truck and car headlights that travel to and from recently developed warehouse distribution centers in the area reduce nighttime darkness in the area and in the homes of residents on streets used by heavy vehicle traffic, including East Central Avenue and South Orange Avenue. In addition, new warehouses and industrial facilities enabled by the Project will require outdoor lighting during nighttime operations. Recently developed warehouses, including the Amazon and Ulta Beauty distribution centers, have installed dozens of floodlights throughout facility parking lots and around facility perimeters, causing light to spill into surrounding public roadways, shoulders, and homes.

Construction lighting for warehouse and industrial projects similarly impacts public and private views. *See* Attachment 3, Declaration of Katie Taylor, par. 6.

Caltrans must revise the DEIR to thoroughly study the Project's potential light impacts on residences in South Central Fresno and incorporate all feasible mitigation measures to avoid and reduce those impacts.

5. The DEIR Fails to Consider Significant Noise and Groundborne Vibration Impacts of Vehicle Traffic on Sensitive Land Uses

The DEIR states that the project will not result in substantial increases in ambient noise levels in excess of applicable standards, and that the project would not generate excessive groundborne vibration or noise during construction or operation. The DEIR does not provide any information or analysis to support its conclusions regarding the Project's potential noise and vibration impacts, other than to state that construction noise would be reduced in accordance with local ordinances and to reference a "2020 Noise Study Report." But the Noise Study Report basis its conclusion on its assertion that "there are no residential units with outdoor locations of frequent human use" around the North Avenue or American Avenue Interchange.

The Noise Study Report fails to account for the precense of Calwa and Shady Lakes Mobile Home Park within less than .7 miles from the Project and fails to consider noise impacts associated with increased truck and car traffic on local roadways as a result of the proposed interchange improvements. Noise Study Report, pp. i-ii. As a result, the DEIR's noise and groundborn vibration impacts analysis if flawed and cannot serve as a foundation for a determination that the Project will not result in significant noise impacts.

In fact, noise and vibration impacts resulting from construction, which the DEIR expects will last approximately 18 months and from the increased VMT from the Project, as well as from additional industrial development that may occur as a result of the interchange improvements, is likely to cause significant noise impacts. The Project's construction would also likely cause significant noise pollution. The Project's construction would require an array of heavy-duty trucks and equipment that would generate noise pollution that would disturb residents.

Construction noise impacts are known to occur at over 90 dB at 100 feet from the source, and over 80 dB at 200 feet from the source.²⁰ The construction noise would likely include groundborne vibrations from construction activities that would disturb residents. *Id.* at 11.

Importantly, although the DEIR states that the Project will comply with local ordinances to support it finding that the Project's noise and vibration impacts will not be significant, the DEIR does not disclose that the City of Fresno exempts construction activity from noise control where it occurs between 7 a.m. and 10 p.m. City of Fresno General Plan Draft Program EIR at 4.13-19²¹; FMC § 10-109. The FMC completely exempts vibration caused by temporary construction from its regulations. FMC § 15-2507. ²²

It is important to analyze the potential noise and vibration impacts associated with Project construction because the surrounding neighborhood is already affected by noise pollution. As the DEIR discusses in detail, the Project area is impacted by intersecting freeways, freight lines, and the construction and future operation of high speed rail. As the DEIR acknowledge, the City has approved multiple warehouse and other industrial projects in South Fresno in recent years and both the City and County currently have policies in place to attract more industrial land uses to the area. The California Attorney General recently observed that the noise from the construction of these projects causes "intrusive impacts to nearby sensitive receptors.²³ Thus, Caltrans must evaluate the Project's construction noise impacts.

In addition, studies show that motor vehicles are usually the primary source of noise pollution, and that VMT increases are correlated with negative noise impacts.²⁴ Heavy-duty trucks, in particular, increase disruptive noise substantially. A diesel truck moving 40 miles per hour, 50 feet away, produces 84 decibels of sound.²⁵ The California Attorney General recently observed that trucks can be loud, bringing disruptive noise levels that can cause hearing damage after prolonged exposure.²⁶ South Central Fresno resident Katie Taylor, as described in her declaration regarding the City of Fresno's General Plan Program EIR, confirms the occurrence of these impacts as a result of truck traffic in South Central Fresno. She states:

"a loud rumbling from the trucks passing [in front of her home] can be heard all hours of the day and night. A loud rumbling from the trucks passing can be heard all hours of the day and night. The vibration from the trucks shakes my house. The trucks are so loud sometimes that it sounds like someone is knocking at my door, and it can sometimes be hard to hear visitors talking in my house when trucks pass by." Attachment 3, par. 7.

Ms. Taylor's declaration also verifies the impact of noise from construction on industrial zoned parcels in South Central Fresno on community residents:

"The construction of the Amazon facility [near her home] had major impacts on me and my neighborhood. The nighttime construction was loud and they used very bright lights. The truck traffic during construction was also extremely loud, and I could hear the noise from within my home with my windows shut. The construction caused vibrations that were so strong that my

house shook on occasions." Attachment 3, par. 6.

The introduction of additional traffic into South Central Fresno due to the increased capacity as a result of North Avenue and American Avenue interchange improvements and increased warehouse and industrial development that occurs in response will exacerbate the noise and groundborne vibration impacts of truck and car traffic and warehouse construction and operation on South Central Fresno. Given the significant existing noise and groundborne vibration in the area, this Project's

additional noise and vibration impacts are likely to be significant. See CEQA Guidelines, § 15064(b); *Kings County Farm Bureau v. City of Hanford* (1990) 221 Cal.App.3d 692, 718, 721. CalTrans must revise the DEIR to thoroughly and accurately analyze the Project's potential noise and groundborne vibration impacts and include feasible mitigation measures to avoid and reduce those impacts.

6. The Project Undermines Public Process in City & County Planning Processes and Conflicts With the South Central Specific Plan's Goals and Environmental Justice Planning Requirements

The DEIR repeatedly justifies the need for the Project based on the industrial and commercial land use designations and zoning within the South Central Fresno area and the City's "consistent vision" for land use in the area supporting those types of uses. DEIR, p. v. The DEIR also states that the pending South Central Specific Plan will consolidate existing City policies relating to industrial development in the area and will "describe the City's intent to address obstacles encountered by businesses looking to relocate to the Fresno area...so that companies can more easily move in and begin operation." DEIR, p. 36.

The DEIR's simple portrayal of the South Central area as only a locus for industrial development disregards the existence of neighborhoods, communities, and other sensitive land uses and cultural landmarks in the area. And its characterization of the SCSP as a vehicle to fulfill this purpose ignores the Fresno City Council's stated intention for the SCSP that the SCSP will strongly consider reductions in zoning intensity near sensitive land uses in the area "to provide 'buffers' to protect sensitive uses from adverse impacts from more intense land use in a manner that reflects stakeholder input." Attachment 4, Resolution In Support of Community Engagement in the South Central Specific Plan EIR. par. 1. The Council Resolution addressing this topic also states that the City "desires that residents and stakeholders in and adjacent to the plan area shall inform the [SCSP], through an inclusive community engagement process." Id. at par. 3.

By presuming that the SCSP, once adopted, will simply direct more businesses to the South Central area without any revision to existing industrial land use designations, the DEIR implies the public input provided into the SCSP, including input relating to the need for buffer zones and protections for existing residents, will not be implemented. Yet, Leadership Counsel and other organizations worked extensively to develop a "Community Map" with revised land use designations for South Central Fresno that replace existing industrial land use designations by sensitive receptors and the City is currently studying that map through its development of the SCSP EIR.27.
The DEIR also points to policies contained in the draft revision of the Fresno County General Plan which would direct further industrial development to Calwa, Malaga and other nearby areas as a basis for this Project. The DEIR does not mention, however, that the General Plan revision also is intended to include analysis and policies in response to Senate Bill 1000 (Sen. Leyva, Stats. 2016) which requires cities and counties to adopt measures to reduce unique or compounded health risks, including but not limited to air pollution exposure, in disadvantaged communities. Several of our organizations and residents of impacted communities have submitted comments to the County calling upon it to incorporate land use and policy changes into the General Plan that would protect communities from encroachment by new industrial land uses. We have specifically called on the County to eliminate policies referenced in the DEIR for the further concentration of industrial land uses in Calwa and Malaga.

The DEIR's disregard for public process and public input into the SCSP and Fresno County General Plan is particularly significant and concerning given the presence of disadvantaged communities in the area, South Central Fresno's status as one of the most pollution-burdened neighborhoods in the state, and the disproportionate share of residents who identify as people of color in South Central Fresno compared to Fresno as a whole. Given the DEIR's reliance on the industrial zoning and future of South Central Fresno as a justification for the Project, Caltrans should revise the DEIR to acknowledge the potential for land use and policy changes upon adoption of the SCSP and/or Fresno County General Plan revision and evaluate potential conflicts between the project's purposes and potential alternative land use designations and policies to protect impacted communities.

7. The Project Conflicts With Caltrans' Duties Under Civil Rights and Fair Housing Laws

Government Code section 11135 provides that no person shall be unlawfully subjected to discrimination under any program or activity that is conducted by the State of California or any state funded agency. The California Fair Employment and Housing Act also prohibits public agencies from discriminating in a manner that adversely impacts enjoyment of residence based on protected characteristics or creates, reinforces or perpetuates segregated housing patterns. FEHA's prohibition on discrimination includes land use discrimination that results in the location of toxic, pollution, and/or hazardous land uses in a manner that adversely impacts or renders infeasible the enjoyment of housing or any other land use benefit related to residential use. Gov. Code §§ 12995(I); 2 C.C.R. § 12161(b)(10). Further, the State of California, cities, counties, and other public agencies are subject to a duty to affirmatively further fair housing by taking meaningful actions to address disparities in housing needs and in access to opportunity and to take no action inconsistent with that duty. Gov. Code § 8899.50(a)(1)&(b).

Approval of this Project as currently proposed and without correcting the DEIR's serious deficiencies conflicts with Caltrans and the other project proponents' duties under these and other civil rights and fair housing statutes. The area in which the Project located in disproportionately comprised of people of color compared to the City and County of Fresno as a whole, with approximately 80% of residents in the Project census tract and 98.6% of residents in neighboring census tract 6019001202 identifying as a race other than white. As discussed above, the communities and neighborhoods within the Project vicinity are among the most environmentally-burdened in the state. The DEIR's failure to acknowledge the presence of multiple communities consisting of thousands of people in close proximity to the Project and roadways that the Project will impact and the DEIR's corresponding failure to study or mitigate the Project's impacts on residents of those communities and other nearby sensitive receptors threatens to expose people of color and housing occupied by people of color to disparate adverse environmental impacts in violation of civil rights and fair housing laws.

Thank you for your attention to this letter. Please contact us if you would like to find a time to discuss its contents.

Footnotes:

¹ The DEIR refers to the area bounded by Highways 99 and 41 and American Avenue as the "Industrial Triangle". We refer to it in this letter as South Central Fresno, in recognition of presence of neighborhoods and communities in the area.

² Distances between the Project location and sensitive uses listed here were btained using Google Maps aerial distance measurement tool on November 30, 2021.

³ Image copied from the California Air Resources Board website at https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our- work/programs/community-air-protection-program/communities/south-central-fresno

⁴ See "CalEnviroScreen 4.0," October 2021, by CalEPA, available at https://oehha.ca.gov/media/downloads/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscree n40reportf2021.pdf

⁵ See CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Excel and Data Dictionary PDF attached hereto as Attachment 1 and available at https://oehha.ca.gov/calenviroscreen/report/calenviroscreen-40.

⁶ The Caltrans Memorandum, Caltrans Policy On Transportation Impact Analysis and CEQA Significance Determinations for Projects On the State Highway System, dated September 10, 2020 is available at Caltrans website at https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/transportationplanning/documents/sb-743/2020-09-10- vmt-policy-memo-fnl-a11y.pdf ⁷ OPR Technical Advisory: ON Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA, at 16, https://opr.ca.gov/docs/20180416-743_Technical_Advisory_4.16.18.pdf

⁸ The ALA's 2020 State of the Air Report is available at http://www.stateoftheair.org/assets/SOTA-2020.pdf

⁹ CARB, South Central Fresno webpage available at https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/our-work/programs/community-air- protectionprogram/communities/south-central-fresno, accessed on May 6, 2021.

¹⁰ See CARB Technical Advisory: Strategies to Reduce Air Pollution Exposure Near High-Volume Roadways, available at https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/ch/rd_technical_advisory_final.pdf; See also Barboza, Tony, "Freeway pollution travels farther than we thought. Here's how to protect yourself," Los Angeles Times, December 30, 2017.

¹¹ See Risk Reduction Plan to Reduce Particulate Matter Emissions from Diesel-Fueled Engines and Vehicles (October 2000), at pp. 16-19, available at https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/sites/default/files/classic//diesel/documents/rrpfinal.pdf

¹² California Air Resources Board, Overview: Diesel Exhaust & Health, available at https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/overview-diesel-exhaust-andhealth

¹³ See Canadian Center for Occupational Health and Safety, "What are the effects of dust on the lungs?", available at https://www.ccohs.ca/oshanswers/chemicals/lungs_dust.html

¹⁴ Tess Riley, "Air Pollution Exposed: Why You Might Be Breathing in Tire Waste," Huffington Post, January 26, 2018, available at https://www.huffpost.com/entry/air-pollution-cars-tire-waste_n_5a6896e3e4b0dc592a0e6f8e

¹⁵ Fresno Municipal Code, Chapter 15, Article 13 is available at https://library.municode.com/ca/fresno/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=M UCOFR_CH15CIDECOINRE_PTIIB AOVDI_ART13EMDIE

¹⁶ The Traffic Impact Analysis for the expansion of an Amazon warehouse distribution center in the Northpointe Business Park in South Central Fresno estimated that that project alone would generate 3,274 daily vehicle trips or 1,195,010 vehicle trips per year. Attachment 2, Northpoint Building 31 Trip Generation and Impact Assessment, p. 4.

¹⁷ See, e.g., Unawareness in environmental protection: The case of light pollution from Traffic, Land Use Policy, Vol. 29(3) (July 2012), at p. 599, available at https://www.researchgate.net/publication/251543587_Unawareness_in_environm ental_protection_The_case_of_light_pollution_from_traffic. ¹⁸ See, e.g., Missing the Dark: Health Effects of Light Pollution, Environmental Health Perspectives (Jan. 2009), pp. A20–A27.

¹⁹ See AMA Website, https://policysearch.amaassn.org/policyfinder/detail/*?uri=%2FAMADoc%2FHOD.xml-0- 303.xml

²⁰ See Kimley Horn, Acoustical Assessment of Sierra Avenue and Casa Grande Warehouse Project City of Fontana, California (June 2020), at 20, Table 6, available at

https://www.fontana.org/DocumentCenter/View/32906/Sierra-and-Casa-Grande-Appendix-G---Noise?bidId=.

²¹ Available at the City of Fresno's webpage at https://www.fresno.gov/darm/wp- content/uploads/sites/10/2020/03/Fresno-GP-Public-Review-Draft-Program-EIR.pdf 22 FMC Sec. 15-2507 is available at:

https://library.municode.com/ca/fresno/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=M UCOFR_CH15CIDECOINRE_PTIIIR EAPSOALDI_ART25PEST_S15-2506NO

²³ See Attorney General, Warehouse Projects: Best Practices and Mitigation Measures to Comply with the California Environmental Quality Act, at 9.

²⁴ Lee et al., Assessment of traffic-related noise in three cities in the United States, Environmental Research, Vol. 132 (July 2014), pp. 182-189, available at https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/24792415.

²⁵ Noise Sources and Their Effects, available at https://www.chem.purdue.edu/chemsafety/Training/PPETrain/dblevels.htm.

²⁶ See Attorney General, Warehouse Projects: Best Practices and Mitigation Measures to Comply with the California Environmental Quality Act, at 9 (citing Noise Sources and Their Effects (a diesel truck moving 40 miles per hour, 50 feet away, produces 84 decibels of sound).

²⁷ See South Central Specific Plan, Alternative 1a, available at https://www.fresno.gov/darm/planning- development/plans-projects-underreview/#tab-08 and at https://www.fresno.gov/darm/wpcontent/uploads/sites/10/2021/04/Alternative-1a.pdf

Sincerely,

Ashley Werner Directing Attorney Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability Jazmin Buenrostro Youth & Engagement Coordinator Central California Environmental Justice Alliance

Catherine Garoupa-White Executive Director Central Valley Air Quality Coalition

Rosa DePew Resident, South Central Fresno

Kimberley McCoy Project Director Fresno Building Healthy Communities

Genoveva Islas Executive Director Cultiva La Salud

Kevin Hamilton Executive Director Central California Asthma Collaborative

Response to Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability

Thank you for commenting on the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment. Engaging with the public is an essential part of the environmental process. Public participation for this project has been accomplished through public hearings, public notices, and community meetings.

Caltrans is committed to continued collaboration with the community and your organization. The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment was released on October 14, 2021. Since that time, we have taken the following steps to support and continue engagement with the community and your organization:

The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment comment period was extended from 45 days to 51 days to account for the holiday season. Furthermore, the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment Spanish translation was released on December 15, 2021, adding an additional 45 days to allow extra time for the community to provide comments on the project.

At the request of your organization and other community members, on December 14, 2021, Caltrans staff attended the South Central Fresno Community Steering Committee meeting, hosted by the San Joaquin Valley Air District. Caltrans staff shared a presentation about the project and the draft environmental document and answered questions from committee members. Caltrans staff engaged the committee in a conversation about potential greenhouse gas mitigation for the project and solicited feedback and recommendations.

On April 26, 2022 and August 31, 2022, the project team attended a community meeting hosted by Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability and Friends of Calwa. The objective was to share project information, listen, and address questions and/or concerns. We also have walked the project area with individual community members to see and listen to their concerns.

Chapter 4 of the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment summarizes the results of Caltrans' efforts to engage and coordinate with the public. Your comments have been reproduced below with a Caltrans response provided after each comment.

Comment #1

Specifically, we ask that Caltrans not proceed with this Project until the City of Fresno completes its South Central Specific Plan, which includes the reconsideration of industrial land use in the South Central area,1 as well as the Heavy Duty Truck Routing Study which it is undertaking in response to policies contained in the South Central Fresno AB 617 Community Emissions Reduction Plan.

Response to Comment #1

The South Central Specific Plan and the Heavy-Duty Truck Routing Study are being conducted by the City of Fresno, independent of the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor project. The construction of the South Fresno Interchange project will not prevent the City of Fresno from making changes to its General Plan. There is a current need to replace the interchanges, regardless of what future actions the City of Fresno takes. See section 1.2.2 for more information.

Comment #2

By proposing to expand the capacity of interchanges at American Avenue and North Avenue in order to support continued industrial growth in South Central Fresno, this Project would put in place \$120 million worth of infrastructure improvements that further cements and entrenches existing industrial land use patterns that have resulted in South Central Fresno communities' designation as the most pollutionburdened in California.

Response to Comment #2

Local cities and counties have legal authority to designate zoning and approve development within their local jurisdictions. Regardless of any future action to add more industrial development in the project vicinity, both new interchanges will improve current operations at each interchange. The improved operations will reduce truck idling and reduce out-of-direction travel, leading to improvements in air quality over the current interchanges. See section 2.2.3 for more information.

Comment #3

The Project, by increasing capacity for truck and car traffic to flow into South Central Fresno and on local roadways, would contribute to residents' increased exposure to harmful air pollution and other impacts of vehicle travel and would complicate and undermine community efforts to secure changes to City and County of Fresno truck routes.

Response to Comment #3

The purpose of the project is to improve traffic operations at the existing interchanges on State Route 99 at American Avenue and North Avenue by expanding them to full interchanges and bringing them into compliance with

current Caltrans design standards. Caltrans traffic studies show the operation and performance of the interchanges need updating now because traffic conditions and the subsequent air quality will continue to worsen if no improvements are made. The project is in conformity with the State Implementation Plan, in accordance with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Transportation Conformity Regulations 40 CFR Part 93, which determines the conformity of transportation plans to the Clean Air Act Section 176(c). According to the conformity determination, the project will not create any new air quality violations. See Appendix F.

Comment #4

Caltrans must correct the deficiencies addressed in this letter by revising its analysis, identifying and incorporating all feasible mitigation measures to avoid and reduce the Project's impacts on the environment and people, and by meaningfully incorporating and responding to public input and recirculating the revised DEIR.

Response to Comment #4

The environmental document will not be recirculated because there is no significant new information about environmental impacts. The project area was incorrectly labeled as 2 miles from the location of the interchanges in the Community Cohesion discussion in Chapter 2. The information has been corrected, but the project area did not change between draft and final document. Additional greenhouse gas mitigation is being provided to enhance the already proposed mitigation. See Appendix J for more information about the new proposed sidewalk on South Cherry Avenue.

Comment #5

Caltrans has denied our request for a general extension of the comment deadline for this Project, given Caltrans' and the other involved agencies' failure to timely consult the AB 617 Community Steering Committee regarding this Project or to reach out directly to impacted communities. As community-based organizations and residents, our comments reflect input provided to us and to Caltrans regarding residents' priorities and concerns for their communities. We therefore reserve the right to submit further comments addressing the impacts associated with this Project and our requests and recommendations in light thereof.

Response to Comment #5

Caltrans notified the San Joaquin Air Pollution Control District of this project through the distribution of the Notice of Preparation, as required by the California Environmental Quality Act. On March 20, 2019, Caltrans held a Public Information/Scoping Meeting at the Robert J. Arriago Community

Center in Malaga. Caltrans engineers and planners provided project maps and information about the proposed project. Local agencies and groups, including your organization, were provided booths to share information to the local community.

On July 10, 2019, Caltrans staff attended a San Joaquin Valley Air District meeting featuring the South Central Fresno Community Steering Committee and the Caltrans Project Manager updated the committee on the project.

During the circulation of the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment, the San Joaquin Air Pollution Control District and your organization were again notified about the project through written letters. In addition, the Notice of Availability was published in *The Fresno Bee*, and the information was shared on all District 6 social media.

Caltrans extended the comment period for this project at the request of the Leadership Counsel. The comment period for this project was extended from the original 45-day period to 51 days to accommodate the Leadership Counsel's request for more time during the holiday season. The comment period officially closed on December 3, 2021. Also, Caltrans had the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment translated into Spanish and circulated for a 45-day period from December 15, 2021 to January 28, 2022. See Chapter 4 of the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for more detailed information.

Comment #6

The DEIR Inaccurately and Inadequately Describes the Environmental Baseline By Failing to Acknowledge the Presence of Existing Pollution-Burdened Communities & Other Sensitive Receptors

Response to Comment #6

Information regarding the proximity of neighborhoods to the project area has been clarified in Chapter 2 of the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment. The draft document incorrectly defined the size of the project area. The project area is defined as all properties that would be potentially purchased and converted to transportation use, which are approximately a half-mile from the center of State Route 99 and the interchange.

In-depth community studies were conducted throughout 2019 and 2020. The studies identified communities and neighborhoods in South Central Fresno, outside of the project area. The project area is made up mostly of industrial and commercial businesses. The studies are available upon request.

Comment #7

The DEIR's Failure to Analyze the Project's Impact on Vehicle Miles Travelled is Inconsistent with CEQA and Undermines the EIR's Validity

Response to Comment #7

The project is in compliance with Caltrans Policy Memo (September 10, 2020) regarding analysis of transportation impacts under the California Environmental Quality Act for projects on the State Highway System, as well as the Caltrans Transportation Analysis Framework and Transportation Analysis under the California Environmental Quality Act guide to implementation of Senate Bill 743 (Steinberg, 2013) codified at Public Resources Code Section 21099. The project met implementation timeline requirements in the memo, which established that projects initiated on or after December 28, 2018, which have reached or will reach Caltrans' milestone 020 (Begin Environmental) before July 1, 2020, be "evaluated by the Department in consultation with project sponsors on a case-by-case basis to determine if the use of a Vehicle Miles Traveled-based transportation impact significance determination in the draft environmental document is warranted." The factors involved in the decision included the project timeline, which is tied to critical funding, and the absence of an established process to complete Vehicle Miles Traveled analysis. Therefore, the project sponsors (Fresno County Transportation Authority and the Fresno Council of Governments) were in agreement to proceed with the recommendation not to implement Vehicle Miles Traveled analysis on this project; therefore, the project was grandfathered in.

Comment #8

The DEIR Fails to Adequately Analyze or Mitigate the Project's Significant Air Quality Impacts

Response to Comment #8

Caltrans is required to follow all federal and state guidelines when addressing air quality impacts as part of the environmental review. The air quality analysis went through interagency review with the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency and the Federal Highway Administration. Both agencies concurred that the project would not cause or contribute to new air pollution violations. Furthermore, the agencies determined the project would benefit traffic circulation because future traffic is projected to worsen due to new developments in the area. Without the proposed project in place, future traffic would become congested and cause stop-and-go traffic on State Route 99, and on the local roads where sensitive receptors may be exposed to higher levels of air pollution. See Appendix F for the Federal Highway Administration's concurrence letter on the project-level conformity determination.

Comment #9

The DEIR Fails to Analyze or Acknowledge the Project's Conflicts With The South Central Fresno AB 617 Community Emissions Reduction Plan.

Response to Comment #9

The project is part of the Regional Transportation Plan, which is required to meet emissions budgets for particulate matter. Since the area is in nonattainment for particulate matter, all Regional Transportation Plans must demonstrate a reduction in particulate matter to meet the particulate matter thresholds set by federal guidelines. Part of the process requires project-level conformity to be shown to demonstrate the project will not cause or contribute to new or existing air violations. Therefore, the project does not conflict with the Community Emissions Reduction Program goals of reducing emissions in the project area. See Air Quality Section 2.2.3.

Comment #10

The Project Would Expose Sensitive Receptors to Substantial Pollutant Concentrations

Response to Comment #10

Caltrans conducted a Traffic Operations Analysis Report, which determined traffic would not increase as a result of the project. The report found that the project would benefit traffic circulation, because traffic is projected to worsen due to planned growth in the area.

Without the project, the existing interchange configurations would continue to deteriorate, worsening congestion and driving conditions that contribute to the deterioration of air quality at the interchange locations.

Dust resulting from construction activities is considered temporary because the duration of the project is less than 5 years, as defined in 40 Code of Federal Regulations 93.123(c)(5). The construction impacts to air quality are short-term in duration and would not result in long-term adverse conditions. Caltrans Standard Specifications pertaining to dust control and dust palliative requirements are a required part of all construction contracts and should effectively reduce and control emission impacts during construction. Please refer to the Air Quality Environmental Consequences section for more information on dust control.

Comment #11

The DEIR must also consider the following potentially significant air quality impacts on sensitive receptors within the Project vicinity:

Dust and other air quality impacts from Project construction. The DEIR appears not to consider whether residents in communities located near the Project may be exposed to substantial dust from construction activities. The DEIR indicates that Project construction is expected to last for 18 months. p. 2. Given the significant duration of construction, the scope of improvements proposed, and the Project's close proximity to Calwa and other emissions-burdened residential areas, it is critical that Caltrans revise the DEIR to thoroughly account for dust and other air quality impacts of construction on the local population.

Dust impacts from Project operation. The DEIR also does not appear to consider the significant dust impacts associated with vehicle travel along local roadways with unpaved shoulders and where sensitive receptors are located, including East Central Avenue. Residents in South Central Fresno have reported noticing significant quantities of dust covering their homes and cars and seeping into their homes. Attachment 3 par. 8.

Chronic exposure to dust can result in a range of lung diseases and other health impacts.

Tire dust exposure impacts. Studies have found that rubber from vehicle tires dissipates into the air as particulate matter with wear and that PM causes adverse health impacts for sensitive receptors which inhale it. CalTrans must revise the DEIR to evaluate the potential exposure to sensitive receptors to PM from tire wear and associated impacts on public health.

Response to Comment #11

Caltrans Standard Specification 14.9.02 Air Pollution Control shall be followed by the contractor. The specification requires contractors to comply with all air pollution control rules, regulations, ordinances, and statutes. In addition, only Environmental Protection Agency Tier 4 equipment will be used to construct the proposed project, given that it is located in an Assembly Bill 617 community.

Short-term air quality impacts would arise from construction activities and are considered unavoidable. However, construction emissions from the proposed project are negligible in terms of the overall project area and would not substantively impact the overall project area emissions. The project was determined to be in conformity with the State Implementation Plan, and the project will not create any new violations, including localized PM10, which covers dust. See Appendix F.

Comment #12

The DEIR Erroneously Dismisses the Project's Significant Aesthetic Impacts. The Project Will Have Substantial Adverse Effects on Scenic Vistas and Will Substantially Degrade Public Views.

Response to Comment #12

Caltrans completed a Visual Impact Analysis in September 2020. The analysis determined the project will have a moderately low visual impact. The project will meet the requirements of Fresno Council of Governments' July 2000 Highway 99 Beautification Plan. The project is not located within a scenic highway. The structures proposed by the project will not block any scenic vistas because they will be approximately the same height as the current structures; therefore, it was determined that the project will not have a substantially adverse effect on scenic vistas. See Section 2.1.5 for additional information related to the Visual Impact Analysis.

The project will not degrade public views because East Daleville Avenue and South Mary Avenue are not adjacent to State Route 99, and the new interchange structures will not block views from the residences.

This comment also claimed "...the construction of large industrial buildings in South Central Fresno will eliminate existing scenic views." Visual standards of future development are the purview of the City and County of Fresno.

Comment #13

The Project Will Create New Sources of Substantial Light or Glare That Adversely Impact Views

Response to Comment #13

The project is not expected to create a new source of light or glare. Approximately 14 streetlight standards exist, and approximately 12 new lights are expected, divided among four locations. Newer standards have light focused downward to minimize excess light. The new lighting will be located at on-ramps and off-ramps and not near residential locations. See Section 2.1.5 for further discussion.

The build alternatives at North Avenue are projected to have slightly less truck traffic when compared to the No-Build Alternative; therefore, the project will not cause an increase in glare from trucks. See Table 2-8.

Comment #14

The DEIR Fails to Consider Significant Noise and Groundborne Vibration Impacts of Vehicle Traffic on Sensitive Land Uses

Response to Comment #14

Shady Lakes Mobile Home Park is approximately 3,700 feet from the American Avenue interchange, and the closest residences in Calwa are 3,200 feet from the North Avenue interchange with a large rail yard between the two. The impact of vibrations from construction activities was evaluated, and the level of vibration generated from the loudest construction equipment is expected to generate a level value well below the threshold for structural damage and human annoyance. The analysis has been included below.

Construction Noise Control

Noise Source	50-Foot Maximum Noise Level (Lmax) dBA	
Backhoe	90	
Concrete Mixer Truck	89	
Crane Derrick	90	
Dozer (Bulldozer)	90	
Front End Loader	90	
Paver	92	
Pump	80	
Roller	83	
Scraper	91	
Tractor	90	
Trucks (Under Load)	95	
Water Truck	94	

Table 1: Construction Equipment Noise

The project area is mainly rural, and construction noise will be controlled under and will conform to the provisions in Section 14-8.02, "Noise Control," of the Standard Specifications. If night work is anticipated within a residential neighborhood, Standard Special Provision Form 14-8.02, which addresses noise control, must be filled out.

The construction equipment anticipated to be used for this project is listed in the table above. The loudest construction equipment is expected to generate a noise level of 95 dB at 50 feet from construction site. This noise level drops at 6 dB for every doubling of distance and continues to drop to below 59 dBA at a 0.7-mile distance from the construction site. As a reference, 60 dBA is equivalent to the sound generated by having a conversation at restaurant or office. This noise level is well below the nighttime restriction for construction noise per Standard Special Provision 14-8, nighttime construction noise not to exceed 86 dBA between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.

Ground-borne Vibration

Annoyance to humans and damage to buildings are the two ground-borne vibration impacts of general concern. The two measurements corresponding to human annoyance and building damage for evaluating ground-borne vibration is peak particle velocity (PPV) and root-mean square (RMS) velocity. Peak particle

velocity is the maximum instantaneous positive or negative peak of the vibration signal, measured as a distance per time (such as millimeters or inches per second). This measurement has been used historically to evaluate shock-wave type vibrations from actions like blasting, pile driving, and mining activities, and their relationship to building damage. See the table below.

Human Response	Maximum Peak Particle Velocity (inches per second) from Transient Sources
Barely perceptible	0.04
Distinctly perceptible	0.25
Strongly perceptible	0.9
Severe	2.0

 Table 2: Guidelines Vibration Annoyance Potential Criteria

Construction activity can result in ground vibration, depending upon the types of equipment used. Operation of construction equipment causes ground vibrations, which spread through the ground and diminish in strength with distance from the source generating the vibration.

Vibration can have impacts on building structures and humans within the vicinity of the construction site.

Vibration levels from various types of construction equipment are shown in the table below. The main concern with construction vibration is building damage. Therefore, construction vibration is generally assessed in terms of peak particle velocity. It should be noted that there is a considerable variation in reported ground vibration levels from construction activities. The data provides a reasonable estimate for a wide range of soil conditions.

Equipment	Reference Peak Particle Velocity at 25 feet (inches per second)
Vibratory roller	0.210
Large bulldozer	0.089
Caisson drilling	0.089
Loaded trucks	0.076
Jackhammer	0.035
Small bulldozer	0.003

 Table 3: Vibration Source Levels for Construction Equipment

To estimate the impact of vibrations from construction activities to the mobile home park about 4,900 feet from the construction site, the following formula was applied:

PPVEquipment = PPVRef (25/D)ⁿ (inches per second) PPVRef = reference peak particle velocity at 25 feet for the highest noise source (loaded trucks), Table 3.

D = distance from equipment to the receiver in feet (in this case, 4,900 feet to the mobile home park site)

n = 1.1 (the value related to the attenuation rate through ground)

Therefore, PPV Equipment= 0.076 (25/4900)^{1.1} = 0.000287 inches per second

The level of vibration generated from the loudest construction equipment loaded trucks—is expected to generate a vibration level value of 0.000287 inches per second in relation to the mobile homes located 3,700 feet from the construction site. The vibration level value is well below the threshold level for structural damage and human annoyance, as shown in Tables 2 and 3, above.

Comment #15

The Project Undermines Public Process in City & County Planning Processes and Conflicts With the South Central Specific Plan's Goals and Environmental Justice Planning Requirements

Response to Comment #15

Chapter 2 of the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment has been revised to acknowledge the presence of Environmental Justice communities near the project area. The Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment described the anticipated update to the South Central Specific Plan using information available in finalized land use plans at the time of circulation. The community map referenced and developed by the Leadership Council and the recommended revisions to the land use designations provided to the City of Fresno are still under review. The South Central Specific Plan Draft Environmental Impact Report has not been circulated or finalized; therefore, the changes requested by the Leadership Council for Justice and Accountability have yet to be confirmed for inclusion in the Draft Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment for the South Fresno State Route 99 Corridor project. Caltrans Environmental staff did not include more information from the South Central Specific Plan because it has not yet been finalized or published.

Caltrans followed the public processes required under the California Environmental Quality Act for an Environmental Impact Report, which included the publication of a notice of preparation, publication of a notice of availability and public hearing. In addition, Caltrans held a scoping meeting prior to preparation of the Draft Environmental Impact Report. These efforts afforded the public numerous opportunities to review and comment on the environmental document.

Comment #16

The Project Conflicts with Caltrans' Duties Under Civil Rights and Fair Housing Laws

Response to Comment #16

The Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment has been revised to acknowledge the presence of Environmental Justice communities near the project area, but not in the project area. No populations were identified within the project area; therefore, it was determined that the project would not have a disproportionate adverse environmental impact that would violate the civil rights or fair housing laws of residents in the surrounding communities. The project will not displace any residences.

Appendix H Assembly Bill 617 South Central Fresno Community Map

Assembly Bill 617 requires the California Air Resources Board and air districts to develop and implement additional emissions reporting, monitoring, reduction plans and measures to reduce air pollution exposure in disadvantaged communities. In 2018, the South Central Fresno community was selected by the California Air Resources Board for investment of additional resources.

Both proposed project interchanges are located within the South Central Fresno Assembly Bill 617 boundaries. Caltrans has coordinated with the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District and attended meetings with the Community Steering Committee. In addition to proposed greenhouse gas mitigation measures proposed in Section 3.3.4, Caltrans will also mandate that construction equipment used on the proposed project will meet Environmental Protection Agency Tier 4 emission standards.

The following map shows the Assembly Bill 617 community boundary in South Central Fresno.







Appendix J South Cherry Avenue Sidewalk and Vegetative Barrier

The following figure shows the location of the sidewalk and vegetative barrier overlaying an aerial photography map of South Cherry Avenue.



List of Technical Studies

Environmental studies included analysis of a full range of environmental topics to study the effects of this project. The following technical documents were prepared for some of the topics studied:

Draft Relocation Impact Study

Air Quality Report

Noise Study Report

Water Quality Report

Natural Environment Study-Minimal Impacts

Location Hydraulic Study and Floodplain Evaluation Report

Historic Property Survey Reports

- Historic Resources Evaluation Report
- Archaeological Survey Report

Hazardous Waste Reports

- Initial Site Assessment
- Preliminary Site Investigation
- Aerially Deposited Lead Study

Visual Impact Assessment

Paleontological Evaluation Report Community Impact Memorandum Traffic Operations Report

To obtain a copy of one or more of these technical studies and reports or the Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Assessment, please send your request to the following email address: d6.public.info@dot.ca.gov

Please indicate the project name and project identifying code (under the project name on the cover of this document) and specify the technical report or document you would like a copy of. Provide your name and email address or U.S. postal service mailing address (street address, city, state and zip code).